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We are pleased with Samsonite’s progress in 2021. With increased vaccination
rates, easing of social-distancing measures and reopening of domestic travel in
markets around the world, our performance markedly improved. With our strong
financial position, proven discipline in controlling costs and managing cash, as well
as our highly responsive, decentralized management structure, we are confident
in our ability to navigate the ongoing challenges and where appropriate, invest for
long-term growth and shareholder value creation.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
ACITM

With a heritage dating back more than 110 years, Samsonite
International S.A. (the “Company”), together with its consolidated
subsidiaries (the “Group”), is a leader in the global lifestyle bag industry
and is the world’s best-known and largest travel luggage company.
The Group is principally engaged in the design, manufacture, sourcing
and distribution of luggage, business and computer bags, outdoor and
casual bags and travel accessories throughout the world, primarily
under the Samsonite®, Tumi®, American Tourister®, Gregory®, High
Sierra®, Kamiliant®, ebags®, Lipault® and Hartmann® brand names as
well as other owned and licensed brand names.

The Company’s Strategy

The Company aims to increase shareholder value through sustainable
revenue and earnings growth and free cash flow generation. In order
to achieve this objective, the Company has adopted the following
principal strategies:

e Ensure the Company’s well-diversified family of brands attracts
consumers at all price points in both the travel and non-travel
luggage, bag and accessories categories.

¢ Increase the proportion of net sales from the Company’s direct-to-
consumer e-commerce channel.

e Focused investment in marketing to support the Company’s
brands and initiatives.

e Continue to leverage the Company’s regional management
structure, distribution expertise and marketing engine to extend
its brands into new markets and penetrate deeper into existing
channels.

e Continue to invest in research and development to develop lighter
and stronger new materials, advanced manufacturing processes,
exciting new designs and sustainable collections, as well as
innovative functionalities that deliver real benefits to consumers.

e Continue to incorporate the Company’s environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) philosophy into its core business practices
through “Our Responsible Journey” to lead the industry in
sustainability and treat all stakeholders with fairness and respect in
line with the Company’s long-standing guiding principle, “Do unto
others as you would have them do unto you”.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
ACIILb

Near-term Focus:

Ensuring the safety and well-being of the Group’s employees,
customers and partners continues to be a top priority of the
Company.

Executing on the Group’s plan to ensure the recovery of its
business proceeds in the most cost-effective, safe and efficient
way to ensure the Company emerges strongly with an improving
profit margin profile while growing its market share as travel
continues to recover.

The Group will remain focused on improving and maintaining its
gross margins through (i) reduced discounting and promotional
activity; (i) price increases to mitigate increased product costs,
duties, and freight; and (i) working closely with its suppliers to
manage these increasing cost pressures.

The Group has taken significant actions to preserve cash and
reduce its fixed cost base, and will remain disciplined in managing
its expenses, including its fixed selling, general and administrative
(“SG&A”) expenses, to maintain this lower cost structure.

As the impacts of COVID-19 recede and the Group’s sales
continue to recover, the Group will look to make selective
investments in core strategic functions going forward when
opportunities arise.

The Group intends to increase its investment in marketing spend
in 2022 to drive growth in brand awareness and to capitalize on
the continued recovery in travel.

The Group will look to prudently and strategically increase
investment in capital expenditures and software to drive future
long-term and sustainable growth.

The Group is investing more into its working capital, primarily
inventory, to support the ongoing recovery in the demand for its
products, but stock replenishments may be slightly delayed due to
the continuing shipping delays and port congestion.

The Group believes that its leading brands, coupled with the best
teams in the industry and its ongoing commitment to sustainability
and innovation, will help strengthen its long-term market position
as travel returns to pre-COVID-19 levels.

With significant liquidity of US$1.5 billion at December 31,
2021, the Group is in a strong position not only to navigate the
business through the ongoing effects of COVID-19 and increased
geopolitical tensions, but also to invest for long-term growth and
success.
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DISCLAIMER

ELL

Non-IFRS Measures

The Company has presented certain non-IFRS" measures in the
Summary Financial Results and Financial Highlights, Chairman’s
Statement, Chief Executive Officer’'s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis because each of these measures provides
additional information that management believes is useful for
securities analysts, investors and other interested parties to gain a
more complete understanding of the Group’s operational performance
and of the trends impacting its business. These non-IFRS financial
measures, as calculated herein, may not be comparable to similarly
named measures used by other companies, and should not be
considered comparable to IFRS measures. Non-IFRS measures
have limitations as an analytical tool and should not be considered
in isolation from, or as a substitute for, an analysis of the Group’s
financial results as reported under IFRS.

Forward-looking Statements

This document contains forward-looking statements. Forward-looking
statements reflect the Company’s current views with respect to future
events and performance. These statements may discuss, among other
things, the Company’s net sales, operating profit (loss), Adjusted Net
Income (Loss), Adjusted EBITDA®, Adjusted EBITDA margin, cash
flow, liquidity and capital resources, potential impairments, growth,
strategies, plans, achievements, distributions, organizational structure,
future store openings or closings, market opportunities and general
market and industry conditions. The Company generally identifies
forward-looking statements by words such as “expect”, “seek”,
“believe”, “plan”, “intend”, “estimate”, “project”, “anticipate”, “may”,
“will”, “would” and “could” or similar words or statements. Forward-
looking statements are based on beliefs and assumptions made by
management using currently available information. These statements
are only predictions and are not guarantees of future performance,
actions or events. Forward-looking statements are subject to risks
and uncertainties. These risks, uncertainties and other factors also
include the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Company’s
future financial and operational results, which could vary significantly
depending on the duration and severity of the COVID-19 pandemic
worldwide and the pace and extent of recovery following the
COVID-19 pandemic.
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DISCLAIMER

SEH

If one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or if
management’s underlying beliefs and assumptions prove to be
incorrect, actual results may differ materially from those contemplated
by a forward-looking statement. Among the factors that could cause
actual results to differ materially are: the effect of worldwide economic
conditions; the length and severity of the COVID-19 pandemic; lower
levels of consumer spending resulting from COVID-19; a general
economic downturn or generally reduced consumer spending,
including as a result of COVID-19; the pace and extent of recovery
following COVID-19; significant changes in consumer spending
patterns or preferences; interruptions or delays in the supply of
finished goods or key components; the performance of the Group’s
products within the prevailing retail environment; financial difficulties
encountered by customers and related bankruptcy and collection
issues; and risks related to the success of the Group’s restructuring
programs. Given the inherent uncertainty about the future impacts of
COVID-19, it is not possible for the Company to reliably predict the
extent to which its business, results of operations, financial condition
or liquidity will ultimately be impacted (see Management Discussion
and Analysis — Impact of COVID-19 for further discussion).

These risks and uncertainties include those set forth under “Risk
Management and Internal Control” within the Corporate Governance
Report. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on
which they are made. The Company’s shareholders, potential investors
and other interested parties should not place undue reliance on these
forward-looking statements. The Company expressly disclaims any
obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether
as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as
required by applicable securities laws and regulations.

Rounding

Certain amounts presented in this document have been rounded up
or down to the nearest million, unless otherwise indicated. There may
therefore be discrepancies between the actual totals of the individual
amounts in the tables and the totals shown, between the amounts in
the tables and the amounts given in the corresponding analyses in
the text of this document and between amounts in this document and
other publicly available documents. All percentages and key figures
were calculated using the underlying data in whole US Dollars.

Notes 57

B £ —THe A LR T EERZE - hinE
BEMNERBULBREEFRAATERE IR
HRAEEGHMAIEMRMTTESRERERE
2o MR ERAERLBEEAZENERE
o RBEERROEZE - 2019 B IRRSEAE
MISERMREERE 20198 MBS B S
BUHBEZHKTETR - 20198 RESRIE
EHRYSBEBLEET RN EEESHERER
>~ 201978 MR BRI 2 1% MR EE PR R IR
CHBEXHEASRBIERE S - &
Ml EFET A ERET IR - AEER
MEENZTERRETFNRE BRPBIHH
PR 2 T2 AR BRI 2 IR SR eI 8~ DA e B ER [
NEMEHREAANRE - 220193 KE
SREBRTROZEASHFETEERR
RNAREEAT S TR R - (2 5E -
BHRARNTHESHZRBIIMNERENF
B(E—FIRELHEEETRESN —
2019 RMERIENFE]) -

=

S

ZERR I THREANRERLOEERREN
R E IR R A BPER ] —EIRT#E - ATIEIE
BUERABEZEFLERNER - AAFR
R BEREEREMMEHEBT TRED K
FEZEREERL - RABAERTR - FREM
EFEGI FOERRES - A B EFEER
FIREM - RARFHREMEARMEREET
R ATRE MERRL -

WE

BRBHRAIN AP ETEEE A LKA
THRBREREANAEM - Bt - RIEFEH
SRNERGBEMRABZE  AXHRRB
FH) SRR T ER S P AT IRE A S E 2 ]
AR A e R B AR RN
ZEAEFEER - MEBDLRETRHER
ERBEBETHERBIEESH -

(1) International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
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(2) Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization.

RS TR TEREHANRF -

6 Samsonite International S.A. /Annual Report 2021 /



SUMMARY FINANCIAL RESULTS AND FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

IRRENER M BERE

The Board of Directors of Samsonite International S.A. (the
“Company”), together with its consolidated subsidiaries (the “Group”),
is pleased to present the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company as of December 31, 2021 and for the year then ended,
together with comparative figures for the year ended December 31,
2020.

Summary Financial Results

During the year ended December 31, 2021 the Group experienced
improved sales trends as the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic
on demand for the Group’s products moderated as a result of the
rollout of vaccines, the continuing recovery in travel and governments
in many countries loosening social-distancing, travel and other
restrictions. The Group’s net sales recovery accelerated during the
second half of 2021. During 2020 and through the first half of 2021,
certain government-mandated restrictions and lockdowns resulted in
temporary closures of certain retail stores in which the Company’s
products were sold, quarantines and social-distancing required or
recommended by governments, and significant reductions in travel
and discretionary spending among consumers, which led to reduced
demand for many of the Group’s products (collectively, the “COVID-19
Impacts”).

During 2020 and 2021, the Group’s management took steps to
enhance the Company’s liquidity and further improve its resilience in
response to the COVID-19 Impacts. In addition to strengthening the
Company’s liquidity, the Group aggressively reduced its operating
expenses to mitigate the impact of lower sales on profit and cash
flow as well as to right-size the business for the future. Management
continues to tightly manage the Group’s operating expenses (see
Management Discussion and Analysis — Impact of COVID-19 for
further discussion).

In this annual report, certain financial results for the year ended
December 31, 2021 are compared to both the year ended December
31, 2020 and the year ended December 31, 2019. Comparisons to
the year ended December 31, 2019 are provided because it is the
most recently ended comparable year during which the Company’s
results were not affected by COVID-19. During the year ended
December 31, 2020 the COVID-19 Impacts had a significant effect on
the Company'’s financial results.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL RESULTS AND FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
IR REBERVBHE

For the Years Ended December 31, 2021 BZ2021F12A318 Kk

and December 31, 2020 2020 12HA31HILEE

The following table sets forth summary financial results for the years — F&REFIEHZE20214F12 31 H KX2020912 A
ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020. S1AIEFENMBEEME -

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31BLFEE

Percentage
increase
(decrease) excl.
o Percentage foreign currency
(Expressed in millions of US Dollars, except per increase effects’
share data) (decrease) R IE H 52 21
(UBBETZ2  BREEBEEI) 2021 2020 #EMOAD) B EMORD) BHLO
Net sales $§& 58 2,020.8 1,636.7 31.5% 30.3%
Operating profit (loss)® 4% Fl| (E518) @ 132.7 (1,266.2) nm nm
Operating profit (loss) excluding impairment
(reversals) charges, restructuring charges and
the loss on sale of Speck®: @
Ea A (B18) (MERRE (BE) &H -

E/AE A K ESpeck HIEIE)@ 6 120.1 (282.9) nm nm
Profit (loss) for the year &A% Fl (E518) 23.5 (1,288.0) nm nm
Profit (loss) attributable to the equity holders
&R B ARERT (F18) 14.3 (1,277.7) nm nm
Adjusted Net Income (Loss)® £&FHEF U A (EE) @ 17.4 (406.1) nm nm
Adjusted EBITDA® £ s EBITDA® 182.3 (218.8) nm nm
Adjusted EBITDA margin® #&##EBITDAFE =R 6 9.0% (14.2)%

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share

(Expressed in US Dollars per share)

BREAREERT (BR) (UERETZ27) 0.010 (0.891) nm nm
Adjusted basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share®”

(Expressed in US Dollars per share)

KREGREAREERR (BR) " (UEZRETES) 0.012 (0.283) nm nm

Notes 5%

1)

@

nm

Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-IFRS measure, are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the year under
comparison to current year local currency results.

RTEEREEFH2INEBERFFRSHUBAELR RUSEHEE 2N AFERERAELBLRFENFHERAEMGE -

Results for the year ended December 31, 2021 included total Restructuring Charges (as defined in Management Discussion and Analysis
- Restructuring Charges) of US$17.7 million, a loss on the sale of Speck (as defined in the Financial Highlights) and total net non-cash
impairment reversals of US$31.6 million. Results for the year ended December 31, 2020 included total Restructuring Charges of US$63.0
million and total non-cash impairment charges of US$920.3 million. See Impairment (Reversals) Charges, Restructuring Charges and Other
Income, respectively, in Management Discussion and Analysis for further discussion.

HZE2021F12 A1 HIEFENEERELEI77TAEEINEEER (TR EEENRENIT - BHEER]) - HESpeckEIE (EER
[BBHE]) REFEAS6ESETNIIBLAMEREIFE - HE2020F 12 A1 B FEMNEERIERE R 0EBEETNEEERREFA
920.3EBETMIFREBEER - E—Hrlmm o 2M I ERENHESIT M DRE (BE) BA ] [EEER | RIEMBKAL -

Operating profit (loss) excluding total net non-cash impairment (reversals) charges, total restructuring charges and the loss on the sale of
Speck is a non-IFRS measure and as calculated herein may not be comparable to similarly named measures used by other companies and
should not be considered comparable to operating profit (loss) for the year in the Group’s consolidated statements of income (loss).

MR FEIRSIRME (B B R FHATE - SEEMETE R HESpeckEEMEEHT (F518) RIFIFRSH B8 TA - AN PFatE IR LA H
HthARFTEREUG RN E TABTHE - BTERR AR EAEEGE W (BR) RPOFENLLEF (BR) B1THE -

Adjusted Net Income (Loss), a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of a number of costs, charges and credits and certain other non-cash
charges, along with their respective tax effects, that impact the Group’s reported profit (loss) for the year, which the Group believes helps to
give securities analysts, investors and other interested parties a better understanding of the Group’s underlying financial performance. See
Management Discussion and Analysis — Adjusted Net Income (Loss) for a reconciliation from the Group’s profit (loss) for the year to Adjusted
Net Income (Loss).

ERAREFWRA (B518) RIFIFRSHIBTE T A - AMRPEAKENZRF NG (BB NZERAN  BAREEUARETHMIFRSER (&
AEZENRBTE) NPE  A5ERCEEENESFHINE REEREMMNZEHHFE2E TRAKENEEVHRE - EAAEEFN G
F (E1R) BEREFHA (B1B) MY - F2M ERENMEDIT — ERABFWA (BEB)] -

Adjusted EBITDA, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of a number of costs, charges and credits and certain other non-cash charges.
The Group believes these measures provide additional information that is useful in gaining a more complete understanding of its operational
performance and of the underlying trends of its business. See Management Discussion and Analysis — Adjusted EBITDA for a reconciliation
from the Group’s profit (loss) for the year to Adjusted EBITDA.

EAEEBITDARIEIFRSHMBHELA - HMBRZHEAA BEAREBEURETHMIERSBERNTE - AEEEEXSUHKTETAGRHE
BEEM BARE2ETHRALERRRAEBNERBE - AEASEFNRT (F18) HAREEBITDANYER - F2H [ ERENHED
T — & FHEEBITDA] »

Adjusted EBITDA margin, a non-IFRS measure, is calculated by dividing Adjusted EBITDA by net sales.

T EEBITDATEE BIFIFRSII 5t & T A - LAEHEEBITDAR A HE FR ETE -

Adjusted basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share, both non-IFRS measures, are calculated by dividing Adjusted Net Income (Loss) by the
weighted average number of shares used in the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share calculations, respectively.
KARGREAREERT (BR) U ARIFIFRSMBTETR - BUAKEAEFWA (BR) 2RIk AGREARREERF (FR) st 5 /R 8
PR BB S EAE

Not meaningful.
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Financial Highlights

Net sales were US$2,020.8 million for the year ended December
31, 2021 compared to US$1,536.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020, an increase of 31.5% (+30.3% constant
currency). On July 30, 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company sold Speculative Product Design, LLC (“Speck”). When
excluding the net sales of Speck for August through December
2020, consolidated net sales increased by US$538.3 million, or
36.3% (+35.1% constant currency), for the year ended December
31, 2021 compared to the previous year. The Group experienced
improved sales trends throughout the year ended December 31,
2021 as the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on demand for the
Group’s products moderated as a result of the rollout of vaccines,
the continuing recovery in travel and governments in many
countries loosening social-distancing, travel and other restrictions.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group recorded
a net sales decline of 44.5% (-44.4% constant currency) when
compared to the year ended December 31, 2019. When excluding
the net sales of Speck for August through December 2019,
consolidated net sales decreased by 43.5% (-43.5% constant
currency) for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2019.

Gross profit margin increased to 54.5% for the year ended
2021 from 46.0% for the previous year. The
increase in gross profit margin for the year ended December
31, 2021 was attributable to (i) price increases on the Group’s
products sold to mitigate increased product, freight and duty
costs,
for inventory reserves year-on-year. Gross profit margin during

December 31,

(i) lower promotional discounts and (iii) lower provisions

the year ended December 31,
increased provisions for inventory reserves, (i) fixed manufacturing
expenses on a lower sales base, (iii) the inclusion of restructuring
charges and non-cash impairment charges related to the sourcing
and production of the Group’s products and (iv) a shift in sales
mix. See Management Discussion and Analysis — Cost of Sales
and Gross Profit for further discussion.

2020 was lower due mainly to (i)

The Group spent US$82.3 million on marketing during the year
ended December 31, 2021 compared to US$73.3 million for the
year ended December 31, 2020, an increase of US$9.1 million,
or 12.4%. As a percentage of net sales, marketing expenses
decreased by 70 basis points to 4.1% for the year ended
December 31, 2021 from 4.8% for the year ended December 31,
2020. The Group has continued to tightly manage its marketing
expenses in an effort to help conserve cash and to mitigate the
effects of the COVID-19 Impacts on the Group’s profitability.

o HZE2021F12A31HILEFE -
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During the year ended December 31, 2021 the Group recognized
net non-cash impairment reversals (the “2021 Impairment
(Reversals) Charges”) of US$31.6 million. Of this amount, the
Group recognized net impairment reversals totaling US$45.2
million related to non-cash impairment charges for certain
tradenames that had been previously impaired during the year
ended December 31, 2020, net non-cash impairment reversals of
US$11.0 million resulting from improvements in certain retail stores
that had been previously impaired, partially offset by non-cash
impairment charges of US$24.7 million related to impairments of
goodwill and other intangible assets associated with the sale of
Speck. Due to the negative impacts resulting from the COVID-19
pandemic during the year ended December 31, 2020, certain
indefinite-lived intangible assets identified by the Group were
tested for impairment. Total non-cash impairment charges (the
“2020 Impairment Charges”) of US$920.3 million (including US$4.3
million of non-cash impairment charges in cost of sales) comprised
of (i) US$496.0 million for goodwill, (i) US$248.8 million for certain
tradenames and (iii) based on an evaluation of loss-making stores,
(@) US$140.3 million for the write-off of lease right-of-use assets
and (b) US$35.3 million for the write-off of certain property, plant
and equipment, including leasehold improvements and certain
molds and machinery used for the production of certain luggage
product lines, were recognized. See Management Discussion and
Analysis — Impairment (Reversals) Charges for further discussion.

Beginning in 2020 and continuing into 2021, the Group
aggressively reduced its operating expenses to mitigate the impact
of lower sales on profit and cash flow as well as to right-size the
business for the future in response to the COVID-19 Impacts
(see Management Discussion and Analysis — Impact of COVID-19
for further discussion). In conjunction with these cost saving
actions and other initiatives, the Group recognized Restructuring
Charges (as defined in Management Discussion and Analysis -
Restructuring Charges) of US$17.7 million (including US$0.7 million
of Restructuring Charges in cost of sales) and US$63.0 million
(including US$8.5 million of Restructuring Charges in cost of sales)
during the years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31,
2020, respectively. See Management Discussion and Analysis —
Restructuring Charges for further discussion.

h
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The Group reported an operating profit of US$132.7 million for
the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to an operating
loss of US$1,266.2 million for the previous year. The Group
had an operating profit of US$120.1 million® for the year ended
December 31, 2021 when excluding the net non-cash 2021
Impairment (Reversals) Charges, Restructuring Charges and
the loss on the sale of Speck recognized during the year ended
December 31, 2021. In comparison, the Group incurred an
operating loss of US$282.9 million™ for the year ended December
31, 2020 when excluding the non-cash 2020 Impairment Charges
and the Restructuring Charges recognized during the year ended
December 31, 2020.

Profit for the year ended December 31, 2021 was US$23.5 million
compared to a loss for the year ended December 31, 2020 of
US$1,288.0 million. The Group incurred a loss for the year ended
December 31, 2021 of US$5.5 million™ when excluding the net
non-cash 2021 Impairment (Reversals) Charges, Restructuring
Charges, the loss on the sale of Speck and charges associated
with the Fifth Amended Credit Agreement and the Sixth Amended
Credit Agreement (each as defined in Management Discussion
and Analysis — Indebtedness) recognized during the year ended
December 31, 2021, all of which are net of the related tax impact,
and the US$42.6 million tax benefit associated with the intra-
group realignment of certain intellectual property rights (the “Intra-
Group IP Realignment”). In comparison, the Group incurred a
loss for the year ended December 31, 2020 of US$424.1 million®
when excluding the non-cash 2020 Impairment Charges and
the Restructuring Charges recognized during the year ended
December 31, 2020, both of which are net of the related tax
impact.

Profit attributable to the equity holders was US$14.3 million for the
year ended December 31, 2021 compared to a loss attributable
to the equity holders of US$1,277.7 million for the previous year.
For the year ended December 31, 2021 the Group incurred a
loss attributable to the equity holders of US$14.7 million® when
excluding the net non-cash 2021 Impairment (Reversals) Charges,
Restructuring Charges, the loss on the sale of Speck and charges
associated with the Fifth Amended Credit Agreement and the Sixth
Amended Credit Agreement recognized during the year ended
December 31, 2021, all of which are net of the related tax impact,
and the US$42.6 million tax benefit associated with the Intra-
Group IP Realignment. In comparison, the Group recorded a loss
attributable to the equity holders for the year ended December 31,
2020 of US$413.8 million® when excluding the non-cash 2020
Impairment Charges and the Restructuring Charges recognized
during the year ended December 31, 2020, both of which are net
of the related tax impact.
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Adjusted EBITDA, a non-IFRS measure, improved by US$401.1
million to earnings of US$182.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021 compared to a loss of US$218.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 2020. Adjusted EBITDA margin was
9.0% for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to (14.2%)
for the year ended December 31, 2020 due primarily to improved
net sales and gross profit, along with the effects of actions taken
by management to reduce the fixed cost structure of the business.

The Group generated US$387.1 million of cash from operating
activities during the year ended December 31, 2021 compared
to US$114.2 million of cash used in operating activities for the
previous year. As of December 31, 2021, the Group had cash and
cash equivalents of US$1,324.8 million and outstanding financial
debt of US$2,802.0 million (excluding deferred financing costs of
US$12.6 million), resulting in a net debt position of US$1,477.2
million compared to a net debt position of US$1,735.5 million as
of December 31, 2020. Total cash generation® was US$199.8
million during the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to
total cash burn® of (US$360.1) million during the year ended
December 31, 2020 as a result of the Group taking meaningful
actions during 2020 and 2021 to reduce its fixed cost base and
marketing expenditures, improve working capital and put a virtual
freeze on capital expenditures in response to the COVID-19
Impacts. The year-on-year improvement in total cash generation
(burn) was driven by increased sales, improved profitability and
changes in working capital. The Company remains focused on
cash preservation by tightly managing capital expenditures,
marketing activities and discretionary spending. Total liquidity®
as of December 31, 2021 was US$1,501.4 million compared
to US$1,518.3 million as of December 31, 2020. While liquidity
remained relatively consistent year on year, the Group repaid
US$370.0 million principal amount of borrowings under the
Amended Senior Credit Facilities (as defined in Management
Discussion and Analysis — Indebtedness) during 2021.

o
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e On July 30, 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company sold
Speck for an aggregate cash consideration of US$35.3 million. The
net proceeds from the sale were used to repay a portion of the
outstanding borrowings under the Company’s Amended Revolving
Credit Facility (as defined in Management Discussion and Analysis
— Indebtedness) during the third quarter of 2021.

The Company has presented certain non-IFRS measures in the
summary financial results and financial highlights above because each
of these measures provides additional information that management
believes is useful for securities analysts, investors and other interested
parties to gain a more complete understanding of the Group’s
operational performance and of the trends impacting its business.
These non-IFRS financial measures, as calculated herein, may not be
comparable to similarly named measures used by other companies,
and should not be considered comparable to IFRS measures. Non-
IFRS measures have limitations as an analytical tool and should not be
considered in isolation from, or as a substitute for, an analysis of the
Group’s financial results as reported under IFRS.
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Notes 51
(1) See reconciliations in Management Discussion and Analysis.

SRIERENHEN | RO -

(2) Total cash generation (burn) is calculated as the total increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents per the consolidated statements of
cash flows less total cash flow attributable to (i) total loans and borrowings, (i) deferred financing costs and (iii) proceeds from the sale of

Speck.

ReEt O RERREERERERTNAS IREFEWIE M OR D) BB E ) E R RAEREER ¢« (i) ELEEE KA K (i) & Speck K FT

BRIRELERSNEBATEE -

(3) Total liquidity is calculated as the sum of cash and cash equivalents per the consolidated statements of financial position plus available

capacity on the Amended Revolving Credit Facility.

MBECEARREAVBRARANRERRSSEY  MERLETBRREERMBEA T ESHRERME LTS -
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We are pleased with Samsonite’s progress in 2021. With increased vaccination
rates, easing of social-distancing measures and reopening of domestic travel in
markets around the world, our performance markedly improved, especially during
the second half of 2021.

AP E T F BN 2021 F UG #) # R K2R
B BEERRSWRERER A - IR
BN REA MBI ARESR - HANEXESE
BRERINE - B XIA2021 F M HFHRRE
BIERE
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For the six months ended December 31, 2021, Samsonite recorded
net sales of US$1,221.2 million, an increase of US$421.7 million
from the US$799.5 million recorded during the first half of 2021.
Second half 2021 gross margin increased by 620 basis points to
57.0% from 50.8% in the first half of 2021, despite increased product,
freight and duty costs. Driven by the strong recovery in net sales and
gross margin, our Adjusted EBITDA" and Adjusted EBITDA margin®
made significant gains, improving to US$199.3 million and 16.3%,
respectively, in the second half of 2021, compared to a loss of
US$17.0 million and (2.1)%, respectively, for the first half of 2021.

More significantly, Samsonite’s second half 2021 gross margin and
Adjusted EBITDA margin® both recovered to pre-COVID levels, with
gross margin 210 basis points and Adjusted EBITDA margin® 150
basis points above the second half of 2019. This is a noteworthy
achievement, considering our second half 2021 net sales were
considerably lower than the comparable period in 2019.

Overall, for the year ended December 31, 2021, Samsonite recorded
net sales of US$2,020.8 million, an increase of 35.1%° @ year-on-
year, and a decrease of 43.5%® @ compared to 2019. Gross profit
margin rose to 54.5% during 2021, 850 basis points higher than the
46.0% recorded for 2020 and 90 basis points lower than the 55.4%
recorded for 2019. Adjusted EBITDA® amounted to US$182.3 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021, an improvement of US$401.1
million from the Adjusted EBITDA® loss of US$218.8 million in 2020.
Adjusted EBITDA margin® was 9.0% for 2021, compared to (14.2)%
in 2020, and 13.5% in 2019. Adjusted Net Income® came to US$17.4
million in 2021, an improvement of US$423.5 million from the Adjusted
Net Loss® of US$406.1 million for 2020.

Thanks to the strong recovery in sales, together with Samsonite’s
ongoing focus on controlling working capital, we ended 2021 with
inventories of US$348.4 million, US$107.4 million lower than at the
end of 2020. Together with our other cash conservation measures,
the business generated® total cash of US$199.8 million in 2021,
an improvement of US$559.9 million compared to total cash
burn® of (US$360.1) million in 2020. Samsonite finished the year
with substantial liquidity of approximately US$1.5 billion™, nearly
unchanged compared to the end of 2020, even as we prepaid
US$370.0 million in principal amount of borrowings during 2021.

HZE2021F12A31BIERNER - FTEBESE
SHEFEE1,221. 2B 8 XL - R2021F LHF
RISMT790.5 B EEILIEMA2N TEEET - &
BEm  BEERBUAANIEGN - B2021F 1
HEMEFRRNH20214F FEFN50.8%
FE20 AR ES7.0% » THEFEREF R
REEFRIEE) - RPIMETEEBITDAN R AE
FAEEBITDAFHEOKIEIRA - HR2021F T
FESB EAE199.3FHEEITTN16.3% M
2021 F F¥FRID B ABEBI7T0BEEETLK
2.1)% °

FEEHE  FMBFB2021F N HE<FHNERNEK
AR EBITDAFE E @1 I8 201978 AR
SRIERIKTE » B2019F THEFHEF R KL
FAEEBITDAFIE X5 Bl m2101E E 2 K% 150
EEZ - EEDHMI2021 F R FFEEFHE
RIER2019FRE - W —IBBE AR

BEEME @ 8122021 F 128318 ILEFE - #
FEBIFSHEREE2,020.8 A B EIT - HFIE
£35.1%0 @ &2019F B N 43.5%6: @) o
2021 FHEF R INZES4.5% + E2020F &%
B5H46.0% 850 E 2L - ME 2019 F %
5H8955.4% TFEQ0EIE S, - B E2021F12 A
31HIEFE @ £FHEEBITDANA182.3F 8%
JT 0 82020 F MAE A EBITDAME1E218.8 F
BELWEIONABTEET ° 2021 FMKAE
EBITDAFEZE@%9.0% * M20204F KX 20194
BRI A(14.2)% K% 13.5% ° 2021 FHAE 2
SFUACER7. 4B BEET - 82020 F AL
BREBO406.1 B BEEILNE42358EETT °

MAEEEAYRE  NEFFBHEEIRN
ZHZEES 2021 FERMNTTER348.48
BEIL  B2020F KR 107.4BEETL - &
FREMRBIESEE  BMANEFR2021F
EAOIRSBE199.8FEEIT © 2020F 1
RE HEMAEEOB60.1)BEEILNE559.98
BETT - BERMN2021 ERAEERTAS
370.0BBEL BEHFBERNAFRIDA%KR
H15EETLNFERREES - H12020F K HF
L 5T o

We are pleased with Samsonite’s progress in 2021, especially during the second half. The Group’s
second half 2021 gross margin and Adjusted EBITDA margin both recovered to pre-COVID levels. This is
a noteworthy achievement, considering our second half 2021 net sales were considerably lower than the

comparable period in 2019.
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Samsonite has demonstrated outstanding agility and resilience in
navigating the COVID-19 pandemic to deliver a set of impressive
financial results in 2021. The strong rebound in domestic travel
around the world last year attests to its enduring appeal, and as
the effects of COVID-19 are expected to continue to diminish with
improving vaccination rates, we look forward to a wider reopening of
international travel to drive the next phase of our recovery. | would
like to express my appreciation for Kyle, our CEO, as well as our
corporate, regional and country management teams and our business
partners around the world for their diligence and dedication that made
this accomplishment possible.

While we are encouraged by Samsonite’s improved performance in
2021, our outlook for 2022 is mixed. Although the recent resurgence
of COVID-19 cases due to the Omicron variant caused sales recovery
to slow in January 2022, our performance improved in February.
Overall, the decline in Samsonite’s net sales for the first two months of
2022 compared to the same period in 20199 © was about in line with
the 28.0%® @ decline in the fourth quarter of 2021 when compared to
the fourth quarter in 2019.

More importantly, we are saddened by the conflict in Ukraine and
hope the situation will improve soon. Until further notice we have
suspended all commercial activities in Russia. We have temporarily
closed our 37 company-operated retail stores in Russia as well
as our e-commerce sites there. We have also stopped all product
shipments both into and within Russia and have suspended all further
investments there. Business development activities and advertising
in Russia have also been temporarily discontinued. Samsonite
is donating over 10,000 pieces of luggage and bags to support
Ukrainian refugees and will also contribute US$1.0 million to support
humanitarian relief efforts.

Samsonite has demonstrated outstanding agility and
resilience in navigating the COVID-19 pandemic to
deliver a set of impressive financial results in 2021.
The strong rebound in domestic travel around the
world last year attests to its enduring appeal, and as
the effects of COVID-19 are expected to continue to
diminish with improving vaccination rates, we look
forward to a wider reopening of international travel
to drive the next phase of our recovery.
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Geopolitical uncertainties have significantly increased, and it is unclear  A&BOAR THETE REZ@AEEM - BRI H TS
at this time what the impact will be on the global economy. That said, ZHEE 2 EREEEEMBEZE - B@E 01 -
with our strong financial position, proven discipline in controlling costs /& # F fi 1 [E 89 B AR « A A MR £ 17
and managing cash, as well as our highly responsive, decentralized ZBBHBEEER @ UARKRFAEE DL RN S
management structure, we are confident in our ability to navigate fEEIR&EHE - R IFIB S0 FERHEIE Mk Ak
the ongoing challenges and where appropriate, invest for long-term 8% - WiERELKRE  UEBEREERRAIE
growth and shareholder value creation. JEHEE -

L i ////ff—/ L i ////,f—/

Timothy Charles Parker Timothy Charles Parker

Chairman TE

March 16, 2022 20223 A16H

Notes 2

™ Adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (‘Adjusted @ R FIE - BIE - WERBHEANEAERT ([
EBITDA”), a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of a number of costs, JAEEBITDA]) BSFIFRSEI ST B T H - Hillfr %
charges and credits and certain other non-cash charges. The Group believes BRA - BRREBARETHMIERS EHOY
these measures provide additional information that is useful in gaining a more ZoAEEAGHENBAETRaRTTSE
complete understanding of its operational performance and of the underlying MoAB
trends of its business. B

@ Adjusted EBITDA margin, a non-IFRS measure, is calculated by dividing Adjusted @ £
EBITDA by net sales. T

@ Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-International Financial — © &%

Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) measure, are calculated by applying the average A
exchange rate of the year under comparison to current year local currency E’\]/Zli
results. P15 -

@ On July 30, 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company sold Speculative @ 7202147 8308 » AR a—XK&2EBWBEAGHE
Product Design, LLC (“Speck”), including the Speck brand. For comparison Speculative Product Design, LLC([Speck]) (&
purposes, net sales after July for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 fSpeckmm ) - BRUALLEEK) - HZ2020%F &
are adjusted to exclude Speck. 2019612 A31 AL A7 AE#HE FHDFH

o LA ET B Speck iR 2 -

©  Adjusted Net Income (Loss), a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of a  © EFHEFWA (F5H) BIFIFRSE Mt E T A - Hif
number of costs, charges and credits and certain other non-cash charges, along By BRSNS ME RN (B1E) B ZERA -
with their respective tax effects, that impact the Group’s reported profit (loss) for ERARERENRETEMIERGER (BRAEEM
the year, which the Group believes helps to give securities analysts, investors BBTE)NTE  AEEREEEMESSTE -
and other interested parties a better understanding of the Group’s underlying HEEREMFEHEBEAE2ME 7 HAKEAIER
financial performance. MHRR -

©  Total cash generation (burn) is calculated as the total increase (decrease) in cash @  BGEL E#) @ERBEA RS REETHES
and cash equivalents per the consolidated statements of cash flows less total BB EEYIRN ORD) MR () 57K R 5 A
cash flow attributable to (i) total loans and borrowings, (i) deferred financing L (ii)ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁk&'ﬁ&(m)ﬁ%SpeckE’\JFﬁ S RIBFE
costs and (iii) proceeds from the sale of Speck. (RREeRELETE -

" As of December 31, 2021, the Group had total liquidity US$1,501.4 million, M R2021%F12 A31H AEENEHESEES
comprising cash and cash equivalents of US$1,324.8 million and US$176.7 1,601 4B EXT  EPBERTMNHAEEEY
million available to be borrowed on the Group’s amended revolving credit facility. 1,324 88 BETLNASBICERIBEREERBIAT

A ANI76.7BE BT ©
®  Excluding net sales attributable to Speck for January and February 2019. ® iR Speck 20194 1 A 2 A JE(RHSH & /558 -
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We are very pleased with Samsonite’s progress in 2021. As vaccination rates rose
and the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic moderated, governments around the
world began easing social-distancing and travel restrictions, leading to a recovery
in travel and increased demand for Samsonite’s products across all regions. This

positive trend enabled us to achieve sequential quarterly improvements in sales
and profitability during the year.
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Samsonite finished 2021 on a positive note as we continued to achieve sequential quarterly improvements
in sales and profitability. We are very pleased with the accelerating sales recovery, strong positive Adjusted
EBITDA and cash generation achieved in 2021, especially in the second half of the year, which all

underscore the positive impact of our decisive actions over the last two years.

BEERMSEERFEEEMBNENEESTENE - TBBEN2021 FRKRBEZE - HME2021F (LER

R4 ) S48 0
SETRNREHE -

To give a sense of the substantial gains we made in 2021,
Samsonite’s net sales for the three months ended March 31, 2021
were 57.3%" lower than the first quarter of 2019. In contrast, our
fourth quarter 2021 net sales recovered to 28.0%" @ below the fourth
quarter of 2019, with all regions achieving significant improvements,
particularly Latin America which saw fourth quarter 2021 net sales
surpass the same period in 2019 by 7.7%". Likewise, all our core
brands made strong gains, especially Tumi which saw fourth quarter
2021 net sales in North America recover to be almost even” with the
fourth quarter of 2019.

Behind the scenes, we remained relentlessly focused on controlling
expenses while sales continued to improve. Fixed selling, general and
administrative (“SG&A”) expenses increased to US$163.5 million in
the fourth quarter of 2021, an increase of US$16.5 million compared
to US$147.0 million in the first quarter, while our net sales rose by
US$309.4 million to US$664.1 million in the fourth quarter of 2021
from US$354.7 million in the first quarter. As a result, fixed SG&A
expenses as a percentage of net sales tapered to 24.6% for the fourth
quarter of 2021 from 41.4% in the first quarter, and better than 25.7%
for the fourth quarter of 2019 despite a considerably lower sales base.

Consequently, our Adjusted EBITDA® improved by US$155.5 million
to earnings of US$127.1 million in the fourth quarter of 2021 from a
loss of US$28.5 million in the first quarter, and our Adjusted EBITDA
margin® rose to 19.1% in the fourth quarter of 2021 from (8.0)% in
the first quarter. To put this into perspective, our fourth quarter 2021
Adjusted EBITDA margin® was 400 basis points higher compared
to 15.1% for the fourth quarter of 2019 despite a significantly lower
sales base. | would like to recognize our teams and business partners
around the world whose passion and perseverance over the last two
years made this outstanding accomplishment possible.

Overall, for the year ended December 31, 2021, Samsonite recorded
net sales of US$2,020.8 million, an increase of 35.1%" @ year-on-
year, and 43.5%" @ below 2019. Net sales in North America and Latin
America saw faster recovery, increasing by 47.0%" @ and 49.3%"
year-on-year, respectively, compared to Asia and Europe, where net
sales rose by 20.3%" and 37.7%"" year-on-year, respectively, during
2021. Compared to 2019, 2021 net sales in North America, Asia,
Europe and Latin America were lower by 38.0%" @), 48.4%", 47.6%"
and 26.8%"", respectively.
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We remain focused on executing to
Samsonite’s competitive strengths to
extend our market leadership and drive
long-term growth. We are doing so by
leveraging our century-plus heritage of
innovation, global platform, diverse set
of product categories and leading and
complementary brands offering products
tailored to each region’s preferences, as
well as our commitment to sustainability
and innovation. An increasing proportion
of our products incorporate sustainable
attributes such as recycled or recyclable
materials as we continue to advance on
‘Our Responsible Journey’ to lead the
luggage and bag industry in sustainability.
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For the year ended December 31, 2021, net sales of our core travel
brands Samsonite, Tumi and American Tourister increased year-on-
year by 36.3%", 56.3%" and 37.8%, respectively. Compared to
2019, net sales for Tumi experienced the strongest recovery, with
2021 net sales coming in 34.5%" lower than 2019, while net sales
for Samsonite and American Tourister were lower by 44.1%" and
47.6%", respectively.

Samsonite’s gross profit increased by US$395.2 million, or 56.0%,
to US$1,101.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 from
US$706.3 million for 2020. As a result, gross profit margin expanded
to 54.5% for 2021, an increase of 850 basis points compared to the
46.0% recorded in 2020, and only 90 basis points below the 55.4%
registered in 2019, despite increased product, freight and duty costs.

Driven by the strong recovery in net sales and gross margin, together
with the more than US$200 million in annualized run-rate fixed cost
savings from the comprehensive cost reduction program implemented
in 2020 and 2021, as well as our ongoing focus on controlling
expenses, Samsonite’s Adjusted EBITDA® increased to US$182.3
million for 2021, an improvement of US$401.1 million from an
Adjusted EBITDA® loss of US$218.8 million in 2020. As a result, we
achieved Adjusted Net Income® of US$17.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021, a significant improvement of US$423.5 million
from the Adjusted Net Loss® of US$406.1 million for 2020.
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The strong increase in Adjusted EBITDA®, along with our ongoing
attention on cash flow management, enabled Samsonite to generate
total cash® of US$199.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2021, an improvement of US$559.9 million compared to total cash
burn® of (US$360.1) million in 2020.

As the effects of COVID-19 on our business continued to moderate
and our performance improved, we began to prudently reduce our
debt. During the year ended December 31, 2021, we prepaid a total
of US$370.0 million of borrowings to finish the year with net debt
of US$1,477.2 million™, US$258.3 million lower than at the end of
20207, Our liquidity stood at US$1,501.4 million® as of December
31, 2021, nearly unchanged compared to the end of 2020®, which
will enable us to support our continued recovery from the effects of
COVID-19 while investing for long-term growth.

Samsonite finished 2021 on a very positive note. Looking ahead, we
remain focused on executing to Samsonite’s competitive strengths
to extend our market leadership and drive long-term growth. We
are doing so by leveraging our century-plus heritage of innovation,
global platform, diverse set of product categories and leading and
complementary brands offering products tailored to each region’s
preferences, as well as our commitment to sustainability and
innovation. As sales and profitability continue to improve, we intend
to increase investment in the business to capitalize on the ongoing
recovery in travel.

We continue to invest in developing and launching new products
that meet evolving consumer needs. An increasing proportion of
our products incorporate sustainable attributes such as recycled or

recyclable materials as we continue to advance on ‘Our Responsible
Journey’ to lead the luggage and bag industry in sustainability.
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Successful product launches under the Samsonite brand in 2021
included the Magnum Eco, Proxis and Lite Box suitcase lines.
Magnum Eco and Proxis are manufactured using sustainable
materials, while Lite Box, made with CURV®* material, is among the
lightest and sturdiest suitcases on the market. Tumi also experienced
great success with its TUMI | McLaren and TUMI | Missoni luggage
and travel collections in 2021. In 2022, we have a pipeline full of
exciting and competitive new product launches, including Tumi’s
relaunch of the Alpha Bravo collection. Comprising more than two
dozen entirely new styles, many of which feature a main body fabric
and interior lining made from recycled materials, the new Alpha
Bravo collection has received an enthusiastic reception from both
consumers and the media. We also have high expectations for
Samsonite’s upcoming Elevation™ Plus collection, which features a
high-performance polypropylene exterior combined with an interior
lining made of 100% recycled PET bottles, addressing demand from
travelers for functionality and sustainability.

Informed by an unwavering focus on and respect
for the consumer, and by our guiding principle: “Do
unto others as you would have them do unto you”,
the team is confident that our diverse geographic
footprint, complementary brands and commitment to
sustainability and innovation will keep Samsonite at the
forefront of evolving customer needs and travel trends
and strengthen its industry leadership over the long
term. |
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We continued to closely manage our marketing spend in 2021.
Although marketing expenses increased by US$9.1 million, or 12.4%,
year-on-year, to US$82.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2021,
to 2019. Marketing expenses made up 4.1% of net sales in 2021,
significantly lower than the 4.8% in 2020 and 5.2% in 2019. As the
effects of COVID-19 continue to diminish, we intend to increase our

they remained US$107.2 million, or 56.6%, lower compared

marketing investment in 2022, both in absolute dollar terms and as
a percentage of net sales, to support our new product launches and
capitalize on the ongoing recovery in travel.
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In addition to the robust recovery in Adjusted EBITDA®, an important
factor driving Samsonite’s strong cash generation® in 2021 was
a reduction in working capital, particularly inventories. Inventories
totaled US$348.4 million as of December 31, 2021, US$107.4 million
below the US$455.9 million at the end of 2020. This reduction was
primarily driven by strong product sell-through due to the rebound in
travel, though delayed stock replenishment due to shipping delays
and port congestion was also a factor. With shipping delays and
port congestion expected to continue in 2022, we are increasing
investment in inventories to support continued business recovery.

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, we substantially reduced
capital expenditures and software investments in 2020 and continued
to maintain tight control in 2021. Samsonite spent US$25.9 million®
on capital expenditures (including software purchases) during 2021,
almost unchanged compared to the US$26.1 million® spent in 2020,
and US$48.6 million lower than the US$74.5 million® spent in 2019.
As sales and profitability continue to improve, we intend to increase
capital expenditures and software investments to support our long-
term strategic objectives.

We are very pleased with the accelerating sales recovery, strong
positive Adjusted EBITDA® and cash generation® achieved in 2021,
especially in the second half of the year, which all underscore the
positive impact of our decisive actions over the last two years and the
strength and resilience of our brands. | would like to personally thank
our Chairman, Tim Parker, and the Board for their ongoing counsel
and support. | would also like to commend our country, regional,
brand and corporate teams, as well as our business partners for their
hard work and dedication. Informed by an unwavering focus on and
respect for the consumer, and by our guiding principle: “Do unto
others as you would have them do unto you”, the team is confident
that our diverse geographic footprint, complementary brands and
commitment to sustainability and innovation will keep Samsonite at the
forefront of evolving customer needs and travel trends and strengthen
its industry leadership over the long term.

While the recent wave of new COVID-19 cases due to the Omicron
variant caused sales recovery to slow in January 2022, considering
vaccine effectiveness and higher vaccination rates today compared to a
year ago, we are hopeful that the effects of COVID-19 on everyday life will
continue to moderate, driving a sustained recovery in travel. Separately,
we continue to see some sales volatility due to shipping delays and port
congestion, especially in North America. That said, our performance has
improved in February 2022. Overall, the decline in Samsonite’s net sales
for the first two months of 2022 compared to the same period in 20190
(19 was about in line with the 28.0%" @ decline in the fourth quarter of
2021 when compared to the fourth quarter in 2019.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT
THRARBE

| also want to address the situation in Ukraine and the resulting
humanitarian crisis in the region. Our thoughts are with all who have
been impacted, including our employees and their families as well as
our customers and partners.

Until further notice we have suspended all commercial activities in
Russia. We have temporarily closed our 37 company-operated retail
stores in Russia as well as our e-commerce sites there. We have
also stopped all product shipments both into and within Russia and
have suspended all further investments there. Business development
activities and advertising in Russia have also been temporarily
discontinued.

Samsonite’s employees around the world, including our colleagues
in Russia, have made great sacrifices and shown extraordinary
resilience and dedication over the last two years. Our decision to
temporarily suspend commercial activities in Russia is a difficult one,
not least because of our employees there. Our top priority has been
and continues to be the safety of our colleagues, and we continue to
support our team members and their families in the region. We continue
to monitor this situation closely and hope that a peaceful and just
resolution can be achieved soon.

Samsonite is donating over 10,000 pieces of luggage and bags to
support Ukrainian refugees and will also contribute US$1.0 million to
support humanitarian relief efforts.

The conflict, and the resulting rise in geopolitical tensions, have added
some uncertainty to our outlook for 2022. While Group net sales of
our Russian business have ranged from only 1.5% to 2.0% of global
sales annually over the last three years, the economic effects of the
conflict have caused additional headwinds. That said, we are hopeful
that such headwinds will not materially disrupt our recovery. With our
dedicated and responsive teams and substantial liquidity position, we
are confident we have the capacity not only to navigate through the
ongoing effects of COVID-19 and increased geopolitical tensions, but
also to invest for long-term growth and success.

V4

Kyle Francis Gendreau
Chief Executive Officer
March 16, 2022
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Notes
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Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) measure, are calculated by applying the average
exchange rate of the year under comparison to current year local currency
results.

On July 30, 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company sold Speculative
Product Design, LLC (“Speck”), including the Speck brand. For comparison
purposes, net sales after July for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
are adjusted to exclude net sales attributable to Speck.

Adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“Adjusted
EBITDA”), a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of a number of costs,
charges and credits and certain other non-cash charges. The Group believes
these measures provide additional information that is useful in gaining a more
complete understanding of its operational performance and of the underlying
trends of its business.

Adjusted EBITDA margin, a non-IFRS measure, is calculated by dividing Adjusted
EBITDA by net sales.

Adjusted Net Income (Loss), a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of a
number of costs, charges and credits and certain other non-cash charges, along
with their respective tax effects, that impact the Group’s reported profit (loss) for
the year, which the Group believes helps to give securities analysts, investors
and other interested parties a better understanding of the Group’s underlying
financial performance.

Total cash generation (burn) is calculated as the total increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents per the consolidated statements of cash flows less total
cash flow attributable to (i) total loans and borrowings, (i) deferred financing
costs and (iii) proceeds from the sale of Speck.

As of December 31, 2021, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
US$1,324.8 million and outstanding financial debt of US$2,802.0 million
(excluding deferred financing costs of US$12.6 million), resulting in a net debt
position of US$1,477.2 million. In comparison, as of December 31, 2020, the
Group had cash and cash equivalents of US$1,495.0 million and outstanding
financial debt of US$3,230.5 million (excluding deferred financing costs of
US$39.9 million), putting the Group in a net debt position of US$1,735.5 million.

As of December 31, 2021, the Group had total liquidity US$1,501.4 million,
comprising cash and cash equivalents of US$1,324.8 million and US$176.7
million available to be borrowed on the Group’s amended revolving credit
facility. In comparison, as of December 31, 2020, the Group had total liquidity of
US$1,518.3 million, comprising cash and cash equivalents of US$1,495.0 million
and US$23.4 million available to be borrowed on the Group’s amended revolving
credit facility.

The Group spent US$20.8 million and US$5.1 million on capital expenditures and
software purchases, respectively, during the year ended December 31, 2021.
In comparison, the Group’s spending on capital expenditures and software
purchases were US$20.6 million and US$5.5 million, respectively, in 2020, and
US$55.4 million and US$19.1 million, respectively, in 2019.

Excluding net sales attributable to Speck for January and February 2019.

* CURV® is a registered trademark of CANCO Hungary Ltd.
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Sams$nite

With a heritage dating back more than 110 years, Samsonite
International S.A. (the “Company”), together with its
consolidated subsidiaries (the “Group”), is a leader in the global

lifestyle bag industry and is the world’s best-known and largest
travel luggage company. The Group is principally engaged in
the design, manufacture, sourcing and distribution of luggage,
business and computer bags, outdoor and casual bags and
travel accessories throughout the world, primarily under the
Samsonite®, Tumi®, American Tourister®, Gregory®, High Sierra®,
Kamiliant®, ebags®, Lipault® and Hartmann® brand names as well
as other owned and licensed brand names.
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% ETKRENREEZRFEFEES - Tumi® - American Tourister® «
Gregory® ~ High Sierra® « Kamiliant® ~ ebags® * Lipault® }x Hartmann®
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEET WD

The Group sells its products in over 100 countries through a variety of
wholesale distribution channels, through its company-operated retail
stores and through e-commerce.

Management discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction
with the Group’s audited consolidated financial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”).

The Company has presented certain non-IFRS measures within
Management Discussion and Analysis because each of these
measures provides additional information that management believes
is useful for securities analysts, investors and other interested parties
to gain a more complete understanding of the Group’s operational
performance and of the trends impacting its business. These non-
IFRS financial measures, as calculated herein, may not be comparable
to similarly named measures used by other companies, and should
not be considered comparable to IFRS measures. Non-IFRS measures
have limitations as an analytical tool and should not be considered
in isolation from, or as a substitute for, an analysis of the Group’s
financial results as reported under IFRS.
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Sams$nite

PERFECT BLEND BETWEEN INNOVATION & OUTSTANDING DESIGN
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Impact of COVID-19

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group experienced
improved sales trends as the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic
on demand for the Group’s products moderated as a result of the
rollout of vaccines, the continuing recovery in travel and governments
in many countries loosening social-distancing, travel and other
restrictions. The Group’s net sales recovery accelerated during the
second half of 2021. During 2020 and through the first half of 2021,
certain government-mandated restrictions and lockdowns resulted in
temporary closures of certain retail stores in which the Company’s
products were sold, quarantines and social-distancing required or
recommended by governments, and significant reductions in travel
and discretionary spending among consumers, which led to reduced
demand for many of the Group’s products (collectively, the “COVID-19
Impacts”).

While navigating through the challenges caused by COVID-19, the
health and safety of the Group’s employees and their families, as well
as its customers and business partners, has been and will continue
to be the Group’s top priority. While the extent and duration of the
COVID-19 pandemic remain uncertain, it has had, and it will likely
continue to have, adverse impacts on the Group’s business, financial
condition and results of operations.

In this annual report, certain financial results for the year ended
December 31, 2021 are compared to both the year ended December
31, 2020 and the year ended December 31, 2019. Comparisons to
the year ended December 31, 2019 are provided because it is the
most recently ended comparable year during which the Company’s
results were not affected by COVID-19. During the year ended
December 31, 2020 the COVID-19 Impacts had a significant effect on
the Company’s financial results.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Group’s net sales
were significantly impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic, with full-
year 2020 consolidated net sales decreasing by US$2,102.1 million,
or 57.8% (-57.5% constant currency), compared to the year ended
December 31, 2019. The Group’s management took steps beginning
in the first quarter of 2020 to enhance the Company’s liquidity and
further improve its resilience in response to the COVID-19 Impacts.
In addition to strengthening the Company’s liquidity, the Group
aggressively reduced its operating expenses to mitigate the impact
of lower sales on profit and cash flow as well as to right-size the
business for the future. Management continues to tightly manage the
Group’s operating expenses.
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During 2021, the Group’s quarterly net sales performance (when
compared to the corresponding quarter in 2019) experienced
sequential improvement. During the fourth quarter of 2021, the
Group’s net sales decline narrowed to 30.9% (-30.2% constant
currency) when compared to the fourth quarter of 2019; when
excluding the net sales of Speck for October through December
2019, consolidated net sales decreased by 28.8% (-28.0% constant
currency), for the three months ended December 31, 2021 compared
to the three months ended December 31, 2019. This encouraging
trend continued from the third quarter of 2021, when the decline in
the Group’s net sales narrowed to 37.3% (-37.6% constant currency),
when excluding the net sales of Speck for August and September
2019, compared to the third quarter of 2019; from the second quarter
of 2021, when the Group’s net sales decreased by 51.8% (-52.2%
constant currency) compared to the second quarter of 2019; and
from the first quarter of 2021, when the Group’s net sales decreased
by 57.4% (-57.3% constant currency) compared to the first quarter
of 2019. The Group’s actions to enhance and preserve liquidity and
reduce expenses are discussed in greater detail below.

During 2020, in order to strengthen the Company’s financial flexibility
in response to the COVID-19 Impacts, the Company and certain of
its direct and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries entered into certain
amendments to the Group’s credit agreement that increased the
maximum borrowings under the Group’s revolving credit facility by
US$200.0 million to US$850.0 million and provided for the 2020
Incremental Term Loan B Facility in the aggregate principal amount of
US$600.0 million. The Group borrowed US$810.3 million (US Dollar
equivalent at the applicable exchange rate on the borrowing date)
under its Amended Revolving Credit Facility on March 20, 2020 and
US$600.0 million under the 2020 Incremental Term Loan B Facility
on May 7, 2020. The amendment to the Group’s credit agreement
entered into on April 29, 2020 suspended the requirement for the
Group to test certain financial covenants under its credit agreement
from the beginning of the second quarter of 2020 through the end
of the second quarter of 2021 and, for each of the three quarters
beginning with the third quarter of 2021 and ending with the first
quarter of 2022, the Company has elected to use Consolidated
Adjusted EBITDA (as defined in Management Discussion and Analysis
— Indebtedness) from the first two quarters of 2019 and fourth quarter
of 2019 (the “Historical EBITDA”) (instead of actual Consolidated
Adjusted EBITDA from the fourth quarter of 2020 and the first
two quarters of 2021) to calculate compliance with the Financial
Covenants. During the Suspension Period (as defined in Management
Discussion and Analysis — Indebtedness), the Company was required
to comply with a minimum liquidity covenant of US$500.0 million and
the Group was subject to additional restrictions on its ability to incur
indebtedness and make restricted payments (including payments
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of distributions or dividends to the Company’s shareholders) and
investments. The minimum liquidity covenant will remain in effect
for so long as the Company uses the Historical EBITDA to calculate
compliance with the Financial Covenants.

On June 7, 2021, the Company and certain of its direct and indirect
wholly-owned subsidiaries entered into the Fifth Amended Credit
Agreement. Under the terms of the Fifth Amended Credit Agreement,
the Historical EBITDA for each of the quarters ended December
31, 2020, March 31, 2021 and June 30, 2021 that is used for the
purpose of calculating the maximum total net leverage ratio and
minimum interest coverage ratio under the Financial Covenants will
be increased by an amount equal to US$65.7 million. This amount
was determined based on the annualized run-rate fixed cost savings
from the Company’s comprehensive cost reduction program that
was implemented during 2020. The Fifth Amended Credit Agreement
further strengthened the Company’s financial flexibility to navigate
its business through the challenges from the COVID-19 pandemic.
See Directors’ Report — Risk Factors — Risks Associated with the
Company’s Loans and Borrowings for further discussion.

On June 21, 2021, the Company and certain of its direct and indirect
wholly-owned subsidiaries entered into the Sixth Amended Credit
Agreement. The Sixth Amended Credit Agreement provides for the
2021 Incremental Term Loan B Facility in the principal amount of
US$495.5 million, which was borrowed by the Group on June 21,
2021 and, together with US$100.0 million of cash on the statement of
financial position, was used to repay the aggregate US$595.5 million
principal amount then outstanding under the 2020 Incremental Term
Loan B Facility. The interest rate applicable to the Group’s borrowings
under the 2021 Incremental Term Loan B Facility is equal to the
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 3.00% per annum
with a LIBOR floor of 0.75% (or a base rate plus 2.00% per annum).
The loans under the 2021 Incremental Term Loan B Facility were
issued with original issue discount with an issue price of 99.75%.
See Management Discussion and Analysis — Indebtedness for further
description of the Group’s credit agreement.

As of December 31, 2021, the carrying amount of the Group’s loans
and borrowings was US$2,789.4 million, net of US$12.6 million in
deferred financing costs. During the year ended December 31, 2021,
the Group prepaid US$370.0 million principal amount of borrowings
under the Amended Senior Credit Facilities, and cash and cash
equivalents held by the Group amounted to US$1,324.8 million as
of December 31, 2021. Along with US$176.7 million available to be
borrowed on the Group’s Amended Revolving Credit Facility, the
Group had total liquidity of US$1,501.4 million as of December 31,
2021.
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During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group continued
to realize fixed cost savings from a combination of permanent and
temporary actions completed, primarily during 2020. Permanent
actions consisted primarily of headcount reductions and savings from
closing stores. Temporary actions consisted primarily of furloughs,
temporary headcount reductions, eliminating bonuses, salary
reductions, temporary rent reductions and other expense reductions,
such as travel and entertainment and professional services. These
fixed cost savings have been reflected as reductions in the Group’s
cost of sales, distribution expenses and general and administrative
expenses reported in the consolidated statements of income (loss).

Given the inherent uncertainty about the future impacts of COVID-19,
it is not possible for the Company to reliably predict the extent to
which the Group’s business, results of operations, financial condition
or liquidity will ultimately be impacted, however the Group’s financial
condition and results of operations have been, and will continue to be,
adversely affected.

Given the Group’s experience with prior disruptions to travel
and actions taken to improve profitability, the Company believes
the Group will be able to effectively manage through the current
environment, although the anticipated recovery has taken longer than
prior disruptions. The Company believes that its existing cash and
estimated cash flows will be adequate to meet the foreseeable future
operating and capital requirements of the Group at least through
March 31, 2023. There can be no assurances, however, that the
Group’s liquidity will be sufficient or that the Group may not need to
access additional financing.
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Net Sales

Net sales increased by US$484.1 million, or 31.5% (+30.3% constant
currency), during the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to
2020. On July 30, 2021,
owned subsidiary of the Company sold Speck for net proceeds of

the year ended December 31, a wholly-
US$35.3 million. When excluding the net sales of Speck for August
through December 2020, consolidated net sales increased by
US$538.3 million, or 36.3% (+35.1% constant currency), for the year
ended December 31, 2021 compared to the previous year. The Group
experienced improved sales trends during the year ended December
31, 2021 as the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on demand for
the Group’s products moderated as a result of the rollout of vaccines,
the continuing recovery in travel and governments in many countries
loosening social-distancing, travel and other restrictions.

For the year ended December 31, 2021,

sales decline of 44.5% (-44.4% constant currency) when compared

the Group recorded a net

to the year ended December 31, 2019. When excluding the net sales
of Speck for August through December 2019, consolidated net sales
decreased by 43.5% (-43.5% constant currency) for the year ended
December 31, 2021 compared to the year ended December 31, 2019.

During 2021,
compared to the corresponding quarter in 2019) experienced

the Group’s quarterly net sales performance (when
sequential improvement. During the fourth quarter of 2021, the
Group’s net sales decline narrowed to 30.9% (-30.2% constant
currency) when compared to the fourth quarter of 2019; when
excluding the net sales of Speck for October through December
2019, consolidated net sales decreased by 28.8% (-28.0% constant
currency), for the three months ended December 31, 2021 compared
to the three months ended December 31, 2019. This encouraging
trend continued from the third quarter of 2021, when the decline in
the Group’s net sales narrowed to 37.3% (-37.6% constant currency),
when excluding the net sales of Speck for August and September
2019, compared to the third quarter of 2019; from the second quarter
of 2021,
constant currency) compared to the second quarter of 2019; and

when the Group’s net sales decreased by 51.8% (-52.2%

from the first quarter of 2021, when the Group’s net sales decreased
by 57.4% (-57.3% constant currency) compared to the first quarter of
2019.

HEFHE
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The positive quarterly trend during 2021 continued the recovery
that began in the second half of 2020. During the fourth quarter
of 2020, the Group’s net sales decreased by 57.6% (-58.1%
constant currency), year-on-year, as more of the Group’s markets
reopened. The Group’s net sales decreased by 64.6% (-64.7%
constant currency) year-on-year during the third quarter of 2020, as
governments began loosening restrictions and certain of the Group’s
markets began reopening. During the second quarter of 2020, when
most of the Group’s markets were significantly affected by the
COVID-19 Impacts, net sales decreased by 78.2% (-77.9% constant
currency) year-on-year.

The rise in new COVID-19 cases related to the Omicron variant and
the resulting reinstatement of travel restrictions and social distancing
measures in certain markets, particularly in Asia, temporarily
slowed the Group’s net sales recovery in January 2022, but sales
performance improved in February 2022. When excluding the net sales
of Speck for January and February 2019, the decline in the Group’s

net sales for the first two months of 2022 compared to the same
period in 2019 was about in line with the 28.8% (-28.0% constant
currency) decline in the fourth quarter of 2021 when compared to the
fourth quarter of 2019.
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Net Sales by Region
ZHBED K EFE a‘ !‘

North America 1t 3l
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales by region for ~ TXR&Z&E Z2021412 431 H K%2020F12 A

the years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, both in 31 B IFEE gt @ 2 D E FEERAM - U@

absolute terms and as a percentage of total net sales. HERMLEHESFEAD IR -

A U N W N

Latin America 1 T M

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLFEE

2021 vs 2020
2021 4 8120204

Percentage

increase (decrease)

Percentage excl. foreign

Percentage Percentage increase currency effects®

of net sales of net sales (decrease) WERE X 2K

Net sales by region®: US$ millions SHEFHE  USS millions HEFH o Ost 4> 3 O )
TR [ B 5 B S5 EIFERO BEXERT Aot EX-E¥ ERasd Bol Ao
North America® 1t Z)H@ 807.5 40.0% 602.5 39.2% 34.0% 33.8%
Asia T 687.5 34.0% 558.6 36.4% 23.1% 20.3%
Europe EM 419.1 20.7% 302.5 19.7% 38.5% 37.7%
Latin America fz T M 104.7 5.2% 71.2 4.6% 47.2% 49.3%
Corporate 13 1.9 0.1% 2.0 0.1% (2.6)% (2.6)%
Net sales® $HE HFEO 2,020.8 100.0% 1,5636.7 100.0% 31.5% 30.3%

Notes Hi&

(1) The geographic location of the Group’s net sales generally reflects the country/territory from which its products were sold and does not
necessarily indicate the country/territory in which its end consumers were actually located.

AEEHSFHEOMFUEDH —RRBEEERNER,WE - T —EAKGHEETRMENER E -

(2) On July 30, 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company sold Speck. When excluding the net sales of Speck for August through
December 2020, net sales in North America increased by US$259.3 million, or 47.3% (+47.0% constant currency), for the year ended
December 31, 2021 compared to the previous year.

H2021F7 A308 » AAFA—KEAWE QT HESpeck o &M SpeckR202048 AE 12 A BRI G IHE T8 - HZ2021F12A831 81
FE - RIEEMNNHE FEREFILNN259.3A B ET5k47.3% RN ZE KA EFHABEINAT.0%) ©

(8) When excluding the net sales of Speck for August through December 2020, consolidated net sales increased by US$538.3 million, or
36.3% (+35.1% constant currency), for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to the previous year.

AEHBR Speck 20208 AE 12 A KBS F5E - HE2021F12 431 BILFE » GANE FHEBEFIEIN538.35 EX/036.3% (3%
TN R AL H AL N35.1%)

(4) Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-IFRS measure, are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the year under

comparison to current year local currency results.

BIABERREANH2FIMEERIFFRSH B ETA - RUEMER 270N FE XA RABEMLRFENFHEXRFEMS -
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BRANDS

fm hE

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales by brand for  T&RH5IEH Z2021412 A31H &2020%F12 A
the years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, both in 31 B It EEIRFEEI DM EFFERAM - LB
absolute terms and as a percentage of total net sales. HERMBHEEFBEADLIE -

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A31HLEE

2021 vs 2020

2021 4 E12020 4 LB
Percentage
increase (decrease)
Percentage excl. foreign
Percentage Percentage increase currency effects®
of net sales of net sales (decrease) WERIE 5 2K
Net sales by brand: US$ millions $HEFEE  USS milions HEFE 0 OB d) g Crid)
RhRE SR EFEE BEER B EX-E Aot B BoHe
Samsonite 17 EE 927.9 45.9% 672.9 43.8% 37.9% 36.3%
Tumi 506.5 25.1% 321.6 20.9% 57.5% 56.3%
American Tourister 340.3 16.9% 244.5 15.9% 39.2% 37.8%
Gregory 59.4 2.9% 51.2 3.3% 15.9% 16.2%
Speck™ 33.0 1.6% 96.4 6.3% (65.7)% (65.7)%
Other® EAth@ 153.6 7.6% 150.1 9.8% 2.4% 2.0%
Net sales $H& 58 2,020.8 100.0% 1,636.7 100.0% 31.5% 30.3%

Notes 5Ff#

(1) On July 30, 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company sold Speck, including the Speck brand.
H2021F7 A30H + ARE—REEMH B AR ESpeck * BIESpeck g °

(2) “Other” includes certain other brands owned by the Group, such as High Sierra, Kamiliant, ebags, Xtrem, Lipault, Hartmann, Saxoline and
Secret, as well as third-party brands sold through the Group’s Rolling Luggage and Chic Accent retail stores.
[E | — B 3EHigh Sierra « Kamiliant ~ ebags ~ Xtrem ~ Lipault ~ Hartmann ~ Saxoline 2 SecretZ A EEE THMB A RIE - URFEBARE
E Rolling Luggage ¥ Chic AccentZ&/E HERFE =5 M2 -

(3) Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-IFRS measure, are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the year under
comparison to current year local currency results.

BTBERREAHZ2FIMEERIFFRSH B ETA - RUEMER25MARFEEERMAEMLRFENFIEXFEMS -

g
U EEEERER,
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The Group’s core brands all recorded year-on-year net sales increases
during the year ended December 31, 2021 as the effects of the
COVID-19 pandemic on demand for the Group’s products moderated
as a result of the rollout of vaccines, the continuing recovery in travel
and governments in many countries loosening social-distancing, travel
and other restrictions. Net sales of the Samsonite brand during the
2021 increased by US$255.0 million, or
37.9% (+36.3% constant currency), compared to the previous year.

year ended December 31,

Net sales of the Samsonite brand increased in all the Group’s regions.
Net sales of the Tumi brand during the year ended December 31,
2021 increased by US$184.9 million, or 57.5% (+56.3% constant
currency), year-on-year driven by a US$145.9 million increase in North
America, a US$29.2 million increase in Asia, a US$7.1 million increase
in Europe and a US$2.6 million increase in Latin America. Net sales
of the American Tourister brand increased by US$95.8 million, or
39.2% (+37.8% constant currency), for the year ended December 31,
2021 compared to the year ended December 31, 2020. Net sales of
the Gregory brand increased by US$8.1 million, or 15.9% (+16.2%
constant currency), compared to the previous year.
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| 2021 NET SALES BY REGION AND BY PRODUCT CATEGORY
i 2021 B R EmBRI S D RIHEEFHE R

Percentage of Net Sales

CONSOLIDATED N wEsmasy
NET SALES ﬁ\ﬁ%)‘%%ﬁ /Tri\(\)/il1 , Non-Travel

Jik % JER1F
US$2,020.8 57.5% 42.5%

unillion BEXETT

/2020/
Travel Non-Travel

g3 33

49.7% 50.3%

Percentage of Net Sales Percentage of Net Sales

HEFEA DL HEFEANL
/2021 / /2021 /
Travel Non-Travel Travel Non-Travel
il FEhR i il FEBR i

o o o o
63.5% 36.5% 49.2% 50.8%
/2020/ /2020/
Travel Non-Travel Travel Non-Travel
g FEIREE g FEIREE

51.0% 49.0% 45.7% 54.3%
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Percentage of Net Sales Percentage of Net Sales
HEFHEADL HEFRADL
/2021/ /2021/
Travel Non-Travel Travel Non-Travel
jjigica FENR ijigica FENRiE

(o) (o) (o) (o)
63.0% 37.0% 45.5% 54.5%
/ 2020/ /2020 /
Travel Non-Travel Travel Non-Travel
jigic3 FENRiE ijigic3 FENRiE

58.4% 41.6% 33.4% 66.6%
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PRODUCT CATEGORY
EmER!

© 2021 BIGHIT MUSIC. All el Focar

The Group sells products in two principal product categories: travel AEEEENERKEMEEZEERBER @ ik
and non-travel. The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales  #2 M 3EIRk#E - TR EFIE Z=2021F12H31H
by product category for the years ended December 31, 2021 and  &%2020412 A31H I FEIRERERIE 5 Y
December 31, 2020, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of S5 F2EE4N - B ERGAHEEFER D
total net sales. LEHIRR -

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A31HLEE

2021 vs 2020

2021 F E2020F LE 8
Percentage
increase (decrease)
Percentage excl. foreign
Percentage Percentage increase currency effects®
of net sales of net sales (decrease) iR BB 5 222 1Y
Net sales by product category: US$ millions $HEFEHE  USS milions HEFEE #hn OB ) g Crid)
REMERIE DB HEFHE BEER B EX-E Aot B BoHe
Travel k%% 1,162.7 57.5% 763.0 49.7% 52.4% 51.2%
Non-travel?: @ JEfR D @ 858.1 42.5% 773.7 50.3% 10.9% 9.7%
Net sales $HE 58 2,020.8 100.0% 1,636.7 100.0% 31.5% 30.3%

Notes 511

(1) The non-travel category includes business, casual, accessories and other products.
FEMRBERIBEES - KB B4 REBES -

(2) On July 30, 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company sold Speck. When excluding the applicable net sales of Speck for August
through December 2020, non-travel product category net sales increased by US$138.7 million, or 19.3% (+18.0% constant currency), for
the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to the previous year.

M2021F7 A308 » ARFA—KEAWE QT HESpeck o &M% SpeckR202048 AZE 12 A MR EEHIHE T 5 - HE2021F12 83101
FE - IEREE QAR E FERAFIEMI138.7ABEEITH19.3% (IR FEREEFHRILIN18.0%) °

(3) Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-IFRS measure, are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the year under

comparison to current year local currency results.

BTBERAEAH2FIMEERIFFRSH B ETA - RUEMER 25 RFEEERABEMLRFENFERFERE -
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Net sales in the travel product category during the year ended
December 31, 2021 increased by US$399.7 million, or 52.4% (+51.2%
constant currency), compared to the year ended December 31, 2020.
Domestic travel and travel within regions continued to rebound,
particularly in North America and in Europe, with continued progress
in the vaccination rollout against COVID-19. This has helped drive
the net sales recovery in the travel product category. Total non-travel
category net sales, which includes business, casual, accessories
and other products, increased by US$84.4 million, or 10.9% (+9.7%
constant currency) for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared
to the year ended December 31, 2020. When excluding the applicable
net sales of Speck for August through December 2020, non-travel
product category net sales increased by US$138.7 million, or 19.3%
(+18.0% constant currency), for the year ended December 31, 2021
compared to the previous year.

Net sales of business products increased by US$100.4 million, or
27.6% (+26.2% constant currency), for the year ended December 31,
2021 compared to the previous year. When excluding the applicable
net sales of Speck for August through December 2020, business
product net sales increased by US$112.4 million, or 32.0% (+30.5%
constant currency), for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared
to the previous year. Net sales of casual products during the year
ended December 31, 2021 decreased by US$1.8 million, or 0.9%
(-2.1% constant currency), year-on-year. Net sales of accessories
products during the year ended December 31, 2021 decreased by
US$21.5 million, or 12.1% (-12.7% constant currency), year-on-year.
When excluding the applicable net sales of Speck for August through
December 2020, net sales of accessories products increased by
US$20.5 million, or 15.1% (+14.3% constant currency), for the year
ended December 31, 2021 compared to the previous year.
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IREFERBERREE2021F12 A1 B ILFEE
H & FAREL E2020F 12 A31 B IEFEE
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Y 2021 NET SALES BY REGION AND BY DISTRIBUTION CHANNEL Vi
2021 FizER P IERES T WIEE F5E

Percentage of Net Sales

CONSOLIDATED N wEsmasy
NET SALES $HE&F%58 /2021 /

\T/ﬁ\‘lzgglesale %Té@rﬂﬁé]éﬁ% ,%?ﬁjr
US$2,020.8 61.3% 386% 0.1%
LTMHE%%E

/2020 /
Wholesale DTC k Other
2% HEEREEE Hith

62.4% 37.5% 0.1%

Percentage of Net Sales Percentage of Net Sales

HEFHEADLL HEFHEADLL

/ 2021/ / 2021/

Wholesale DTC Wholesale DTC

e HFERAES e EREEAEE
o o o o

54.3% 45.7% /29% 27.1%

/2020 / /2020 /

Wholesale DTQ . Wholesale DTQ \

e HEAAHBESE HrEs HEARNEE

61.1% 38.9% 69.0% 31.0%
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DISTRIBUTION CHANNEL

The Group sells its products through two primary distribution
channels: wholesale and direct-to-consumer (“DTC”). The following
table sets forth a breakdown of net sales by distribution channel for
the years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, both in
absolute terms and as a percentage of total net sales.

Year ended December 31,

HBE12A31HILLEE

AEEBBAMEEIEDHREHEER L3
LEZERBEEE ([DTC)) - TREINHE
20214512 A31 A K2020F 12 A31 B ILFE
ROWHEBE SRS FEAL  UEHER
B EFEE DI -

2021 vs 2020

2021 4 E12020 FF LB
Percentage
increase (decrease)
Percentage excl. foreign
Percentage Percentage increase currency effects®
of net sales of net sales (decrease) R P N R 2R
Net sales by distribution channel: US$ millions SHEFEEE USS millions HEFHE #hn Crid) #hn Gt 2>)
BoHRES DRHE T ¢ BEBER Aot BEXETT Antt B BoH®
Wholesale #t3 1,238.5 61.3% 957.8 62.4% 29.3% 27.8%
DTC™ DTC! 780.3 38.6% 576.9 37.5% 35.3% 34.6%
Other® EAth@ 1.9 0.1% 2.0 0.1% (2.6)% (2.6)%
Net sales $H& %58 2,020.8 100.0% 1,636.7 100.0% 31.5% 30.3%

Notes sLf&

(1) DTG, or direct-to-consumer, includes bricks-and-mortar retail and e-commerce sites operated by the Group.

DTC(MNEZEMHEEE) BEAREELNERSENEFHENL -
(2) “Other” primarily consists of licensing revenue.

[HAfh | —HEERFEREEA

(3) Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-IFRS measure, are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the year under

comparison to current year local currency results.

BTEERREAE2FIMEERIFFRSHBAETA - RUEMEE 270 RFEXERABEMLRFENTIEXFTEHRSE -

Net sales in the wholesale channel increased by US$280.7 million, or
29.3% (+27.8% constant currency), during the year ended December
31, 2021 compared to the year ended December 31, 2020. Net sales
to e-retailers, which are included in the Group’s wholesale channel,
increased by US$62.1 million, or 49.6% (+47.2% constant currency),
during the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to the previous
year.

Net sales in the DTC channel, which includes company-operated
retail stores and DTC e-commerce, increased by US$203.4 million, or
35.3% (+34.6% constant currency), to US$780.3 million (representing
38.6% of net sales) for the year ended December 31, 2021 from
US$576.9 million (representing 37.5% of net sales) for the year ended
December 31, 2020.
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Net Sales by Distribution Channel
ROHRBETNHEHERE

¢ Wholesale #t %

DTC EEEMEES

¢ Retail &
DTC e-commerce
HEAMEEENETHE

Net sales in the DTC retail channel increased by US$174.4 million,
or 48.1% (+48.1% constant currency), during the year ended
December 31, 2021 compared to the previous year primarily due
to the reopening of the Group’s company-operated stores that had
been temporarily closed in the prior year due to COVID-19. During the
year ended December 31, 2021, the Group permanently closed 110
company-operated stores. This was partially offset by the addition
of 19 new stores. This resulted in a net reduction of 91 company-
operated stores during the year ended December 31, 2021 compared
to a net reduction of 198 company-operated stores during the year
ended December 31, 2020. The total number of company-operated
retail stores was 1,005 as of December 31, 2021 compared to
1,096 company-operated retail stores as of December 31, 2020.
As a result of the temporary closure during 2020 of many of the
Group’s company-operated stores due to the COVID-19 Impacts,
the Company believes its year-to-date 2021 comparable store sales
metrics are not representative of the underlying trends of its business.
The Company has not included these metrics in its discussion and
analysis of net sales.

Total DTC e-commerce net sales increased by US$29.0 million, or
13.56% (+11.8% constant currency), to US$243.6 million (representing
12.1% of net sales) for the year ended December 31, 2021 from
US$214.6 million (representing 14.0% of net sales) for the year ended
December 31, 2020 due to governments relaxing social-distancing
restrictions and markets around the world reopening, which has led
many shoppers to begin to shop in person again instead of shopping
primarily online.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, US$430.8 million of the
Group’s net sales were through e-commerce channels (comprising
US$243.6 million of net sales from the Group’s DTC e-commerce
website, which are included within the DTC channel, and US$187.2
million of net sales to e-retailers, which are included within the
wholesale channel). This represented a year-on-year increase of
US$91.1 million, or 26.8% (+24.9% constant currency), compared to
the year ended December 31, 2020, when e-commerce comprised
US$339.7 million of the Group’s net sales. During the year ended
December 31, 2021, the Group’s net sales through e-commerce
channels represented 21.3% of total net sales compared to 22.1% of
total net sales for the year ended December 31, 2020.

39% 38%
2021 e 2020°
61% 62%

HZE2021F12A31HILFE DTCEEERE
HE FERAFIE 17448 EXTHL8.1%
(BT EEREETEABIEMA81%) T2 H
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E2021F12 A1 AEFEFRINIRAL S
0 MEZE20209 12 A31 B ILFEBIFRm A
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REGIONS
i &

NORTH AMERICA
ik ;ﬂﬂ Net Sales (US$m)

HERH(BEXT)
The Group’s net sales in North America

increased by US$205.1 million, or
34.0% (+33.8% constant currency), for
the year ended December 31, 2021
compared to the year ended December
31, 2020 due to continued progress in
the vaccination rollout against COVID-19,
relaxing social-distancing restrictions,
markets reopening and domestic travel
continuing to rebound in both the United
States and Canada, despite slower
stock replenishment due to shipping
delays and port congestion. On July 30,

2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company sold Speck for an aggregate
cash consideration of US$35.3 million.
Excluding the net sales of Speck for
August through December 2020, net ERBERE -
sales in North America increased by
US$259.3 million, or 47.3% (+47.0%
constant currency), for the year ended
December 31, 2021 compared to the

previous year.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group recorded a net
sales decline of 40.8% (-40.9% constant currency) in North America
when compared to the year ended December 31, 2019. When
excluding the net sales of Speck for August through December 2019,
net sales in North America decreased by 37.9% (-38.0% constant
currency) for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to the
year ended December 31, 2019.

During 2021, the Group’s quarterly net sales performance (when
compared to the corresponding quarter in 2019) in North America
experienced sequential improvement. During the fourth quarter of
2021, the Group’s net sales decline narrowed to 27.4% (-27.6%
constant currency) when compared to the fourth quarter of 2019;
when excluding the net sales of Speck for October through December
2019, consolidated net sales decreased by 21.1% (-21.3% constant
currency), for the three months ended December 31, 2021 compared
to the three months ended December 31, 2019. This encouraging
trend continued from the third quarter of 2021, when the decline in
the Group’s net sales narrowed to 29.7% (-29.9% constant currency),
when excluding the net sales of Speck for August and September
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2019, compared to the third quarter of 2019, due to continued
progress in the vaccination rollout and increased demand for domestic
travel; from the second quarter of 2021, when the Group’s net sales
decreased by 44.2% (-44.3% constant currency) compared to the
second quarter of 2019; and from the first quarter of 2021, when the
Group’s net sales decreased by 57.8% (-57.9% constant currency)
compared to the first quarter of 2019, as the net sales recovery was
temporarily slowed by a resurgence in COVID-19 cases.

The positive quarterly trend during 2021 continued the recovery that
began in the second half of 2020. The Group’s net sales in North
America decreased by 56.6% (-56.6% constant currency) for the three
months ended December 31, 2020 compared to the three months
ended December 31, 2019. Net sales decreased by 64.4% (-64.3%
constant currency) for the three months ended September 30, 2020
compared to the three months ended September 30, 2019. Net sales
for the three months ended June 30, 2020 decreased by 74.0%
(-74.0% constant currency) compared to the three months ended
June 30, 2019.

The rise in new COVID-19 cases related to the Omicron variant and
the impact from continued shipping delays and port congestion
temporarily slowed net sales recovery in North America in January
2022, but sales performance improved in February 2022. When
excluding the net sales of Speck in North America for January and
February 2019, the decline in the Group’s net sales for the first two
months of 2022 compared to the same period in 2019 increased
slightly versus the 21.1% (-21.3% constant currency) decline recorded
in the fourth quarter of 2021 when compared to the fourth quarter in
2019.
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Brands

For the year ended December 31, 2021, net sales of the Samsonite
brand in North America increased by US$112.5 million, or 52.3%
(+52.0% constant currency), compared to the previous year. Net
sales of the Tumi brand during the year ended December 31, 2021
increased by US$145.9 million, or 91.0% (+90.6% constant currency),
primarily due to the strong recovery in the Group’s company-
operated full price stores and DTC e-commerce sales. Net sales of
the American Tourister brand during the year ended December 31,
2021 increased by US$27.3 million, or 47.7% (+47.4% constant
currency), compared to the year ended December 31, 2020. Net sales
of the Gregory brand increased by US$7.9 million, or 62.5% (+62.5%
constant currency), compared to the previous year primarily due to
strong net sales of the brand as consumers were spending more time
outdoors.

Product Categories

Net sales in the travel product category for the year ended December
31, 2021 increased by US$205.8 million, or 67.0% (+66.6% constant
currency), compared to the year ended December 31, 2020. Domestic
travel continued to rebound in both the United States and Canada,
with continued progress in the vaccination rollout against COVID-19.
This has helped to drive the net sales recovery in the travel product
category. Total non-travel category net sales decreased by US$0.8
million, or 0.3% (-0.5% constant currency), compared to the previous
year. When excluding the applicable net sales of Speck for August
through December 2020, non-travel product category net sales
increased by US$53.5 million, or 22.2% (+22.0% constant currency),
for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to the previous
year.

Net sales of business products during the year ended December
31, 2021 increased by US$45.5 million, or 36.5% (+36.2% constant
currency), year-on-year. When excluding the applicable net sales of
Speck for August through December 2020, business product net sales
increased by US$57.5 million, or 51.0% (+50.7% constant currency),
for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to the previous
year. Net sales of casual products decreased by US$8.2 million, or
15.0% (-15.2% constant currency), compared to the previous year.
Net sales of accessories products decreased by US$36.9 million, or
32.4% (-32.5% constant currency), year-on-year. When excluding the
applicable net sales of Speck for August through December 2020, net
sales of accessories products increased by US$5.2 million, or 7.2%
(+7.0% constant currency), for the year ended December 31, 2021

compared to the previous year.
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Distribution Channels

Net sales in the wholesale channel increased by US$70.9 million, or
19.3% (+19.0% constant currency), for the year ended December
31, 2021 compared to the year ended December 31, 2020. Net
sales to e-retailers, which are included in the Group’s wholesale
channel, increased by US$13.3 million, or 22.7% (+22.5% constant
currency), during the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to
the previous year.

Net sales in the DTC channel, which includes company-operated
retail stores and DTC e-commerce, increased by US$134.2 million, or
57.2% (+56.8% constant currency), year-on-year to US$368.7 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021 from US$234.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2020.

Net sales in the DTC retail channel increased by US$125.5 million,
or 100.6% (+100.0% constant currency),
December 31, 2021 compared to the previous year primarily due
to the reopening of the Group’s company-operated stores that had
been temporarily closed in the prior year due to COVID-19. During
the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group permanently closed
12 company-operated stores in North America. This was partially

during the year ended

offset by the addition of 2 new stores. This resulted in a net reduction
of 10 company-operated stores during the year ended December
31, 2021 compared to a net reduction of 66 company-operated
stores during the year ended December 31, 2020. The total number
of company-operated retail stores in North America was 272 as
of December 31, 2021 compared to 282 company-operated retail
stores as of December 31, 2020. As a result of the temporary closure
during 2020 of many of the Group’s company-operated stores due
to the COVID-19 Impacts, the Company believes its year-to-date
2021 comparable store sales metrics are not representative of the
underlying trends of its business. The Company has not included
these metrics in its discussion and analysis of net sales.

Total DTC e-commerce net sales increased by US$8.7 million, or
7.9% (+7.7% constant currency), to US$118.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021 from US$109.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020.
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Countries

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales in North America by
geographic location for the years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31,
2020, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total regional net sales.

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A31ALEE

2021 vs 2020

2021 G B20204F LLER
Percentage
increase (decrease)
Percentage excl. foreign
Percentage Percentage increase currency effects®
of net sales of net sales (decrease) WERIE X 2K
Net sales by geographic location:  US$ millions SHEFE  USS millions HEFEH #hn CRid) 0 Crid>)
R E Bl 5 RISHEFRED ¢ BEXERT B EL-E¥ ERad Ao BoO
United States <[ 776.3 96.1% 578.9 96.1% 34.1% 34.1%
Canada £ X 31.3 3.9% 23.5 3.9% 32.8% 25.6%
Net sales? & HEEA 807.5 100.0% 602.5 100.0% 34.0% 33.8%

Notes 51f#
(1) The geographic location of the Group’s net sales generally reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily

indicate the country in which its end consumers were actually located.

FEEHEFENMBALEIH —RRREEERNER - AT —FERLMHEEEERMENER -
(2) On July 30, 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company sold Speck. Excluding the net sales of Speck for August through December
2020, net sales in North America increased by US$259.3 million, or 47.3% (+47.0% constant currency), for the year ended December 31,

2021 compared to the previous year.

MR2021F7 308 © KRR —KE2EAWE QA HESpeck o &M% SpeckR202058 AZE 12 A MR EEHHEFE - HE2021F12 83101k
FE - EEMNOHEE FEREFILIN259.3BEETHAT.3% (FRT 2 EREENE R INGT.0%) »
(3) Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-IFRS measure, are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the year under

comparison to current year local currency results.

BRTBERAEFE2IINEERIFIFRSHBAETA - BRUEMER 2N AFERERARELBLRFENTHERFEMRS -

For the year ended December 31, 2021, net sales in the United
States increased by US$197.3 million, or 34.1%, year-on-year as
a result of continued encouraging sales performance trends due
to relaxing social-distancing restrictions, markets reopening and
domestic travel continuing to rebound with continued progress in the
vaccination rollout against COVID-19. When excluding the net sales
of Speck for August through December 2020, net sales in the United
States increased by US$251.6 million, or 48.0%, for the year ended
December 31, 2021 compared to the previous year.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, net sales in Canada
increased by US$7.7 million, or 32.8% (+25.6% constant currency),
year-on-year as restrictions on social distancing eased and markets
reopened.
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BEE2019OTEMRASBIERBEBFENSG#E
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ASIA
L))

The Group’s net sales in Asia increased
by US$128.9 million, or 23.1% (+20.3%
constant currency), for the year ended
December 31, 2021 compared to the

Net Sales (US$m)
HEFHE(ABXT)

year ended December 31, 2020 due to
relaxing social-distancing restrictions,
most markets reopening and improved
vaccination rates, despite continued
restrictions on international travel to and
from countries in the region. The Group
recorded a net sales decline of 47.7%
(-48.4% constant currency) in Asia when

compared to the year ended December
31, 2019.

HREREMRFINE  RBITSERMREERERERFGNMNE  BREEHEABRRNBRRENAZRRS - A%LBEE
F2021F12 A31 B IEFER N HE FEEEHE2020F 12 A31 HIEFE1EMN128.98 B X k23.1% (IR EERE
S E R A120.3%) ° ANEB NSNS IHE FRAKEE2019F12 A31 B ILFEE T#47.7% GRS EREEAHAT

P548.4%) o

During 2021, the Group’s quarterly net sales performance (when
compared to the corresponding quarter in 2019) in Asia experienced
improvement. During the fourth quarter of 2021, the Group’s net
sales decline narrowed to 38.9% (-39.3% constant currency) when
compared to the fourth quarter of 2019. This encouraging trend
continued from the third quarter of 2021 when the net sales decline
narrowed to 47.8% (-48.7% constant currency) compared to the third
quarter of 2019. The net sales performance during the second quarter
of 2021 temporarily slowed with the decline in net sales of 54.9%
(-56.0% constant currency) when compared to the second quarter of
2019, due to resurgences of COVID-19 cases, particularly in India,
and the relatively slower vaccination rollout in important markets
such as Japan and South Korea. The Group’s net sales during the
first quarter of 2021 decreased by 49.2% (-49.9% constant currency)
compared to the first quarter of 2019.

The quarterly trend during 2021 continued the recovery that began
in the second half of 2020. The Group’s net sales in Asia decreased
by 54.7% (-56.1% constant currency) for the three months ended
December 31, 2020 compared to the three months ended December
31, 2019. Net sales decreased by 63.1% (-63.4% constant currency)
for the three months ended September 30, 2020 compared to the
three months ended September 30, 2019. Net sales for the three
months ended June 30, 2020 decreased by 76.2% (-75.6% constant
currency) compared to the three months ended June 30, 2019.

202146 « REBMADMEEHE F5E (-
2019FMHEZEEMLL) MRBBMNE - K
2021 FENEE - AEEHEFREE2019F
FIUEFE AL AR IE UK E £38.9% (2T # &
REBESERE39.3%) © S ABEMNBS
B2021 R E=FERLE  ERFNEEFHEE
2019F BE=FEMILMBKEBREEL7.8% (I
TEEREEFERR48.7%) - 20215FF
—ZFE - AR2019TBARAESEAERG = (X
ERHE)ARBAREBEEEEMISEMNER
EERYEE  HEFERBTHRE 3
R E FER2019FF -FE R 54.9%
(BT #EREEFEARA56.0%) - NEE
2021 FE —ZEMHEE FEEK2019FF—
FEM A 49.2% (IE T BIERE L EBIR A
49.9%) °

2021 FMZEBHILE T 52020F THFH
AEVEEES R - BEE2020F12 A31 B IE=1A
A AEBRGENKEE FEREE20194F
12 A31BIE=@A R 54.7% (IR EERE
T ERIR A 56.1%) - H{ZE2020F9 A30H
IE=EAMHE FHEEHE2019F9HA30H 1E
=@ AR A 63.1% (3R EE R EETF AR
163.4%) - B ZE2020F6 A30H IE=1@AH
HEFRREE2019F6 AS0H L= AR
76.2% (T EREEFHAF A 75.6%) ©
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The rise in new COVID-19 cases related to the Omicron variant and
the resulting reinstatement of travel restrictions and social distancing
measures in certain markets in Asia temporarily slowed net sales
recovery in the region during January 2022, but sales performance
improved in February 2022. The decline in the Group’s net sales
for the first two months of 2022 compared to the same period in
2019 remained relatively steady versus the 38.9% (-39.3% constant
currency) decline recorded in the fourth quarter of 2021 when
compared to the fourth quarter in 2019.

Brands

For the year ended December 31, 2021, net sales of the Samsonite
brand increased by US$41.7 million, or 17.3% (+13.2% constant
currency), compared to the previous year. Net sales of the Tumi brand
during the year ended December 31, 2021 increased by US$29.2
million, or 23.6% (+21.2% constant currency), year-on-year. Net sales

of the American Tourister brand during the year ended December
31, 2021 increased by US$40.4 million, or 30.5% (+28.3% constant
currency), compared to the year ended December 31, 2020. Net sales
of the Gregory brand decreased by US$1.9 million, or 6.0% (-4.4%
constant currency), year-on-year, as a result of a strong net sales
during 2020.
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Product Categories

Net sales in the travel product category for the year ended December
31, 2021 increased by US$82.6 million, or 32.4% (+29.6% constant
currency), compared to the previous year. Total non-travel category
net sales increased by US$46.3 million, or 15.3% (+12.4% constant
currency), compared to the year ended December 31, 2020. Net
sales of business products increased by US$36.5 million, or 21.2%
(+18.3% constant currency), compared to the previous year. Net
sales of casual products increased by US$3.6 million, or 3.5% (+1.2%
constant currency), year-on-year. Net sales of accessories products
increased by US$2.2 million, or 10.9% (+8.1% constant currency),
year-on-year.

Distribution Channels

Net sales in the wholesale channel increased by US$115.8 million, or
30.0% (+27.0% constant currency), for the year ended December 31,
2021 compared to the previous year. Net sales to e-retailers, which
are included in the Group’s wholesale channel, increased by US$31.1
million, or 93.0% (+87.1% constant currency), during the year ended
December 31, 2021 compared to the previous year.

Net sales in the DTC channel, which includes company-operated
retail stores and DTC e-commerce, increased by US$13.1 million,
or 7.6% (+5.3% constant currency), to US$186.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021 from US$173.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020.

Net sales in the DTC retail channel increased by US$6.1 million, or
5.8% (+4.9% constant currency), during the year ended December 31,
2021 compared to the previous year. During the year ended December
31, 2021, the Group permanently closed 40 company-operated stores
in Asia. This was partially offset by the addition of 10 new stores. This
resulted in a net reduction of 30 company-operated stores during
the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to a net reduction of
33 company-operated stores during the year ended December 31,
2020. The total number of company-operated retail stores in Asia was
345 as of December 31, 2021 compared to 375 company-operated
retail stores as of December 31, 2020. As a result of the temporary
closure during 2020 of many of the Group’s company-operated stores
due to the COVID-19 Impacts, the Company believes its year-to-
date 2021 comparable store sales metrics are not representative of
the underlying trends of its business. The Company has not included
these metrics in its discussion and analysis of net sales.

Total DTC e-commerce net sales increased by US$7.0 million, or
10.4% (+5.9% constant currency), to US$74.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021 from US$67.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020.

EmEH

IR ERBERIEE2021F12 A1 B IEFEW
HE FHEREFIEINE2.6 ABEITH32.4%
(Fe e = AR H ABE IN29.6% ) © FEHRE
EmERMRHEE FEREE2020F12 A31
HIEFEEMI6.3EEETLHK15.3% (BT &
[EREETERIN12.4%) - ESERMHEE
FEEREFIEING6.5 B EETK21.2% (I
EATE R EDEST H B2 N18.3% ) © (REE Y
EFBIRFIEMI6AEEXTLNI.5% (BT E
fEREEFEAILIN.2%) - BIFERNEE
FEREFIEM2. 2B EELHK10.9% (IR T EIE
EEEEHAPEINSA%)
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales in Asia by
geographic location for the years ended December 31, 2021 and
December 31, 2020, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of
total regional net sales.

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A31HLFE

Bx, thE

TREHEHE2021F12 A31 B K20204F12
A31BItFEERMEUES H M MEEF
A U@ERHERGEAHEEFEAIL
BIER o

2021 vs 2020

2021 F H2020F Lh &
Percentage
increase (decrease)
Percentage excl. foreign
Percentage Percentage increase currency effects®
of net sales of net sales (decrease) PR I R 21
Net sales by geographic location”:  US$ millions SHEFE  USS millions SHEFHE & CRid) 3 Ot 2>)
IR B Bl 5 RS EFRED ¢ BEER Aot BEXTT Aot B BoHe
China FE 227.9 33.1% 166.8 29.9% 36.7% 27.5%
India ENfE 140.0 20.4% 60.5 10.8% 131.3% 131.9%
Japan A7A 96.7 14.1% 115.6 20.7% (16.3)% (13.3)%
South Korea Fg§% 75.3 10.9% 77.5 13.9% (2.8)% (5.5)%
Hong Kong® &% 51.5 7.5% 43.6 7.8% 18.0% 18.1%
Australia B 19.3 2.8% 19.6 3.5% (1.6)% (8.5)%
Other HAf 76.8 11.2% 75.0 13.4% 2.4% 1.3%
Net sales $§& %58 687.5 100.0% 558.6 100.0% 23.1% 20.3%

Notes 7F#&

(1) The geographic location of the Group’s net sales generally reflects the country/territory from which its products were sold and does not
necessarily indicate the country/territory in which its end consumers were actually located.
AEBHEFENMBUESIH —RRELEEERNEAR ME - TFA—ERKKEEBEERMENER SHE -

(2) Net sales reported for Hong Kong include net sales made domestically, net sales made in Macau as well as net sales to distributors in

certain other Asian markets where the Group does not have a direct presence.

BRESNHEFERENTLESOHEFE  RPIRENHEEFEARME THEARAERT SEERMREBODM TSNS HEMERGEN

HEFE -

(3) Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-IFRS measure, are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the year under

comparison to current year local currency results.

BT BEREEFHEIINEARIFIFRSH B ETA - EUNEERE2IMAFREERAEEALRFROFHERGFEMS -

Net sales in China increased by US$61.1 million, or 36.7% (+27.5%
constant currency), for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared
to the previous year. Net sales in India increased by US$79.5 million,
or 131.3% (+131.9% constant currency), for the year ended December
31, 2021 compared to the previous year, despite a resurgence of
COVID-19 cases in that country during the second quarter of 2021.
Total net sales reported for Hong Kong (which comprises net sales
made in the domestic Hong Kong market, Macau and to distributors
in certain other Asian markets) increased by US$7.9 million, or 18.0%
(+18.1% constant currency), year-on-year. These year-on-year net
sales increases were partially offset by decreases in Japan and South
Korea due to continued restrictions on travel and also due to delayed
rollout of vaccines, as well as in Australia due to continued lockdown
and country borders largely remaining closed. Net sales in Japan
decreased by US$18.8 million, or 16.3% (-13.3% constant currency),
year-on-year. Net sales in South Korea decreased by US$2.2
million, or 2.8% (-5.5% constant currency), year-on-year. Net sales
in Australia decreased by US$0.3 million, or 1.6% (-8.5% constant
currency), compared to the previous year.

All of the Group’s main markets in Asia continued to report net sales
decreases during 2021 compared to 2019 including: China (-25.5%;
-30.5% constant currency), India (-19.6%; -15.6% constant currency),
Japan (-565.5%; -55.0% constant currency), South Korea (-59.1%;
-59.8% constant currency) and Hong Kong (-66.1%; -66.3% constant
currency).
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EUROPE

N Net Sales (US$m)
BN ema mazn)

The Group’s net sales in Europe
increased by US$116.6 million, or 38.5%
(+37.7% constant currency), for the year
ended December 31, 2021 compared to
the year ended December 31, 2020 due
to relaxing social-distancing restrictions,
markets reopening and domestic travel
continuing to rebound as progress was
made in the vaccination rollout against
COVID-19. Overall, for the year ended
December 31, 2021 the Group recorded
a net sales decline of 47.1% (-47.6%
constant currency) in Europe when

compared to the year ended December
31, 2019.

HAR2019ERAEREREEENSERSHERBHRHTNE  mEERMIBERKEFERE  ANEBEHZE2021F12
A31 A FERBNAEE FBEEHE2020F 12 A1 HIEFEEIN116.6 BEETK38.5% (1Z 1 & [ R A & AI1E
N37.7%) - AEME * BE2021F12 A1 HIEFE  AEBREMNESHE FEREE2019F12 A1 HIEFE Tk

47 1% (BT EIE R EELTE AT #47.6%) °

During 2021, the Group’s quarterly net sales performance (when
compared to the corresponding quarter in 2019) in Europe
experienced sequential improvement. During the fourth quarter of
2021, the Group’s net sales decline narrowed to 29.4% (-28.4%
constant currency) when compared to the fourth quarter of 2019.
This encouraging trend continued from the third quarter of 2021 when
the net sales decline narrowed quickly to 33.8% (-35.5% constant
currency) compared to the third quarter of 2019. During the second
quarter of 2021, the Group’s net sales decline narrowed to 59.4%
(-60.4% constant currency) when compared to the second quarter
of 2019, as travel restrictions began to ease in June 2021, and from
the first quarter of 2021, when the decline in the Group’s net sales
was 70.5% (-70.9% constant currency), when compared to the first
quarter of 2019, as the net sales recovery was temporarily slowed by
a resurgence in COVID-19 cases.

The positive quarterly trend during 2021 continued the recovery that
began in the second half of 2020. The Group’s net sales in Europe
decreased by 66.3% (-67.1% constant currency) for the three months
ended December 31, 2020 compared to the three months ended
December 31, 2019 as governments across the region reinstated

R20214F AEEBEBMNEEHE F5E (&2
2019FMEFEML) WRBHEBEERS -
MR2021FEMFE - REEHE FEE2019
FEMEFEIL A BIEREE29.4% (T
fERELAESFERIE D28.4%) o It S AEER
BHE2021 FE=FERLEE  ERNHEETF
FHE2019FE=FERLNKBERLRKES
33.8% (121~ B4 18 & AERT H AR 1-35.5% ) ©
2021 FE ZFFE - BHRNIRERGI72021F
ARMBNE  AEEERMNHEEFEM2019
FE_ZTEMHEOBEREERS9.4% (ETE
MERELEFEARD60.4%) - MZBE B
2021 F FE—FERILEE - AR2019BHRRS
BRERAEA - HEFHEEHLTRRE K
EEENNHEEFER00I0FE—FTEMRL
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restrictions due to the resurgence of COVID-19 cases in late 2020.
Net sales decreased by 64.8% (-65.7% constant currency) for the
three months ended September 30, 2020 compared to the three
months ended September 30, 2019. Net sales for the three months
ended June 30, 2020 decreased by 86.0% (-85.7% constant currency)
compared to the three months ended June 30, 2019.

The rise in new COVID-19 cases related to the Omicron variant
temporarily slowed net sales recovery in Europe in January 2022,
but sales performance has begun to improve in February 2022. The
decline in the Group’s net sales for the first two months of 2022
compared to the same period in 2019 slightly improved versus the
29.4% (-28.4% constant currency) decline recorded in the fourth
quarter of 2021 when compared to the fourth quarter in 2019.

Brands

For the year ended December 31, 2021, net sales of the Samsonite
brand increased by US$84.9 million, or 43.8% (+43.1% constant
currency), compared to the previous year. Net sales of the Tumi brand
during the year ended December 31, 2021 increased by US$7.1
million, or 20.3% (+19.5% constant currency), year-on-year. Net sales
of the American Tourister brand during the year ended December
31, 2021 increased by US$19.7 million, or 41.7% (+41.0% constant
currency), compared to the year ended December 31, 2020.

Product Categories
Net sales in the travel product category for the year ended December
31, 2021 increased by US$87.3 million, or 49.4% (+48.4% constant

& B8 66.3% (I 1~ (8 & A A1 5 Bl
67.1%) - B ZE 202059 A30 8 IF =1E A4
EREREE2019F9A30H It =@ AR
64.8% (2 T BB REEFE AR 65.7%) °
HZE2020%F 6 A30H IFE = A/ HEFERE
Z2019F6 A30R 1IF =18 Am 4 86.0% (&1
AR RELESTE A 485.7%) ©

B Omicron® 2R EEEA2019BRBFEE
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FIAA FTENE - AEE 2022 F & M {E A A8
EFEBRIE (2019 F R HIMAL) 82021 58
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FAEMBEE2021F12 A31 B IEFEMHE
ERAEEFIEING4. 9B B ETH43.8% (%
TEEREAEFFAIENA43.1%) ° Tumifm
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currency), compared to the year ended December 31, 2020. Total
non-travel category net sales increased by US$29.2 million, or 23.2%
(+22.7% constant currency), year-on-year. Net sales of business
products increased by US$14.1 million, or 23.6% (+23.7% constant
currency), year-on-year. Net sales of casual products increased by
US$4.3 million, or 19.8% (+18.0% constant currency), compared to
the previous year. Net sales of accessories products increased by
US$6.3 million, or 20.1% (+19.0% constant currency), year-on-year.

Net sales in the wholesale channel increased by US$76.6 million, or
45.3% (+43.8% constant currency), during the year ended December
31, 2021 compared to the year ended December 31, 2020. Net sales
to e-retailers, which are included in the Group’s wholesale channel,
increased by US$17.7 million, or 53.8% (+50.7% constant currency),
during the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to the previous
year.

Net sales in the DTC channel, which includes company-operated
retail stores and DTC e-commerce, increased by US$40.0 million, or
29.9% (+29.9% constant currency), to US$173.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021 from US$133.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020.

Net sales in the DTC retail channel increased by US$28.3 million, or
28.5% (+29.0% constant currency), during the year ended December
31, 2021 compared to the previous year. During the year ended
December 31, 2021, the Group permanently closed 28 company-
operated stores in Europe. This was partially offset by the addition
of 4 new stores. This resulted in a net reduction of 24 company-
operated stores during the year ended December 31, 2021 compared
to a net reduction of 70 company-operated stores during the year
ended December 31, 2020. The total number of company-operated
retail stores in Europe was 218 as of December 31, 2021 compared
to 242 company-operated retail stores as of December 31, 2020.
As a result of the temporary closure during 2020 of many of the
Group’s company-operated stores due to the COVID-19 Impacts,
the Company believes its year-to-date 2021 comparable store sales
metrics are not representative of the underlying trends of its business.
The Company has not included these metrics in its discussion and
analysis of net sales.

Total DTC e-commerce net sales increased by US$11.7 million, or
34.0% (+32.5% constant currency), to US$46.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021 from US$34.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales in Europe
by geographic location for the years ended December 31, 2021 and
December 31, 2020, both in absolute terms and as a percentage of
total regional net sales.
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Year ended December 31,

HZE12A31ALLEE

2021 vs 2020

2021 4F E12020 4F LB

Percentage

increase (decrease)

Percentage excl. foreign

Percentage Percentage increase currency effects®

of net sales of net sales (decrease) TR IE 5 S22 1Y

Net sales by geographic location”:  US$ millions SHEFE  USS millions SHEFHE & CRid) 3 O 2>

R B Bl S RS EFRED ¢ BEER Aot BEXET Aot Bl Bo®

Belgium® Lt FlE§@ 98.1 23.4% 72.0 23.8% 36.3% 33.9%

Germany =& 53.1 12.7% 48.0 15.9% 10.5% 8.8%

Italy Z A 43.8 10.5% 31.9 10.5% 37.2% 35.2%

Russia 2 i 40.3 9.6% 24.5 8.1% 64.5% 65.8%

France /% 39.7 9.5% 28.0 9.3% 41.7% 40.0%

Spain F& ¥ 5F 33.2 7.9% 20.1 6.6% 65.4% 63.6%

United Kingdom® Z&[E® 27.4 6.5% 17.8 5.9% 53.9% 46.1%

Other HAtf 83.6 19.9% 60.2 19.9% 38.7% 43.0%

Net sales $H& 58 419.1 100.0% 302.5 100.0% 38.5% 37.7%

Notes 51

(1) The geographic location of the Group’s net sales generally reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily

indicate the country in which its end consumers were actually located.

AEBHEEFEOMBUED> M —RRREEERNEE - XT—ERKHHEEEERAENER -

(2) Net sales in Belgium were US$10.1 million and US$6.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020,
respectively, an increase of US$3.5 million, or 51.9% (+47.1% constant currency). Remaining sales consisted of direct shipments to
distributors, customers and agents in other European countries, including e-commerce.

#ZE2021F12 431 H 202012 A31 BIEFE - WRINHHEEFEDBI /101 BEEXTR67TAEET @ M35 BEFEITHE1.9% (AL
fEREEAHAIEIMNATA%) - A THHEFRCFREEZEETRMNEMBRRN S HE BERPFRREH (BEREFTHE) -

(3) Net sales reported for the United Kingdom include net sales made in Ireland.

ERBENHEFHEOENEBMSENHEFHE -
(4) Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-IFRS measure, are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the year under

comparison to current year local currency results.

BTEREEEHE2IMEERIFIFRSUBHETR - BRUAEMER 2 NAF ZRARMELBLRFEHFHREEAEMG -

Net sales in Germany increased by US$5.1 million, or 10.5% (+8.8%
constant currency), for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared
to the previous year. ltaly’s net sales increased by US$11.9 million,
or 37.2% (+35.2% constant currency), compared to the year ended
December 31, 2020. Net sales in Russia increased by US$15.8
million, or 64.5% (+65.8% constant currency), year-on-year. Net sales
in France increased by US$11.7 million, or 41.7% (+40.0% constant
currency), compared to the previous year. Spain’s net sales increased
by US$13.1 million, or 65.4% (+63.6% constant currency), year-on-
year. Net sales in the United Kingdom increased by US$9.6 million, or
53.9% (+46.1% constant currency), year-on-year.

All of the Group’s key markets in Europe recorded net sales decreases
during 2021 compared to 2019 including: Germany (-55.6%; -58.0%
constant currency), ltaly (-46.6%; -49.4% constant currency), Russia
(-33.5%; -24.3% constant currency), France (-49.0%; -51.6% constant
currency), Spain (-42.8%; -45.8% constant currency) and United
Kingdom (-64.3%; -66.9% constant currency).
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LATIN AMERICA
j:jz—_l—a-_‘%ﬁﬂ Net Sales (US$m)

HEFH(BEXETT)
The Group’s net sales in Latin America

increased by US$33.6 million, or 47.2%
(+49.3% constant currency), for the year
ended December 31, 2021 compared
to the year ended December 31,
2020 due to the relaxation of social-
distancing restrictions, markets reopening
and significant progress made in the
vaccination rollout against COVID-19
in most countries. Overall, for the year
ended December 31, 2021, the Group
recorded a net sales decline of 37.2%

(-26.8% constant currency) in Latin
America when compared to the year
ended December 31, 2019.

F A R BB PR Il iR~ T3S BRI R K E0 5 BIR 201 958 ik i 55 % fiE 1% i 4
BEREREER  AEBHZE2021F12 A31 B IEFER T MO HEEF
BERBEE2020F12 A31 HIEFEHMNS3.6 BB FET47.2% (R E=R
EEGTHAIEN49.3%) - LM E - BIE2021F 12431 HIEFE - K&
AR T EMEREHEFEREE2019412 A31 B ILFE F¥37.2% (&
A R ECEST H BT 3£26.8%) ©

During 2021, the Group’s quarterly net sales performance (when
compared to the corresponding quarter in 2019) in Latin America
experienced sequential improvement. During the fourth quarter of
2021, the Group’s net sales decreased by 8.0%, but increased on a
constant currency basis by 7.7% when compared to the fourth quarter
of 2019. This encouraging trend continued from the third quarter of
2021 when the net sales decline narrowed quickly to 26.1% (-14.6%
constant currency) compared to the third quarter of 2019. During the
second quarter of 2021, the Group’s net sales decline was 55.5%
(-48.9% constant currency) when compared to the second quarter
of 2019, as net sales performance began to show some signs of
improvement, and from the first quarter of 2021, when the decline in
the Group’s net sales was 58.8% (-51.1% constant currency), when
compared to the first quarter of 2019, as the net sales recovery was
temporarily slowed by a resurgence in COVID-19 cases.

The positive quarterly trend during 2021 continued the recovery that
began in the second half of 2020. The Group’s net sales in Latin
America decreased by 46.9% (-43.2% constant currency) for the three
months ended December 31, 2020 compared to the three months
ended December 31, 2019. Net sales decreased by 77.8% (-74.2%
constant currency) for the three months ended September 30, 2020
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R2021FE—FE - EEHE FREAAMGL
BETUHETR - ASEHEFHEAE20195F5
ZEEHEOBEREES5.5% (RTE#EX
EEFTERRA48.9%) ¢ MziBE INE 2021
FE-FERLE - BR20198 K SEAER
BIEIA - HEFEERLRRE  NEBHE
SFRR2019F R —FEH A 58.8% (BT EE
EEBEFHAIRA51.1%) ©

2021 FFITFEBHIEE T B2020F T F
FHRIEMER LK - HE2020F12A31H1E
@A AEERNTEMNEEFERER
2019612 A31 B IE=E AR 46.9% (&1
BE RSB AR 43.2%) ° BiE2020F
9QAB0HRIE=EAMEEFEREE201959

HEBEBRERRAT /F52021/ 63



%‘ﬁ
B
D
=

Management Discussion and Analysis & 2 /€ 513

REGIONS
i &

compared to the three months ended September 30, 2019. Net sales
for the three months ended June 30, 2020 decreased by 95.4%
(-94.3% constant currency) compared to the three months ended
June 30, 2019.

The rise in new COVID-19 cases related to the Omicron variant
temporarily slowed net sales recovery in Latin America in January
2022, but sales performance rebounded strongly in February 2022.
The Group’s net sales for the first two months of 2022 compared to
the same period in 2019 noticeably improved versus the 8.0% decline
(+7.7% constant currency growth) recorded in the fourth quarter of
2021 when compared to the fourth quarter in 2019.

Brands

For the year ended December 31, 2021, net sales of the Samsonite
brand in Latin America increased by US$16.0 million, or 67.2%
(+72.8% constant currency), compared to the previous year. For the
year ended December 31, 2021, net sales of the Tumi brand in Latin
America increased by US$2.6 million, or 122.4% (+117.6% constant
currency), compared to the previous year. Net sales of the American
Tourister brand during the year ended December 31, 2021 increased
by US$8.4 million, or 113.0% (+114.5% constant currency), compared
to the year ended December 31, 2020. Net sales of the Saxoline
brand increased by US$3.6 million, or 44.0% (+41.3% constant
currency), year-on-year. Net sales of the Secret brand increased by
US$4.2 million, or 50.0% (+51.0% constant currency), year-on-year.
Net sales of the Xtrem brand decreased by US$1.1 million, or 5.4%
(-3.9% constant currency), compared to the previous year.

Sams&nite x W

A PIECE OF ART
IN YOUR HANDS
C-LITE Limited Edition
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Product Categories

Net sales in the travel product category for the year ended December
31, 2021 increased by US$23.9 million, or 100.4% (+104.8% constant
currency), compared to the previous year. Total non-travel category
net sales increased by US$9.7 million, or 20.5% (+21.4% constant
2020. Net
sales of business products increased by US$4.3 million, or 61.4%

currency), compared to the year ended December 31,
(+64.8% constant currency), compared to the previous year. Net sales
of casual products decreased by US$1.5 million, or 5.6% (-4.7%
constant currency), year-on-year. Net sales of accessories products
increased by US$6.9 million, or 53.5% (+53.1% constant currency),
year-on-year.

Distribution Channels

Net sales in the wholesale channel increased by US$17.5 million, or
49.3% (+50.5% constant currency), for the year ended December 31,
2021 compared to the year ended December 31, 2020.

Net sales in the DTC channel, which includes company-operated
retail stores and DTC e-commerce, increased by US$16.1 million, or
45.1% (+48.0% constant currency), to US$51.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021 from US$35.7 million for the year ended

December 31, 2020.

Net sales in the DTC retail channel increased by US$14.4 million,
or 44.6% (+47.4% constant currency), during the year ended
December 31, 2021 compared to the previous year.
2021,

company-operated stores in Latin America. This was partially offset

During the
year ended December 31, the Group permanently closed 30
by the addition of 3 new stores. This resulted in a net reduction
of 27 company-operated stores during the year ended December
31, 2021,
stores during the year ended December 31, 2020. The total number

compared to a net reduction of 29 company-operated

of company-operated retail stores in Latin America was 170 as of
December 31, 2021 compared to 197 company-operated retail
stores as of December 31, 2020. As a result of the temporary closure
during 2020 of many of the Group’s company-operated stores due
to the COVID-19 Impacts, the Company believes its year-to-date
2021 comparable store sales metrics are not representative of the
underlying trends of its business. The Company has not included

these metrics in its discussion and analysis of net sales.

Total DTC e-commerce net sales increased by US$1.7 million, or
49.1% (+53.7% constant currency), to US$5.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021 from US$3.5 million for the year ended

December 31, 2020.
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Countries

The following table sets forth a breakdown of net sales in Latin
America by geographic location for the years ended December 31,
2021 and December 31, 2020, both in absolute terms and as a
percentage of total regional net sales.

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A31ALEE

EIE

TREHEZE2021F12 A31 H K20205F12 A
S1BIEFERMEMEE DN T EMEEF
HAAM - DBHERMRAEEFEE S
HIER ©

2021 vs 2020

2021 FH2020F L B
Percentage
increase (decrease)
Percentage excl. foreign
Percentage Percentage increase currency effects®
of net sales of net sales (decrease) WERIE X 2K
Net sales by geographic location”:  US$ millions SHEFE  USS millions SHEFHE & CRid) 3 O A>)
IR B Bl 5 RISHEFRED - E-EP Aot EX-E Aot Ao BoH®
Chile & 7 42.2 40.3% 32.9 46.3% 28.2% 27.4%
Mexico =&P8&f 29.0 27.7% 14.6 20.5% 98.9% 88.8%
Brazil® E275®@ 12.3 11.7% 8.5 11.9% 45.0% 49.0%
Other® EAth® 21.3 20.3% 16.2 21.3% 40.0% 58.9%
Net sales $H& 58 104.7 100.0% 71.2 100.0% 47.2% 49.3%

Notes 5Ff#

(1) The geographic location of the Group’s net sales generally reflects the country from which its products were sold and does not necessarily

indicate the country in which its end consumers were actually located.

AEEHEFEOMBLED> M —RRREEERNEE  TT—ERKMEREEERAENEZK -

(2) Excludes sales made to distributors in Brazil from outside the country.
TREHRERIINEEAND HEELWHE -

(8) The net sales figure for the “Other” geographic location includes sales in Argentina, Colombia, Panama, Peru, Uruguay and sales to third-

party distributors in Brazil from outside of Brazil.

[Eft U BEREEFEBBEEERMRE - FHit:d B25  WERBNEFHNHEEAREERBIAEEENNS =7 D HAEL

HISHE -

(4) Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-IFRS measure, are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the year under

comparison to current year local currency results.

BASEREAEFERIINEERIFIFRSHUBFHETIR RUEHMEB 2 NAFERERARAALBFEENTHERFEMRS -

Net sales in Chile increased by US$9.3 million, or 28.2% (+27.4%
constant currency), during the year ended December 31, 2021
compared to the previous year. Net sales in Mexico increased by
US$14.4 million, or 98.9% (+88.8% constant currency), year-on-year.
Net sales in Brazil increased by US$3.8 million, or 45.0% (+49.0%
constant currency), year-on-year.

BANEHZE2021F12A31 B ILFENHE H5E
BAFIEIMNG. 3B EXTTH28.2% (IE T HE X
EEAEANEN27.4%) - RITHEEEEEIL
FN14.4BEFTK98.9% (IR NEERE
AT EBIEANG8.8%) o PRt & F AR IR F 1%
3.8 A EETTEA5.0% (RN HEREAEAFE
Bl 149.0%) °
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Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

Cost of sales increased by US$88.9 million, or 10.7%, to US$919.3
million (representing 45.5% of net sales) for the year ended December
31, 2021 from US$830.4 million (representing 54.0% of net sales) for
the year ended December 31, 2020. The Group’s gross profit was
negatively impacted by an increase in global freight and raw material
costs. The Group has leveraged its long-standing relationships with
suppliers to mitigate the effects of cost increases where possible
and has implemented price increases in certain markets to offset the
resulting margin pressure.

Gross profit increased by US$395.2 million, or 56.0%, to US$1,101.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2021 from US$706.3 million
for the year ended December 31, 2020 due to increased sales year
over year. Gross profit margin increased to 54.5% for the year ended
December 31, 2021 from 46.0% for the previous year. The increase
in gross profit margin was attributable to (i) price increases on the
Group’s products sold to mitigate increased product, freight and
duty costs, (i) lower promotional discounts and (i) lower provisions
for inventory reserves year-on-year. The improvement in gross profit
margin during the year ended December 31, 2021 was partially
offset by the non-renewal of the Generalized System of Preferences
program in the United States (“GSP”) in January 2021, which has
resulted in increased duty costs on goods imported to the United
States from countries that were beneficiaries of GSP. While this
negatively impacted gross profit margin by US$17.3 million, or 90
basis points, for the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group has
implemented price increases on products sold in the United States
to moderate the impacts from the expiration of GSP. The Group also
implemented price increases in markets around the world to mitigate
the pressure on the Group’s gross profit margin. The devaluation of
many currencies to the US Dollar also had a negative impact on gross
profit margin.

The gross profit margin of 46.0% for the year ended December 31,
2020 was negatively impacted by (i) increased provisions for inventory
reserves, (i) the impact of fixed sourcing and manufacturing expenses
on a lower net sales base, (iii) the inclusion of restructuring charges
and non-cash impairment charges related to the sourcing and
production of the Group’s products and (iv) a shift in sales mix.
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Distribution Expenses

Distribution expenses decreased by US$45.0 million, or 6.0%, to
US$699.6 million (representing 34.6% of net sales) for the year ended
December 31, 2021 from US$744.6 million (representing 48.5% of net
sales) for the year ended December 31, 2020. Distribution expenses,
and distribution expenses as a percentage of net sales, both
decreased primarily due to actions taken by management to reduce
the fixed cost structure of the business. See Management Discussion
and Analysis — Impact of COVID-19 for further discussion. Distribution
expenses decreased by 41.9% for the year ended December 31, 2021
compared to the year ended December 31, 2019.

Marketing Expenses

The Group spent US$82.3 million on marketing during the year ended
December 31, 2021 compared to US$73.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020, an increase of US$9.1 million, or 12.4%. As a
percentage of net sales, marketing expenses decreased by 70 basis
points to 4.1% for the year ended December 31, 2021 from 4.8%
for the year ended December 31, 2020. Marketing expenses for the
year ended December 31, 2021 decreased by 56.6% compared to
the year ended December 31, 2019, and as a percentage of net
sales decreased by 110 basis points from 5.2% for the year ended
December 31, 2019. The Group has continued to tightly manage its
marketing expenses in an effort to help conserve cash and to mitigate
the effects of the COVID-19 Impacts on the Group’s profitability.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by US$6.0 million, or
3.0%, to US$206.0 million (representing 10.2% of net sales) for the
year ended December 31, 2021 from US$200.0 million (representing
13.0% of net sales) for the year ended December 31, 2020. The
decrease in general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net
sales reflects actions taken by management to reduce the fixed cost
structure of the business, including headcount reductions and other
savings initiatives, to help mitigate the negative impacts on the Group’s
profitability caused by COVID-19. See Management Discussion and
Analysis — Impact of COVID-19 for further discussion. Such savings
were partially offset by the return of certain expenses that had been
temporarily suspended at the onset of the pandemic, including certain
employee compensation costs. General and administrative expenses
decreased by 10.3% for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared
to the year ended December 31, 2019.
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Impairment (Reversals) Charges

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the net non-cash 2021
Impairment (Reversals) Charges for the year ended December 31,
2021 and the non-cash 2020 Impairment Charges for the year ended
December 31, 2020.

AR (&E) &A
TREFHNEE2021F12 A1 B ILFEHIER
©2021 FEE (L) BRFEREREZE2020
F12A31AILFEMIFRES2020F REE R
B4 o

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A31ALEE

(Expressed in millions of US Dollars) (UBEEZETZS)

2021 2020

2021 Impairment
(Reversals)

Charges 2020 Impairment
Impairment (reversals) charges recognized on: Functional Area 20214 Charges
FERARATREARE (BE) B : o = WE (BE) B 2020 RIEE R
Property, plant and equipment Cost of sales - 4.3
Impairment charges included in cost of sales - 4.3
FTAHERARREER
Goodwill 2 14.4 496.0
Tradenames and other intangible assets (34.9) 248.8
AaREMEREE
Lease right-of-use assets FEF HELE Distribution %3 £ (8.8) 140.3
Property, plant and equipment Distribution % §# (2.2) 31.0
Impairment (reversals) charges (exclusive
of amounts included in cost of sales) (31.6) 916.0
A (BE)) B (MR ASHER AN )
Total impairment (reversals) charges (31.6) 920.3

BB () & B AaE

In accordance with International Accounting Standards (“IAS”) 36,
Impairment of Assets (“IAS 36”), the Group is required to evaluate its
intangible assets with indefinite lives at least annually, or when an event
has occurred or circumstances change that would more likely than
not reduce the recoverable amount of a cash generating unit (“CGU”)
below its carrying value (resulting in an impairment charge), or when an
event has occurred or circumstances change that would result in the
recoverable amount of intangible assets, excluding goodwill, exceeding
its net impaired carrying value (resulting in an impairment reversal),
where applicable. The Group is also required to perform a review for
impairment indicators at the end of each reporting period on its tangible
and intangible assets with finite useful lives. If there is any indication
that an asset may be impaired or there may be an impairment reversal,
the Group must estimate the recoverable amount of the asset or CGU.

2021 Impairment (Reversals) Charges

The Group’s net sales recovery accelerated during the second half of
2021. Based on valuations performed by a third-party specialist engaged
by the Company in conjunction with its annual assessment during the
fourth quarter of 2021, management determined that the recoverable
amounts of certain intangible assets exceeded their net impaired carrying
values during the year ended December 31, 2021, resulting in the
reversal of certain non-cash impairment charges that had been recorded
during the year ended December 31, 2020. The Group recognized net
non-cash impairment reversals totaling US$45.2 million during the year
ended December 31, 2021 for certain tradenames.
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2021 FiE{E (&E) &R
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Based on an evaluation of company-operated retail stores during
the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group determined that the
recoverable amounts of certain retail stores, which represent individual
CGUs, exceeded their corresponding net impaired carrying amounts,
resulting in impairment reversals being recorded during the year ended
December 31, 2021. During the year ended December 31, 2021 the
Group recognized net non-cash impairment reversals totaling US$11.0
million, which were comprised of US$8.8 million for lease right-of-use
assets and US$2.2 million for property, plant and equipment, including
leasehold improvements related to such stores.

In June 2021, the Group classified the assets attributable to Speck
to held for sale. Speck was sold on July 30, 2021. The Group
recognized non-cash impairment charges during the year ended
December 31, 2021 totaling US$24.7 million, of which US$14.4 million
was attributable to goodwill and the remainder related to certain other
intangible assets associated with the sale of Speck.

2020 Impairment Charges

Due to the negative impacts resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic
during the year ended December 31, 2020, certain indefinite-lived
intangible assets identified by the Group were tested for impairment.
Based on valuations performed by a third-party specialist engaged
by the Company, management determined that the carrying value
of certain intangible assets exceeded their recoverable amounts,
resulting in non-cash impairment charges recognized during the year
ended December 31, 2020 totaling US$744.8 million, which were
comprised of US$496.0 million for goodwill and US$248.8 million for
certain tradenames.

Further, based on an evaluation of loss-making stores during the
year ended December 31, 2020, and also due to reduced traffic and
under-performance caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group
determined that the carrying amounts of certain retail stores, which
represent individual CGUs, exceeded their corresponding recoverable
amounts. Based on an evaluation of certain property, plant and
equipment used in the production of certain luggage product lines
during the year ended December 31, 2020, the Group determined that
the carrying amounts of certain molds and machinery exceeded their
respective recoverable amounts. During the year ended December
31, 2020 the Group recognized non-cash impairment charges totaling
US$175.5 million, which were comprised of US$140.3 million for
lease right-of-use assets and US$35.3 million for property, plant
and equipment, including leasehold improvements attributable to the
under-performance of certain retail locations as well as molds and
machinery used in the production of certain luggage product lines.
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Restructuring Charges

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the restructuring
charges for the years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31,
2020.

EHEH

TREF|EZE2021E12 A31 H K20205F12 A
S1RIEFEMNEHBERBPMA -

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A31BLFE

(Expressed in millions of US Dollars) (U EEETE5) 2021 2020
Functional Area Thee & ks
Restructuring charges included in cost of sales FTAHERANEHRER 0.7 8.5
Restructuring charges attributable to DIHTAEEEEEARE R
distribution function 1.7 44.8
Restructuring charges attributable to general and —MRRITEYIBE G EHER
administrative function 15.4 9.7
Restructuring charges (exclusive of amounts EHER (MBI AEEXANLE)
included in cost of sales) 17.1 54.5
Total restructuring charges HHERBE 17.7 63.0

During the year ended December 31, 2020 the Group aggressively
reduced its operating expenses to mitigate the impact of lower sales
on profit and cash flow as well as to right-size the business for the
future in response to the COVID-19 Impacts. During the year ended
December 31, 2021, the Group continued to tightly manage the fixed
cost structure of the business. In conjunction with these cost saving
actions and other initiatives, the Group recognized charges (the
“Restructuring Charges”) during each of the years ended December
31, 2021 and December 31, 2020. The Restructuring Charges
during 2021 consisted primarily of severance associated with further
headcount reductions, store closure costs, costs related to the
sale of Speck on July 30, 2021,
below).

and certain other costs (described
The Restructuring Charges during 2020 consisted primarily
of severance associated with permanent headcount reductions, store
closure costs, and certain other costs incurred to implement profit
improvement initiatives.

In June 2021,
sourcing hub in Singapore as part of a global restructuring initiative

the Company established a brand development and

to enhance alignment of the Company’s product development, brand
management and supply chain operations. The establishment of this
hub enables the Company to design and develop products closer to
market for several key brands, including Samsonite and American
Tourister, as well as to manage its extensive sourcing activities. In
June 2021 the Group also completed the intra-group realignment of
certain intellectual property rights (the “Intra-Group IP Realignment”).
2021,

Restructuring Charges associated with the establishment of the brand

During the year ended December 31, the Group recognized

development and sourcing hub in Singapore.
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Other Income

The Group recorded other income of US$4.6 million and US$15.9
million for the years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31,
2020, respectively. Other income for the year ended December 31,
2021 included gains from the disposal of assets and gains on lease
exits/remeasurements, partially offset by a loss on the sale of Speck
and miscellaneous other expense incurred during the period. Other
income for the year ended December 31, 2020 included gains on
lease exits/remeasurements of US$17.2 million, which were partially
offset by other expenses of US$1.3 million.

Operating Profit (Loss)

The following table presents the reconciliation from the Group’s
operating profit (loss), as reported, to operating profit (loss), as
adjusted, for the years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31,
2020.

OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS)

geEF (B58)

Hb g A

B ZE2021F 128318 K%2020512A31H 1
FE AEEHNBEEEMBA46EEET
K15.9EEETT - #£2021F12A31HIEF
EHEMBARELEEEEN s RAER
H BRI EHWES - 59 % E Speck
BRANEREAME S EMMIER AT - &
F2020F12 A1 ALEFEMH MR A BEHR
ERE T EFTENRS1I7T2HEEET  HH
WHMHAT1.3EEETATIRE -

e mA (EE)
TRE2HEZE20214512 A31 H &2020%F 12 A
STHIEFEASEEZMMLE &F (FE) B
FARMERKE R (BE) HER -

Year ended December 31,

BZE12A31HLFE

Percentage

increase (decrease)

Percentage excl. foreign

increase currency effects!”

(decrease) iR BB R 2R

#hn Crid) 3 Ot 2>)

(Expressed in millions of US Dollars) (A EEZETZ5) 2021 2020 Bt B0
Operating profit (loss), as reported S ML ER (FE) 132.7 (1,266.2) nm nm
Impairment (Reversals) Charges BB (E) & A (31.6) 920.3 nm nm
Restructuring Charges HHER 17.7 63.0 (71.9)% (72.0)%
Loss on the sale of Speck € Speck H E5 18 1.3 - n/a n/a
Operating profit (loss), as adjusted LR (F18) 120.1 (282.9) nm nm

Notes 1%

(1) Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-IFRS measure, are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the year under

comparison to current year local currency results.

R EEREAE 2N EERIFIFRSH B ETA -
n/a Not applicable.

TEA -
nm Not meaningful.

mEE -

The Group reported an operating profit of US$132.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 2021 compared to an operating loss of
US$1,266.2 million for the previous year. The Group had an operating
profit of US$120.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2021
when excluding the net non-cash 2021 Impairment (Reversals)
Charges, Restructuring Charges and the loss on the sale of Speck
recognized during the year ended December 31, 2021. In comparison,
the Group incurred an operating loss of US$282.9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2020 when excluding the non-cash 2020
Impairment Charges and the Restructuring Charges recognized during
the year ended December 31, 2020.
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Net Finance Costs

Net finance costs increased by US$49.3 million, or 42.4%, to
US$165.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 from
US$116.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2020. This
increase was primarily attributable to the US$30.1 million loss on
extinguishment of the 2020 Incremental Term Loan B Facility and an
increase in redeemable non-controlling interest put option expenses of
US$24.7 million year-on-year due to improved financial performance of
the Group’s subsidiaries with non-controlling interests that are subject
to put options. The increase in net finance costs was partially offset
by a decrease in net foreign exchange losses of US$5.7 million and a
decrease in interest expense on lease liabilities of US$3.7 million year-
on-year.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of total finance costs for
the years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

MEERFE
HZE2021F12A31BLEFENTHBERFH
HEE2020F12 A1 HIEFEMN116.2HESE
TLEINA9.3 A B EILNA2.4%E165.4FH B E
TC o IR E B R A ARIEE2020F 1 EBTE H
BEXNABMEE30188Er UEKAAEE
BB IR RN BRI E A R B R
RAEFSRE - < 0] BB FEE R b 25 M0 R0 B 48
BRRFEMMATEERETHAN - WBEEBAF
BMIBET S WINEB B FEEFRDS.78
BETEAHEAENFEAIRERLS37TE
BRI -

TREHEZE2021F12 A31 H K20205F12 A
1HIEFEMMEERLEPM -

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31HLEE

(Expressed in millions of US Dollars) (ABEZETZ5) 2021 2020
Recognized in profit or loss: RIBR PR :
Interest income ISVON 3.6 3.8
Total finance income B IS IR A 4R 58 3.6 3.8
Interest expense on loans and borrowings B AR BT (99.7) (96.2)
Loss on extinguishment of the 2020 TBE2020F 1 REBTE S MR A A 1R

Incremental Term Loan B Facility (30.1) -
Amortization of deferred financing costs associated BB R EEERBAEFNELTREK

with the Amended Senior Credit Facilities i 30 (6.6) (7.7)
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEHBENF SR (21.5) (25.2)
Change in fair value of put options RnHEZ AR EBEES (7.8) 16.9
Net foreign exchange loss SNEE 518 58 (1.0) 6.7)
Other finance costs H B2 (2.3) (1.1)
Total finance costs B RBE (169.0) (120.0)
Net finance costs recognized in profit or loss REBEP RN E R F5E (165.4) (116.2)

Note 71

(1) The Company recorded a US$30.1 million loss on extinguishment upon the closing of the borrowing under the 2021 Incremental Term Loan
B Facility. The loss included US$24.1 million of unamortized deferred financing costs which were part of the net carrying value of the 2020
Incremental Term Loan B Facility which was extinguished, and an approximately US$6.0 million call premium paid to the lenders under the
2020 Incremental Term Loan B Facility.

RAT 2021 FIEFEBE B E R RBE MMERTHEIES01BEETNBEEE - ZBERERKEEINARBHETCRERA241BEE
7T (B2020F 1 FEBFE M EXAAREFREM —H5) - URMA2020F EEBTHERRMAE THERAZML6.08EXTTHERHE
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Loss before Income Tax

The following table presents the reconciliation from the Group’s loss
before income tax, as reported, to loss before income tax, as adjusted,
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX
BRFTSBLAI G R

BRETS B AT ES 18
TREHNEE2021F12 A31 B REE20204F
12 A31 BIEFEAEBEZRABRATESHAIEE
BLAC AR BIBRFTIS B AT R A AR o

Year ended December 31,

HZE12A31BILLEE

Percentage

increase (decrease)

Percentage excl. foreign

increase currency effects®

(decrease) iR BB 22 2 B

& Crid) g Crid)

(Expressed in millions of US Dollars) (XBEEETZ3) 2021 2020 Bk Botk®

Loss before income tax, as reported 2 RHIBR TS FLRIE B (32.7) (1,382.4) (97.6)% (98.0)%

Impairment (Reversals) Charges A (BE) &M (31.6) 920.3 nm nm

Restructuring Charges E T 17.7 63.0 (71.9% (72.0%

Loss on the sale of Speck 1 & Speck # &5 18 1.3 - n/a n/a
Charges associated with debt BB fE R RIS FTHERE

borrowings and amendments RO 31.9 - n/a n/a

Loss before income tax, as adjusted £ % & RIBR FT1S B Al B 18 (13.4) (399.1) (96.6)% (97.7)%

Notes st

(1) The charges associated with the Fifth Amended Credit Agreement and Sixth Amended Credit Agreement during the year ended December
31, 2021 were primarily attributable to the US$30.1 million loss on extinguishment of the 2020 Incremental Term Loan B Facility.
BZE2021F12 A1 HILFE - BEERAREEITEERERE NGB EERAARENEREIERANEE2020F EEBT HERMBNEE

30.1EEETTA °

(2) Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-IFRS measure, are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the year under

comparison to current year local currency results.

BIRERAEAE2IINEERIFIFRSHHAETA  EUEHER 20| AFEEERM AL RFENFHERFEME -

n/a Not applicable.

THEA -
nm Not meaningful.

EmEE -
The Group incurred a loss before income tax of US$32.7 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to a loss before
income tax of US$1,382.4 million for the previous year. The Group
incurred a loss before income tax of US$13.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021 when excluding the net non-cash 2021
Impairment (Reversals) Charges, Restructuring Charges, the loss on
the sale of Speck and charges associated with debt borrowings and
amendments recognized during the year ended December 31, 2021,
compared to a loss before income tax of US$399.1 million for the
previous year when excluding the non-cash 2020 Impairment Charges

and the Restructuring Charges recognized during the year ended
December 31, 2020.
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Income Tax Benefit

The Group’s consolidated effective tax rate for operations was 171.8%
and 6.8% for the years ended December 31, 2021 and December
31, 2020, respectively. The effective tax rate is calculated using a
weighted average income tax rate from those jurisdictions in which the
Group is subject to tax, adjusted for permanent book/tax differences,
tax incentives, changes in tax reserves and changes in unrecognized
deferred tax assets.

The Group recorded an income tax benefit of US$56.2 million for the
year ended December 31, 2021 compared to an income tax benefit of
US$94.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2020. The income
tax benefit recorded during the year ended December 31, 2021 was
due mainly to the US$32.7 million reported loss before income tax,
combined with the tax impacts from the Intra-Group IP Realignment,
changes in tax reserves, changes in unrecognized deferred tax assets
and changes in the profit mix between high and low tax jurisdictions.
The income tax benefit recorded during the year ended December 31,
2020 was due mainly to the US$1,382.4 million reported loss before
income tax, non-deductible goodwill impairments and changes in
unrecognized deferred tax assets.

During the year ended December 31, 2021 the Company completed
the Intra-Group IP Realignment (see Management Discussion and
Analysis — Restructuring Charges for further discussion). The Intra-
Group IP Realignment established the following tax effects: (i) a
current tax expense of US$34.5 million, (i) deferred tax benefits of
US$111.7 million and (iii) the derecognition of a portion of deferred
tax benefits totaling US$34.6 million, resulting in a net tax benefit of
US$42.6 million.

Included within the US$94.4 million income tax benefit for the year
ended December 31, 2020 were the tax impacts related to the non-
deductible goodwill impairment charges of US$122.1 million and the
derecognition of deferred tax assets of US$128.1 million.

Deferred tax assets in each jurisdiction are analyzed for recoverability
at each reporting date and derecognized to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the assets will be utilized in future taxable
periods. The analysis considers both positive and negative evidence.
Due to the negative impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic resulting
in a loss before income tax reported during the year ended December
31, 2021 and the significant loss before income tax reported globally
during the year ended December 31, 2020, the Group derecognized
certain deferred tax assets which were deemed not probable of
realization in the foreseeable future. In 2021, the Group recognized
deferred tax assets related to U.S. tax credits that were previously
unrecognized in the amount of US$25.1 million.

FrigBiigse

EHZE2021F12A31H K%2020F12H31H
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Excluding the tax impacts related to the Intra-Group IP Realignment,
the reduction in tax reserves and changes in unrecognized
deferred tax assets during the year ended December 31, 2021,
the consolidated effective tax rate for operations would have been
34.9%. Excluding the non-deductible goodwill impairment charges
in 2020 and the derecognition of deferred tax assets during the
year ended December 31, 2020, the Group’s consolidated effective
tax rate for operations would have been 24.9%. The increase in the
Group’s effective tax rate was mainly the result of changes in the
profit mix between high and low tax jurisdictions.

Profit (Loss)

Profit (Loss) for the Year

The following table presents the reconciliation from the Group’s profit
(loss) for the year, as reported, to loss for the year, as adjusted, for
the years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

FRER (BE)

M REZ2021F12A31ALFEEHEERN
MBEREE - BIEFHERD R RERIELE
MEEEZHABNME T EER  EBNERA
BT EIEA34.9% ° MFRH2020F #9-F AT #0
REEREEANEE2020F 12831 BILF
ERIEERANEERBEER  NEBEEBKDH
GRABRMRIER24.9% - NEBBIRRRIZ
NEZZHNA UL R SED U E) A
& 2 [ H)m A4 A B FTEL -

A ()

FREF (B518)

TREFEZE2021F12 A31 H %2020412 A
S1BIEFEAREEZHRMFREF (Fi8) BE
ARG FANEBHLE -

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31HLFEE

Percentage
increase (decrease)

Percentage excl. foreign

increase currency effects®

(decrease) R B N R 2R

0 Oat2>) 3 Oat2>)

(Expressed in millions of US Dollars) (XEEETZ5) 2021 2020 BoOtk BOH@

Profit (loss) for the year, as reported 2 3REF A% Fl (E518) 23.5 (1,288.0) nm nm

Impairment (Reversals) Charges BB (B[R &R (31.6) 920.3 nm nm

Restructuring Charges HHER 17.7 63.0 (71.9)% (72.0)%

Tax benefit associated with legal Bk NEESAEEN

entity reorganization FHIER R (42.6) n/a n/a

Loss on the sale of Speck H € Speck H &5 18 1.3 n/a n/a
Charges associated with debt RS fE R RIS FTAERH

borrowings and amendments" BERO 31.9 - n/a n/a

Tax impact TG e (5.8) (119.5) (95.2)% (95.3)%

Loss for the year, as adjusted AR FAEE (5.5) (424.1) (98.7)% (99.7)%

Notes 5ti%

(1) The charges associated with the Fifth Amended Credit Agreement and Sixth Amended Credit Agreement during the year ended December
31, 2021 were primarily attributable to the US$30.1 million loss on extinguishment of the 2020 Incremental Term Loan B Facility.
BZE2021F12 A1 HILFE - BEFERAREEIEERERENRAGETEERA RN ERETERANEE2020F EEBTE HEREBNEE

30.1EEETATE ©

(2) Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-IFRS measure, are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the year under

comparison to current year local currency results.

BIABERAEAE2IINEERIFIFRSHHAE TR  EUEMEE 200 AFEEERABEMLLRFENFHERFEME -

n/a Not applicable.
TERA -

nm Not meaningful.
BEE -
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Profit for the year ended December 31, 2021 was US$23.5 million
compared to a loss for the year ended December 31, 2020 of
US$1,288.0 million. The Group incurred a loss for the year ended
December 31, 2021 of US$5.5 million when excluding the net non-
cash 2021 Impairment (Reversals) Charges, Restructuring Charges,
the loss on the sale of Speck and charges associated with the Fifth
Amended Credit Agreement and the Sixth Amended Credit Agreement
recognized during the year ended December 31, 2021, all of which
are net of the related tax impact, and the US$42.6 million tax benefit
associated with the Intra-Group IP Realignment. In comparison, the
Group incurred a loss for the year ended December 31, 2020 of
US$424.1 million when excluding the non-cash 2020 Impairment
Charges and the Restructuring Charges recognized during the year
ended December 31, 2020, both of which are net of the related tax
impact.

Profit (Loss) Attributable to the Equity Holders

The following table presents the reconciliation from the Group’s
profit (loss) attributable to the equity holders, as reported, to loss
attributable to the equity holders, as adjusted, for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

HZE2021F12A31ALLFEMN=FA23.58
EEL MEZE2020F 12431 HIEFERA
JE181,288.0B &% T - BIE2021F12H31H
LEFE - EBRE E2021F12 A1 B IEFE
HRMIEIRE 2021 FHE (BE) BRF5E
EHER - HESpeckMEE LA K B E R IXK
Bl EEHERENRCEITEEREEEN
ER (BHKREERBZE) UREEERNM
BEESEEENTEER42.6BEETTE -
REBEELBESSAEEET - L2 T - &
Z£2020F12 A1 HILFE - &R E ZE2020
F12A31 B ILFERAMIFHR S 2020F FE
ERREAEZA (MEHNBREEHRETE)
% AEBEEAFE4A4AEEET -

RH#ESE AELEF (E58)
TEREYHZE2021F12 31 H K2020F 12
RA31BIEFEREEZHOKRERE ARG R
F (E5i8) MG RFBENRERE ARIGERD
B -

PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY HOLDERS

RERA ARMEER (F18)

Year ended December 31,

HZE12A31AILEE

Percentage
increase (decrease)
Percentage excl. foreign
increase currency effects®
(decrease) Hli R BEE 52 2 R
3 Oat ) 2 CrA)
(Expressed in millions of US Dollars) (UBEETZ) 2021 2020 Bkt BaLt@
Profit (loss) attributable to the equity 2 R IRAERE B A FEL % A
holders, as reported (E518) 14.3 (1,277.7) nm nm
Impairment (Reversals) Charges A (BE) &R (31.6) 920.3 nm nm
Restructuring Charges EHER 17.7 63.0 (71.9)% (72.0)%
Tax benefit associated with B AE R EHMERN
legal entity reorganization FRIEHK (42.6) n/a n/a
Loss on the sale of Speck H & Speck# & 18 1.3 n/a n/a
Charges associated with debt BRSBTS A RT B K
borrowings and amendments BRO 31.9 - n/a n/a
Tax impact o2 (5.8) (119.5) (95.2)% (95.3)%
Loss attributable to the equity KARZHRERE ARG
holders, as adjusted 518 (14.7) (413.8) (96.4)% (97.4)%

Notes &t

(1) The charges associated with the Fifth Amended Credit Agreement and Sixth Amended Credit Agreement during the year ended December
31, 2021 were primarily attributable to the US$30.1 million loss on extinguishment of the 2020 Incremental Term Loan B Facility.
HZE2021F12A31HILFE - BERRLEIEERERENALET EERZERNERFERHNEE2020F BT HERRBOE IR

30 1EEETAE °

(2) Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-IFRS measure, are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the year under

comparison to current year local currency results.

RN EERLEAH 2N EBERIFIFRSH B E LA -
n/a Not applicable.

T o
nm Not meaningful.

EmEE -

ENEEE 2D OAFEEERBBEALRFENFHERFEMRS -
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Profit attributable to the equity holders was US$14.3 million for the
year ended December 31, 2021 compared to a loss attributable to
the equity holders of US$1,277.7 million for the previous year. For the
year ended December 31, 2021 the Group incurred a loss attributable
to the equity holders of US$14.7 million when excluding the net non-
cash 2021 Impairment (Reversals) Charges, Restructuring Charges,
the loss on the sale of Speck and charges associated with the Fifth
Amended Credit Agreement and the Sixth Amended Credit Agreement
recognized during the year ended December 31, 2021, all of which
are net of the related tax impact, and the US$42.6 million tax benefit
associated with the Intra-Group IP Realignment. In comparison, the
Group recorded a loss attributable to the equity holders for the year
ended December 31, 2020 of US$413.8 million when excluding the
non-cash 2020 Impairment Charges and the Restructuring Charges
recognized during the year ended December 31, 2020, both of which
are net of the related tax impact.

Basic and Diluted Earnings (Loss) per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per share was US$0.010 for the year
ended December 31, 2021 compared to basic and diluted loss per
share of US$0.891 for the year ended December 31, 2020. The
weighted average number of shares utilized in the basic earnings (loss)
per share calculation was 1,435,615,231 shares for the year ended
December 31, 2021 compared to 1,4383,422,967 shares for the year
ended December 31, 2020. The weighted average number of shares
outstanding utilized in the diluted earnings (loss) per share calculation
was 1,437,729,596 shares for the year ended December 31, 2021
compared to 1,433,422,967 shares for the year ended December 31,
2020.

Basic and diluted loss per share, as adjusted, was US$0.010 for
the year ended December 31, 2021 when excluding the net non-
cash 2021 Impairment (Reversals) Charges, Restructuring Charges,
the loss on the sale of Speck and charges associated with the Fifth
Amended Credit Agreement and the Sixth Amended Credit Agreement
recognized during the year ended December 31, 2021, all of which
are net of the related tax impact, and the US$42.6 million tax benefit
associated with the Intra-Group IP Realignment. In comparison,
basic and diluted loss per share, as adjusted, was US$0.289 for
the year ended December 31, 2020 when excluding the non-cash
2020 Impairment Charges and the Restructuring Charges recognized
during the year ended December 31, 2020, both of which are net of
the related tax impact. The year-on-year improvement in basic and
diluted loss per share, as adjusted, was primarily due to improved
net sales and gross profit, along with the effects of actions taken by
management to reduce the fixed cost structure of the business.
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Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization
(“Adjusted EBITDA”), a non-IFRS measure, improved by US$401.1
million to earnings of US$182.3 million for the year ended December
31, 2021 compared to a loss of US$218.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020. Adjusted EBITDA margin was 9.0% for the year
ended December 31, 2021 compared to (14.2%) for the year ended
December 31, 2020 due primarily to continued sales improvement,
along with actions taken by management to reduce the fixed cost
structure of the business. See Management Discussion and Analysis —
Impact of COVID-19 for further discussion.

The following table presents the reconciliation from the Group’s profit
(loss) for the year to Adjusted EBITDA for the years ended December
31, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

KA EEBITDA

HZE2021F 12831 BIEFEHRAFNE
TIE HEREHENCAZERT (KA
EBITDA] - —IBIEIFRSEIIEFTE T A) REE
2020512 A31 A IEFEREE218.8BEET
HEAI1BEBETERF82.3BEET < &
2021412 A31 B It FE KK AEEBITDAT
HEAE.0% - MEE2020F12A31HILFE
AlA(14.2%)  FEZHREERBERMEZIA
K& 38 FE BREE MR D ST B B TE B AN A R
BoE—PrimaE2BIEEEBNRES T —
2019 MMEBRAEMFE | -

TREFREFEEHZE2021F12 A31 8 %2020
F1I2A31BLFENFNRAN (FE) BLEH
HEBITDARI1ER -

Year ended December 31,

HZE12A31HILEE

Percentage
increase (decrease)
Percentage excl. foreign
increase currency effects®
(decrease) R P 5 R 2R
& Crid) 2 OFi )
(Expressed in millions of US Dollars) (UBZEETZ) 2021 2020 Bk BHLe
Profit (loss) for the year Frarl (E18) 23.5 (1,288.0) nm nm
Plus (minus): G -
Income tax benefit FrisBiif e (56.2) (94.4) (40.4)% (40.6)%
Finance costs BisE A 169.0 120.0 40.9% 40.3%
Finance income BT (3.6) (3.8) (6.4)% (7.00%
Depreciation e 45.8 66.1 (30.7)% (31.8)%
Total amortization BresiaEs 151.9 189.1 (19.7)% (20.5)%
EBITDA EBITDA 330.4 (1,011.0) nm nm
Plus (minus): Ot :
Share-based compensation BARR 15 3245 O 357 BN A s
expense 11.9 6.6 81.0% 83.1%
Impairment (Reversals) Charges BB (B[R &M (31.6) 920.3 nm nm
Restructuring Charges BHEA 17.7 63.0 (71.9)% (72.0)%
Amortization of lease HECREEERE
right-of-use assets (119.9) (156.5) (23.4)% (24.3)%
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEABENFEFRAX (21.5) (25.2) (14.7)% (14.9)%
Other adjustments( HithFHEEO (4.6) (15.9) (70.7)% (63.3)%
Adjusted EBITDA® 1T EBITDAP 182.3 218.8) nm nm
Adjusted EBITDA margin £ EBITDAT B = 9.0% (14.2)%

Notes st

(1) Other adjustments primarily comprised ‘Other income (expenses)’ per the consolidated statements of income (loss).
Hip AR FEEGE MR (B18) R [ HlA (X)) -
(2) Adjusted EBITDA, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of a number of costs, charges and credits and certain other non-cash charges.
Adjusted EBITDA includes the lease interest and amortization expense as a result of the Group’s adoption of IFRS 16, Leases (“IFRS 16”) to
account for operational rent expenses.
KRAEEBITDARIKIFRSHUBAET A - AMMRZHEMA  BERREEURETEMHIRSEANTE - ARAEERNIFRSE165RHEE
([IFRSE165% 1) st A EHE S MY - FUt4CAREBITDAG AR ERN S RBIEHX -
(3) Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-IFRS measure, are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the year under
comparison to current year local currency results.

BIABEREEAE2IINEERIFIFRSHHAE TR  EUEMEE 2|0 AFEEERABEMLRFENFHERFZME -

nm Not meaningful.
mEE -
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The following tables present reconciliations from profit (loss) for the
year to Adjusted EBITDA on a regional basis for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

TREHEZE2021F12 A31H K2020F12 A
STHIEFEREEEZINNFERNRF (EFiE)
ER /KA EEBITDAR S BR -

Year ended December 31, 2021

HZE2021F12A31HILEE

North Latin
America Asia Europe America Corporate Total
(Expressed in millions of US Dollars) (U EBZETES) bIES) M BN T EM ¥ i
Profit (loss) for the year FRmF (ER) 21.4 (37.2) 30.6 (2.5) 11.2 23.5
Plus (minus): mORk)
Income tax (benefit) expense Frisfi (&) AL 15.7 11.2 (4.8) 0.0 (78.2) (56.2)
Finance costs &R 11.5 7.3 6.8 1.5 141.8 169.0
Finance income p T ON (0.0) (0.7) (0.4) (0.1) (2.4) (3.6)
Depreciation e 13.6 15.2 14.3 2.5 0.3 45.8
Total amortization By 55.0 50.7 33.4 10.0 2.9 151.9
EBITDA EBITDA 117.2 46.4 79.9 11.4 75.5 330.4
Plus (minus): mOR) :
Share-based compensation LARR A S
expense (reversal) BN (BE) (4.5) (3.8) (0.3) 0.0 20.5 1.9
Impairment (Reversals) Charges B (BE) &R 3.1 5.6 (0.8) - (39.5) (31.6)
Restructuring Charges (Reversals) EHER (BE) 2.3 7.2 (0.5) 0.2) 8.9 17.7
Amortization of lease right-of-use HEERAEEESH
assets (46.0) (35.3) (28.4) (9.9) (0.3) (119.9)
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEAEBH
FEEHX (11.3) (4.6) (3.9) (1.7) (0.0) (21.5)
Inter-company charges (income)!") AaEER
(e A ) 47.0 53.6 9.9 3.0 (113.5) -
Other adjustments® Hi@ge 0.6 (1.4) (3.0) (1.9) 1.1 (4.6)
Adjusted EBITDA® 4 FHEEEBITDA® 108.4 67.7 52.9 0.6 (47.4) 182.3
Adjusted EBITDA margin & HEEEBITDAR B = 13.4% 9.8% 12.6% 0.6% nm 9.0%

Notes 3+

(1) Inter-company charges (income) by region include intra-group royalty income/expense and other cross-charges that eliminate in

consolidation.

ZwEESNRARMER (KA BEERNBOERRA /B EREE ARBlEENEBEERY -

(2) Other adjustments primarily comprised ‘Other income (expenses)’ per the consolidated statements of income (loss).
HiRAETEFGRa K (BE) kP [ EMBEA (FX)] -
(8) Adjusted EBITDA, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of a number of costs, charges and credits and certain other non-cash charges.
Adjusted EBITDA includes the lease interest and amortization expense as a result of the Group’s adoption of IFRS 16 to account for

operational rent expenses.

LHEEBITDAAIEIFRSH AT E T A - MR ZIERA - BAKEEURE TEMIERSEANTE - AR ASEEFENIFRSE 165 ALEH
&Y B AREBITDAST ATHEF| S R # SR -

>

m Not meaningful.
BEE -

_JIIHH\\_\W\
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Year ended December 31, 2020
#HZ=2020F12 A31 HILFE

North Latin
America Asia Europe America Corporate Total
(Expressed in millions of US Dollars) (AEEETZ3) EEM EED) BOM NTEM 2 A5
Loss for the year FEREE (618.0) (201.6) (164.1) (63.9) (240.3) (1,288.0)
Plus (minus): o)
Income tax (benefit) expense FrfsHt (%) A (59.8) (9.0) 10.8 7.6 (44.0) (94.4)
Finance costs b5 & A 14.0 5.6 11.4 7.1 81.8 120.0
Finance income BT A (0.1) (0.4) (0.2) (0.0) (3.1) (3.8)
Depreciation e 21.7 20.4 19.5 3.8 0.7 66.1
Total amortization Biyiass 63.4 66.3 44.0 12.6 2.8 189.1
EBITDA EBITDA (578.7) (118.8) (78.6) (32.8) (202.1) (1,011.0)
Plus (minus): G -
Share-based compensation LARR D S 159
expense (reversal) EENF S (=) (0.8) 1.0 0.2) 0.0 6.6 6.6
Impairment Charges FEE A 517.9 92.6 51.9 12.8 2451 920.3
Restructuring Charges BHER 15.4 11.6 27.1 4.4 4.6 63.0
Amortization of lease right-of-use HEFERAEEES
assets il (53.9) (50.8) (39.1) (12.5) 0.3) (156.5)
Interest expense on lease liabilities ~ HAE & E&F S5
53 (13.7) (4.5) (5.2) (1.8) 0.0 (25.2)
Inter-company charges (income)" NGISE= 35|
(e A)® 43.0 41.7 4.6 1.4 (90.7) -
Other adjustments® Eith FHEE@ (1.8) 8.0 (11.4) (0.5) (10.2) (15.9)
Adjusted EBITDA® 4K LEBITDA® (72.5) (19.2) (51.0) (29.1) (47.0) (218.8)
Adjusted EBITDA margin KFARBEBITDA
ME= (12.0)% (3.4)% (16.9)% (40.8)% nm (14.2)%

Notes 5%
(1) Inter-company charges (income) by region include intra-group royalty incom
consolidation.

e/expense and other cross-charges that eliminate in

ZEESWARMER (KA BEERNBOEFRA /FX EREE ARBlEENEBEERY -

charges and credits and certain other non-cash charges.

A AEERMAIFRSFE 165 AL EH

(2) Other adjustments primarily comprised ‘Other income (expenses)’ per the consolidated statements of income (loss).
Hip AR F E0EGE MR (B18) R [ HlA ()] -
(8) Adjusted EBITDA, a non-IFRS measure, eliminates the effect of a number of costs,
Adjusted EBITDA includes the lease interest and amortization expense as a result of the Group’s adoption of IFRS 16 to account for
operational rent expenses.
KR EBTDARIFIFRSH Bt 8 LA - AMKRZEKA BALEAULRETHEMIRBEANTZE -
©FY - FULEAEEBITDAGT AR E T8 R HA X -
nm Not meaningful.

The Company has presented EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted
EBITDA margin because it believes that, when viewed with its results
of operations as prepared in accordance with IFRS and with the
reconciliation to profit (loss) for the year, these measures provide
additional information that is useful in gaining a more complete
understanding of its operational performance and of the trends
impacting its business. EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted
EBITDA margin are important metrics the Group uses to evaluate its
operating performance and cash generation.

EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA margin are non-IFRS
financial measures and as calculated herein may not be comparable
to similarly named measures used by other companies and should
not be considered comparable to profit (loss) for the year in the
Company’s consolidated statements of income (loss). These measures
have limitations as an analytical tool and should not be considered
in isolation from, or as a substitute for, an analysis of the Company’s
results of operations as reported under IFRS.

ARA2FIEBITDA « & FEEBITDA R AL I &
EBITDAREX - HEMEEREELERE
(RBIFRSHRS) MEFE NG (F1R) E£17Y

B SR ETASERESEN  ARR
FRETRALERDRYELLHNES -
EBITDA * £ FI#EBITDA K £& F# EBITDAFI
R 7S PR A T B AR R B R BRI & B
NHEBREIEE -

A FTEt EMEBITDA » & FZEEBITDA AL H
HEBITDAFH R AIEIFRSHKAET A @ K
VA EEM AR AEREUGEMNIE T A
THE - BTEWSR AHEARBGRE KA
(BB ZPFREMN (BB L& - ZE5H=T
BEERAOMIEBARRIE - TEHRAE L
RERE AR BRIBIFRSFT 2 MAACEEEN
DHT °
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Adjusted Net Income (Loss)

Adjusted Net Income, a non-IFRS measure, was US$17.4 million for
the year ended December 31, 2021, compared to an Adjusted Net
Loss of US$406.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2020. The
improvement in Adjusted Net Income was due primarily to improved
net sales and gross profit, along with the effects of actions taken
by management to reduce the fixed cost structure of the business.
Adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share, non-IFRS measures,
were US$0.012 per share for the year ended December 31, 2021,
compared to an adjusted basic and diluted loss per share of
US$0.283 for the year ended December 31, 2020. Adjusted basic and
diluted earnings (loss) per share are calculated by dividing Adjusted
Net Income (Loss) by the weighted average number of shares
used in the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share calculations,
respectively.

The following table presents the reconciliation from the Group’s profit
(loss) attributable to the equity holders to Adjusted Net Income (Loss)
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

KAEFWA (BE)

HZE2021F12 A31 HILFEMNEHABFRA
(—TEFEIFRSEIEETETR) B17T4BEETT
MEZE2020F 12 A31 B L FEMNEAEFE
BRIA4061EEETT - LA FHRANRESE
DHNEEFBREMNREAREEEHRIUE
MR DEBOE TR AN EBOTEME - &
£2021F12 A1 B IEFEMNLHBGRER
MEERT (BIEIFRSHBIETA) AER
0.012%7T * MEZE2020F12 A31 HIFFEW
AT ER LB SRR A0.283F T o &
FAREGRERNREERF (FHE) BULARF
WA (E18) DRI NERERREERF (&

B)FITEMAMIEFIRNEBBFESS

TREYEHZE2021%F12 A31 B N2020F12 A
1R IEFEARSERERE AEMMETR (HiE)
B FRA (B1B) HEEK

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A1ALEE

Percentage
increase (decrease)
Percentage excl. foreign
increase currency effects®
(decrease) R BE 5 222 Ry
& CRid) g Crid)
(Expressed in millions of US Dollars) (KB EETZ3) 2021 2020 Bl Bo®
Profit (loss) attributable to the equity — BRHERF A A FEMEEF (E51E)
holders 14.3 (1,277.7) nm nm
Plus (minus): e -
Change in fair value of put T AR B RO R0h B
options included in finance costs ZARBEES 7.8 (16.9) nm nm
Amortization of intangible assets B A EE 32.0 32.6 (1.7)% (2.3)%
Charges associated with debt BB R R RAEFTAERA R
borrowings and amendments'” BRO 31.9 - n/a n/a
Impairment (Reversals) Charges BB (B[R &R (31.6) 920.3 nm nm
Restructuring Charges HHEA 17.7 63.0 (71.9)% (72.0)%
Loss on the sale of Speck H £ Speck # 5 18 1.3 - n/a n/a
Tax benefit associated with legal R AN BB S AR
entity reorganization THIEE & (42.6) - n/a n/a
Tax adjustments® TRIEAE (13.6) (127.4) (89.4)% (89.5)%
Adjusted Net Income (Loss)® KRAEFRA (BR)O 17.4 (406.1) nm nm

Notes 5%

(1) The charges associated with the Fifth Amended Credit Agreement and Sixth Amended Credit Agreement during the year ended December
31, 2021 were primarily attributable to the US$30.1 million loss on extinguishment of the 2020 Incremental Term Loan B Facility.
BE2021F12 A1 HILFE - BEFERAREEITEERRERENARETEEHAAENER T ERANEE2020F EEBE HEHEBNEE

30.1EEETK -

(2) Tax adjustments represent the tax effect of the reconciling line items as included in the consolidated statements of income (loss) based on

the applicable tax rate in the jurisdiction where such costs were incurred.

BARBIEENERRAEEMERERRAERN X AL IR (B1R) ROEREANTEZE -
(8) Represents Adjusted Net Income (Loss) attributable to the equity holders of the Company.

AR B BAER A ARG EREFRA (BR) -

(4) Results stated on a constant currency basis, a non-IFRS measure, are calculated by applying the average exchange rate of the year under

comparison to current year local currency results.

R EEREAH 2N EBERIFIFRSH B E LA -
n/a Not applicable.

T o
nm Not meaningful.

mEE -
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The Company has presented Adjusted Net Income (Loss) and
adjusted basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share because it
believes these measures help to give securities analysts, investors
and other interested parties a better understanding of the Company’s
underlying financial performance. By presenting Adjusted Net Income
(Loss) and the related adjusted basic and diluted earnings (loss) per
share calculations, the Company eliminates the effect of a number
of costs, charges and credits and certain other non-cash charges,
along with their respective tax effects, that impact reported profit (loss)
attributable to the equity holders.

Adjusted Net Income (Loss) and adjusted basic and diluted earnings
(loss) per share are non-IFRS financial measures and as calculated
herein may not be comparable to similarly named measures used by
other companies and should not be considered comparable to profit
(loss) attributable to the equity holders or basic and diluted earnings
(loss) per share presented in the Company’s consolidated statements
of income (loss). Adjusted Net Income (Loss) and the related adjusted
basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share calculations have limitations
as an analytical tool and should not be considered in isolation from, or
as a substitute for, an analysis of the Company’s results of operations
as reported under IFRS.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management
policies are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, to
provide returns for the Company’s shareholders, and to fund capital
expenditures, normal operating expenses, working capital needs
and the payment of obligations (see Management Discussion and
Analysis — Impact of COVID-19 for further discussion). The Group’s
primary sources of liquidity are its cash flows from operating activities,
invested cash, available lines of credit and, subject to shareholder
approval, the Company’s ability to issue additional shares. The
Company believes that its existing cash and estimated cash flows,
along with current working capital, will be adequate to meet the
foreseeable future operating and capital requirements of the Group at
least through March 31, 2023.

Cash flows generated from operating activities amounted to US$387.1
million for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to cash flows
used in operating activities of US$114.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020, reflecting improved net sales and gross profit,
along with the effects of actions taken by management to reduce
the fixed cost structure of the business. The increase in cash flows
generated from operating activities year-on-year primarily reflects an
improvement in Adjusted Net Income of US$423.5 million, a US$157.0
million improvement in changes in working capital, primarily related to
reduced inventory levels, and a US$30.0 million reduction in income
taxes paid, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2020. As of
December 31, 2021 inventories were US$348.4 million compared to
US$455.9 million as of December 31, 2020, a reduction of US$107.4
million, primarily driven by strong product sell-through due to the
rebound in travel, though delayed stock replenishment due to shipping
delays and port congestion was also a factor. With shipping delays
and port congestion expected to continue in 2022, the Company is
increasing investment in inventories to support continued business
recovery.

RRB2INEHBEFUA (BE) REHBRER
EAREEET (BH) AERGLSTET
BEEPEHFOINME - REEREMNRMEET
B TRARRIWERMEERR - 27K RER
WA (B REERREERERN R ERT
(B18) 78R - ARRIMR 2 2 ma R Es
BARGEEN (BR)NZERAK - EARER
UERETEMIFRGER CERESENHRE

=P =22 8
FE)NTE -

ARXFEtERNERHBFEA (BR) MERHEE
BEAREERT (E1E) BIFIFRSH BT ET
B R EEAM AR FAERBELRENFTE
TAETHER B TEHRRRTEARRLGS
Wt (B18) R 25 MERAE ARMERF (B
B)AEREARBEERN (BE) L& - K£5#
BEFUBA (BB REAEHESRERNREE
ar(BER)FEES—BEOMIARERR
M PRERRABILNHRBEARRBRIEIFRS
FrEmmEEEENDN -

RBEETRELRER
ARBEAEBEREIZBZARBEBER
e BAARRIBRESRER - W AE AR
X —MEERAY  REESEERIMNER
REES (E—SPmBL2HEBEImED
T —2019WBMRAEREMNFE]) - XEER
BESTERREALCEITHCHEORE BE
Be - TAEEERRNQRBITHEINEG (K
BFRRAERTAIER) 98T - N QA4
B EBEBBRSRGETREFE  MERSHE
BES  BEUNENAEEZLEZE20234F3
AS1EMAIER R RNEEREATK

HZE2021F12A31HILFE - KEFZHME
REMEARIB7T1EEEI * MEE2020F 12
AB1BLFERHEGEETHMARLRE
11428 8ET - RBEEFEREMSE N
MEREREUE R D E BRI EE XA EEN
WE ETYHMBRSTERFIEN =2
RBARLLE E2020F 12 A1 HIEFE © &5
BRUWAENNA23.5B5EET BiBEEASEH
EM157.0EBEL (ZZHTFEKTERES
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2020F 12 A31 HM455.9 8 & FURIK107.4
BEEL TEHREENEHEHNEDH
ER SIS - MEMEBLER RSO EESHW
EEMETARZZ — - ARMEERLKER
B IS RIBA @ EEE 20224 AR A EHE AN
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For the year ended December 31, 2021, net cash flows provided by
investing activities were US$9.4 million and were primarily related to
net proceeds from the sale of Speck amounting to US$35.3 million,
partially offset by US$20.8 million of capital expenditures for property,
plant and equipment. For the year ended December 31, 2020, net
cash flows used in investing activities were US$26.1 million and
were primarily related to US$20.6 million of capital expenditures for
property, plant and equipment. During 2020 and the year ended
December 31, 2021, the Group took meaningful measures to limit
its capital expenditures in response to the impacts on the Group’s
business from the COVID-19 pandemic.

Net cash flows used in financing activities were US$551.2 million for
the year ended December 31, 2021 and were largely attributable to
the prepayment of US$370.0 million principal amount of borrowings
under the Amended Senior Credit Facilities. The Group prepaid
US$125.0 million principal amount of its outstanding borrowings
under its Amended Term Loan A Facility (as defined in Management
Discussion and Analysis — Indebtedness) and US$145.0 million
principal amount of its outstanding borrowings under its Amended
Revolving Credit Facility. The Group prepaid US$100.0 million in
principal in conjunction with the borrowing of the 2021 Incremental
Term Loan B Facility (as further described in Management Discussion
and Analysis — Indebtedness). Net cash flows used in financing
activities also included US$156.5 million in payments on lease
liabilities. Net cash flows provided by financing activities were
US$1,158.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 and were
largely attributable to funds received through a borrowing under the
2020 Incremental Term Loan B Facility in an aggregate principal
amount of US$600.0 million, as well as from additional borrowings of
US$810.3 million (USD equivalent at the applicable exchange rate on
the borrowing date) under the Amended Revolving Credit Facility.

The Group had US$1,324.8 million in cash and cash equivalents as of
December 31, 2021 compared to US$1,495.0 million as of December
31, 2020. Cash and cash equivalents are generally denominated in the
functional currency of the respective Group entity.
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Indebtedness

The following table sets forth the carrying amount of the Group’s loans
and borrowings as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

afE

TREY|RNE®ENR2021F12 A31 B 20204
12 A1 BN ER M ERAREE :

December 31,

December 31,

2021 2020

(Expressed in millions of US Dollars) (AEEZETZ25)) 2021F12H31H 2020412 A31H
Amended Term Loan A Facility LIEETATE A E R Aid 640.0 785.0
Term Loan B Facility BEHIE @R 541.6 548.2
2020 Incremental Term Loan B Facility 2020F BT HE A A - 597.0
2021 Incremental Term Loan B Facility 2021 12 FEBE HIE K EE 493.0 =
Amended Revolving Credit Facility RIEFTREE /A 668.7 822.2
Total Amended Senior Credit Facilities ST B EERIBAE 2,343.3 2,752.4
Senior Notes” BIEFIEO 398.0 427.5
Other borrowings and obligations HAbERRER 60.8 50.6
Total loans and borrowings BERREREE 2,802.0 3,230.5
Less deferred financing costs LI A b PR AR (12.6) (39.9)
Total loans and borrowings less deferred financing costs B R SR ABRE AR T B E B AR 2,789.4 3,190.6

Note F£1&

(1) The value of the Senior Notes, when translated from Euros into US Dollars, will change relative to the fluctuation in the exchange rate

between the Euro and US Dollar at stated points in time.

EEARRABTTREREITE -
The Group’s various debt obligations are described in detail below.

Senior Credit Facilities Agreement

On April 25, 2018 (the “Closing Date”), the Company and certain of its
direct and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries entered into an amended
and restated credit and guaranty agreement (the “Credit Agreement”)
with certain lenders and financial institutions. The Credit Agreement
provided for (1) a US$828.0 million senior secured term loan A facility
(the “Term Loan A Facility”), (2) a US$665.0 million senior secured
term loan B facility (the “Term Loan B Facility” and, together with
the Term Loan A Facility, the “Term Loan Credit Facilities”) and (3)
a US$650.0 million revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Credit
Facility”). The credit facilities provided under the Credit Agreement
as it has been amended from time to time since the Closing Date are
referred to herein as the “Senior Credit Facilities.” Amendments to the
Senior Credit Facilities since the Closing Date are described below.

Interest Rate and Fees
Under the terms of the Credit Agreement:

(@) in respect of the Term Loan A Facility and the Revolving Credit
Facility, prior to the Second Amendment Closing Date (as defined
below) the interest rate payable was based on the lower rate
derived from either the first lien net leverage ratio of the Company
and its restricted subsidiaries at the end of each fiscal quarter or
the Company’s corporate ratings, and

in respect of the Term Loan B Facility, the interest rate payable
was set at LIBOR plus 1.75% per annum with a LIBOR floor of
0.00% (or a base rate plus 0.75% per annum) (subject to the terms
of the Third Amended Credit Agreement as described below).
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((BEHEFEE|  ERATHERRBLE
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In addition to paying interest on the outstanding principal amount
of borrowings under the Senior Credit Facilities, the borrowers pay
customary agency fees and a commitment fee in respect of the unutilized
commitments under the Revolving Credit Facility. The commitment
fee paid with effect from the Closing Date until the delivery of the
consolidated financial statements for the fiscal quarter ended September
30, 2018 was 0.20% per annum. The commitment fee payable thereafter
is based on the lower rate derived from either the first lien net leverage
ratio of the Company and its restricted subsidiaries at the end of each
fiscal quarter or the Company’s corporate ratings, as applicable.

Amortization and Final Maturity

Prior to the Second Amendment Closing Date, the Term Loan
A Facility required scheduled quarterly payments with an annual
amortization of 2.5% of the original principal amount of the loans
under the Term Loan A Facility made during each of the first and
second years, with a step-up to 5.0% annual amortization during each
of the third and fourth years and 7.5% annual amortization during the
fifth year, with the balance due and payable on the fifth anniversary of
the Closing Date.

The Term Loan B Facility requires scheduled quarterly payments equal
to 0.25% of the original principal amount of the loans under the Term
Loan B Facility, with the balance due and payable on the seventh
anniversary of the Closing Date.

There is no scheduled amortization of the principal amounts of the
loans outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility.

Guarantees and Security

The obligations of the borrowers under the Senior Credit Facilities
are unconditionally guaranteed by the Company and certain of the
Company’s existing direct or indirect wholly-owned material restricted
subsidiaries organized in Luxembourg, Belgium, Canada, Hong Kong,
Hungary, Mexico, the United States and Singapore, and are required
to be guaranteed by certain future direct or indirect wholly-owned
material restricted subsidiaries organized in such jurisdictions (except
Singapore) (the “Credit Facility Guarantors”). All obligations under
the Senior Credit Facilities, and the guarantees of those obligations,
are secured, subject to certain exceptions, by substantially all of the
assets of the borrowers and the Credit Facility Guarantors (including
the Shared Collateral (as defined below)).

Certain Covenants and Events of Default

The Senior Credit Facilities contain a number of customary negative
covenants that, among other things and subject to certain exceptions,
may restrict the ability of the Company and each of its restricted
subsidiaries to: (i) incur additional indebtedness; (i) pay dividends or
distributions on its capital stock or redeem, repurchase or retire its
capital stock or its other indebtedness; (iiij make investments, loans
and acquisitions; (iv) engage in transactions with its affiliates; (v) sell
assets, including capital stock of its subsidiaries; (vi) consolidate or
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merge; (vi) materially alter the business it conducts; (viii) incur liens;
and (ix) prepay or amend any junior debt or subordinated debt.

In addition, the Credit Agreement requires the Company and its
subsidiaries to meet certain quarterly financial covenants. Commencing
with the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2018, the Company and its
subsidiaries were required to maintain () a pro forma total net leverage
ratio of not greater than 5.50:1.00, which ratio decreased to 5.25:1.00
for test periods ending in 2020, 5.00:1.00 for test periods ending in
2021, and will decrease to 4.50:1.00 for test periods ending in 2022 and
thereafter; provided that such maximum pro forma total net leverage ratio
is subject to a step up of 0.50x from the otherwise applicable ratio, up
to a pro forma total net leverage ratio not to exceed 6.00:1.00 for the
six fiscal quarter period following the fiscal quarter in which a permitted
acquisition has been consummated, and (i) a pro forma consolidated
cash interest coverage ratio of not less than 3.00:1.00 (collectively, the
“Financial Covenants”). The Financial Covenants only apply for the benefit
of the lenders under the Amended Term Loan A Facility (as defined
below) and the lenders under the Amended Revolving Credit Facility (as
defined below). The Company’s requirement to comply with the Financial
Covenants was temporarily suspended during the Suspension Period
pursuant to the Third Amended Credit Agreement (see below for further
discussion). The Credit Agreement also contains certain customary
representations and warranties, affirmative covenants and provisions
relating to events of default (including upon a change of control).

Second Amended Credit Agreement

On March 16, 2020 (the “Second Amendment Closing Date”),
the Company and certain of its direct and indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries entered into an amendment to the Credit Agreement (the
“Second Amended Credit Agreement”). The Second Amended Credit
Agreement provides for (1) an amended US$800.0 million senior
secured term loan A facility (the “Amended Term Loan A Facility”)
and (2) an amended US$850.0 million revolving credit facility (the
Under the Second Amended
Credit Agreement, the maturity for both the Amended Term Loan A

“Amended Revolving Credit Facility”).

Facility and the Amended Revolving Credit Facility were extended by
approximately two years, with the remaining amounts outstanding
under both facilities due to be paid in full on the fifth anniversary of the
Second Amendment Closing Date. Interest on the borrowings under
the Amended Term Loan A Facility and the Amended Revolving Credit
Facility began to accrue on the Second Amendment Closing Date.

On March 20, 2020, the Company borrowed US$810.3 million (US
Dollar equivalent at the applicable exchange rate on the borrowing
date) under the Amended Revolving Credit Facility to ensure access to
the Group’s liquidity given the uncertainties and challenges caused by
the COVID-19 pandemic. During the year ended December 31, 2021
the Group repaid US$145.0 million principal amount of its outstanding
borrowings under its Amended Revolving Credit Facility. As of
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December 31, 2021, US$176.7 million was available to be borrowed
on the Amended Revolving Credit Facility as a result of US$668.7
million of outstanding borrowings and the utilization of US$4.6 million
of the facility for outstanding letters of credit extended to certain
creditors. As of December 31, 2020, US$23.4 million was available to
be borrowed under the US$850.0 million Amended Revolving Credit
Facility as a result of US$822.2 million of outstanding borrowings and
the utilization of US$4.5 million of the facility for outstanding letters of
credit extended to certain creditors.

Interest Rate and Fees

Under the terms of the Second Amended Credit Agreement, the
interest rate payable on the Amended Term Loan A Facility and the
Amended Revolving Credit Facility was reduced with effect from the
Second Amendment Closing Date until the delivery of the financial
statements for the first full fiscal quarter commencing on or after the
Second Amendment Closing Date from an adjusted rate equal to
LIBOR plus 1.50% per annum (or a base rate plus 0.50% per annum)
to a rate equal to LIBOR plus 1.375% per annum (or a base rate
plus 0.375% per annum), and thereafter is based on the lower rate
derived from either the first lien net leverage ratio of the Company
and its restricted subsidiaries at the end of each fiscal quarter or
the Company’s corporate ratings. The interest rate payable on the
Amended Term Loan A Facility and the Amended Revolving Credit
Facility was subsequently increased on a temporary basis pursuant
to the Third Amended Credit Agreement (see below for further
discussion).

Amortization and Final Maturity

The Amended Term Loan A Facility requires scheduled quarterly
payments with an annual amortization of 2.5% of the original principal
amount of the loans under the Amended Term Loan A Facility during
each of the first and second years, with a step-up to 5.0% annual
amortization during each of the third and fourth years and 7.5%
annual amortization during the fifth year. If, on the date that is 91
days prior to the maturity date of the Term Loan B Facility, more than
US$50.0 million of the Term Loan B Facility has not been repaid or
refinanced pursuant to the terms provided for in the Second Amended
Credit Agreement, then the Amended Term Loan A Facility and the
Amended Revolving Credit Facility will mature on the date that is 90
days prior to the maturity date of the Term Loan B Facility.

The Second Amended Credit Agreement did not affect the terms of
the Term Loan B Facility.
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The borrowers pay customary agency fees and a commitment fee
equal to 0.20% per annum in respect of the unutilized commitments
under the Amended Revolving Credit Facility, which commitment fee
may step up based on the lower rate derived from either the first lien
net leverage ratio of the Company and its restricted subsidiaries at
the end of each fiscal quarter or the Company’s corporate ratings,
as applicable commencing with the first full fiscal quarter ended
after the Second Amendment Closing Date. Such commitment fee
was temporarily increased pursuant to the Third Amended Credit
Agreement (see below for further discussion).

Third Amended Credit Agreement

On April 29, 2020, the Company and certain of its direct and indirect
wholly-owned subsidiaries entered into an amendment to the Second
Amended Credit Agreement (the “Third Amended Credit Agreement”).
The terms of the Third Amended Credit Agreement further
strengthened the Company’s financial flexibility in order to navigate
the challenges from COVID-19. Under the terms of the Third Amended
Credit Agreement:

(1) The Company’s requirement to test the maximum total net
leverage ratio and minimum interest coverage ratio under its
Financial Covenants was suspended from the beginning of the
second quarter of 2020 through the date on which the compliance
certificate with respect to the test period ended on September
30, 2021 was delivered to the lenders under the Amended Term
Loan A Facility and the Amended Revolving Credit Facility (the
“Suspension Period”). Following the Suspension Period, the

Company resumed testing compliance with the total net leverage

ratio and interest coverage ratio covenants following the end of the

third quarter of 2021.

S

During the Suspension Period, the Company was required to
comply with a minimum liquidity covenant of US$500.0 million
and the Group was subject to additional restrictions on its
ability to incur indebtedness and make restricted payments and
investments.

&

During the Suspension Period, the interest rate applicable to the
Amended Term Loan A Facility and the Amended Revolving Credit
Facility was equal to LIBOR plus 2.00% per annum with a LIBOR
floor of 0.75% and the commitment fee in respect of the unutilized
commitments under the Amended Revolving Credit Facility was
0.35% per annum.

=

From September 30, 2021 until March 31, 2022, the Company
may at its election use Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA (as
defined in the Third Amended Credit Agreement) from the first
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two quarters of 2019 and fourth quarter of 2019 (the “Historical
EBITDA”) (instead of actual Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA from
the fourth quarter of 2020 and the first two quarters of 2021) to
calculate compliance with the Financial Covenants under the Third
Amended Credit Agreement. So long as the Company elects to
use Historical EBITDA to calculate compliance with the Financial
Covenants, the minimum liquidity covenant and the Suspension
Period pricing terms will remain in effect. The applicable amounts
of the Historical EBITDA were further amended by the Fifth
Amended Credit Agreement (as described below).

The Company elected to use Historical EBITDA to calculate compliance
with the Financial Covenants for the periods ended September 30, 2021
and December 31, 2021 and for the period ending March 31, 2022.

2020 Incremental Term Loan B Facility

On May 7, 2020 (the “2020 Incremental Term Loan B Facility Closing
Date”), the Company and certain of its direct and indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries entered into an amendment to the Third Amended
Credit Agreement (the “Fourth Amended Credit Agreement”). The
Fourth Amended Credit Agreement provided for an additional term
loan B facility in an aggregate principal amount of US$600.0 million
(the “2020 Incremental Term Loan B Facility”), which was borrowed
by certain indirect, wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company on
the 2020 Incremental Term Loan B Facility Closing Date. The 2020
Incremental Term Loan B Facility was issued with original issue
discount with an issue price of 97.00%. The proceeds from the
borrowing under the 2020 Incremental Term Loan B Facility were
used to (i) provide the Group with additional cash resources (which
could be used for general corporate purposes and for working capital
needs) and (i) pay certain fees and expenses in connection thereto.

Interest Rate and Fees

Interest on the borrowings under the 2020 Incremental Term Loan B
Facility began to accrue on the 2020 Incremental Term Loan B Facility
Closing Date. Under the terms of the 2020 Incremental Term Loan B
Facility, the interest rate was equal to LIBOR plus 4.50% per annum
with a LIBOR floor of 1.00% (or a base rate plus 3.50% per annum).

Amortization and Final Maturity

The 2020 Incremental Term Loan B Facility required scheduled
quarterly payments equal to 0.25% of the original principal amount
of the loans thereunder beginning with the fiscal quarter ended
September 30, 2020, with the balance due and payable on April 25,
2025.

Fifth Amended Credit Agreement

On June 7, 2021, the Company and certain of its direct and indirect
wholly-owned subsidiaries entered into an amendment to the Fourth
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Amended Credit Agreement (the “Fifth Amended Credit Agreement”).
Under the terms of the Fifth Amended Credit Agreement the Historical
EBITDA used for the purpose of calculating the maximum total net
leverage ratio and minimum interest coverage ratio under the Financial
Covenants for each of the quarters ended December 31, 2020, March
31, 2021 and June 30, 2021 will be increased by an amount equal to
US$65.7 million (the “Add-back Amount”).

The Add-back Amount was determined based on the annualized run-
rate fixed cost savings from the Company’s comprehensive cost
reduction program that was implemented during 2020. The Fifth
Amended Credit Agreement further strengthened the Company’s
financial flexibility to navigate its business through the challenges from
the COVID-19 pandemic.

2021 Incremental Term Loan B Facility

On June 21, 2021 (the “2021 Incremental Term Loan B Facility Closing
Date”), the Company and certain of its direct and indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries entered into an amendment to the Fifth Amended
Credit Agreement with certain lenders and financial institutions (the
“Sixth Amended Credit Agreement”). The Sixth Amended Credit
Agreement provides for a term loan B facility (the “2021 Incremental
Term Loan B Facility”) in the principal amount of US$495.5 million,
which was borrowed by certain indirect, wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company on the 2021 Incremental Term Loan B Facility Closing
Date. The 2021 Incremental Term Loan B Facility was issued with
original issue discount with an issue price of 99.75%.

The gross proceeds from the borrowing under the 2021 Incremental
Term Loan B Facility and existing cash on hand were used to (i) to
prepay in full the outstanding principal and interest under the 2020
Incremental Term Loan B Facility and (i) pay certain commissions,
fees and expenses in connection thereto. In connection with the
prepayment of the US$595.5 million principal amount of the Group’s
outstanding borrowings under the 2020 Incremental Term Loan
B Facility, the Group paid the lenders thereunder a fee equal to
approximately US$6.0 million, which represented 1.00% of the
aggregate principal amount of the 2020 Incremental Term Loan B
Facility that was prepaid as required under the terms of the Fourth
Amended Credit Agreement. The Company recorded a loss on
extinguishment of US$30.1 million upon the closing of the borrowing
under the 2021 Incremental Term Loan B Facility. The loss included
US$24.1 million of unamortized deferred financing costs which were
part of the net carrying value of the 2020 Incremental Term Loan B
Facility which was extinguished.

Interest Rate and Fees

Interest on the borrowings under the 2021 Incremental Term Loan B
Facility began to accrue on the 2021 Incremental Term Loan B Facility
Closing Date. Under the terms of the 2021 Incremental Term Loan B
Facility, the interest rate is equal to LIBOR plus 3.00% per annum with
a LIBOR floor of 0.75% (or a base rate plus 2.00% per annum).
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Amortization and Final Maturity
The 2021
quarterly payments equal to 0.25% of the original principal amount

Incremental Term Loan B Facility requires scheduled

of the loans thereunder beginning with the fiscal quarter ending
September 30, 2021, with the balance due and payable on April 25,
2025.

Optional Prepayment

If the Group prepays the 2021 Incremental Term Loan B Facility in
whole or in part on or before the date which is six months after the
2021 Incremental Term Loan B Facility Closing Date, the Group will be
required to pay to the lenders a fee equal to 1.00% of the aggregate
principal amount of the 2021 Incremental Term Loan B Facility that is
prepaid.

Minimum Liquidity Covenant

The 2021 Incremental Term Loan B Facility requires the Company
to comply with a minimum liquidity covenant of US$200.0 million
through the third quarter of 2021, stepping down to US$100.0 million
thereafter until repayment in full of the 2021 Incremental Term Loan B
Facility.

Other Terms

Except as described above, the other terms of the 2021 Incremental
Term Loan B Facility are the same as the terms of the Term Loan B
Facility.

Seventh Amended Credit Agreement

On October 22, 2021 (the “Seventh Amended Credit Agreement Closing
Date”), the Company and certain of its direct and indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries entered into an amendment to the Sixth Amended Credit
Under the
terms of the Seventh Amended Credit Agreement, with effect from the

Agreement (the “Seventh Amended Credit Agreement”).

Seventh Amended Credit Agreement Closing Date the Euro Interbank
Offered Rate (“EURIBOR”) replaced LIBOR as the benchmark interest
rate for borrowings under the Amended Revolving Credit Facility that
are denominated in Euros. The benchmark interest rate for borrowings
under the Senior Credit Facilities that are denominated in United States
Dollars continues to be LIBOR.

Other Information

The Group incurred US$3.5 million of deferred financing costs in
conjunction with the borrowing under the 2021 Incremental Term Loan
B Facility. All such costs have been deferred and are being offset
against loans and borrowings. The deferred financing costs are being
amortized using the effective interest method over the life of the Senior
Credit Facilities and the 2021 Incremental Term Loan B Facility. The
amortization of deferred financing costs, which is included in interest
expense, amounted to US$6.6 million and US$7.7 million for the years
ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively.
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The Company recorded a loss on extinguishment of US$30.1 million
upon the closing of the borrowing under the 2021 Incremental Term
Loan B Facility. The loss included US$24.1 million of unamortized
deferred financing costs which were part of the net carrying value of
the 2020 Incremental Term Loan B Facility which was extinguished
(see discussion on 2021 Incremental Term Loan B Facility above).

Interest Rate Swaps

The Group maintains interest rate swaps to hedge a portion of its
interest rate exposure under the floating-rate Senior Credit Facilities
by swapping certain US Dollar floating-rate bank borrowings with
fixed-rate agreements. On September 4, 2019, the Group entered into
interest rate swap agreements that became effective on September
6, 2019 and will terminate on August 31, 2024. The notional
amounts of the interest rate swap agreements decrease over time.
As a result of the Group’s interest rate swaps, LIBOR has been
fixed at approximately 1.208% with respect to an amount equal to
approximately 23% of the principal amount of the Amended Senior
Credit Facilities at December 31, 2021, which reduces a portion of
the Company’s exposure to interest rate increases. The interest rate
swap agreements have fixed payments due monthly that commenced
September 30, 2019. The interest rate swap transactions qualify
as cash flow hedges. As of December 31, 2021 and December 31,
2020, the interest rate swaps were marked-to-market, resulting in a
net liability position to the Group in the amount of US$3.4 million and
US$21.2 million, respectively, which was recorded as a liability with
the effective portion of the gain (loss) deferred to other comprehensive

income (loss).

RNARR2021 FIEFEB T HERBBIE T EX
T EERS30.1 BB ETAEERBE - ZE18
BB AR MR R B SR E A A AR 24.1 8
BET (E2020F BT HE R RBERAF
HEH—35) (B2 X E/2021 FEEBE
HERBBOT®R) o

FZRi=Hy

AEBEENRAREN X HBEEE T ZEET
IRITEFET MRS - U RZEELE
ERBETHMSFEER - H2019F9 A
48 - REEFT A28 - 5201949
Ae6BEARILHEMN2024F8 A31 BRI 7
RIEHENBESTEREE SRR - ARA
SEMET TR EEH - R2021F12A318
KB RAEERBHASEPLN23%NE
BELEMLIBOREE T4 A1.208% * ILFIE
TARABEEBE IS MNE R o F % 5
W AE2019F9 A30ARE A EE F
B o MEXEHMZFERALTEH T - 1
2021412 A31H K2020F 12 A31 8 » =X
BHZMENE  BRAKESRELEFAR
34BEEETLR21.2EEEL  WARIIEE
& mMERKE (B8 B ABEEEHME
W (E18) -

HEBEMRAERDIR /FH2021/ 93



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEET WD

€350.0 Million 3.500% Senior Notes Due 2026

On April 25, 2018 (the “Issue Date”),
wholly-owned,

Samsonite Finco S.a r.l., a
indirect subsidiary of the Company (the “Issuer”),
issued €350.0 million aggregate principal amount of its 3.500% senior
notes due 2026 (the “Senior Notes”). The Senior Notes were issued
at par pursuant to an indenture (the “Indenture”), dated the Issue
Date, among the lIssuer, the Company and certain of its direct or
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries (together with the Company, the

“Guarantors”).

Maturity, Interest and Redemption

The Senior Notes will mature on May 15, 2026. Interest on the
aggregate outstanding principal amount of the Senior Notes accrues
at a fixed rate of 3.500% per annum, payable semi-annually in cash in

arrears on May 15 and November 15 each year.

After May 15, 2021, the Issuer may redeem all, or from time to time a
part, of the Senior Notes at the following redemption prices (expressed
as a percentage of the principal amount) plus accrued and unpaid
interest and additional amounts, if any, to the applicable redemption
date (subject to the right of holders of record on the relevant record
date to receive interest due on the relevant interest payment date), if
redeemed during the twelve-month period commencing on May 15 of
the years set forth below:
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Year Redemption Price
FE i [0l (8
2021 20214 101.750%
2022 20224 100.875%
2023 and thereafter 2023 K H1i% 100.000%

In the event of certain events defined as constituting a change of control,
the Issuer may be required to make an offer to purchase the Senior Notes.

Guarantee and Security

The Senior Notes are guaranteed by the Guarantors on a senior
subordinated basis. The Senior Notes are secured by a second-
ranking pledge over the shares of the Issuer and a second-ranking
pledge over the Issuer’s rights in the proceeds loan in respect of the
proceeds of the offering of the Senior Notes (the “Shared Collateral”).
The Shared Collateral also secures the borrowings under the Sixth
Amended Credit Agreement on a first-ranking basis.
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Certain Covenants and Events of Default

The Indenture contains a number of customary negative covenants
that, among other things and subject to certain exceptions, may
restrict the ability of the Company and its restricted subsidiaries
(including the Issuer) to: (i) incur or guarantee additional indebtedness,
(i) make investments or other restricted payments, (iii) create liens,
(iv) sell assets and subsidiary stock, (v) pay dividends or make
other distributions or repurchase or redeem the capital stock or
subordinated debt of the Company or its restricted subsidiaries, (vi)
engage in certain transactions with affiliates, (vii) enter into agreements
that restrict the payment of dividends by subsidiaries or the repayment
of inter-company loans and advances, (vii) engage in mergers or
consolidations and (ix) impair the security interests in the Shared
Collateral. The Indenture also contains certain customary provisions
relating to events of default.

Other Loans and Borrowings

Certain consolidated subsidiaries of the Company maintain credit lines
and other loans with various third-party lenders in the regions in which
they operate. Other loans and borrowings are generally variable rate
instruments denominated in the functional currency of the borrowing
Group entity. These credit lines provide short-term financing and
working capital for the day-to-day business operations of certain
Group entities, including overdraft, bank guarantees, and trade finance
facilities. The majority of such credit lines are uncommitted facilities.
The total aggregate amount of other loans and borrowings was
US$60.7 million and US$47.8 million as of December 31, 2021 and
December 31, 2020, respectively. The uncommitted available facilities
amounted to US$102.2 million and US$105.6 million as of December
31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively.

The following represents the contractual maturity dates of the Group’s
loans and borrowings as of December 31, 2021 and December 31,
2020:

(Expressed in millions of US Dollars) (XBEETZ5))
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TREYIARE®EN2021F12 A31 B & 20204
12 A1 BN ERMERNE LR A

December 31,
2021

December 31,
2020
2020412 A31H

20215612831 H

On demand or within one year BRERKSIR—FRA 107.3 80.6
After one year but within two years —FREMFA 53.3 47.8
After two years but within five years MEREREAN 2,641.4 2,674.6
More than five years AFAE - 427.5

2,802.0 3,230.5

Cross-currency Swaps

The Group maintains cross-currency swaps to hedge currency risk
associated with currency fluctuation between the Euro and US Dollar.
In April 2019, the Group entered into a cross-currency swap which
has been designated as a net investment hedge. The hedge consists
of a US$50.0 million notional loan amount between the Euro and US
Dollar. The Group benefits from the interest rate spread between these
markets to receive fixed interest income over a five-year contractual
period.
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As of December 31, 2021, the cross-currency swap qualified as a
net investment hedge and the monthly mark-to-market was recorded
to other comprehensive income (loss). As of December 31, 2021,
the cross-currency swap was marked-to-market, resulting in a net
asset position to the Group in the amount of US$0.1 million, which
was recorded as an asset with the effective portion of the gain (loss)
deferred to other comprehensive income (loss). As of December 31,
2020, the cross-currency swap was marked-to-market, resulting in
a net liability position to the Group in the amount of US$2.7 million,
which was recorded as a liability with the effective portion of the gain
(loss) deferred to other comprehensive income (loss).

The Group previously maintained a cross-currency swap used to
hedge currency risk associated with currency fluctuations between
the Japanese Yen and US Dollar. In April 2019, the Group entered
into a cross-currency swap which was designated as a net investment
hedge. The hedge consisted of a US$25.0 million notional loan amount
between the Japanese Yen and US Dollar, which was terminated in
September 2021. At the time of termination, the cross-currency swap
had a fair market value of US$1.2 million. The gain was recorded as a
hedging gain in finance costs in the consolidated statements of income
(loss). As of December 31, 2020, the cross-currency swap was marked-
to-market, resulting in a net liability position to the Group in the amount
of US$0.5 million, which was recorded as a liability with the effective
portion of the gain (loss) deferred to other comprehensive income (loss).

Hedging

The Company’s non-U.S. subsidiaries periodically enter into forward
contracts related to the purchase of inventories denominated primarily
in US Dollars which are designated as cash flow hedges. Cash
outflows associated with these derivatives as of December 31, 2021

are expected to be US$34.0 million within one year.
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Other Financial Information

Capital Expenditures

Historical Capital Expenditures

The following table sets forth the Group’s capital expenditures for the
years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

Hi g ER

BARRX

BEEARREX

TREFAEBE Z20219F12 A31 B %2020
F12A31BEFEMNELRRSL ¢

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31HILFE

(Expressed in millions of US Dollars) (UEEETEZ5) 2021 2020
Land T - 0.1
Buildings g 1.8 1.4
Machinery, equipment, leasehold improvements Hes - RfE - HEWMEEE

and other REA 19.0 19.1
Total capital expenditures eNGE L 20.8 20.6

Capital expenditures during the year ended December 31, 2021
were primarily related to leasehold improvements and investments in
machinery and equipment. The Group continued to tightly manage
its capital expenditures in response to the impacts on the Group’s
business from the COVID-19 pandemic.

Planned Capital Expenditures

The Group’s capital expenditures budget for 2022 is approximately
US$73.8 million. The Group plans to open new retail stores, refurbish
existing retail stores, begin construction of a new warehouse in India
and invest in new product development. Actual capital expenditures
in 2022 may continue to be impacted based on the Group’s recovery
from COVID-19.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes scheduled maturities of the
Group’s contractual obligations for which cash flows are fixed and
determinable as of December 31, 2021:

(Expressed in millions of US Dollars)

HZE2021F12A31BILFE - EARTER
MAEYERBRITERNIER LR EER - &
5 B A 1B B 15 I BB AR R S AR 29201 97 Ak
R AEBERNTE -

SrEIEAEX

AEBER2022FERFEZTRELN BT73.8BEE
TL e AKBEFERRNEEER  BFEES
EEE RIOEFREAEEREIRIRERE
HER - BEAEE 20198 MBS RIEEH
RIERRE @+ 2022 FMEREAR T RS BE

i L | BL 48R
SRR .

EHERE
TREAREBN2021FE12 A1 B¥ REFA
AFEERERENAHETHETHHA -

Within Over
5 years

H#iB5F

Between
2 and 5 years

2 B5F

Between
1 and 2 years

15228

1 year

1R

Loans and borrowings ERRER 2,802.0 107.3 53.3 2,641.4
Open inventory purchase orders NG EREE B 443.0 440.0 1.9 1.1
Future minimum contractual payments HEEBEHARRE

under lease liabilities AR 481.9 147.5 113.4 162.7 58.2
Future minimum payments under RHREEBEEED

short-term and low-value leases RRBAR K 2.5 2.5 - - -
Total 5t 3,729.3 697.4 168.6 2,805.2 58.2

As of December 31, 2021, the Group did not have any material off-
balance sheet arrangements or contingencies except as included in
the table summarizing its contractual obligations above.

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries

There were no significant investments held that represented 5% or
more of the Group’s total assets and no material acquisitions during
the year ended December 31, 2021. On July 30, 2021, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company sold Speck for an aggregate cash
consideration of US$35.3 million. The net proceeds from the sale
were used to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings under the
Company’s Amended Revolving Credit Facility.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased
to present this Corporate Governance Report for the year ended
December 31, 2021.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance. The Company recognizes that sound corporate
governance practices are fundamental to the effective and transparent
operation of the Company and to its ability to protect the rights of its
shareholders and enhance shareholder value.

The Company has adopted its own corporate governance manual,
which is based on the principles, provisions and practices set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (as in effect from time to time, the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

The Company complied with all applicable code provisions set out
in the CG Code throughout the period from January 1, 2021 to
December 31, 2021.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own policies (the “Trading Policy”)
for securities transactions by directors and relevant employees who
are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information
of the Group on terms no less exacting than the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they complied with the
required standards set out in the Trading Policy during the year ended
December 31, 2021. Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s interests

in the Company’s shares as of December 31, 2021 are set out at

pages 158 to 159 of this Annual Report.
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The Board of Directors and Senior Management
The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company,
and for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising the Company’s affairs. In addition, the Board is
responsible for (i) overseeing the corporate governance and financial
reporting of the Company, (ii) ensuring that the Company establishes
and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems, (iii) overseeing the Company’s policies and
procedures on compliance and corporate governance, (iv) overseeing
the Company’s management of Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG”) issues, and (v) the training and continuous professional
development of the Company’s directors and senior management. To
assist it in fulfilling its duties, the Board has established three board
committees: the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee (details of which are set out at pages 102 to
105 of this Annual Report).

The Chairman is responsible for leading the Board and ensuring that
the Board functions effectively and acts in the best interests of the
Company. The Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) is responsible for the
overall strategic planning and management of the Company.

The Board has established clear guidelines with respect to matters
that must be approved or recommended by the Board, including,
without limitation, approval of the Company’s annual operating budget
and capital expenditure budget; the hiring or dismissal of the CEO,
Chief Financial Officer, Joint Company Secretary or certain other
members of the Company’s senior management team; and approving
and recommending significant transactions.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in
respect of potential legal actions against its directors and senior

management.
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Composition of the Board, Number of Board
Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

The Board consists of eight directors, including one Executive Director
(“ED”), one Non-Executive Director (“NED”), and six Independent Non-
Executive Directors (INEDs”). The biographical details of each director
and their respective responsibilities and dates of appointment are
included in the “Directors and Senior Management” section on pages
118 to 123 of this Annual Report. None of the members of the Board
is related to one another.

There were seven meetings of the Board held during the year ended
December 31, 2021. The following is the attendance record of the
directors at Board and committee meetings, as well as at the Annual
General Meeting of shareholders held during the year, and the training
record of the directors during the year:

EESHAR - EEEERRH
RESHRERH
EEEH/\LERAN  RE—ANTEE
(T8 ) - —RINTES (808 ) BAE
BUINTEE (BUIFRE]) - SEEHE
BB RESE S OHEREERBRRAT
BEIBEIBEEERBRELE] 5 -
EFRNE B TRE -

HZE2021F12A31BILFE - S5 g HBE7T
thg®E e TIAFREFLREETNES
CLELAREBEFAEGNLHE  URFRES
R FIEE R

Attendance Training
R E gl
Annual Continuous
Board of Audit Nomination Remuneration General Professional
Category Directors Committee Committee Committee Meeting Development
apel] g EREEE® REEEE FMEEE REBFAE HESERR
Timothy Charles Parker NED and Chairman 7/7 - 11 - 11 Note
FRERER i
Kyle Francis Gendreau ED and CEO 7/7 - - - 11 Note
HERTHREH G2
Paul Kenneth Etchells INED 77 6/6 11 2/2 11 Note
BIUFHE G
Jerome Squire Griffith INED 7/7 - - - 11 Note
BYUFHE i
Keith Hamill INED 7/7 6/6 - 2/2 11 Note
B IEE R
Tom Korbas™ INED 77 - - - 11 Note
BIUFHE G
Bruce Hardy McLain (Hardy) INED 7/7 - - 2/2 11 Note
BIUFHNE i
Ying Yeh INED 7/7 6/6 11 2/2 11 Note
-3 B EE Ga
Notes e

Each director received continuous professional development training during the
year ended December 31, 2021, which included training on ESG matters and other
relevant topics. The directors are also continually updated on developments in
the statutory and regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities.

M

Mr. Korbas was re-designated from a NED to an INED effective from March 17,
2021.

Each INED has provided the Company with an annual confirmation
of his or her independence, and the Company considers each of the
INEDs to be independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Code provision C.2.7 of the CG Code provides that the chairman
should meet at least annually with the INEDs without the presence
of other directors. The Chairman met with the INEDs during the year
ended December 31, 2021.
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notice of regular Board meetings is given to all directors at least 14
days in advance, and reasonable notice is generally given for other
Board meetings. Annual meeting schedules and the draft agenda of
each meeting are normally made available to directors in advance.
Arrangements are in place to allow directors to include items in the
agenda, and final agendas together with board papers are sent to
directors at least 3 days before each regular Board meeting, and
as soon as practicable before other Board meetings, so that the
Board can make informed decisions on matters placed before it.
Each director also has separate and independent access to senior
management where necessary.

Minutes of the Board meetings are kept by the Joint Company
Secretary. Draft minutes are circulated to directors for comment within
a reasonable time after each meeting.

If a director or any of his or her associates has a material interest
in a transaction, that director is required to abstain from voting and
not to be counted in the quorum at the meeting for approving the
transaction.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company uses a formal and transparent procedure for the
appointment, election and removal of directors, which is set out in
the Company'’s Articles of Incorporation and is led by the Nomination
Committee, which will make recommendations on new director
appointments to the Board for approval.

Each of the directors is engaged on a service contract, with their
appointment subject to re-election. Further details of the appointment,
election and removal of directors are set out in the “Directors and
Senior Management” section on pages 117 to 123 of this Annual
Report.

Each director is appointed for a maximum term of three years,
after which, upon recommendation of the Board, such director
may be proposed for re-election by the Company’s shareholders in
accordance with the Articles of Incorporation.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy that provides that
the Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of the Board’s performance
and to support the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives.
Under the policy, all Board appointments will be based on merit in the
context of the knowledge, skills and experience that the Board as a
whole requires to be effective.
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Induction and Ongoing Development

Each newly appointed director receives a formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction to ensure his or her understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and awareness of a director’s
responsibilities and obligations.

All directors participate in continuous professional development
in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Each
member of the Board received relevant training during the year ended
December 31, 2021, details of which are set out in the section titled
“Composition of the Board, Number of Board Meetings and Directors’
Attendance” above.

Committees

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference
which are posted on the Company’s website and are available to
shareholders upon request. Meetings of the Board committees
generally follow the same procedures as for meetings of the Board.

Audit Committee

The Board has established an Audit Committee and has adopted
written terms of reference that set forth the authority and duties of the
committee. The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely
Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells (Chairman of the Audit Committee) (INED),
Mr. Keith Hamill (INED) and Ms. Ying Yeh (INED).

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, at least one
member of the Audit Committee possesses appropriate professional
qualifications in accounting or related financial management expertise
in discharging the responsibilities of the Audit Committee.

All members have sufficient experience in reviewing audited financial
statements as aided by the auditors of the Company whenever
required.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise
the Company’s financial reporting process and risk management and
internal control systems, to monitor the integrity of the Company’s
consolidated financial statements and financial reporting, and to
oversee the audit process.

There were six meetings of the Audit Committee held during the year
ended December 31, 2021. The following is a summary of the work
performed by the Audit Committee during 2021:

e Reviewed and approved the internal audit work plan for 2021, and
received periodic updates on the status of internal audit activities
from the Company’s Vice President of Internal Audit;
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e Reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s system of risk
management and internal controls for the year ended December
31, 2020;

e Reviewed arrangements for employees to raise concerns about
possible improprieties;

e Reviewed the annual financial statements (both consolidated and
standalone), annual results announcement and annual report for
the year ended December 31, 2020 and recommended approval
of such documents to the Board;

e Reviewed the independence of the Company’s external auditors
and recommended the re-engagement of the external auditors for
the year ended December 31, 2021;

e Reviewed the Company’s results announcement for the three
months ended March 31, 2021, and recommended approval of
such announcement to the Board;

e Reviewed the interim consolidated financial statements, interim
results announcement and interim report of the Company for the
six months ended June 30, 2021, and recommended approval of
such documents to the Board;

e Reviewed and approved an updated Internal Audit Department
Charter;

e Received an update on a compliance initiative;

e Reviewed the Company’s results announcement for the three
and nine-months ended September 30, 2021, and recommended
approval of such announcement to the Board;

e Reviewed and approved the plan for and scope of the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended December 31, 2021 and the fee proposal for such audit;

e Approved the non-audit services that can be provided by the
external auditors during the year ending December 31, 2022,
approved certain non-audit services provided by the external
auditors during the year ended December 31, 2021, and received
updates on the non-audit services provided by the external
auditors during the year ended December 31, 2021;

e Met twice with the Company’s external auditors without the
presence of the ED or management; and

e Met with the Company’s Vice President of Internal Audit without
the presence of the ED or management.

In addition, during the first three months of 2022 the Audit Committee
reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s system of risk
management and internal controls for the year ended December 31,
2021; reviewed the annual consolidated financial statements, annual
results announcement and annual report for the year ended December
31, 2021 and recommended approval of such documents to the
Board; and reviewed the independence of the Company’s external
auditors and recommended the re-engagement of the external
auditors for the year ending December 31, 2022.
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Nomination Committee

The Board has established a Nomination Committee and has adopted
written terms of reference that set forth the authority and duties of the
committee. The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Timothy Charles Parker (Chairman of the Nomination
Committee) (NED), Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells (INED) and Ms. Ying Yeh
(INED).

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board, to make
recommendations to the Board with respect to any changes to the
composition of the Board, and to assess the independence of the
INEDs. When identifying suitable candidates, the Nomination Committee
shall (where applicable and appropriate) use open advertising or the
services of external advisers and consider candidates from a wide range
of backgrounds on merit and against objective criteria. The Nomination
Committee’s policy for evaluating and nominating any candidate for
directorship includes considering various criteria, including character
and integrity, qualifications (including professional qualifications), skills,
knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under the Board’s
diversity policy, potential contributions the candidate can make to the
Board and such other matters that are appropriate to the Company’s
business and succession plan.

There was one meeting of the Nomination Committee held during the
year ended December 31, 2021. The following is a summary of the
work performed by the Nomination Committee during 2021:

e Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;

e Discussed the re-designation of Tom Korbas as an INED and
recommended such re-designation to the Board;

e Reviewed the time and contribution required from directors;

e Assessed the independence of the INEDs and concluded that each
of the INEDs satisfied the independence requirements applicable
to INEDs; and

e Considered the retirement and re-nomination of directors to stand
for re-election to the Board at the Company’s 2021 annual general
meeting of shareholders.

Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee and has
adopted written terms of reference that set forth the authority and
duties of the committee. The Remuneration Committee consists of
four members, namely Mr. Keith Hamill (Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee) (INED), Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells (INED), Mr. Bruce Hardy
McLain (Hardy) (INED) and Ms. Ying Yeh (INED).
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for the remuneration of directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on such remuneration, as well as to determine the specific
remuneration package of the ED and certain members of senior
management.

There were two meetings of the Remuneration Committee held during
the year ended December 31, 2021. The following is a summary of
the work performed by the Remuneration Committee during 2021:

e Reviewed and approved the compensation of members of the
Company’s senior management, including the ED, for 2021;

e Reviewed the remuneration of the NED and INEDs for 2021;

e Approved the participation of certain members of the Company’s
senior management in the Company’s Management Severance
Plan. The Management Severance Plan establishes guidelines that
may be modified by the Remuneration Committee in its discretion
with respect to severance payable to certain members of senior
management, including the ED, if their employment with the
Group is terminated by the Group without cause or by the senior
manager for good reason;

e Approved the grant of share options to the senior managers,
including the ED; and

e Approved long-term cash incentive awards to certain employees
of the Group (other than the senior managers and the ED).

Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management

The following is a general description of the emolument policy of the
Company, as well as the basis of determining the emoluments payable
to the directors.

Director and Senior Management Remuneration

The remuneration of directors is recommended to the Company’s
shareholders by the Board, which receives recommendations from
the Remuneration Committee. The remuneration of directors must
be approved by special resolutions at the annual general meeting of
the shareholders of the Company. The NED and each of the INEDs
received directors’ fees during the year ended December 31, 2021.
The ED did not receive any directors’ fees.

Under the Company’s current compensation arrangements, the ED
and senior management receive cash compensation in the form of
salaries as well as short-term cash incentive opportunities that are
subject to performance targets. The ED and senior management also
receive periodic grants of share options and restricted share units,
which serve as the long-term incentive component of the Group’s
compensation strategy.
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Remuneration of the directors (including fees, salaries, discretionary
bonuses, share-based compensation expense and other benefits) was
approximately US$9.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2021.

The aggregate amount of emoluments for the five highest paid
individuals of the Group, including the ED, was approximately
US$19.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. No amounts
have been paid to the directors or the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation
for loss of office, for the year ended December 31, 2021. No directors
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments to which they were
entitled for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Senior Management Emoluments

The following information summarizes the emoluments, by band, of
the members of the Company’s senior management team during the
years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

HZE2021F12A31HILFE @ EFHM (21
W e BIBIEL - AR ST 80 3 BN BE
S REAMEF) 4 59.8FEETT
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Year ended December 31,
BZE12A31HLEE

2021 2020
HK$0 — HK$5,000,000 077t —5,000,000/% 7T
(US$0 - US$643,327): (03T —643,3273% L) * 0 3
HK$5,000,001 — HK$10,000,000 5,000,001 7t —10,000,000/% 7T
(US$643,328 — US$1,286,654): (643,328 7T — 1,286,654 7T) : 3 8
HK$10,000,001 - HK$15,000,000 10,000,001 7T —15,000,000# 7T
(US$1,286,655 — US$1,929,981): (1,286,655% 7T — 1,929,981 7T) : 0 3
HK$15,000,001 — HK$20,000,000 15,000,001 7T —20,000,0007# 7T
(US$1,929,982 - US$2,573,308): (1,929,982 T —2,573,308% 7T ) : 4 0
Over HK$20,000,000 i83i820,000,000/% 7T
(Over US$2,573,308): (#8352,573,308%7T) * 4 1

Such emoluments are shown inclusive of the share-based
compensation expense recognized during the years ended December
31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 for all grants made to date for
these individuals. Termination benefits of US$1.1 million were paid to
former members of the senior management team during 2020. There
were no termination benefits paid out during 2021.

External Auditors and Auditors’ Remuneration
The auditors’ statement about their reporting responsibilities for
the Company’s consolidated financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 166 to 172 of this Annual
Report.

The fees in relation to the audit and related services for the years
ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 provided by
KPMG LLP and its foreign member firms, the external auditors of the
Group, were as follows:
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Year ended December 31,
BZE12A31ALFE

(Expressed in millions of US Dollars) (UBEEETZS) 2021 2020
Annual audit and interim review services FEEFTRTHEHRY 5.4 4.4
Permitted tax services TR RS AR 1.2 0.1
Other non-audit related services Hth IR T B AR TS 0.6 2.5
Total st 7.2 7.0
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Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated
Financial Statements
The Board acknowledges that it holds responsibility for:

e Qverseeing the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Company with a view of ensuring such
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company; and

e Selecting suitable accounting policies and applying them
consistently with the support of reasonable judgment and
estimates.

The Board ensures the timely publication of the consolidated financial
statements of the Company.

Management provides explanations and information to the Board to
enable it to make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information to be approved.

The Board strives to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Company'’s financial reporting, including annual and
interim reports, quarterly results announcements, other price-sensitive
announcements, other financial disclosures required under the Listing
Rules, reports to regulators and information required to be disclosed
pursuant to statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards.

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company keeps
proper accounting records, for safeguarding the Company’s assets
and for taking reasonable steps for the prevention of fraud and other
irregularities.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. For further discussion about the
impacts of COVID-19 on the Company, see Management Discussion
and Analysis — Impact of COVID-19, Directors’ Report — Risk Factors
— Risks Associated with the Company’s Loans and Borrowings, and
note 2(f) to the consolidated financial statements regarding the impact
of COVID-19.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company establishes
and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee
the responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems. The Company’s
management, under the oversight of the Board, is responsible for
the design, implementation and monitoring of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems.
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Principal Risks

The Company recognizes that effective management of risk is
essential to executing the Company’s strategies, achieving sustainable
shareholder value, protecting the Group’s brands and ensuring good
corporate governance. Accordingly, rather than being a separate
and standalone process, risk management is integrated into the
Company’s business processes including strategy development,
business planning, capital allocation, investment decisions, internal
control and day-to-day operations.

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives. The Company aims to only take reasonable risks
that (a) fit its strategy, (b) can be understood and managed, and (c) do
not expose the Company to:

e Material financial loss impacting the ability to execute the
Company’s business strategy or materially compromising the
Company’s financial viability;

e Material interruption to the Company’s business;

e Breaches of applicable laws and regulations; or

e Damage to the Company’s reputation and brands.

As part of the Audit Committee’s review of the Group’s risk
management systems, the Audit Committee considers the principal
risks facing the Group and the nature and extent of such risks. The
Company’s Head of Internal Audit facilitates an annual enterprise risk
assessment process in conjunction with the senior management team
in each of the Company’s regions as well as senior management
of the Company’s corporate functions. This process reviews the
significant risks facing the Company’s operations and records the
relevant activities that are in place to mitigate such risks.

The risks set out below represent the principal risks and uncertainties
that may adversely impact the Company’s performance and the
execution of its strategies. Other factors could also adversely affect
the Company’s performance. Accordingly, the risks described below
should not be considered to be a comprehensive list of all potential
risks and uncertainties. The principal risks are not listed in order of
significance. In addition to the principal risks described below, a
discussion of certain qualitative and quantitative market risks and
risks associated with the Company’s loans and borrowings that may
adversely impact its performance and execution of its strategies
is included on pages 148 through 152 of this Annual Report. A
discussion about the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic to the
Group’s results of operations and financial condition is disclosed in
Management Discussion and Analysis — Impact of COVID-19.

108 Samsonite International S.A. /Annual Report 2021 /

FEER

AR BIRIRAE R b 81T AR B RE
ERAFENRRERE  REAKRE @S LE
RRECEERMEDBLE - Rit - BRE
BEEBARARNERRE (BREREER
EBRE - B2l - WEREK - REHESI R
AEZE) T MAFES—EDFHRELL

MAZ ©

EXg B RETERERAARIRKEAE
BEMREEAZNREROUEERREE - ARFE
FEAEAE () 1T & HIRES - (0) AR N EIE K (o)
TELARREZATEENGIERER

s HEWTARARBGRIENENXURER
EAREMBIRRIENEAMEEE

o BEPHBRADAEY
o ENEMARIER X
o BEARABELMME -

ERERZRERTASERREERGN —
M BERZESETEASEEERNEIERR
NRZERBOEERIZEE - RRBABERX
TEBRAARAESRNEREIEBEK A RAK
ARIGEBENSREREGFETEERR
FHERAE o RIE A AR B E K E R E b
MWEARR - A8 AREZ SRR M ETTH
HEEE -

TXHHENRERELEHARRNRALEH
TREERTNEZENTER R K THEAR
= o HtEARIFAIEH AR B R KRB IERK T F
T8 - Fith - TXAARER N ERR RTE
BERBREIHAARENTRIIR - RATE
BRI FEIRE R MBS o B T XA sy £ B R
RO - BEAR BRI AR RIM R R EHITRE
EETNFZENETEEREET SRR - A
Ro BB A ) BB R 8 SRR B A LB Y e R
RERFE148E162H - AHA2019BRHBZTR
EHAEERERELMBIRANEENTR
MIERBENREDN — 2019 AE ZE AR
T RE -



The key steps the Company takes in an effort to mitigate these
principal risks are described below. It is not possible for the Company
to implement measures to address all of the risks it may face, and
there can be no assurance that the steps the Group has taken will
adequately and effectively mitigate the risks it faces.

Risk &k Impact $/£&

Deterioration in economic Reductions in discretionary consumer
conditions globally or in the spending could have a material adverse
Company’s major markets, which impact on the Company’s net sales,

could result from economic profitability, cash flow and financial condition
cyclicality, political or social unrest, (including potential impairments of goodwill

armed conflict, government actions and certain other non-current assets).
in response to outbreaks of \
contagious disease, or other events  JHEHEA XX HED - SkEH AR AIREHE

or conditions that may adversely HEE - BFRES) C RERE KM RIEKE
affect trading. ;Z:E%%)(@%Féﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁé
VEERE) °
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Mitigation i {5 /& B& (9 15 e

The Company’s multi-brand, multi-category strategy
results in flexibility in the wide range of price points
at which the Group’s products are sold, which helps
make the business more resilient. The geographic
diversity of the Company’s global business helps to
mitigate the impact of local economic challenges.
The Company has been able to partially mitigate the
impact on profitability from temporary reductions in
net sales caused by the COVID-19 pandemic through
reductions in advertising expenditures and other
expense reductions.
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Adverse impacts on the travel Sales of travel luggage, which make
industry, especially air travel, up a majority of the Group’s sales, are
resulting from events such as significantly dependent on travel as a driver
terrorist attacks or outbreaks of of consumer demand. Significant adverse
contagious disease. impacts on the travel industry could have an

adverse effect on the Company’s net sales,
AR ELRBERSEGME  profitability, cash flow and financial condition

RBESE (FFRIR M 2 IREEEE ) 35K T (including potential impairments of goodwill
M2 o and certain other non-current assets).
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Historically, the travel industry has recovered fairly
quickly following the end of travel disruptions, and
accordingly prior disruptions have not had material
long-term adverse impacts on the Company’s
business. The Company’s strategy to grow its sales
of non-travel products, including business and casual
bags and accessories, helps mitigate its vulnerability
to disruptions in the travel industry. The Company’s
geographic diversity also mitigates the impact of more
localized travel disruptions. The Company has been
able to partially mitigate the impact on profitability
from temporary reductions in net sales caused by the
COVID-19 pandemic through reductions in advertising
expenditures and other expense reductions.
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Shifts in the distribution channels If the Company’s strategy does not
through which consumers purchase  effectively evolve to keep pace with changing
the Group’s products. This includes  channel or market dynamics, the Company’s

the increasing prevalence of net sales, profitability and cash flow could be
e-commerce and other evolving adversely affected.

digital channels in which the

Company has seen an increase in Fixed costs (particularly with respect to

new market entrants. leases) associated with the Group’s direct-

to-consumer retail business could have an
HEEBEASEERBAERMNS  adverse effect on the Company’s profitability,
HERBEAMEE  BIEELRMEAE  cash flow and financial condition (including
T8 R E AT R A RE potential impairments of goodwill and certain
(RARBRZREBEOFTMIHEAE other non-current assets).
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The Company has deployed a multi-channel strategy,
with a particular emphasis in recent years on the
Group’s e-commerce capabilities, so that the

Group can meet consumer demand across all major
channels.

The Company’s industry leading brands, long track
record of innovation, and global economies of scale
that enable substantial investments in product
development, marketing and sourcing are competitive
advantages.

The Company closely monitors the profitability of its
retail stores and its retail lease portfolio to manage
the risks associated with lease obligations.
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Risk &k Impact $/£
Rising costs for finished goods,
raw materials and components
sourced from third-party suppliers,
including without limitation
increased costs resulting from the
imposition by governments of tariffs
on imported goods.
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Could adversely affect the Company’s
ability to maintain product margins if the
Company is unable to raise its prices or
find suitable, more cost-effective suppliers.
Increasing prices to maintain margins could
adversely impact consumer demand for the
Group’s products.
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Mitigation {5 & B (Y 15 ie

The Company seeks to maintain and expand

a geographically diverse supplier base and, as
illustrated by the Company’s ongoing, successful
efforts to diversify its supplier base outside China,
has the ability to shift production from one supplier
to another and to other countries. Price increases
are implemented where possible to help maintain
product margins. Products are engineered to
ensure maximum value for consumers by eliminating
unnecessarily costly features. The Company utilizes
in-house manufacturing of hard-side luggage where
doing so is cost effective.
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Risk of third-party suppliers failing
to comply with the Company’s
policies that are applicable to

its suppliers, including its social
compliance policy.
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Ceasing production from a supplier that
violates the Company’s policies could
disrupt supply and result in reduced sales
and increased costs. Violations could also
cause significant damage to the Company’s
reputation and brand image.
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The Group seeks to ensure that all new and existing
third-party suppliers abide by the Company’s
policies. Supply contracts require compliance, and
the Group’s social compliance audit personnel

visit suppliers on a regular basis and audit their
compliance. Failure to remedy violations of the policy
may result in termination of the relationship with the
supplier. The Group sources from many third-party
suppliers which may afford it the flexibility to shift
production to a different vendor if needed.

REEBRFTA N RIRA M E =75 R
ARBER - HEA KR EHERBAELETABERE
MALENEEREERT ARG ERREHER - IS
PR DT A ARR - Mt EREAAEEREK
REYBEIR - AEBS R FEZ MRS IERR - A
SERMZHE=THEFETRE  WERE - KAE
A EET FEBEE MR -

Risk of inability to source, on a
timely basis, in sufficient quantities
and at a competitive cost,

finished goods, or raw materials

or component parts needed for
manufacture by the Group of certain
key hard-side luggage products.
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Inability of suppliers to deliver, in a timely
and cost-effective manner, products that
meet the Group’s quality standards could
result in damage to customer relationships,
reduced market share, lost sales, lower
profitability and reduced cash flow.

In addition, the Group is dependent on a
sole source supplier for the supply of the
Curv material used to form the outer shell of
several of its best-selling, hard-side product

Where possible, the Company maintains alternative
sources of supply. Prospective and current vendors
are reviewed for quality, cost-effectiveness and
adequacy of capacity. Inventory needs and purchase
order requirements are monitored to ensure
appropriate inventory levels are maintained.

The Group is party to an agreement with the supplier
of the Curv material under which such supplier has
agreed to supply the material to the Group. The
Group seeks to maintain an adequate supply of Curv

KRR o lines. Any disruption in the supply of Curv material to meet inventory needs.
material could adversely impact production
of such products, which could result in lost The Group maintains business interruption insurance
sales and market share. in almost all of its key markets to protect itself against
significant revenue or profitability losses resulting
HERARERRRINEXN AR @M BERFEAREE  from covered risks.
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Risk &k Impact $/£&
Fluctuations in the value of the
US Dollar against the functional
currencies of the Group’s
businesses.
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The Company’s consolidated financial
statements are prepared in US Dollars.

The net sales of the Group’s operating
subsidiaries are generated in their local
functional currency, while a large proportion
of each subsidiary’s cost of sales (in the
form of inventory purchases) are incurred in
US Dollars. Fluctuations in the value of the
US Dollar against the currencies in which
its businesses generate revenues could
adversely affect the Company’s US Dollar
reported net sales, gross margin, profitability
and cash flow.
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Mitigation {5 /& B& 19 15 e

The Group periodically uses forward exchange
contracts to hedge its exposure to currency risk
on product purchases denominated in a currency
other than the respective functional currency of its
subsidiaries.

Interest on borrowings is largely denominated in the
local currency of the borrowings. Borrowings are

generally denominated in currencies that match the
cash flows generated by the underlying operations.

The Company provides constant-currency
comparisons of period-over-period financial results
in order to provide investors a view to the underlying
performance of the business without distortions
caused by currency fluctuations.
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The Company is dependent upon
certain information technology
systems.

Technical problems with the Group’s
information technology systems could
negatively impact the timely preparation

of management accounts and forecasts,
which could adversely affect the Company’s
ability to manage its business effectively or
to accurately and timely report its financial
results. In addition, technical problems could
result in delays in delivering products to
customers, which could adversely affect the
Company’s sales and reputation.

Risk of failure to protect confidential
information of the Group’s
customers or employees, or to
comply with applicable data privacy
laws, or of a breach in the security
of the Group’s or third-party service
providers’ networks, websites,
e-commerce shops or other
information technology systems.
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Any compromise of the security of the
Group’s or its service providers’ systems, or
a failure to protect customers’ confidential
information in accordance with applicable
privacy laws or otherwise to comply with
such laws, could result in damage to the
Company’s reputation and expose the
Group to business disruption or potential
legal liability, which could substantially harm
its business and results of operations.
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The Group has implemented fully redundant, high
availability hosted solutions for its core Enterprise
Resource Planning (‘ERP”) system.

The Group performs periodic penetration testing on
the Group’s systems and major e-commerce shops.

The Group has developed an information security
incident response plan and provides information
security training for employees.

It is the Company’s policy to satisfy applicable legal
requirements with respect to data protection and
privacy.

In the United States, the Group seeks to maintain
Payment Card Industry (“PCI”) compliance for its
U.S.-based businesses to protect certain sensitive
customer data such as credit card information. The
Group’s PCI compliance in the U.S. is periodically
validated by a third party. In other countries, credit
card information is not retained.
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Risk &k

Potential disruptions affecting

the Group’s company-owned
manufacturing facilities, distribution
centers or third-party logistics
providers.
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Impact $/£

Disruptions to the operations of the
Company’s manufacturing facilities,
distribution centers or third-party logistics
providers from natural disasters, adverse
weather conditions, work stoppages,
accidents or other events beyond the
Company’s control could result in inventory
shortages, delayed, incomplete, inaccurate
or lost deliveries, or damaged goods, which
could adversely affect the Company’s
reputation, net sales, profitability and cash
flow.
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Mitigation {5 & B (Y 15 ie

The Company maintains property insurance on all
company-owned as well as significant leased facilities
and carries business interruption insurance on the
majority of its business operations to help mitigate
losses from covered risks. Certain company-owned
distribution facilities employ physical protections

such as fire alarms and sprinkler systems, which are
evaluated and upgraded periodically based on the
advice of outside consultants.

The Company has developed, or is in the process of
developing, disaster recovery and business continuity
plans for its key company-owned manufacturing and
distribution facilities.
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The Company depends on retaining
existing members of management
and key employees, and recruiting
new employees, to implement its
strategies.
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If the Company is unable to retain its
management team or key employees, or to
attract appropriately qualified new personnel,
it could affect the Company’s ability to
implement its strategy successfully and

the Company’s profitability and financial
performance could be adversely affected.
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The Company maintains competitive compensation
programs, including short-term cash incentive
programs and long-term share-based and cash
incentive awards, that are designed to support
employee retention and recruitment. In addition, the
Company’s supportive culture, employee engagement
efforts and diversity and inclusion initiatives support
the Company’s efforts to retain key employees.
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Legal proceedings or regulatory
matters could adversely impact the
Group’s results of operations and
financial condition.
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The Group is subject from time to time

to various legal claims arising out of its
business operations. Additionally, the
Group may from time to time be subject to
changes in applicable laws or regulations in
the jurisdictions where the Group conducts
business operations. Such matters could
have an adverse impact on the Company’s
results of operations, or could expose the
Group to negative publicity, reputational
damage, harm to customer relationships, or
diversion of management resources.
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The Company’s business works with the Company’s
in-house legal department and outside legal
advisors, where appropriate, to identify significant
legal or regulatory risks and to develop strategies
(contractual, compliance or otherwise) to help
manage such risks.
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Effectiveness of Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board places great importance on risk management and internal

control and is responsible for ensuring that the Company maintains

sound and effective systems of risk management and internal control.

The Company’s internal audit department reviews the adequacy and

effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.

Each year the internal and external audit plans are discussed with,

and approved by, the Audit Committee.
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The Board has reviewed the overall effectiveness of the Company’s
systems of risk management and internal control for the year ended
December 31, 2021. The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee
responsibility for reviewing the Company’s systems of risk management
and internal control and reporting the committee’s findings to the
Board. In conducting such review, the Audit Committee, on behalf
of the Board, has (i) reviewed the Company’s internal audit activities
during the year and discussed such activities and the results thereof
with the Company’s Head of Internal Audit, (i) reviewed and discussed
the scope and results of the annual audit with the Company’s external
auditors, (iii) reviewed the results of management’s control self-
assessment process with management and the Company’s Head
of Internal Audit, (iv) reviewed the results of the Company’s risk
assessment with management and the Company’s Head of Internal
Audit, and (v) reviewed with management the results of the Company’s
internal management representation process that was performed in
connection with the preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial
statements. Based on its review, the Board confirms, and management
has also confirmed to the Board, that the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems are effective and adequate.

Communications with Shareholders and
Investor Relations

The Company strives to maintain a high level of transparency in
communications with shareholders and investors. The Company keeps
a constant dialog with the investment community through company
visits, conference calls, information sessions and participation in
major investor conferences to communicate the Company’s business
strategies, developments and goals.

The Company’s annual and interim reports, quarterly results
announcements, the current version of the Company’s Articles of
Incorporation, the Company’s stock exchange filings, video webcasts,
press releases and other information and updates on the Company’s
operations and financial performance are available for public access
on the Company’s website, https://corporate.samsonite.com,
and some of them are also available on the website of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend the Company’s
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) and other general meetings to
communicate their views and concerns to the Board directly so as to
ensure a high level of accountability and also to stay informed of the
Company’s strategies, developments and goals.

The 2022 AGM will be held on June 2, 2022. The notice of the AGM
will be sent to the shareholders at least 20 clear business days before
the AGM.
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Disclosure of Inside Information Policy

The Company has adopted a Disclosure of Inside Information Policy
that establishes the Company’s policy and procedures for reporting
and disseminating inside information. This policy sets out the
procedures and internal controls to ensure the timely disclosure of
information on the Group and the fulfillment of the Group’s continuous
disclosure obligations, including:

e the processes for identifying, assessing and escalating potential
inside information to the General Counsel and Joint Company
Secretary;

e restricting access to inside information to a limited number of
employees on a “need to know” basis;

e identifying members of senior management who are authorized to
release inside information; and

e requiring all directors, officers and employees of the Group to
observe the Disclosure of Inside Information Policy.

Shareholders Rights

Procedure for Shareholders to Convene a General Meeting
Pursuant to Article 13.10 of the Articles of Incorporation, any one or
more shareholder(s) who together hold not less than 5% of the issued
and paid-up shares of the Company that carry the right to vote at
general meetings may convene a general meeting by depositing a
written request signed by such shareholders and addressed to the
attention of the Company’s Joint Company Secretary at the registered
office of the Company in Luxembourg or at the Company’s office in
Hong Kong, the addresses of which are set out below.

Such request must specify the objectives of the meeting. If the Board
does not within two calendar days from the date of deposit of the
request proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within a
further 28 calendar days, the shareholders signing the request (or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all
shareholders signing the request) may convene the general meeting
in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings
may be convened by the Board. No general meeting convened by
request of the shareholders may be held later than three months after
the date of deposit of the request.

Procedure for Shareholders to Make Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may make enquiries to the Board in writing by sending
such enquiries to the attention of the Company’s Joint Company
Secretary at the registered office of the Company in Luxembourg or at
the Company’s office in Hong Kong, the addresses of which are set
out below. The Joint Company Secretary will forward enquiries to the
Chairman of the Board for consideration.

In addition, shareholders in attendance at any general meeting of
the Company’s shareholders may make enquiries at such meeting
to the Chairman of the Board, the chairmen of the various Board
committees, or to other directors in attendance at such meeting.
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Procedure for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

Pursuant to Article 13.11 of the Articles of Incorporation, upon a
written request by (i) one or more shareholder(s) representing not less
than 2.5% of the total voting rights of all shareholders who at the
date of such request have a right to vote at the meeting to which the
request relates, or (i) not less than 50 shareholders holding shares
in the Company on which there has been paid up an average sum,
per shareholder, of not less than HK$2,000, the Company shall,
at the expense of the shareholders making the request (a) give to
shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next annual general
meeting notice of any resolution which may be properly moved
and is intended to be moved at that meeting, and (b) circulate to
shareholders entitled to receive notice of any general meeting a
statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with
in the meeting.

Pursuant to Article 13.12 of the Articles of Incorporation, such request
must be signed by all the shareholders making the request (or two
or more copies between them containing the signatures of all the
shareholders making the request) and deposited at the registered
office of the Company in Luxembourg or at the Company’s office in
Hong Kong, the addresses of which are set out below.

Such request must be deposited (i) not less than six weeks before
the meeting in question in the case of a request proposing that a
resolution be adopted at the meeting, and (ii) not less than one week
before the meeting in the case of any request that does not propose
that a resolution be adopted at the meeting.

In addition, one or more shareholder(s) who together hold at least
10% of the Company’s issued and paid-up shares may request that
one or more additional items be put on the agenda of any general
meeting. Such request must be sent to the registered office of the
Company in Luxembourg, the address of which is set out below, by
registered mail not less than five days before the meeting.

Except pursuant to the procedures described above, a shareholder
may not make a motion at a general meeting.

Procedure for Election to the Office of Director upon
Shareholder Proposal

A shareholder who intends to propose a candidate for election to the
office of director of the Company shall provide the Company’s Joint
Company Secretary with a written notice reflecting its intention to
propose a person for election to the office of director of the Company.
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The notice shall be delivered by the shareholder at the registered
office of the Company in Luxembourg or at the Company’s office
in Hong Kong, the addresses of which are set out below, during a
period commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
convening notice of the meeting scheduled for such election and
ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such meeting.
Such notice must be delivered by a shareholder (not being the person
to be proposed) who is entitled to attend and vote at the meeting.
In addition, the candidate proposed for election shall deliver to the
Company’s Joint Company Secretary a signed written notice reflecting
his willingness to be elected as a director of the Company.

In accordance with Articles 8.1 and 8.5 of the Articles of Incorporation
of the Company, the appointment of the director will be made by way
of a general shareholders’ meeting of the Company and by ordinary
resolution adopted at a simple majority of the votes cast.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to one of the following addresses marked for the attention of
the Joint Company Secretary:

Registered Office in Luxembourg:
13-15 avenue de la Liberté,
L-1931 Luxembourg

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong:
25/F, Tower 2, The Gateway,

Harbour City, 25 Canton Road,

Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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General

The Board currently consists of eight directors, comprising one
Executive Director, one Non-Executive Director and six Independent
Non-Executive Directors.

In accordance with Code provision B.2.2 as set out in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules, every director, including those appointed for a
specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. Under Article 8.1 of the Articles of Incorporation of
the Company, the directors shall be elected by the shareholders at
a general meeting, and the term of office of a director shall be three
years, upon the expiry of which each shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, during the year ended December 31, 2021, Messrs.
Hamill and Griffith retired by rotation, and having been eligible, offered
themselves for re-election as directors at the 2021 Annual General
Meeting (“AGM”).
AGM by majority vote.

Each was re-elected to a three-year term at the

The terms of Messrs. Parker, Mclain and Etchells will expire at the
2022 AGM of the Company. Mr. Hamill has informed the Board that
he plans to retire from the Board with effect from the 2022 AGM of
the Company. Mr. MclLain also informed the Board that he plans not
to stand for re-election at the 2022 AGM of the Company. The terms
of Messrs. Gendreau and Korbas, and Ms. Yeh, will expire at the 2023
AGM of the Company. The term of Mr. Griffith will expire at the 2024
AGM of the Company.
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Directors BE

The Board is responsible and has general powers for the management E=E& B &N EA —RIEHEE LETARF
and conduct of the Company’s business. The following table sets out ~ AIZFS o TR F|HN2021F12 431 HERE
certain information concerning the directors as at December 31, 2021: FEHETER :

Position Date of Appointment, Tenure™ Principal Responsibilities®
B ZEBH - FHO FERSF
Timothy Charles Parker 66 Non-Executive Director and March 2011, 11 years Leading the Board and ensuring
Chairman 201143 A * 114 the Board functions effectively and
ENTEERER acts in the best interests of the
Company

FEEEE  UTHRREFFANE
e BRARRIRENEITE

Kyle Francis Gendreau 52 Executive Director and Chief ~ As Executive Director: Overall strategic planning and
Executive Officer March 2011, 11 years management of the Group’s
MITERFRITHAER As Chief Executive Officer: operations
May 2018 AEEXGMERRBRE RERE

BMITES 2011438 - 1146
BITRAEE  2018F5 A

Paul Kenneth Etchells 71 Independent Non-Executive May 2011, 11 years®
Director 2011458 * 1150
BUIEHTES
Jerome Squire Giriffith 64 Independent Non-Executive September 2016, 6 years
Director 2016598 ' 64
BUIENTES
Keith Hamill 69 Independent Non-Executive March 2011, 11 years®
Director 2011438 * 1150
BUIEHTES
Tom Korbas 71 Independent Non-Executive June 2014, 8 years®
Director 2014568 8@
BUIENTES
Bruce Hardy McLain (Hardy) 69 Independent Non-Executive March 2011, 11 years®
Director 2011438 * 1150
BIENTES
Ying Yeh 73 Independent Non-Executive ~ May 2011, 11 years®
=g Director 2011458 * 1150
BIENTES
Notes T
(1) Tenure is measured from the date of appointment as a director until the 2022 (1) FHEAEZTAEE 2 AL EARRF2022F KR HA
AGM of the Company and is rounded to the nearest whole year. FRGIE  WHBEREINEF -
(2) As is usual for a company of this size, the Non-Executive Director and Independent  (2) IZ1EF BN « LILEEBRM QA » FERITE S LIEL
Non-Executive Directors do not have specific operational responsibilities but FATEFUEBELERL  RMEENSEL
rather, with the benefit of their particular experiences, provide strategic guidance BREFMRAESSRERKIEERESE -

and leadership to the Board.
(3) Each of Messrs. Etchells, Hamill and McLain, and Ms. Yeh, have served for more  (3) Etchells%c 4 » Hamill%E 4 « MclLainft A& R E 24

than nine years as a director of the Company. As Independent Non-Executive EAARAQATESHNTHBIBOFE - HEEABIIE
Directors with an in-depth understanding of the Group’s operations and business, HTES  PEANEBHNELNES  25%—§
each of them has expressed objective views and provided valuable independent MAAFREREELTIEHEENET RS 5
guidance to the Company over the years and each of them continues to e~ b \\'iz T o
demonstrate a firm commitment to his/her role as an Independent Non-Executive EQEEE{g;gggi%gE;,&,ﬁ,tﬁi%;
Director. In view of this, the Board considers that the long service of each of these A AT ~ B SRS L

directors would not affect his/her exercise of independent judgment and he/she will B MEESEFERUEENRBERLES -
continue to contribute to the Board through his/her valuable business experience
and guidance.

(4) Mr. Korbas was re-designated from a Non-Executive Director to an Independent (4) 5\2021_?3)5117 Bt » KorbaskEAEHIFRITERR
Non-Executive Director effective March 17, 2021. ERBIFERTES -

%
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Executive Director

Mr. Kyle Francis Gendreau, aged 52, has served as an Executive
Director of the Company since its incorporation in March 2011 and as
an executive director of the consolidated group since January 2009.
He has served as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since
May 31, 2018 and is responsible for the Company’s overall strategic
planning and for managing the Group’s operations. Prior to his
appointment as Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Gendreau served as the
Company’s Chief Financial Officer from January 2009 until May 2018
and was actively involved in the development of the Group’s business
and in implementing the Company’s strategic plan, in addition to
managing all aspects of the Group’s finance and treasury matters. He
continued to serve as Interim Chief Financial Officer from May 2018
to November 2018. Mr. Gendreau joined the Group in June 2007 as
Vice President of Corporate Finance and as Assistant Treasurer. Prior
to joining the Group, he held various positions including vice president
of finance and chief financial officer at Zoots Corporation, a venture
capital-backed start-up company (2000 to 2007), assistant vice
president of finance and director of SEC reporting at Specialty Catalog
Corporation, a listed catalog retailer (1997 to 2000) and a manager
at Coopers & Lybrand in Boston (1991 to 1996). Mr. Gendreau holds
a BS in Business Administration from Stonehill College, Easton,
Massachusetts, USA (1991) and is a Certified Public Accountant in
Massachusetts.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Timothy Charles Parker, aged 66, has served as the
Chairman of the Board of Directors since the Company was
incorporated in March 2011. As Chairman, he is responsible for
leading the Board and ensuring that the Board functions effectively
and acts in the best interests of the Company. He served as non-
executive Chairman of the consolidated group from November
2008 until January 2009, as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the consolidated group from January 2009 through September
2014, and as non-executive Chairman since October 1, 2014. Mr.
Parker has a long history of managing large businesses. Prior to
joining the Company, he was chief executive of: The Automobile
Association (2004 to 2007), the car-repair firm Kwik-Fit (2002
to 2004), Clarks, the shoemaker (1997 to 2002) and Kenwood
Appliances (1989 to 1995). Mr. Parker is currently a director of
Archive Investments and is a member of the U.K. Advisors Board of
CVC Capital Partners. Mr. Parker has served as Chairman of Post
Office Limited since October 2015 and as Chairman of the Board
of HM Courts and Tribunals Service since April 2018. He served
as Chairman of the National Trust, a U.K. Charitable Organization,
from November 2014 until October 2021, and he has previously
held non-executive directorships with Alliance Boots, Compass and
Legal and General. Mr. Parker has also previously advised ministers
and senior civil servants on nationalized industry policy in his
capacity as an economist at the British Treasury (1977 to 1979).
Mr. Parker holds a MA in Philosophy, Politics and Economics from
the University of Oxford, Oxford, the United Kingdom (1977) and
a Master’s in Business Studies from London Graduate School of
Business Studies, London, the United Kingdom (1981).
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Paul Kenneth Etchells, aged 71, has served as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since May 2011. He has
served as an independent non-executive director of Swire Pacific
Limited, which is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, since May 2017, as a non-executive director
at ETAK International Limited since January 2017, as an advisor to
Cassia Investments Limited, a private equity firm, since November
2012 and as a non-executive director of Cassia Consumer Holdings
Limited since January 2020. Previously, he was an independent non-
executive director of Swire Properties Limited, a leading developer,
owner and operator of mixed use, principally commercial properties
in Hong Kong and the PRC, and of China Foods Limited, a company
engaged in food and beverage processing and distribution, both of
which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Mr. Etchells also served as a non-executive director
and chairman of Twenty20 Limited, a company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands which, through its subsidiary companies, is engaged
in the manufacture and sale of eyewear products. Mr. Etchells has
also held various positions at The Coca-Cola Company (1998 to
2010), including deputy president of Coca-Cola Pacific (2007 to 2010)
and president of Coca-Cola China (2002 to 2007). Prior to joining The
Coca-Cola Company, Mr. Etchells held various positions at the Swire
Group (1976 to 1998), including managing director of Swire Beverages
(1995 to 1998), general manager of the Industries Division of Swire
Pacific (1989 to 1995) and finance manager of the Industries Division
of Swire Pacific (1981 to 1989). Mr. Etchells holds a BA in Political
Studies from the University of Leeds, Leeds, the United Kingdom
(1971) and a MA in Asia Pacific Studies from the University of Leeds
(2013). He is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

Mr. Jerome Squire Griffith, aged 64, has served as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since March 2019, before
which he served as a Non-Executive Director from September 2016
until March 2019. Since March 2017, Mr. Griffith has served as the
Chief Executive Officer of Lands’ End, Inc., a multi-channel retailer
of clothing, accessories, footwear and home products that is listed
on NASDAQ. Mr. Griffith has served as a director of Lands’ End, Inc.
since January 2017. He has also served as a director of Vince Holding
Corp., a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange, since
November 2013. Mr. Griffith previously served as the Chief Executive
Officer, President and director of Tumi Holdings, Inc., a company
which was listed on the New York Stock Exchange, from April 2009
to August 2016 and served as the chairman of the supervisory board
of Tom Tailor Holding AG, a company listed on the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange, from June 2015 to May 2017. From 2002 to February
2009, he was employed at Esprit Holdings Limited, a global fashion
brand, where he was promoted to Chief Operating Officer and was
appointed to the board in 2004. He was then promoted to President
of Esprit North and South America in 2006. From 1999 to 2002, Mr.
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Griffith worked as an executive vice president at Tommy Hilfiger, an
apparel and retail company. From 1998 to 1999, Mr. Griffith worked as
the president of retail at the J. Peterman Company, a catalog-based
apparel and retail company. From 1989 through 1998, he worked in
various positions at Gap, Inc., a retailer of clothing, accessories, and
personal care products. Mr. Griffith previously served on the board
of Parsons School of Design (2013 to 2020). Mr. Griffith holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in marketing from the Pennsylvania State
University, State College, Pennsylvania, USA (1979).

Mr. Keith Hamill, aged 69, has served as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since June 2014, before which
he served as a Non-Executive Director from May 2011 until June
2014. He has served as a non-executive director of the consolidated
group from October 2009 until May 2011. Mr. Hamill has served
as a non-executive director and as non-executive chairman of
RBG Holdings plc, an English company listed on the London
Stock Exchange that provides legal and professional services and
litigation financing, since January 2020. Mr. Hamill is also currently
the chairman of Horsforth Holdings Ltd., a privately held investment
holding company for a number of leisure businesses (since 2009).
Mr. Hamill’s prior experience includes being chairman of British food
manufacturer Premier Foods plc (2017 to 2019), inter-dealer broker
Tullett Prebon plc (2006 to 2013), stockbroker Collins Stewart plc
(2000 to 2006) and software developer Alterian plc (2000 to 2011),
and an independent non-executive director of the distribution group
Electrocopments plc (1999 to 2008), Max Property Group plc (2010
to 2014) and the airline easydet plc (2009 to 2017), all of which
are or were listed on the London Stock Exchange. He was also an
independent non-executive director of NASDAQ-listed publisher and
printer Cadmus Communications Inc. (2002 to 2007). Mr. Hamill has
also chaired the board of a number of UK privately owned companies
which included Endell Group Holdings Limited (parent company of
Travelodge Hotels Limited) (2003 to 2012), insurance broker HGL
Holdings Limited (2005 to 2011) and construction business Avant
Homes Limited (2013 to 2014). He was chief financial officer of hotel
group Forte plc (1993 to 1996), retailer WH Smith plc (1996 to 2000)
and United Distillers International Limited (1990 to 1993), and director
of financial control at Guinness plc (1988 to 1991). Mr. Hamill was
a partner at PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (1986 to 1988). He was
also chairman of the board of the University of Nottingham, United
Kingdom. Mr. Hamill holds an Honorary Doctorate in Law from the
University of Nottingham and is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants, England and Wales.
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Mr. Tom Korbas, aged 71, has served as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since March 2021, before which
he served as a Non-Executive Director of the Company from April
2016 until March 2021 and as an Executive Director of the Company
from June 2014 until April 2016. Before his retirement, Mr. Korbas
served as the Company’s President, North America from 2014
until April 2016 and was responsible for the overall management
and development of the Group’s business in the United States and
Canada. Following his retirement in 2016, Mr. Korbas served as a
consultant to the Group’s North America business until December 31,
2018. Mr. Korbas joined the Company in 1997. His previous positions
with the Company include: President, Americas (2004 to 2014), Vice
President/General Manager of the Company’s U.S. wholesale business
(2000 to 2004), Vice President of Sales and Operations (1998 to
2000) and Senior Vice President of Soft-Side and Casual Bags (1997
to 1998). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Korbas was vice president
of operations (1986 to 1997), director of manufacturing operations,
and engineering manager for American Tourister. Mr. Korbas holds
a BS in Industrial Engineering from Northeastern University, Boston,
Massachusetts, USA (1973) and an MBA from Babson College,
Wellesley, Massachusetts, USA (1976).

Mr. Bruce Hardy McLain (Hardy), aged 69, has served as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since June
2014, before which he served as a Non-Executive Director from May
2011 until June 2014. He served as a non-executive director of the
consolidated group from October 2007 until May 2011. Mr. MclLain
is a co-founder, and serves on the board, of CVC Capital Partners
(formerly a subsidiary of Citigroup known as Citicorp Venture Capital),
from which he retired as managing partner in December 2012.
Mr. MclLain joined Citicorp Venture Capital in 1988, and in 1993
participated along with fellow managers in the acquisition of Citicorp
Venture Capital from Citigroup and the founding of CVC Capital
Partners. Since founding CVC Capital Partners he has been involved in
and held directorships with a number of companies including Formula
One (2013 to 2016), the Dorna Sports Group (1998 to 2006), Rapala
VMC OYJ (1998 to 2005), Punch Taverns Plc (formerly known as
Punch Group Limited) (1999 to 2002), Spirit Group Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Spirit Amber Holdings) (2003 to 2006), Kappa
Holding BV (1998 to 2000), Hayman Sports LLC (2013 to 2015),
Terressential Corp (2015 to 2016) and Lecta Group (2001 to 2019).
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He is currently a non-executive director of Everbright Ltd. and Mount
Street Group Limited. Prior to joining Citicorp Venture Capital, Mr.
Mclain worked for Citicorp’s investment management (1986 to 1987)
and mezzanine finance (1987 to 1988) groups. Mr. McLain holds a BA
in Public Policy and Psychology from Duke University, Durham, North
Carolina, USA, where he graduated in 1976, and an MBA in Finance
and Marketing from UCLA, Los Angeles, California, USA (1981). Mr.
McLain serves on the Board of Visitors of the Duke University Board
of Advisors. He previously served on the Board of Advisors for the
UCLA Anderson School of Management and the Board of Visitors for
the Sanford School of Public Policy at Duke University.

Ms. Ying Yeh, aged 73, has served as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since May 2011. Ms. Yeh has extensive
experience as an executive and a non-executive director of major
international corporations. She was the chairman of Nalco Greater
China Region until June 2011. Nalco is one of the world’s largest
sustainability service companies. Ms. Yeh was also a non-executive
director at ABB Ltd (a company listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange,
the stock exchanges in Stockholm (NASDAQ OMX Stockholm) and
the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE)). She was previously a non-
executive director of AB Volvo (a company listed on the OMX Nordic
Exchange, Stockholm) and InterContinental Hotels Group plc (a
company listed on the main board of the London Stock Exchange).
Prior to joining Nalco, Ms. Yeh worked in various Asian divisions of
Eastman Kodak (1997 to 2009) and also held various positions with
the United States Government, Foreign Service (1982 to 1997). Ms.
Yeh holds a BA in Literature and International Relations from National
Taiwan University, Taiwan (1967).

Changes in Information of Directors

A summary of changes in information concerning certain Directors
of the Company that are required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rules is as follows:

e Mr. Parker resigned as Chairman of the National Trust with effect
from October 2021.
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Senior Management

The Group’s senior management is responsible for the day-to-day
management of its business. The following table sets out certain
information concerning its senior management:

EREERE
FEENSREREEELLEBNAREEE
TRV EBESREEENSE TER

Name Age

o] FiR Position Bz

Kyle Francis Gendreau 52 Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer MATE R FRITHAER

Reza Taleghani 49 Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer THEIEE - SRRV EE
and Treasurer

Lynne Berard 50 President, North America MR A E

Andrew Dawson 52 President, Tumi North America Tumidb ZEM @ B

Paul Melkebeke 62 President, Asia Pacific and Middle East TARMHRRALR

Juan Roberto Guzméan Martinez 56 President, Latin America T EMNERE

(Roberto)

Fabio Rugarli 58 President, Europe B [ 42 &

Frank Ma 553w 2 59 President, Greater China AR EE R A E

John Bayard Livingston 54 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and TREIRH - BEEERFERERRNE
Joint Company Secretary

William Albert Morrison 63 Chief Information Officer ARt sags

Marjorie Whitlock (Marcie) 60 Senior Vice President, Global Human Resources ~ 2IRA N &R & B4

Mr. Reza Taleghani serves as the Company’s Executive Vice Reza TaleghaniE £ EAR R RIITHEI2

President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer, and is responsible for
the Group’s corporate finance, accounting, global investor relations,
external reporting, financial planning and analysis and treasury
functions, as well as mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Taleghani joined
the Group in November 2018. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Taleghani
acted as the president and chief financial officer of Brightstar Corp.,
where he was responsible for global financial operations as well as
managing the financial services and device protection lines of business
from 2015 to 2018. Prior to joining Brightstar Corp., Mr. Taleghani
worked at J.P. Morgan, where he held various leadership roles in
investment banking, commercial banking and asset management from
2009 to 2015. Beyond his banking experience, Mr. Taleghani also
served as the president and chief executive officer of Sterling Airlines
A/S in 2008. Mr. Taleghani holds a BA in Organizational Behavior
and Management from Brown University, Providence, Rhode Island,
USA (1994) and a J.D./M.B.A. from Villanova University, Villanova,
Pennsylvania, USA (1997).

Ms. Lynne Berard serves as the Company’s President, North
America, and is responsible for the overall management and
development of the Company’s business (excluding the Tumi brand)
in the United States and Canada. Ms. Berard was promoted to
her current role in April 2016. Before her promotion, she served as
General Manager and Vice President, Sales and Marketing for U.S.
Wholesale beginning in 2008, and as Vice President, Marketing (2002
to 2008) and Senior Director, Marketing (2000 to 2002). Prior to
2000, Ms. Berard served in several sales and marketing roles with the
Group’s U.S. business. She began her career in 1993 with American
Tourister, Inc., which was acquired by the Group in 1993. Ms. Berard
holds a BS in Business Management from Providence College,
Providence, Rhode Island, USA (1993).
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Mr. Andrew Dawson serves as the Company’s President, Tumi
North America, and is responsible for the overall management and
development of the Tumi brand’s business in North America. He also
has global oversight over the Tumi brand. Mr. Dawson re-joined the
Group in his current role in March 2021. From 2019 until March 2021
Mr. Dawson served as Chief Sales Officer of Lenox Corporation, a
leading American manufacturer of tableware, giftware and collectible
products. He previously served as Senior Vice President — DTC and
Wholesale, North America for the Tumi business from 2015 until 2019.
Mr. Dawson joined Tumi in 2010 as Vice President of Sales, North
America Wholesale, and was promoted to Senior Vice President, North
America Wholesale in 2015. Prior to joining Tumi, Mr. Dawson held
senior sales positions with several leading consumer brands including
Swarovski (2007 — 2010), Montblanc (2005 — 2007), Ferragamo (2002
— 2005), Gold Toe Brands (1998 — 2002) and Polo Ralph Lauren (1994
— 1998). Mr. Dawson holds a BS (1996) in Merchandising Management
and Marketing and an AS in Buying and Merchandising (1991) from the
Fashion Institute of Technology, New York, New York, USA.

Mr. Paul Melkebeke serves as the Company’s President, Asia
Pacific and Middle East and is responsible for the overall management
and development of the Company’s business in Asia. Mr. Melkebeke
was promoted to his current role effective January 2021. From 2017
until his promotion in January 2021 Mr. Melkebeke served as the
Company’s Chief Supply Officer. From 2004 until 2017 he served
as Vice President Sourcing and Supply for the Asia region. Mr.
Melkebeke served as the Group’s Director of Operations, International,
from 1997 to 2004. Before 2004 Mr. Melkebeke held a number of
positions primarily in the production and quality areas since he joined
the Group in 1983. Mr. Melkebeke holds a M. Eng. from the State
University Ghent, Belgium (1982) and an MBA — Master of Industrial
Engineering and Operations Research from the Vlerick School of
Management, Belgium (1987).

Mr. Juan Roberto Guzman Martinez (Roberto) serves as the
Company’s President, Latin America, and is responsible for the
overall management and development of the Company’s business in
Latin America. Mr. Guzman joined the Company in July 2007 when
the Group formed Samsonite Chile S.A. as a joint venture with Mr.
Guzman, following the acquisition by the Group of the Saxoline group
of companies from Mr. Guzman’'s family. He was promoted to his
current role in May 2014. From 2007 until his promotion in May 2014,
Mr. Guzman served as General Manager of Samsonite Chile S.A., and
he continues to be responsible for the management of the Group’s
business in Chile. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Guzman served in
various roles for the Saxoline group including general manager (1998
to 2007), deputy general manager (1996 to 1998), and finance and
administration manager (1989 to 1996). From 1988 to 1989 he worked
as operations manager for Salomon Brothers Chile. Mr. Guzman holds
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a degree in business engineering from Pontificia Universidad Catdlica
de Chile, Santiago, Chile. He also attended the Senior Executive
Program at the London Business School.

Mr. Fabio Rugarli serves as the Company’s President, Europe, and
is responsible for the overall management and development of the
Group’s business in Europe. Mr. Rugarli re-joined the Company in
his current role in May 2019. He previously served as the Company’s
President, Europe from 2009 through 2016. Mr. Rugarli joined the
Company in 1989. His previous positions with the Group include
General Manager for Samsonite ltaly (2002 to 2009) and Marketing
and Sales Director for the luggage division in Italy (1996 to 2001). Mr.
Rugarli holds a degree in Business Administration from the University
Bocconi, Milan, Italy (1988).

Mr. Frank Ma serves as the Company’s President, Greater China,
and is responsible for the overall management and development of the
Group’s business in mainland China and Taiwan. He was promoted
to his current role in January 2015. Mr. Ma was the Vice President of
Samsonite Greater China (2007 to 2015). His previous positions with
the Company include General Manager of Samsonite China (1999 to
2007) and Operations Manager of Samsonite China (1998). Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Ma held responsibilities in plant operations
and process design with CP Group, Cargill Corp. & Shandong
Chemical Design Institute. He holds a Master’s of Engineering from
Tianjin University, China (1988) and an MBA from Canberra University,
Australia (2004).

Mr. John Bayard Livingston is Executive Vice President, General
Counsel and Joint Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Livingston
is responsible for all of the Company’s legal matters worldwide
and provides counsel to senior management and the Directors on
matters of corporate governance. Mr. Livingston joined the Group
in July 2006 and was Vice President and General Counsel for the
Group’s Americas division until September 2009 when he became
Vice President and General Counsel of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Livingston was in-house counsel (2002 to 2006) at Reebok
International Ltd. and was an associate in the corporate department
of Ropes & Gray (1995 to 2002). Mr. Livingston holds a BA in Political
Science from Colgate University, Hamilton, New York, USA (1989),
and a JD from Boston College Law School, Newton, Massachusetts,
USA (1994).
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Mr. William Albert Morrison serves as the Company’s Chief
Information Officer and is responsible for developing, structuring and
implementing the Groups’ global information technology strategy and
outsourced Information Technology Shared Services. Mr. Morrison
was promoted to his current role in March 2020. He previously served
as the Group’s Vice President of Information Technology, North
America (2016 to 2020), Senior Director of Information Technology,
North America (2014 to 2016) and Director of Information Technology,
North America (2009 to 2014). Prior to joining the Group in 2009,
Mr. Morrison was the Chief Information Officer at Tweeter Home
Entertainment Group (2001 to 2008), Vice President of Information
Technology, Software Development at Bradlees Stores Inc., (1998
to 2001) and Chief Information Officer/Vice President at Hit or
Miss Stores (1983 to 1998). Mr. Morrison holds a BS Degree from
Bridgewater State College, Bridgewater, Massachusetts, USA (1980).

Ms. Marjorie Whitlock (Marcie) serves as the Company’s Senior
Vice President, Global Human Resources. Ms. Whitlock is responsible
for global management compensation planning, senior leadership
succession planning, hiring management talent and development of
training programs to support the growth of the Group’s direct-to-
consumer business. Ms. Whitlock was promoted to her current role
in July 2017. From 2008 until her promotion in 2017, Ms. Whitlock
served as senior vice president, human resources, for the Tumi
business. Before joining the Tumi business, Ms. Whitlock worked as
a regional manager for a number of fashion brands’ retail operations.
Ms. Whitlock holds a BA in Communication from the University of
Maryland, College Park Maryland, USA (1983).

Company Secretaries and Authorized
Representatives

Mr. John Bayard Livingston and Ms. Chow Yuk Yin Ivy (“Ms. Chow”)
are the joint company secretaries of the Company while Mr. Kyle
Francis Gendreau and Ms. Chow are the Company’s authorized
representatives (pursuant to the Listing Rules).

During 2021, the Joint Company Secretaries complied with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules regarding professional training.

Relationships between Directors and Senior
Managers

None of the directors or senior managers is related to any other
director or senior manager.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their Annual Report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for
the year ended December 31, 2021.

All references herein to other sections or reports in this Annual Report
form part of this Directors’ Report.

Business Review

Principal Activities

Samsonite International S.A. (the “Company”), together with its
consolidated subsidiaries (the “Group”), is principally engaged in the
design, manufacture, sourcing and distribution of luggage, business
and computer bags, outdoor and casual bags and travel accessories
throughout the world, primarily under the Samsonite®, Tumi®,
American Tourister®, Gregory®, High Sierra®, Kamiliant®, ebags®,
Lipault® and Hartmann® brand names as well as other owned and
licensed brand names.

Before 2012, the Group’s business was primarily centered on the
Samsonite brand, focused largely on travel luggage, and distributed
principally through the wholesale channel. Over the last decade, the
Group has strategically diversified its business in order to reduce
its reliance on any single brand, market, channel of distribution or
product category, and in line with the goal of not just building a
bigger business, but a stronger one as well. Today, the Group has
a more balanced business, built around a portfolio of diverse yet
complementary brands and offering its customers a competitive mix
of products sold through multiple distribution channels. The Company
believes this diversification considerably strengthens its resilience and
provides a platform for sustained growth.

The Group sells its products through a variety of wholesale distribution
channels, through its company-operated retail stores and through
e-commerce. The principal wholesale distribution customers of the
Group are department and specialty retail stores, mass merchants,
warehouse clubs and e-retailers. The Group sells its products in North
America, Asia, Europe and Latin America.

Strategy

Details of the Company’s strategy for the year ended December 31,
2021 are set out in The Company’s Strategy section on page 3 of this
Annual Report.

Financial Results of Operations and Financial Condition
Details of the Group’s financial results of operations and financial
condition as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021 are set out
in the Management Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) section on pages
26 to 97 of this Annual Report. Reconciliations for any referenced non-
IFRS measures are also presented within the MD&A section.
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Financial Results and Financial Highlights

The Group’s financial results and financial highlights as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2021 are set out in the Summary Financial
Results and Financial Highlights sections on pages 7 to 13 of this
Annual Report.

Investment in Advertising and Promotion

The Group spent US$82.3 million on marketing during the year ended
December 31, 2021 compared to US$73.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2020, an increase of US$9.1 million, or 12.4%. As a
percentage of net sales, marketing expenses decreased by 70 basis
points to 4.1% for the year ended December 31, 2021 from 4.8%
for the year ended December 31, 2020. Marketing expenses for the
year ended December 31, 2021 decreased by 56.6% compared to
the year ended December 31, 2019, and as a percentage of net
sales decreased by 110 basis points from 5.2% for the year ended
December 31, 2019. The Group has continued to tightly manage its
marketing expenses in an effort to help conserve cash and to mitigate
the effects of the COVID-19 Impacts on the Group’s profitability.

Introduction of New and Innovative Products to the Market

The Group continued to focus on innovation and ensuring that its
products reflect local consumer tastes in each region. Innovation and a
regional focus on product development are key drivers of sales growth
and are the means to deliver quality and value to the Group’s customers.

Future Prospects
The Group’s medium to long-term growth strategy will continue as
planned, with a focus on the following:

e Ensure the Company’s well-diversified family of brands attracts
consumers at all price points in both the travel and non-travel
luggage, bag and accessories categories.

¢ Increase the proportion of net sales from the Company’s direct-to-
consumer e-commerce channel.

e Focused investment in marketing to support the Company’s
brands and initiatives.

e Continue to leverage the Company’s regional management
structure, distribution expertise and marketing engine to extend
its brands into new markets and penetrate deeper into existing
channels.

e Continue to invest in research and development to develop lighter
and stronger new materials, advanced manufacturing processes,
exciting new designs and sustainable collections, as well as
innovative functionalities that deliver real benefits to consumers.

e Continue to incorporate the Company’s ESG philosophy into its
core business practices through “Our Responsible Journey” to
lead the industry in sustainability and treat all stakeholders with
fairness and respect in line with the Company’s long-standing
guiding principle, “Do unto others as you would have them do
unto you.”
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The Company aims to increase shareholder value through sustainable

revenue and earnings growth and free cash flow generation.

Near-term Focus:

130

Ensuring the safety and well-being of the Group’s employees,
customers and partners continues to be a top priority of the
Company.

Executing on the Group’s plan to ensure the recovery of its
business proceeds in the most cost-effective, safe and efficient
way to ensure the Company emerges strongly with an improving
profit margin profile while growing its market share as travel
continues to recover.

The Group will remain focused on improving and maintaining its
gross margins through (i) reduced discounting and promotional
activity; (i) price increases to mitigate increased product costs,
duties, and freight; and (i) working closely with its suppliers to
manage these increasing cost pressures.

The Group has taken significant actions to preserve cash and
reduce its fixed cost base, and will remain disciplined in managing
its expenses, including its fixed selling, general and administrative
expenses, to maintain this lower cost structure.

As the impacts of COVID-19 recede and the Group’s sales
continue to recover, the Group will look to make selective
investments in core strategic functions going forward when
opportunities arise.

The Group intends to increase its investment in marketing spend
in 2022 to drive growth in brand awareness and to capitalize on
the continued recovery in travel.

The Group will look to prudently and strategically increase
investment in capital expenditures and software to drive future
long-term and sustainable growth.

The Group is investing more into its working capital, primarily
inventory, to support the ongoing recovery in the demand for its
products, but stock replenishments may be slightly delayed due to
the continuing shipping delays and port congestion.

The Group believes that its leading brands, coupled with the best
teams in the industry and its ongoing commitment to sustainability
and innovation, will help strengthen its long-term market position
as travel returns to pre-COVID-19 levels.

With significant liquidity of US$1.5 billion at December 31,
2021, the Group is in a strong position not only to navigate the
business through the ongoing effects of COVID-19 and increased
geopolitical tensions, but also to invest for long-term growth and
success.
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Industry

Impact of COVID-19

Beginning in 2020 and through 2021, the COVID-19 pandemic
caused a global health emergency and significant disruptions to
travel, tourism and economies worldwide. The impacts of COVID-19
on global revenues generated from sales of bags and luggage were
significant. Certain government-mandated restrictions and lockdowns
resulted in temporary closures of certain retail stores in which the
Company’s products were sold, quarantines and social-distancing
required or recommended by governments, and significant reductions
in travel and discretionary spending among consumers, which led to
reduced demand for many of the Group’s products. During the year
ended December 31, 2021 the Group experienced improved sales
trends as the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on demand for the
Group’s products moderated as a result of the rollout of vaccines,
the continuing recovery in travel and governments in many countries
loosening social-distancing, travel and other restrictions.

Below is a discussion of potential growth patterns relating to the bags
and luggage industry, projected travel and tourism forecasts® @ and
top consumer trends® for companies to focus on during 2022.

In this industry update, certain comparisons for the year ended
December 31, 2021 are compared to both the year ended December
31, 2020 and the year ended December 31, 2019. Comparisons to
the year ended December 31, 2019 are provided because it is the
most recently ended comparable period during which the bag and
luggage industry was not affected by COVID-19. During the year
ended December 31, 2020, the impacts of COVID-19 had a significant
effect on the bag and luggage industry.

Products!

In 2021, worldwide sales of bags and luggage® were estimated at
US$137.2 billion compared to US$123.4 billion in 2020 and US$154.8
billion in 2019; this positive trend in 2021 compared to 2020
was primarily as a result of the rollout of vaccines, the continuing
recovery in travel and governments in many countries loosening
social-distancing, travel and other restrictions. Global luggage sales
increased to US$15.3 billion in 2021 from US$13.5 billion in 2020.
Global demand for backpacks and business bags also showed signs
of growth with net sales for 2021 increasing to US$15.3 billion and
US$8.2 billion, respectively, from US$13.9 billion and US$7.5 billion,
respectively, in 2020.

Compared to the year ended December 31, 2019, global luggage
sales continued to be negatively impacted by COVID-19, with 2021
net sales coming in approximately US$6.6 billion lower than 2019
global luggage net sales of US$21.9 billion. Worldwide demand for
backpacks and business bags was also lower, with 2021 backpack
net sales being approximately US$2.2 billion lower than 2019, and
2021 business bags net sales at approximately US$1.2 billion lower
than 2019.
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While it is anticipated that sales of bags and luggage products will
continue to recover from the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic
during 2022, the timing and pace of the recovery remain uncertain.
Global sales of bags and luggage products are expected to grow by a
compound annual growth rate (“CAGR”) of approximately 8.5% from
2022 to 2026, with global luggage product sales, backpack product
sales and business bags product sales forecasted to grow by CAGRs
of approximately 12.0%, 8.2% and 7.1%, respectively.

When comparing to the year ended December 31, 2019, global
sales of bags and luggage, luggage (excluding bags), backpacks and
business bags are forecasted to grow by CAGRs of approximately
4.2%, 3.0%, 3.8% and 3.0%, respectively.

Travel and Tourism(@) @, (4]

The UNWTO (as defined below) stated that at the end of 2021, global
passenger arrivals were estimated to have increased by 4.0%, to
415.0 million arrivals, compared to 400.0 million global passenger
arrivals during 2020. Global passenger arrivals during 2021 continued
to be an estimated 72.0% lower than the pre-pandemic year of
2019, when there were approximately 1.5 billion global passenger
arrivals. The 4.0% year over year increase in global passenger arrivals
was attributable to rising rates of vaccination and easing of travel
restrictions due to increased cross-border coordination and protocols,
all of which have all helped to release pent-up demand. However, the
pace of recovery remains slow and uneven across the world due to
varying degrees of mobility restrictions, vaccination rates and traveler
confidence.

In its air travel forecast published in January 2022, Bain & Company
stated that global commercial air travel demand at the end of 2021
was approximately 50% relative to 2019 demand. Bain & Company
further predicts that global air travel demand could recover to 84%
of 2019 levels by the end of 2022. A rapid and more widespread
vaccination rollout, followed by a major lifting of travel restrictions, and
more coordination and clearer information on travel protocols, are the
main factors identified by experts for the effective recovery of global
commercial air travel demand.

While international tourism begins to rebound, domestic tourism
continues to drive the recovery in an increasing number of
destinations, particularly those with large domestic markets.
According to UNWTO experts, domestic tourism and travel close to
home, as well as open-air activities, nature-based products and rural
tourism are among the major travel trends that will continue shaping
tourism in 2022.

132 Samsonite International S.A. /Annual Report 2021 /

BETEHR 2022 FHR - MBERITZHER
MEEERE2019BRRSRENTEFRF
BiEE RERNHERENERMN2H - &
ET2022F E20264F + 2B RITFME D
RHEEB RS NMEBEATFRER ([EE
FRRX])ERE MERTZHER B8
EmkEBEEMNIEEEETED IR
12.0% * 8.2% M7 A%MESFEEREE -

BEZE2019F12A31BIEEEMES AL
1M 128 (TRESEE) BEREKE
B2 IRIHE TR B D RlE44.2%  3.0% -
3.8%K3.0%MEAFBRTIER

MBS R B R B 14

A B RREFAS (FEEOTX)ERTR R
20216 R » 2HEABIRE M B2020F 1418
ANRIBIN4A.0%E4 15 AR - 2021 FH 2K
AR ARG 20195 RER—F)
T#£72.0% * M2019F M 2 HEBIRE L A15
BAK - REEBREANIZFERA4.0%TH
REEEBER EF - AR E SN 5 3 &5
BB ERERS - ZEEZHENERE
BREFE S o A ARSHITEIRS BB
BERKEELEFEER  WEKRSHHE
BLRANAEIET— -

BERQRR2022F 1 A8 HmIMEIREEETE
BIY B R RIR 2021 G R H 2 B E M 28 ik
R FAAER2019F M HI50% « B B AR)#E—
TER - B ZE 2022 F KA 2 B 2= iR 92T Sk ek
GIRIBE2019FKFR84% - FEEEIRR L
K~ BE1R KU ARRR MR BERR Bl - LA R A5 B IR 97 13
FMEEEABARBPRE - DHERRE AR
BEHEBMERERERKNEERE -

RERREXRBERZER  BRSEHEEREN
RESHURESZ (LEREEREABATS
BT ) o BEE S B RIREABERE
MRS R R - AR PINER - BB
B A E B S B S i3 A B 4T #2022 FF BV Bk



Top Global Consumer Trends for 20226
The points below focus on some of the top global consumer trends for
2022, and will be key in recovery following the COVID-19 pandemic.

e The Great Life Refresh — The pandemic triggered consumers to
make The Great Life Refresh, resulting in drastic personal changes
and a collective reboot of values, lifestyles and goals. Businesses
should innovate goods, services and experiences that respond to
this once-in-a-generation moment, coupled with marketing that
acknowledges and embraces the upheaval.

e Climate Changers — Green activism and low-carbon lifestyles are
here to stay. Consumers expect brands to step up and are taking
action through the products they purchase as concerns over
the climate emergency escalate. To win over Climate Changers,
companies should offer products that are carbon footprint
certified. Transparent labelling of carbon-neutral products builds
trust and enables consumers to make informed choices.

e Backup Planners — Faced with challenges in securing their usual
or desired products and services, Backup Planners are looking
for ways to purchase similar items or finding creative solutions to
obtain alternatives. Supply chain shortages are forcing businesses
to pivot and provide new solutions for customers to access
products and services.

e Rural Urbanites — Suburban and rural communities offer more
spacious housing and greener scenery, luring consumers out
of the metropolitan area. City dwellers also want these benefits
brought into their neighborhoods. Businesses that strengthen
e-commerce distribution, expand sustainable product lines and
cater to Rural Urbanites will emerge as winners.

e The Metaverse Movement — The digital world is evolving beyond
virtual hangouts to immersive 3D realities. Consumers are
embracing these digital spaces to socialize with communities.
Brands at the center of The Metaverse Movement can build equity.
These immersive environments can drive e-commerce and virtual
product sales as access expands.

The Group’s management pays close attention to travel and tourism
forecasts in order to ensure that the Company’s regions, channels
and product categories are well positioned for sales and profit growth,
and industry leadership. The Group is also fully aware of the top
consumer trends that will shape the bags and luggage industry, and
is committed to ensure that its multi-brand, multi-category and multi-
channel strategies continue to be successfully aligned with these
trends.
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Notes

(1) Source: Euromonitor International, Personal Accessories 2021 edition, Market
sizes — historical sales and sales forecasts, USD million, year-on-year exchange
rates, current prices, year-base 2021.

(2) Source: United Nations World Tourism Organization (“UNWTQO”) World Tourism
Barometer, January 2022.

(8) Source: UNWTO World Tourism Barometer, January 2020.

(4) Source: Bain & Company: Air Travel Forecast: When Will Airlines Recover from
COVID-19?, January 2022.

(5) Source: Euromonitor International: Top 10 Global Consumer Trends 2022,
January 2022.

(6) Bags and luggage, as defined by Euromonitor, includes handbags, backpacks,
business bags, crossbody bags, duffel bags and cases which serve common
everyday purposes or specific functions during travel, sports or formal occasions.
Sports equipment bags, such as golf, tennis and bowling, insulated food and
beverage bags and musical instrument cases are excluded.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentage of the Company’s purchases that were attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers was less than 30% during the year
ended December 31, 2021.

The percentage of the Company’s net sales that were attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers was less than 30% during the year
ended December 31, 2021.

To the knowledge of the directors, none of the directors, their
associates, or any shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company) had a beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers
and customers.

Major Locations and Principal Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, percentage
ownership and significant non-controlling interests as of December 31,
2021 are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

Intellectual Property

The Group is the registered owner of the Samsonite, Tumi, American
Tourister, Hartmann, High Sierra, Gregory, Lipault, Kamiliant, ebags
and Rolling Luggage trademarks as well as certain other local brands
and trademarks. The Group’s Samsonite, Tumi and American Tourister
trademark registrations in its principal geographic markets are of
material importance to its business. The trademark registrations in the
United States and elsewhere will remain in existence for as long as the
Group continues to use and renew the trademarks on a timely basis.
The Group registers its main brand trademarks (Samsonite, Tumi and
American Tourister) widely throughout the world and in particular in
countries where products are sold or manufactured. The Group also
registers its sub-brands (such as Samsonite Red, Samsonite Black
Label and Xtrem) as well as key product lines and feature names (such
as Cosmolite, Silhouette and Smartfix).
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The Group seeks patent protection where appropriate for inventions
embodied in its products and design protection for a number of its
unique designs. New, potentially patentable ideas from its research
and development teams are subjected to patentability and non-
infringement analyses before a decision is made to pursue a patent.
Emphasis on innovation is a significant component of the Group’s
competitive strategy in applicable portions of its business, particularly
with respect to hard-side luggage products and luggage product
features. Patents, pending patent applications and design registrations
cover features, designs and processes in various of the Group’s
product lines.

The Group’s anti-counterfeiting activities include liaising with customs
officials and other enforcement agencies to monitor, identify and take
action against counterfeit goods, monitoring factories in China where
many counterfeits originate and monitoring online marketplaces, social
media and websites. From time to time, third parties have sought to
imitate the Group’s patented or design-protected products or to trade
off the reputation of its brands. The Group aggressively takes action to
enforce its intellectual property rights against third-party infringers by
sending “cease and desist” letters, filing opposition and cancellation
proceedings, and, if necessary, bringing civil suits or pursuing criminal
action against the infringing party. The Group identifies infringers
through its business teams in the various regions who are in the
marketplace evaluating third-party activity; through trademark watch
services; through professional investigators; and through customs
officials who work with the Group to detain potentially infringing
product at border locations. The Group respects valid third-party
intellectual property rights, but will vigorously defend itself against any
inappropriate third-party claims. During the year ended December 31,
2021, while the Group has taken infringement actions and defended
against infringement allegations, no infringement of the Group’s
patents or trademarks, and no allegations of infringement claimed
against the Group, had a material adverse effect on the business or
reputation of the Group.

Competition

Competition in the luggage industry tends to vary across different
parts of the world and is highly fragmented. The Group has significant
regional competitors in each of its markets (North America, Asia,
Europe and Latin America). However, the Group is one of the few
companies in its industry that operates on a global scale.

Throughout its regional markets, the Group competes based on
brand name recognition, reputation for product quality, product
differentiation, new product innovation, customer service, high quality
consumer advertising campaigns and quality to price comparisons.
The Group is well established in the distribution channels critical to
luggage distribution. The Group also invests in marketing campaigns
in order to enhance consumer awareness of the Company’s brands
and drive sales growth.
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The manufacture of soft-side luggage is labor intensive but not capital
intensive. As a result, barriers to entry by competitors in this market
have historically been relatively low. In recent years the demand for
hard-side luggage has significantly outpaced the demand for soft-side
luggage. This has resulted in a reduction in the number of factories
and skilled laborers producing soft-side luggage, which could
result in capacity constraints for prospective new market entrants.
Nonetheless, the soft-side luggage market remains fragmented and
competitive.

While the manufacture of hard-side luggage is more capital intensive
and there have historically been relatively fewer finished goods
vendors, the significant increase in demand for hard-side luggage
has resulted in an increase in hard-side manufacturing capacity. This
has made it relatively easier for new competitors to enter the hard-
side luggage market. The Group has several significant competitors
worldwide, as well as a number of regional competitors, in the hard-
side luggage market.

Legal and Regulatory Matters

Regulatory Compliance

The Group operates in the consumer products wholesale and direct-
to-consumer business, a business generally characterized by lighter
regulations than more manufacturing-intensive businesses. The Group
is required to secure licenses and permits to operate its owned
manufacturing facilities in Belgium, Hungary and India, and its office
in Ningbo, China. The Group’s in-house legal department provides
oversight and coordination of compliance with the rules, regulations
and laws to which it is subject, both at the corporate level as well as
at the regional level.

The Company believes that all members of the Group have obtained
and currently maintain all necessary permits and licenses which are
material to the Group’s production and sales activities, and that
the Group is in compliance in all material respects with the rules,
regulations and laws to which its business is subject. The Group did
not experience any material labor disputes during the year ended
December 31, 2021 and the Group believes it is in compliance in all
material respects with the labor laws of the jurisdictions in which it
operates.

Competition Regulations

The Group, like all large companies, is subject to various competition
laws and rules, including laws and rules on merger control, restrictive
agreements and abuse of dominance or monopolization. The Group
works to ensure that it complies fully with these laws and regulations. If
the Group was to be deemed to have a dominant position in a particular
market segment, and was deemed to have abused that dominant
position, it could be subject to regulatory action. In addition, if the Group
was to pursue certain acquisitions of businesses it may be subject to
competition regulations depending on the degree to which the business
is a competitor in the markets in which the Group operates.
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Anti-Corruption

As a global company the Group is subject to anti-corruption laws in
many of the countries in which it operates, including the U.S. Foreign
Corrupt Practices Act, the UK Bribery Act and other applicable laws.
In general, these laws prohibit requesting, accepting, giving or offering
anything of value to or from anyone to reward improper performance
of an official duty or to obtain an unfair business advantage.

The Company has adopted a Global Anti-Corruption Compliance
Policy that requires all of the Company’s directors, officers,
employees, agents and representatives to comply with all applicable
anti-corruption laws. The policy, which has been distributed to
personnel worldwide, provides guidance on how to ensure compliance
under various scenarios that may be encountered. In addition, training
on compliance with anti-corruption laws is provided periodically to
appropriate personnel.

The Company’s legal department provides guidance on compliance
with the Global Anti-Corruption Compliance Policy and applicable
laws, and the Company’s internal audit department, as part of its
routine internal audit activities, helps to assess compliance with the
policy. In addition, management in each of the Company’s regions
certifies compliance with the policy as part of the Company’s internal
management representation process that is completed in connection
with the periodic publication of consolidated financial statements. The
Company is not aware of any material violations of applicable anti-
corruption laws during the year ended December 31, 2021, nor is it
aware that it has been subject to any investigation by any governmental
authority of any alleged or suspected violation of such laws.

Environmental Protection

The Group’s operations throughout the world are subject to
national, state and local environmental laws and regulations. These
environmental laws and regulations govern the generation, storage,
transportation and emission of various substances. With respect
to emissions, the Company’s policy is to comply with relevant laws
and regulations in regards to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and the generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste. The Company tracks and monitors energy
consumption and emissions (air and greenhouse gases), discharges
into water and land, and waste (hazardous and non-hazardous,
as defined by local laws) at each of its owned and operated
manufacturing facilities. Energy consumption is also monitored at
distribution centers, regional offices, and retail stores. In 2021, the
Company had no known material instances of non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations in regard to emissions. With respect to
the use of resources, the Company’s policy is to comply with relevant
laws and regulations in regards to the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water, and other raw materials. Furthermore, the
Company continuously aims to implement energy use and water
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efficiency initiatives. The Company monitors its use of resources mostly
through its reporting to the national, regional, and local governments
where it maintains owned and operated manufacturing facilities and
where such reporting is required. The Company believes that the Group
was in compliance in all material respects with the environmental laws
and regulations to which its business is subject in 2021.

From time to time the Group has incurred, or accrued for, cleanup
or settlement costs for environmental cleanup matters associated, or
alleged to have been associated, with its historic operations. In 2021,
such expenses did not have a material effect upon the Group’s cash
flow or financial position. Unknown, undiscovered or unanticipated
situations or events may require the Group to increase the amount it
has accrued for any environmental matters.

Regulation of Materials

REACH

The Group’s operations in Europe are subject to the hazardous
materials regulations known as REACH (Registration, Evaluation,
Authorization and Restriction of Chemical substances), the European
Union regulation on chemicals and their safe use. The Group is
required to gather information on the chemical substances used both
in its own production and in imported goods, and to communicate
to the Group’s customers if hazardous substances on the list of
Substances of Very High Concern (“SVHC”) are used in its products.
If the Group uses more than one ton of a substance on the list of
SVHC, and if this substance has not been registered for the particular
use it is making of such substance, the Group is required to notify the
European Chemicals Agency (‘ECHA”). The Group does not believe it
is currently required to notify the ECHA of any substance it uses.
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Proposition 65
Proposition 65 is a California hazardous material regulation that

provides a list of chemicals that, if included in products, must either
be included in safe amounts, or the products must be labeled,
disclosing to the consumer that the product contains a substance
determined by the State of California to be potentially harmful. Similar
to REACH, this list of chemicals includes phthalates. Proposition 65 is
enforced through civil litigation in the State of California.

Data Privacy and Security

The Group depends on digital technologies for the successful
operation of its business, including without limitation in connection
with corporate email communications to and from employees,
customers and vendors, systems utilized in connection with the
design, manufacture and distribution of the Group’s products, digital
marketing efforts, collection and retention of customer data and
employee information, the processing of credit card transactions,
online e-commerce activities and interaction with the public through
social media. Such activities often require the secure storage and
transmission of personal or confidential information. This information
is increasingly subject to legislation and regulations in numerous
jurisdictions globally, which are typically intended to protect the
privacy and security of personal information, such as the General
Data Protection Regulation (Regulation (EU) 2016/679) enacted by
the European Union, the California Consumer Privacy Act enacted
by the State of California in the U.S., and the Brazilian General Data
Protection Law (LGPD).

Sustainability

The Company’s Global Head of Sustainability leads the Company’s
sustainability initiatives, which engage with the Company’s key
stakeholders including consumers, investors, employees and the
communities in which the Group operates. The Global Head of
Sustainability reports directly to the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer, who is actively engaged in setting the direction and
ambition of the Company’s sustainability efforts. The Global Head of
Sustainability works with a Global Sustainability Council comprised
of leaders representing the Group’s regions, key brands and
key functions to drive accountability and ensure alignment of the
Company’s sustainability efforts. The Board of Directors oversees the
Company’s management of ESG issues.

In 2020, the Company launched “Our Responsible Journey”, a global
strategy and commitment to lead the industry in sustainability. “Our
Responsible Journey” focuses on four areas most material to the
Company’s business as identified through a comprehensive materiality
assessment conducted with a third party, which include:
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e |nnovative Products: The Company is committed to designing
durable products and increasing the use of more sustainable
materials, decreasing the burden on landfills.

e Carbon Action: The Company is working to minimize the impact of
its owned and operated facilities by reducing its carbon intensity
with the goal of becoming carbon neutral by 2025. The Company
will also work with suppliers to help them reduce their carbon
footprint.

e Thriving Supply Chain: The Company cares for the people and
communities around the world where it operates and works with
suppliers to help ensure that its partners act fairly and responsibly.
In addition, the Company’s social compliance program is focused
on protecting human rights in its supply chain.

e People Focused: Recognizing that its people are among its
greatest assets, the Company is focused on ensuring all
employees have access to development opportunities, has a
goal to achieve gender balance in key roles, and is committed to
supporting its people and communities where they live and work.

The Company takes product responsibility seriously in all its operations
and has comprehensive approaches to customer service, data production
and privacy, intellectual property, product quality, and product testing.
During 2021 the Company published its 2020 Environmental, Social and
Governance (ESG) Report, which highlights the policies and practices
through which the Company seeks to responsibly manage its business
worldwide. The Company will publish on the Company’s website and
on the website of the Stock Exchange its 2021 ESG report within five
months after the end of the financial year.

Economic Conditions

Details of potential economic conditions that could impact the
Group’s results of operations and financial condition are disclosed
within the Risk Management and Internal Control section of the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 107 to 113 of this Annual
Report. A discussion about the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on
the Group’s results of operations and financial condition is disclosed
in the Management Discussion and Analysis — Impact of COVID-19
section on pages 29 to 32 of this Annual Report.

Human Resources and Remuneration

As of December 31, 2021, the Group had a full-time equivalent
headcount of approximately 9,100 worldwide. The Group regularly
reviews remuneration and benefits of its employees according to the
relevant market practice, employee performance and the financial
performance of the Group.

The Group is committed to helping its employees develop the knowledge,
skills and abilities needed for continued success, and encourages
professional development throughout each employee’s career.

140 Samsonite International S.A. /Annual Report 2021 /

o EMAIF : ARARBMNORREAMAE
f o WA R AHEENYE - AT
AR ERBYE o

o WRITH  ARBEBREEGKEE IABL N
MEBEMEEREHARENTE - BIF
R2025F KA — K FERRF] » ARRTR
WA ER A VE - BV EUR IR B I -

e HMEREIER: ARRAMIHEEZKSE
ERLEmAERMARNEE - WEHKER
BEABRESIEEHFUAFAREEN
FHITHE - WA ARRNEEEEFE
ARIEHERE TS RN AREE -

o UARKEK : ARA—HBREATRREER
MEE UFINEREZEBRERBDEES
EtkEe BEREREEIERMCLERMER
T RARBEORBEINRESFEER
TERMRAR T8 ©

RARREEBHBYRABEREMER - I
2HEEEFPRY  BEBEARBRLE - MH3E
- EREEREDRAG - BR2021F - KAF]
Tl H2020FRE - B RERARE - 5
AARRARBBBEEBRRRER  BONBEFT
FAEBERERER o AR BRI BFE
KR e TR A RTE AR B A8 B B 2 BT AR kT
BE2021FRE - HEREAWME -

BEAR R

BT ERNEELE XERMBRRENX
FENBEEERAFEERAFREI0TE
M3BEEEARENABREE KRS
—HiPHEE - BE019BRFESREHAER
KEEERMBIRAN R EN RN AR FRE29
Z3E[ERENREDNT —2019BREZE
TERIF 2 | — B IHEE -

ADEIRREHEM

20216 12A31 8 KEBREHRERL
9,100 2WETL - AEETFHRBEFM@MT S
Ef - BERBERAEEV KRR HRNERE
N RER -

AEEH B EESERREGHERIAT
MR - RRENRBES X EBIREE 2 EBE
EEERER -



Share Award Scheme

On September 14, 2012, the Company’s shareholders adopted the
Company’s Share Award Scheme (as amended from time to time),
which will remain in effect until September 13, 2022. The purpose
of the Share Award Scheme is to attract skilled and experienced
personnel, to incentivize them to remain with the Group and to
motivate them to strive for the future development and expansion of
the Group by providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity
interests in the Company. Awards under the Share Award Scheme
may take the form of either share options or restricted share units
(“RSUs”), which may be granted at the discretion of the Remuneration
Committee to executive directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,
managers employed or engaged by the Group, and/or employees of
the Group.

As of February 28, 2022 (the “Latest Practicable Date”), the maximum
aggregate number of shares in respect of which awards may
be granted pursuant to the Share Award Scheme is 20,591,981
shares, representing approximately 1.4% of the issued share capital
of the Company at that date. An individual participant may be
granted awards pursuant to the Share Award Scheme in respect
of a maximum of 1% of the Company’s total issued shares in any
12-month period. Any grant of awards to an individual participant in
excess of this limit is subject to independent shareholder’s approval.

Share-based compensation cost of US$11.9 million and US$6.6
million was recognized in the consolidated statements of income (loss),
with a corresponding increase in equity reserves, for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively.

Details of the accounting treatment for share options and RSUs are set
out in notes 3(n)(vi) and 15(b) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Share Options

The exercise price of share options is determined at the time of grant
by the Remuneration Committee in its absolute discretion, but in any
event shall not be less than the higher of:

a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

c) the nominal value of the shares.

Expected volatility is estimated taking into account the historic average
share price volatility. The expected cash distributions are based on
the Group’s history and expectation of cash distribution payouts.

On June 17, 2021, the Company granted premium-priced share
options exercisable for 14,348,844 ordinary shares to the executive
director of the Company and members of the senior management
team with an exercise price of HK$20.76 per share, which
represented an approximately 20% premium over the closing price of
the Company’s shares on the date of grant. Such options are subject
to graded (“pro rata”) vesting over a four-year period from the date of
grant, with 25% of the options vesting on each anniversary of the date
of the grant, subject to the grantee continuing to be employed by, or
continuing to provide services to, the Group on the applicable vesting
date. Such options have a 10-year term.

The following inputs were used in the measurement of the fair value
at grant date of the share-based payment for the share options
exercisable for 14,348,844 shares that were granted on June 17, 2021:
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Fair value at grant date HK$8.08
Share price at grant date HK$17.30
Exercise price HK$20.76
Expected volatility (weighted average volatility) 54.2%
Option life (expected weighted average life) 6.25 years
Expected cash distributions 0.0%
Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds) 0.7%
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Particulars and movements of share options during the year ended
December 31, 2021 were as follows:

Number of share options iR &% E

REFHIMT -

HE2021F12A31HIEFE - BIRENFES

Closing price
immediately
Forfeited preceding the
As of (“lapsed”) As of Exercise date of grant
Name/category January 1, Granted Exercised during the December price per
of grantee 2021 during the during the year 31, 2021 share (HK$)
ABANES 20215 year year FREK R2021%  Date of grant Exercise period BRTEE AANKHE
5l 1A18 FRERM FRTHE (F3:4)] 12318  &HA figid (Bx) (B7)
Directors E%
Timothy Parker 2,368,749 - - - 2,368,749 January 8, 2013 January 8, 2014 - 17.36 16.90
20131 A8H January 7, 2023
2014%1A8HZ
2023F1A7H
Timothy Parker 1,821,615 - - - 1,821,615  January 7, 2014 January 7, 2015 - 23.30 23.30
2014%1A7H January 6, 2024
201561 A7THE
2024%1A6H
Kyle Gendreau 2,506,600 - - - 2,506,600  January 7, 2015 January 7, 2018 - 23.31 23.30
20151 A7H January 6, 2025
2018%1A7HE
2025%1R6H
Kyle Gendreau 216,683 - - - 216,683  January 7, 2015 January 7, 2016 - 28.31 23.30
201561 A7H January 6, 2025
2016%1A7HZE
202561 A6H
Kyle Gendreau 1,230,464 - - - 1,230,464 May 6, 2016 May 6, 2017 - 24.91 24.00
2016%5A6H May 5, 2026
201765 A6HE
2026%5A58
Kyle Gendreau 952,676 - - - 952,676 May 26, 2017 May 26, 2018 - 31.10 3045
2017654268 May 25, 2027
201865 A26H%
202745258
Kyle Gendreau 1,336,988 - - - 1,336,988  October 11, 2018 October 11, 2019 - 27.06 25.95
20186104118 October 10, 2028
2019F10A11BE
2028%10A10A
Kyle Gendreau 1,544,980 - - - 1,644,980  June 17, 2019 June 17, 2020 - 16.04 16.18
201946A17H June 16, 2029
202066 417HZ
2029%6F16H
Kyle Gendreau 7,346,180 - - - 7,346,180 November 18,2020  November 18, 2021 - 15.18 11.90
202011 A18H November 17, 2030
202111 f18BE
2030F11 A178
Kyle Gendreau - 5,481,920 - - 5,481,920  June 17, 2021 June 17, 2022 - 20.76 17.40
202146A17H June 16, 2031
2022F6A17BE
203146A168
Tom Korbas 32,351 - - - 32,351  January 7, 2014 January 7, 2015 - 23.30 23.30
2014%1A78 January 6, 2024
20151 A7HZ
20241 A6R
Tom Korbas 714,182 - - - 714,182 January 7, 2015 January 7, 2016 - 23.31 23.30
20151 A7H January 6, 2025
20161 A7HE2025
#1868
20,071,468 5,481,920 - - 25,553,388

Total Directors
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Number of share options R E%E

Closing price
immediately
preceding
As of As of Exercise the date of
Name/category January 1, Granted Exercised Lapsed December price per  grant (HK$)
of grantee 2021 during the during during the 31, 2021 share (HK$) R
ARANREE/ R2021%F year the year? year R2021F  Date of grant Exercise period SRTEE AANKTE
5 1A18 FRRE FRTREY FRER 12A318 ®HA igd (Br) (Bxm)
Others Bt
Employees 1,492,584 - - (106,166) 1,386,418  January 8, 2013 January 8, 2014 - 17.36 16.90
E&8 20131 A8AH January 7, 2023
2014%1A8HZ
2023%1A7H
Employee 108,522 - - - 108,522  July 1,2013 July 1, 2014 - 18.68 18.68
B8 2013%7R1R June 30, 2023
2014%7A18Z
202356 A30R
Employees 2,753,274 - - (155,560) 2,597,714 January 7, 2014 January 7, 2015 - 23.30 23.30
E& 2014%1A7H January 6, 2024
2015%1A7HE
2024%1R6H
Employees 5,539,043 - - (344,236) 5,194,807  January 7, 2015 January 7, 2016 - 23.31 23.30
E& 20151478 January 6, 2025
2016%1A7HE
2025%1A6H
Employees 3,906,005 - - - 3,906,005  January 7, 2015 January 7, 2018 - 2818]1 23.30
E& 2015%1A7H January 6, 2025
2018%1A7THE
2025%1R6H
Employees 9,483,763 - - (1,310,484) 8,173,279  May 6, 2016 May 6, 2017 - 24.91 24.00
E& 201645H6H May 5, 2026
201745A6H%
2026%5A5R
Employees 4,190,013 - - (1,976,547) 2,213,466  May 6, 2016 May 6, 2019 - 24.91 24.00
E& 2016%5A6H May 5, 2026
2019%5A6H%
202645 A5H
Employee 62,160 - - - 62,160  May 11,2016 May 11, 2017 - 24.23 24.05
E& 2016%5A118 May 10, 2026
2017F5A11AZ
2026%5810A
Employee 74,979 - - - 74,979 June 16, 2016 June 16, 2017 - 23.19 22.45
&8 2016468164 June 15, 2026
2017%6A16BE
202656 A158
Employees 9,917,451 - - (1,458,139) 8,459,312 May 26, 2017 May 26, 2018 - 31.10 30.45
E8 201745R26H May 25, 2027
201845H26HZ
2027465R258
Employees 4,520,261 - - (623,133) 3,897,128 October 11, 2018 October 11, 2019 - 27.06 25.95
&8 2018107118 October 10, 2028
2019F10A11BE
2028107108
Employee 1,194,180 - - - 1,194,180 December 4, 2018  December 4, 2019 - 25.00 25.00
EE 201812 A48 December 3, 2028
2019512 A4R %
2028512438
Employees 6,938,665 - (23,278) (868,619) 6,046,768 June 17, 2019 June 17, 2020 - 16.04 16.18
&8 201966A178 June 16, 2029
202066 R17HZE
2029%46A168
Employees 170,712 - - (44,720) 125,992 November 22, 2019 November 22, 2020 - 16.62 16.44
&8 201911 f228 November 21, 2029
2020611 f22B %
202911 A218
Employees 10,587,456 - - (1,290,828) 9,296,628  November 18, 2020  November 18, 2021 - 15,18 11.90
E& 2020411 18R November 17, 2030
202111 A18AE
203011 178
Employees - 8,866,924 - - 8,866,924  June 17, 2021 June 17, 2022 - 20.76 17.40
E& 202146A178 June 16, 2031
202266 A17HE
2031664168
Total Employees 60,939,068 8,866,924 (23,278) (8,178,432) 61,604,282
CEhy
Total 81,010,536 14,348,844 (23,278) (8,178,432) 87,157,670
-
Note #EfE

(1) The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the date of exercise by the participants was HK$17.22.
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Restricted Share Units (“RSUs”")

No RSUs were granted during the years ended December 31, 2021
and December 31, 2020. Prior to 2020, two types of RSU awards
have been granted by the Company: time-based RSUs (“TRSUs”) and
performance-based RSUs (“PRSUs”).

Time-based Restricted Share Units

TRSUs granted by the Company are subject to pro rata vesting over
a three-year period, with one-third of such TRSUs vesting on each
anniversary of the date of the grant, subject to the grantee continuing
to be employed by, or continuing to provide services to, the Group
on the applicable vesting date. Expense for TRSUs is based on the
closing market price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant,
discounted by the present value of expected future dividends, and is
recognized ratably over the vesting period, net of expected forfeitures.

Particulars and movements of TRSUs during the year ended
December 31, 2021 were as follows:

Number of TRSUs B [# 35 [RHI A ENL & H
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Vested and
converted
to ordinary
As of shares As of
Name/category January 1, Granted during the Lapsed December 31,
of grantee 2021 during the year during the 2021
ARAN®SR 720215 year FAGRR year M2021%  Date of grant Vesting period
25l 1A1H FRZEE ERRTER FREM 128318 #®HHAE BREE
Directors £
Kyle Gendreau 101,247 - (101,247) - - October 11, 2018
201810811 H
Kyle Gendreau 201,650 - (100,825) - 100,825  June 17, 2019 Remaining 1/3 of TRSUs
201946 A17H will vest on June 17, 2022
FIgh=9 2 — KR HA
R D B AL R
202256 A17THERE
Total Directors 302,897 - (202,072) - 100,825

ExA

Number of TRSUs K & # 84 5% [R I A {3 B (v & B

Vested and
converted
to ordinary
As of shares As of
Name/category January 1, Granted during the Lapsed December 31,
of grantee 2021 during the year during the 2021
ABANYES ®2021 5 year FARER year M2021%F  Date of grant Vesting period
V| 1818 FREY ERAZER FREX 12A31H #®HA R
Others Bt
Employees 856,670 - (756,516) (100,154) - October 11, 2018
EE8 2018F10A11H
Employee 154,254 - (154,254) - —  December 4, 2018
EE8 201812 A4H
Employees 1,873,194 - (861,891) (209,239) 802,064  June 17, 2019 Remaining 1/3 of TRSUs
=351 201966 A17H will vest on June 17, 2022
FIgh=5 2 — )RR #
PR AR BE L R
202266 A17THER
Employees 72,096 - (26,605) (18,886) 26,605  November 22, 2019 Remaining 1/3 of TRSUs
== 2019411 A22H will vest on November 22,
2022
Fer=5 2 —mME N
2 PR AR BE L
2022F 11 22 BB
Total Employees 2,956,214 - (1,799,266) (328,279) 828,669
B4
'g;al 3,259,111 - (2,001,338) (328,279) 929,494
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Performance-based Restricted Share Units

PRSUs vest in full on the third anniversary of the date of grant,
subject to the grantee continuing to be employed by, or continuing
to provide services to, the Group on the vesting date, and only to
the extent certain pre-established cumulative performance targets
are met. Expense related to PRSUs with non-market performance
criteria is recognized ratably over the performance period, net of
estimated forfeitures, based on the probability of attainment of the
related performance targets. The potential number of shares that
may be issued upon vesting of the PRSUs ranges from 0% of the
target number of shares subject to the PRSUs, if the minimum level
of performance is not attained, to up to 200% of the target number of
shares subject to the PRSUs, if the level of performance is at or above
the predetermined maximum achievement level. For PRSUs subject to
market conditions, the expense is recognized over the vesting period
based on the fair value as determined on the grant date utilizing a
Monte Carlo simulation.

Particulars and movements of PRSUs (at target level vesting) during
the year ended December 31, 2021 were as follows:
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for PRSUs Change
granted during due to
As of the year performance As of
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of grantee 2021 S EEENHY achievement during during 2021
RBRANEE / R2021F SRERKEN BREGHEER the year the year R2021%  Date of grant Vesting period
Bl 118 HWHEBERAHA BREM28 FRHEE FRER 12A318 &iA BEHO
Directors %
Kyle Gendreau 607,478 - - - (607,478) - October 11, 2018
2018410A11H
Kyle Gendreau 604,945 - - - - 604,945  June 17, 2019 PRSUs will vest on June
201966A17H 17, 2022
R AR R AR ) AL
#R2022F6 17 A 5B
Total Directors 1,212,423 = = = (607,478) 604,945

EEE )

Number of PRSUs 3835 R I Ef 8 B

Initial or
target number
of shares
for PRSUs Change
granted during due to
As of the year performance As of
Name/category January 1, EARLNDR condition Vested Lapsed December 31,
of grantee 2021 SREEEMHY achievement during during 2021
RBRANEE / R2021F SRERGENL ERBHREER the year the year R2021%  Date of grant Vesting period
il 118 WHEBERAHA BEM2H FREE FRRK 128318 &HA BEHO
Others Eft
Employees 482,226 - - - (482,226) - October 11, 2018
E& 201810 A11H
Employee 157,448 - - - (1657,448) - December 4, 2018
E& 201812 A4H
Employees 635,623 - - - (94,280) 541,343  June 17, 2019 PRSUs will vest on June
E& 201966 A17H 17, 2022
B R A R R A R ) AL
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Total Employees 1,275,297 = = = (733,954) 541,343
EEAG
Total 2,487,720 = = - (1,341,432) 1,146,288
@t
Note #tf&

(1) Subject to satisfaction of applicable performance targets. ZAff A E AR EIZ »
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In the Company’s circular to shareholders dated April 15, 2019
relating to, among other things, the grant of PRSUs, the Company
stated that the final number of shares which will vest under the PRSUs
will vary depending on the level of achievement of performance
conditions applicable to the PRSUs, thereby ensuring that the actual
payout is linked to the Company’s performance. The Remuneration
Committee determined that in relation to the PRSUs which were
granted on June 17, 2019, the performance conditions are based
on (i) fiscal year 2019 to 2021 three-year adjusted earnings per
share (“EPS”) compound annual growth rate (“CAGR”) (with a 50%
weighting) and (i) fiscal year 2019 to 2021 three-year relative total
shareholders’ return (“TSR”) (with a 50% weighting). Relative TSR
measures the Company’s TSR to the TSR of a benchmark group,
consisting of the Company’s peer group companies.

Details of the fiscal year 2019 to 2021 three-year adjusted EPS CAGR
and relative TSR performance conditions applicable to the PRSUs
granted by the Company on June 17, 2019 are set out below:

Cumulative Adjusted Earnings Per Share (EPS) (50% Weighting)

3-year cumulative
adjusted EPS
(% of target)

SERIHEHE

FREF

(WEEEB L)

Maximum 120% or higher

EBR 120% 3% A £

115%

110%

105%

Target 100%
B

95%

Threshold 90%
TR

Below 90%

90% LA T~

Relative Total Shareholder Return (TSR) (50% Weighting)
No above-target payout will be made with respect to relative TSR if
the Company’s absolute TSR is negative.

Maximum

ER
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B
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TBR
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BEAE
$ total % CAGR (5B
@t () BEFER=E BRBEDE)
US$0.808 17.4% 200%
0.8083 7T
US$0.775 15.0% 175%
0.775%7T
US$0.741 12.6% 150%
0.74137T
US$0.707 10.1% 125%
0.7073%7T
US$0.674 7.5% 100%
0.6743% 7T
US$0.640 4.8% 75%
0.6403 7T
US$0.606 21% 50%
0.6063 7T
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As the actual fiscal year 2019 to 2021 three-year cumulative adjusted
EPS CAGR was below the 90% threshold, and the actual fiscal year
2019 to 2021 three-year relative TSR performance was also below
the threshold level, none of the outstanding PRSUs granted by the
Company on June 17, 2019 will vest and such PRSUs will therefore
lapse on June 17, 2022, which will be the three-year anniversary of
the grant date for such PRSUs.

Shares underlying an award of share options, TRSUs or PRSUs that
lapse without the issuance of such shares upon vesting of such award
may be available for future grant under the Share Award Scheme.
During the years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020,
there were no cancellations of share options, TRSUs or PRSUs.

Risk Factors

Details of the Group’s principal risks and uncertainties that may
adversely impact the Company’s performance and the execution of
its strategies are disclosed within the Risk Management and Internal
Control section of the Corporate Governance Report on pages 107
to 113 of this Annual Report. A discussion about the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic to the Group’s results of operations and financial
condition is disclosed in the Management Discussion and Analysis —
Impact of COVID-19 on pages 29 to 32 of this Annual Report.

Qualitative and Quantitative Market Risks
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or
counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from
customers. Maximum exposure is limited to the carrying amounts of
the financial assets presented in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. However, management
also considers the demographics of its customer base, including the
default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate,
as these factors may have an influence on credit risk.

The Group has established a credit policy under which each new
customer is analyzed individually for credit worthiness before the
Group’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are
offered.
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In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according
to their credit characteristics, including aging profile and existence of
previous financial difficulties. Trade and other receivables relate mainly
to the Group’s wholesale customers. Customers that are graded as
“high risk” are placed on credit hold and monitored by the Group and
future sales are made on an approval basis. Further information about
the Group's exposure to credit risk as of December 31, 2021 is set
out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Financial Guarantees
The Group’s policy is to provide financial guarantees only on behalf of
subsidiaries. No other guarantees have been made to third parties.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in
meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities.

The Group’s primary sources of liquidity are its cash flows from
operating activities, invested cash, available lines of credit and,
subject to shareholder approval, the Company’s ability to issue
additional shares. The Company believes that its existing cash
and estimated cash flows, along with current working capital, will
be adequate to meet the foreseeable future operating and capital
requirements of the Group at least through March 31, 2023. See note
22 to the consolidated financial statements for the maturity profile of
outstanding borrowings as of December 31, 2021.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group conducts a portion of its business in currencies other
than the US Dollar, the functional currency of the Company and the
currency in which the consolidated financial statements are reported.
Accordingly, the Group’s operating results could be adversely
affected by foreign currency exchange rate volatility relative to the
US Dollar. The Group’s foreign subsidiaries generally use the local
currency as their functional currencies. The Group periodically uses
forward exchange contracts to hedge its exposure to currency
risk on product purchases denominated in a currency other than
the respective functional currency of its subsidiaries. The forward
exchange contracts typically have maturities of less than one year.
Although the Group continues to evaluate strategies to mitigate risks
related to the fluctuations in currency exchange rates, the Group
will likely recognize gains or losses from international transactions.
Changes in foreign currency exchange rates could adversely affect
the Group’s operating results.

The Group is exposed to currency risk on purchases and, from time
to time, borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than
the respective functional currencies of its subsidiaries. Interest on
borrowings is generally denominated in the local currency of the
borrowing entity. Borrowings are generally denominated in currencies
that match the cash flows generated by the underlying operations of
the borrowing entity.
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The Group is exposed to currency risk upon maturity of its cross-
currency swaps that have been designated as net investment hedges.

A sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure to currency risk is set
out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group monitors its exposure to changes in interest rates on
borrowings on variable rate debt instruments. The Group has entered
into interest rate swap agreements as hedges to manage a portion
of its interest rate risk. See note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements for the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk as of
December 31, 2021.

Tax Rates and Liabilities

A number of international legislative and regulatory bodies have proposed
or implemented legislation to change certain tax practices of multinational
companies. One of these efforts has been led by The Organization for
Economic Co-operation and Development (the “OECD”), an international
association of 34 countries including the United States, which has
finalized recommendations to revise many corporate taxes, transfer
pricing, and tax treaty provisions in member countries. In addition, the
European Union and its European Commission are continuing to review
and opine on the appropriateness of certain agreements between
various member countries and companies in light of the European
Union competition rules against unjustified state aid. While the Company
maintains that it is in compliance with corporate tax, transfer pricing,
and tax treaty provisions, it is possible that these efforts may impact its
income tax liabilities.

To address changes in applicable tax legislation that became
effective on July 1, 2021, the Company completed the Intra-Group IP
Realignment during the first half of 2021.

The Company continues to evaluate various tax benefits provided by
various governments around the world in response to the COVID-19
pandemic. These benefits include accelerated tax deductions, tax
loss carryback opportunities, payroll tax benefits, extensions of
tax payments deadlines and others benefits. The Company has
taken advantage of these benefits, and will continue to do so, as
appropriate.

Other Market Price Risks
See note 22 to the consolidated financial statements for the Group’s
exposure to market risks as of December 31, 2021.
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Risks Associated with the Company’s Loans and Borrowings

The Credit Agreement and the Indenture require the Company and
its subsidiaries to comply with certain restrictive covenants, including
certain financial covenants under the Credit Agreement. Under the
terms of the Credit Agreement, the Company’s requirement to test
the maximum total net leverage ratio and minimum interest coverage
ratio under its Financial Covenants was suspended during the
Suspension Period. Following the Suspension Period, the Company
resumed testing compliance with the total net leverage ratio and
interest coverage ratio covenants beginning with the measurement
period ended September 30, 2021. For the measurement periods
ended September 30, 2021 and December 31, 2021, and for the
measurement period ending March 31, 2022, the Company has
elected to use Historical EBITDA (instead of actual Consolidated
Adjusted EBITDA from the fourth quarter of 2020 and the first two
quarters of 2021) to calculate the total net leverage and minimum
interest coverage ratios. The Historical EBITDA for each of the
quarters ended December 31, 2020, March 31, 2021 and June 30,
2021 used to calculate compliance with the Financial Covenants will
be increased by the Add-back Amount.

Under the Financial Covenants, beginning with the test period ending
on March 31, 2022, and for each test period ending thereafter, the
Company’s total net leverage ratio as of the last day of such test
period must not exceed 4.50:1.00. For the test period ending on June
30, 2022 and for each test period ending thereafter, the Company’s
actual Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA for each fiscal quarter included
in the applicable test period must be used to determine compliance
with the total net leverage ratio and the interest coverage ratio. Until
March 31, 2022, the Company is required to comply with a minimum
liquidity covenant of US$500.0 million. Thereafter, under the Terms of
the 2021 Incremental Term Loan B Facility, the Company is required
to comply with a minimum liquidity covenant of US$100.0 million until
repayment in full of the 2021 Incremental Term Loan B Facility. The
Company was in compliance with the Financial Covenants and the
minimum liquidity covenant as of December 31, 2021 and remains in
compliance with such covenants as of the date hereof.

A prolonged downturn in the Company’s business, including a
further extended downturn caused by the impacts of the COVID-19
pandemic, could result in a breach of the total net leverage ratio and/
or minimum interest coverage ratio covenants which, if not cured
or waived, could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial condition and results of operations. The principal risks
associated with the Company’s leverage include the following:

e the Company’s ability to obtain additional financing in the future
for acquisitions, capital expenditures, general corporate purposes
or other purposes could be limited;

e the Company’s borrowings under the Credit Agreement accrue
interest at variable rates, and increases in certain benchmark
interest rates would increase the Company’s cost of borrowing
(note, however, that the Group maintained interest rate swaps
with respect to approximately 23% of the principal amount of the
borrowings under the Credit Agreement at December 31, 2021,
which reduces a portion of the Company’s exposure to interest
rate increases);

e the Company’s leverage could increase its vulnerability to declining
economic conditions, including the adverse impact on the
Company’s business from COVID-19, particularly if the decline is
further prolonged;
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e failure to comply with any of the covenants under the Credit
Agreement or the Indenture could result in an event of default
which, if not cured or waived, could have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s financial condition and results of operations,
and may cast doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern;

e financial and restrictive covenants under the Credit Agreement, and
restrictive covenants under the Indenture, could adversely affect
or limit the Company’s ability to, among other things, implement
business plans, react to changes in economic conditions or return
capital to the Company’s shareholders (whether through cash
distributions, share repurchases, or otherwise); and

e a substantial portion of the Company’s cash and cash flow from
operations must be used to pay principal and interest on the
Senior Credit Facilities and interest on the Senior Notes until
maturity, therefore reducing the cash flow available to fund the
Company’s operations, capital expenditures and other business
opportunities.

In addition, as a result of the risks described above, the Company
may be required to raise additional capital, and access to and the
cost of financing will depend on, among other things, global economic
conditions, conditions in the global financing markets, the availability of
sufficient amounts of financing, the Company’s future prospects, its credit
ratings, and the outlook for the travel industry as a whole. As a result of
COVID-19, credit agencies downgraded the Company’s credit ratings
during 2020. If these credit ratings were to be further downgraded, or
general market conditions were to ascribe higher risk to the Company’s
credit rating levels, the travel industry, or the Company, the Company’s
access to capital and the cost of debt financing could be further
negatively impacted. The interest rate the Company pays on its Senior
Credit Facilities is affected by the Company’s credit ratings. Accordingly,
a downgrade may cause the Company’s cost of borrowing to increase.

Working Capital Ratios

Inventory Analysis

The following table sets forth a summary of the Group’s average
inventories, cost of sales and average inventory turnover days for the
years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

(Expressed in millions of US Dollars) (KEEETZ5)
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Year ended December 31,

BE12A31BLFE
2021

Average inventories™ FHEED 402.1 521.6
Cost of sales HEKRA 919.3 830.4
Average inventory turnover days® FHEFERERAHP 160 229

Notes stf#

(1) Average inventories equal the average of net inventory at the beginning and end of a given period. “F #5717 & 85 74 72 B BRI 90 X Bk 19 75

BFERA TR

(2) Average inventory turnover days for a given period equals average inventory for that period divided by cost of sales for that period and

multiplied by the number of days in the period. % HifM F9FEAE B ERESNZ BN T T ERAZ BB ERAE - BFEAZIM

EE -

The Group’s average inventories decreased in 2021 (US$348.4
million as of December 31, 2021 compared to US$455.9 million as
of December 31, 2020) compared to 2020 (US$455.9 million as of
December 31, 2020 compared to US$587.3 million as of December
31, 2019). This reduction was primarily driven by strong product
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sell-through due to the rebound in travel, though delayed stock
replenishment due to shipping delays and port congestion was also
a factor. Average inventory turnover days decreased due to reduced
inventory levels and an increase in cost of sales.

Trade and Other Receivables

The following table sets forth a summary of the Group’s average trade
and other receivables, net sales and turnover days of trade and other
receivables for the years ended December 31, 2021 and December
31, 2020:

ZREEBRIREERBEEUNERBERY
PRIES) - 1EEMBIER Mg QR S BUEEH
BENRAEZ— - FHAFEBEEAZRLD I HE
B KPR S 35 E A ANIZ INAT B
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31 B IEF[E A5 B 15 e YR BR 51 B H b JE U 3R
18« SHEF R A R ERER R R E A fE SR IB A
HAHNME -

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A31ALFE

(Expressed in millions of US Dollars) 2021

Average trade and other receivables(® TG M AR R e At FE U FROR 173.6 268.5
Net sales SHEFH 2,020.8 1,536.7
Turnover days of trade and other receivables® JFEU R TR R L b FE W R TR B 5@ 31 64

Notes 5Ef#

(1) Average trade and other receivables equal the average of net trade and other receivables at the beginning and end of a given period. &I
BR 0 R EL fth JE WRR T AR S5 B 2 A 0 A ) % A R MR R S LAt B M R R Y S B o

(2) Turnover days of trade and other receivables for a given period equals average trade and other receivables for that period divided by net
sales for that period and multiplied by the number of days in the period. % i 5 A9 fE U B8R 30 & EoAb fE IR S 8 A U SR sz i 15

FEWER TR EL A SRR AR IR O B 5 8 - BRAZIIR RS -

The Group’s average trade and other receivables decreased in 2021
(US$206.2 million as of December 31, 2021 compared to US$141.0
million as of December 31, 2020) compared to 2020 (US$141.0
million as of December 31, 2020 compared to US$396.0 million as of
December 31, 2019). The trade and other receivables turnover days
decreased due to the increase in net sales and decrease in average
trade and other receivables, as well as improved collections on
outstanding trade and other receivables balances year-on-year.

Trade receivables as of December 31, 2021 are on average due within
60 days from the date of billing.

Trade and Other Payables

The following table sets forth a summary of the Group’s average trade
and other payables, cost of sales and turnover days of trade and other
payables for the years ended December 31, 2021 and December 31,
2020:
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Year ended December 31,
BZE12A31ALEE

(Expressed in millions of US Dollars) (UBEEETZ5) 2021

Average trade and other payables(” IR AR K R HAh A BORO 470.9 544.4
Cost of sales SHERZAR 919.3 830.4
Turnover days of trade and other payables® FEAT BR AR E M FE A SRR E 8 B 2@ 187 239

Notes 7Hi%

(1) Average trade and other payables equal the average of trade and other payables at the beginning and end of a given period. “F#5E R

Ne LA 8 A5 SRIB AR S5 1A 5 72 A ) R ) S A R P A R SR R LA FE N IR O P E0 B o

(2) Turnover days of trade and other payables for a given period equals average trade and other payables for that period divided by cost of
sales for that period and multiplied by the number of days in the period. & B &9 fE {5 BR 3 & Eo At fE 5 FUB 8 88 0 S S iz Bl a9 39
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The Group’s average trade and other payables decreased in 2021
(US$529.0 million as of December 31, 2021 compared to US$412.9
million as of December 31, 2020) compared to 2020 (US$412.9
million as of December 31, 2020 compared to US$675.9 million as
of December 31, 2019). The trade and other payables turnover days
decreased primarily due to reduced trade and other payables levels
and an increase in cost of sales, as well as the timing of payments.

Trade payables as of December 31, 2021 are on average due within
105 days from the invoice date.

Gearing Ratio

The following table sets forth the Group’s loans and borrowings
(excluding deferred financing costs), total equity and gearing ratio as
of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

(Expressed in millions of US Dollars)

Loans and borrowings (excluding deferred

REE R 2021 F 1) F 59 FE AT BR 3R K H Ab FE AT
8 (72021412 A31 B A529.08 8%t
Mm2020F12 A31 HAIB412.98 8BET) K
20204 (JA2020F 12 A31H B412.9@ B>
JC 0 MAR2019F 12 A31 BAIA675.908 &%
L) BRRAD o BARRREMEMNRIBRE
HEUR >+ 2 2 i 5O AR RS EL A JE < k1A
KRR R BEERAREN - URANREEER
FER

M2021F12 A1 BN ENER T AN ER
HEffEEH105 B A EIE] o

EELE =

TREIAREER 2021412 A31 B %2020
F12A31 ANERRER (B EZERE K
AR) - ERABNMERLE

December 31,

2020
2020412 A431H

December 31,

2021
2021612H31H

financing costs) B R AR (MR IEE R E KA ) 2,802.0 3,230.5
Total equity AR 726.6 669.0
Gearing ratio® AR RO 385.6% 482.9%

Note #Lf&

(1) Calculated as total loans and borrowings (excluding deferred financing costs) divided by total equity. & & 3 % & F 48 %8 (R R B & AR A )

WA AR o

The gearing ratio decreased primarily due to the decrease in loans
and borrowings.

Subsequent Events
Details of the events occurring subsequent to December 31, 2021 are
set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributions to Shareholders

The Company will evaluate its distribution policy and distributions
made (by way of the Company’s ad hoc distributable reserve,
dividends or otherwise) in any particular year in light of its financial
position, the prevailing economic climate and expectations about
the future macro-economic environment and business performance.
The determination to make distributions will be made upon the
recommendation of the Board and the approval of the Company’s
shareholders and will be based upon the Group’s earnings, cash flow,
financial condition, capital and other reserve requirements and any
other conditions which the Board deems relevant. The payment of
distributions may also be limited by legal restrictions and by the Credit
Agreement, the Indenture or other financing agreements that the
Group may enter into in the future.
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Due to the continuing uncertainties about the extent and duration
of the COVID-19 pandemic and its impacts on the Company for the
balance of 2022, no cash distribution has been or will be made to the
Company’s shareholders in 2022.

Segment Information

An analysis of the Company’s performance by operating segment
for the year ended December 31, 2021 is set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Reserves
Details of movements in the Group’s and the Company’s reserves
during the year ended December 31, 2021 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 176 and 177
of this Annual Report and in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Distributable Reserves

As of December 31, 2021, reserves available for distribution to
shareholders amounted to approximately US$1.7 billion as shown in
the statutory financial statements of Samsonite International S.A. and
calculated in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Incorporation.

Charitable Donations

Donations made for charitable and other purposes by the Group
during the year ended December 31, 2021 amounted to US$0.4
million.

Bank Loans

As of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the Group had
bank loans that were repayable over the following period of time:

(U BEZETE5)

(Expressed in millions of US Dollars)
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IRITER

REBER2021F12 531 H %2020 12 A31
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December 31,

2020
2020912 A31H

December 31,
2021
2021F12H31H

On demand or within one year BERSR—FR 107.3 80.6
After one year but within two years —FIREMFERN 53.3 47.8
After two years but within five years MFEERERAFR 2,641.4 2,674.6
More than five years AFRE - 427.5

2,802.0 3,230.5

Five Year Financial Information

On January 1, 2019, the Group adopted IFRS 16, Leases (“IFRS 16”).
The Group applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach,
therefore the comparative information for the years ended December
31, 2017 and 2018 in the summary table below have not been
restated and continue to be reported under International Accounting
Standards (“IAS”) 17, Leases (“IAS 17”) and IFRS Interpretations
Committee (“IFRIC”) 4, Determining whether an Arrangement Contains
a Lease (“IFRIC 47).
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A summary of the consolidated results and assets, liabilities, equity

AEBEBEREMBEFENGEXEREE
BE - BESSHER S 2N T

and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years is as follows:

December 31,

12A318
(Expressed in millions of US Dollars) (AEEZETZ3) 2019
Net sales R 2,020.8 1,536.7 3,638.8 3,797.0 3,490.9
Gross profit EH 1,101.5 706.3 2,016.8 2,144.6 1,959.9
Gross profit margin FE R = 54.5% 46.0% 55.4% 56.5% 56.1%
Operating profit (loss) m A (E18) 132.7 (1,266.2) 283.0 467.4 423.8
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: LA~ A £ fE(5F R F|
(&518) -

Equity holders" AR A A0 14.3 (1,277.7) 132.5 236.7 334.2

Non-controlling interests IR A 9.2 (10.9) 20.9 20.5 21.2
Total assets AEMET 4,854.3 5,162.2 5,541.3 5,141.6 5,070.4
Total liabilities A fEEEE 4,127.7 4,493.2 3,539.8 3,150.5 3,238.0
Equity attributable to equity holders ARHEERE B A FEG T A 689.7 634.1 1,951.0 1,947.8 1,791.5
Non-controlling interests FEPRAR 36.9 34.9 50.5 43.3 40.9

Note 7t

(1) Profit attributable to the equity holders was US$14.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to a loss attributable to the
equity holders of US$1,277.7 million for the previous year. For the year ended December 31, 2021 the Group incurred a loss attributable
to the equity holders of US$14.7 million when excluding the net non-cash 2021 Impairment (Reversals) Charges, Restructuring Charges,
the loss on the sale of Speck and charges associated with the Fifth Amended Credit Agreement and the Sixth Amended Credit Agreement
recognized during the year ended December 31, 2021, all of which are net of the related tax impact, and the US$42.6 million tax benefit
associated with the Intra-Group IP Realignment. In comparison, the Group recorded a loss attributable to the equity holders for the year
ended December 31, 2020 of US$413.8 million when excluding the non-cash 2020 Impairment Charges and the Restructuring Charges
recognized during the year ended December 31, 2020, both of which are net of the related tax impact. & ZE20214F12 831 H ILF & - 31
FAABGERNA143BEET MEAFRIEREABGLBIER1,277.788ET - BHE2021F12 A1 AILFE @ EMBHREE2021F12 7

1B ILFERRNIFIRS 2021 FRE (BE) BEFHE  SHER - HESpeckWBIERMAE RN LEEERHERB RS EERER
HANER (MR EEFREYE) UREEBANSERESRIAMNRNBIEC426BEFET AEERERESEABGLBERI14758ET
2T - SR REE2020F 12 A31 B FERRNIERS2020F AAEEAREAER (MELNBRAEBRIETE) % - H 220205128

B1HIEFE - AEESISRERAAREEEA38EEET -

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Incorporation or the laws of the Grand-Duchy of
Luxembourg.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company’s Articles of Incorporation provide that the Company
shall keep indemnified to the extent permitted by law, among others,
its directors and any attorney in fact it may appoint against any
reasonable costs and expenses incurred by them by virtue of their
involvement in legal proceedings or suits initiated against them by
reason of their current or former holding of office as a director or
attorney in fact or at the request of the Company or of any other
company of which the Company is a shareholder or creditor, except
where they are found to be grossly negligent or to have breached their
duties to the Company. In the event of any extra-judicial compromise
settlement, the Articles of Incorporation provide that a director or
attorney in fact is only to be indemnified if the Company is informed
by its legal counsel that the director or attorney in fact has not failed
in his or her duties to the Company. The Company has arranged for
appropriate insurance coverage in respect of potential legal actions
against its directors and senior management. Save as disclosed
above, the Company is not a party to any permitted indemnity
provision for the benefit of any of the directors of the Company.
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Management Contract

The Company is not a party to any management contract under which
any person undertakes the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company where
such contract is not a contract of services with any director of the
Company or its subsidiaries or any person engaged in the full-time
employment of the Company or its subsidiaries.

Issue, Purchase, Sale, or Redemption of the
Company'’s Listed Securities

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company issued
23,278 ordinary shares at a weighted-average exercise price of
HK$16.04 per share, or HK$0.4 million in aggregate, in connection
with the exercise of share options that were granted under the
Company’s Share Award Scheme. During the year ended December
31, 2021, the Company issued 2,001,338 ordinary shares upon
the vesting of TRSUs granted under the Company’s Share Award
Scheme. There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the
Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the year ended December 31, 2021.

Equity-linked Agreements
Other than the Share Award Scheme, no equity-linked agreements
subsisted during or at the year ended December 31, 2021.

Share Capital
Details of any movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in the consolidated statements of changes in equity.

Directors
As of December 31, 2021, the composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Director (“ED”)
Kyle Francis Gendreau
Chief Executive Officer

Non-Executive Director (“NED”)
Timothy Charles Parker
Chairman

Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INED”)
Paul Kenneth Etchells

Jerome Squire Griffith

Keith Hamill

Tom Korbas

Bruce Hardy McLain (Hardy)

Ying Yeh

Biographical details of the directors of the Company as of the date of
this report are set out on pages 118 to 123 of this Annual Report.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors who is proposed for re-election at the 2022
AGM has or is proposed to have a service contract that is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Agreements or Contracts

None of the directors or an entity connected with a director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
agreement or contract of significance that subsisted during or at the
end of the year to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

Jerome Squire Griffith, an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company, serves as chief executive officer and as a director of Lands’
End, Inc. Lands’ End, Inc., a company listed on NASDAQ, is a leading
multi-channel retailer of clothing, accessories, footwear and home
products. The products of Lands’ End, Inc. include bags. Lands’ End,
Inc.’s bag business is incidental to its core business and the Company
does not consider Lands’ End, Inc. to be a significant competitor.

Except as disclosed above, none of the Directors has interests in any
business (apart from the Group’s businesses) which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group during the year ended December 31, 2021 or as of
December 31, 2021.

Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares and
Underlying Shares

As of December 31, 2021, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive officer of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ”)) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part
XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:
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1.  Long Position in the Shares of the Company 1. REXTRGHFR

Number of
ordinary shares/
underlying
shares held at

December 31, 2021@

A2021E12831H Approximate

Name of Director Nature of Interest BENEER shareholding %

EEHR EEME MHEROEE® (HRENESNEDL

Timothy Charles Parker Beneficial owner 60,645,644 (L)® 4.2
BHEAA

Kyle Francis Gendreau Beneficial owner and founder of a discretionary trust 23,164,488 (L)@ 1.6
BEanlia AR —EA2REENAEIHA

Tom Korbas Beneficial owner 1,442,704 (L)@ 0.1
BEmEAA

Bruce Hardy McLain (Hardy) Beneficial owner 883,400 (L)© 0.0
BB A

Keith Hamill Beneficial owner 193,745 (L)® 0.0
BEanliBA

Paul Kenneth Etchells Beneficial owner 99,900 (L)@ 0.0
BEmlEAA

Ying Yeh Beneficial owner 3,000 (L) 0.0

=R BB A

Notes FtfE

(@) (L) represents long position. ()AERLFAE ©

(b) Comprised of 28,312,540 shares held by Mr. Parker and 28,142,740 shares held by his spouse, Ms. Therese Charlotte Christiaan Marie
Parker, each as beneficial and registered owner. Mr. Parker is deemed by virtue of the SFO to be interested in the shares held by Ms.
Parker. Also includes share options held by Mr. Parker that are exercisable for 4,190,364 shares once vested. £3%28,312,540% f Parker
S E AR %28,142,7400% A £ A {BTherese Charlotte Christiaan Marie ParkerZ T#HERBRH  F#EEAABTHLETHEAA < RIE
(FBHREFEED) - Parker e £ WA BB Parker & L PTHF A VAR BV 25 o INBIEParker L &P E — BB E FI1T60ARRE 4,190,364 A% ik
D EVRERRHE -

(c) Comprised of 1,842,227 shares held by a discretionary trust of which Mr. Gendreau is the founder, share options exercisable for
20,616,491 shares once vested, TRSUs in respect of 100,825 shares once vested and PRSUs in respect of an initial or target number of
604,945 shares (with the final number of shares being subject to the level of achievement of the performance conditions applicable to the
grant of such PRSUs). 151,842,227 ik laGendreaust £VERBIM AR — AR B EEAFAENRY - —BEBRBA{TEIARE20,616,401 1%
MEIERE - — BB RITTEARREE100,825 A% AR {7 80 B i #4852 IR 61 i 00 B0 K #1445k B 1220 B /604,945 IR0 (B M EB B TFREA
B 48 2R 8 52 PR I A1 BB R P 3 R ) SR BR AR AR AR FE T 02 ) A8 U 8 52 FR 6 A A BB -

(d) Comprised of 696,171 shares held by Mr. Korbas as beneficial owner and share options exercisable for 746,533 shares once vested. 23%
696,171 Korbas e £ E R E m A APTRA B () K — B 558 AT 1715 LARRE 746,533 AR 19 # E AR A -

(e) Comprised of 500,000 shares held by Mr. McLain and 383,400 shares held by his spouse, Ms. Helle Elisabeth Skov MclLain, each as
beneficial owner. Mr. McLain is deemed by virtue of the SFO to be interested in the shares held by Ms. McLain. £3£500,000 8% B MclLain 5t
AR % 383,4008 H H AR B Helle Elisabeth Skov McLainZ tHAKKRY * BESEABHEA A  BRE(EFLHAEENM) - McLain
SR AR McLainZ TATHEA IR 15 B i A o

() Comprised of 193,745 shares held by Mr. Hamill and his spouse, Ms. Angela Sylvia Hamill, each as beneficial owner. 235193,745%
Hamill %t & K& E Bt {8 Angela Sylvia Hamill Z +#HA8RD - BESEREREBA °

(9) Comprised of 99,900 shares held jointly by Mr. Etchells and his spouse, Ms. Fanny Fan Miu Tsang, as beneficial owners. £3£99,900 %
Etchellsst 4 R E AL BFanny Fan Miu TsangZ = H£FAHF ARG - FEHAEZHEA ©

2.  Interests in the Shares of Associated Corporations 2.  RiEESEERRDNESS

As of December 31, 2021, none of the directors or chief executive 2021 FE12A31H @ #BEARA A G EEN(T
officer of the Company have or are deemed to have interests or B4 & Rk W R ER AR 7] K& H I (o] $E B >
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the @ (IZ(B AL HEENH )Y EXVINTE) K
Company and any of its associated corporations (within the meaning {5 - B D K ERBZRIEERE(ESRLH
of Part XV of the SFO) which were notifiable to the Company and & &) EXVERE 7 k89D S /B E AN A7) B
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the X HiHEZHAR (BEBEBE(FELEE K
SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken or I EBIEX B EW EESRIEBEE L
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or recorded inthe  E#% &) » 2 AARREIBIEE(EA LIS
register required to be maintained by the Company under Section 352 5| ) XV &} 5 352 (& 17 B = 2 M Ao 25 o0k
of Part XV of the SFO, or as otherwise notifiable to the Company and & -« siiRE G2 ) B B1TAE AN A7) ML
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. LRHIER SRR

fSe) Qs

X
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short

Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares
1.  Long and Short Position in the Shares of the Company

Name of Shareholder

RRERE
Schroders Plc

Nature of Interest

EaE

Investment manager

REEEA

Investment manager

KREEEA

Custodian corporation/Approved lending agent
FEEEE AR EREA

Interest in a controlled corporation

R PEGDEE B =

Person having a security interest in shares
BERMIERER 2 AL

Investment manager

TEEEA

Interest in a controlled corporation

R PR GDE B B

Interest in a controlled corporation
RREHER

Interest in a controlled corporation

R R GEE 8

Interest in a controlled corporation

RS HEE R

Hermes Investment Management Ltd
JPMorgan Chase & Co.

JPMorgan Chase & Co.

JPMorgan Chase & Co.

JPMorgan Chase & Co.

JPMorgan Chase & Co.

DCP, Ltd.

David Haifeng Liu

Julian Juul Wolhardt

FERRARD KAERERDHY

BERAR

1. RAEQXTIRGHFRRKR
Number of

ordinary shares
held at December

31, 20216
M2021512H31 0

Approximate
shareholding %

BFENEEREAD GRENSBNESH
115,145,600 (L) 8.0
114,923,748 (L) 7.9

93,711,938 (P) 6.5
9,506,977 (L) 0.6
1,735,231 (L) 0.1

18,200 (L) 0.0
9,287,129 (9) 0.6
100,682,100 (L)®! 7.0
100,682,100 (L)l 7.0
100,682,100 (L)®! 7.0

Notes #ff&

(a) (L) represents long position, (S) represents short position, (P) represents lending pool. (L)X RFA : (S)RFTIAR © (P)RE AT HE H AL -

(b) DCP, Ltd. owns or controls 100% voting rights in Brain Alpha Limited and Capital Solo Limited through DCP Partners Limited, DCP
General Partner, Ltd, DCP Capital Partners, L.P. and Mind Infinity Limited. Brain Alpha Limited is the beneficial owner of 81,126,800 shares
and Capital Solo Limited is the beneficial owner of 19,555,300 shares. Julian Juul Wolhardt and David Haifeng Liu each owns or controls
50% voting rights in DCP, Ltd. DCP, Ltd.i##DCP Partners Limited - DCP General Partner, Ltd + DCP Capital Partners, L.P. &2Mind Infinity
Limited# A sk #Z #Brain Alpha Limited & Capital Solo Limitedf) 2 & #& 24 - Brain Alpha Limited 81,126,800 MM EZHEAB A + M
Capital Solo Limited 419,555,300 B A& D HI B 25 %A A ° Julian Juul Wolhardt B2 251§ & &5 # B s HIDCP, Ltd. 50% K ZRIRHE

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2021, so far as the
directors are aware, no other persons (except the directors or chief
executive officer of the Company) or corporations had 5% or more
interests or short positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company which were recorded in the register required to be maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

Connected Transactions

Continuing Connected Transactions

Set out below is information in relation to the continuing connected
transactions entered into by the Company. The Company has
complied with the applicable disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year ended
December 31, 2021.

l
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Samsonite South Asia Private Limited (“Samsonite India”) and
Samsonite Middle East FZCO (“Samsonite Middle East”) are non-
wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company and are each held as to
40.0% by certain associates of Mr. Ramesh Tainwala and certain
members of his family (collectively, the “Tainwala Group”). As Mr.
Ramesh Tainwala is a director of each of Samsonite India and
Samsonite Middle East (in each case as nominee of the Tainwala
Group), he is therefore a connected person of the Company at the
subsidiary level. Accordingly, the transactions described below
between the Group and the Tainwala Group constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Transactions between the Group and the Tainwala Group
Manufacturing Agreement with Abhishri

On January 3, 2009, Samsonite India entered into a memorandum
of understanding (the “Abhishri Memorandum of Understanding”)
with Abhishri Packaging Private Limited (“Abhishri”), a company
controlled by certain members of the Tainwala Group. The Abhishri
Memorandum of Understanding, which had previously been renewed
for a one-year term that ended on December 31, 2021, was further
renewed with effect from January 1, 2022 for a term of one year that
will end on December 31, 2022.

Under the Abhishri Memorandum of Understanding, Abhishri
purchases certain raw materials and components from Samsonite
India and manufactures hard-side luggage products on behalf of
Samsonite India. The price paid by Abhishri to Samsonite India for
raw materials and components is based on the current market price
paid by Samsonite India, and the prices paid by Samsonite India
for products manufactured and manufacturing services provided
by Abhishri are determined based on Samsonite India’s current
procurement policies, and are monitored against relevant factors
including the cost of raw materials, the range of commercially
appropriate margins that Samsonite India is able to make on
comparable products and, where available, quotations and market
prices for comparable third-party products and services. Samsonite
India followed its procurement policies when determining the pricing
and terms of all transactions under the Abhishri Memorandum of
Understanding during the year ended December 31, 2021. The pricing
under the Abhishri Memorandum of Understanding is on normal
commercial terms as the margins available to Samsonite India from
the prices charged by Abhishri are comparable to (or more favorable
to the Group than) the margins available from the prices charged
by certain other third-party manufacturers who are not connected
persons under agreements with Samsonite India.

AAFEIIEEEH B R E Samsonite South
Asia Private Limited ([Samsonite Indial) K&
Samsonite Middle East FZCO ([ Samsonite
Middle East])#J/HRamesh Tainwala’t 4 &5
AT Rz ETFREKE (558 [ Tainwalate
B ]) 5 40.0%#zm ° ¥ Ramesh Tainwala
%4 ASamsonite India Samsonite Middle
EastZzEE (B Tainwalafk BIEH) © FLH
BARTRMBAREEMAEALT - HRE
(ETRRDFE14AT - Tl AL E ETainwala
SEMETHORGBRARRARFERAERS -

AEEHETainwalc EBZENR S

B2 Abhishriz B R E =

7200941 A3H * Samsonite India&2 Abhishri
Packaging Private Limited ([ Abhishri] » —
K Tainwala& BHE TR E QARIERHIA AR
M SRR E TS ([AbhishrisR fR B 8% ]) ©
AbhishrizR R # =82 S A E B EI —F - 7K2021
F12A31AfEm: WE—FTEH—F + 8
20221 A1 BREAER - #m2022412 431 H
[Em e

RIEAbhishrizzf#H =8 - Abhishrig
Samsonite IndiafEBE THEMK RTHILR
#Samsonite India®ERETFTHER °
Abhishrigt B4 & Z M Samsonite Indiaxt
E B TIARIE Samsonite Indialf b5 2 AT
BT - MASamsonite IndiagkAbhishrif
EMEMRAMRENHEERB I AHER IR
¥ Samsonite India®)IRGFEREHEMETE - I
IRAR AR A = R M BB AR« Samsonite India
AEAENBRERZENEEBMENEXEE
AWK (A ) AT E LR E = 7 E B R IR K =)
BERTESHEITER - Samsonite IndiaiA&EE
REZE2021412 A31 B 1L E AbhishrizR i
EEHET2HR 50 E B REHE - 19818
EEREEBER - AR Samsonite India B Abhishri
FTii e BRRMEAMNF BEEG IR
Samsonite Indiaz FBYHEIE FEEATHE
THME = RERENBNEEPZEH
FEEE (K AEBEAF) - tRAbhishrizn
FETHRIETHEBDRE —REAEGRRETE -
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Framework Agreement with Abhishri

On October 9, 2015, the Company entered into a framework
agreement with Abhishri (the “Abhishri Framework Agreement”) with
effect from April 6, 2015. The Abhishri Framework Agreement, which
had previously been renewed for a one-year term that ended on
December 31, 2021, was further renewed with effect from January 1,
2022 for a term of one year that will end on December 31, 2022.

The Company entered into the Abhishri Framework Agreement to
govern the terms of sales of components and finished products and
the provision of manufacturing services by Abhishri to members of
the Group, in addition to sales of components and finished products
and the provision of manufacturing services by Abhishri to Samsonite
India under the Abhishri Memorandum of Understanding. The Abhishri
Framework Agreement provides that all transactions between Abhishri
and the members of the Group thereunder (i) shall be in writing and
shall incorporate the Group’s general purchase conditions and standard
supplier agreement terms, (i) shall be on normal commercial terms,
which shall mean pricing and payment terms no less favorable to the
Group than those available from independent third-party suppliers for
comparable components, finished products or manufacturing services,
and (i) shall be in compliance with all applicable provisions of the
Listing Rules. The prices paid by the Group for products manufactured
and manufacturing services provided by Abhishri are determined
based on the Group’s current procurement policies, and are monitored
against relevant factors including the cost of raw materials, the range of
commercially appropriate margins that members of the Group are able
to make on comparable products and, where available, quotations and
market prices for comparable third-party products and services. The
Group followed its procurement policies when determining the pricing
and terms of all transactions under the Abhishri Framework Agreement
during the year ended December 31, 2021. The pricing under the
Abhishri Framework Agreement is on normal commercial terms as the
margins available to the members of the Group from the prices charged
by Abhishri are comparable to (or more favorable to the Group than)
margins available from the prices charged by certain other third-party
manufacturers and/or service providers who are not connected persons
under agreements with the Group.

Memoranda of Understanding with Bagzone

On December 18, 2020, Samsonite India and Bagzone Lifestyles
Private Limited (“Bagzone”), a company controlled by certain members
of the Tainwala Group, entered into two memoranda of understanding
(the “Memoranda of Understanding”), pursuant to which Bagzone was
appointed as a preferred dealer of certain products in India which are
sold in two retail stores operated by Bagzone. Under the Memoranda
of Understanding, the pricing and other terms under which Samsonite
India sells products to Bagzone are consistent with the pricing and
other terms under which Samsonite India sells products to other third-
party preferred dealers in India who are not connected persons. These
transactions are on normal commercial terms as the profit margin
available to Bagzone is within a range that is reasonably consistent
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with that made by other third-party dealers in India to whom
Samsonite India sells products. The Memoranda of Understanding,
which had previously been renewed for a one-year term that ended on
December 31, 2021, were further renewed with effect from January 1,
2022 for a term of one year that will end on December 31, 2022.

License and Lease Agreements with Members of the Tainwala
Group

During the year ended December 31, 2021, Samsonite India was party
to four lease or license agreements for office premises with members
of the Tainwala Group (the “Tainwala Leases”). These agreements
are on normal commercial terms and the rent, license fees and
administrative charges payable thereunder are within the reasonable
range of the then prevailing market rates for similar properties in the
relevant locations at the date of execution. Samsonite India followed
its procurement policies in relation to these agreements during the
year ended December 31, 2021. The Tainwala Leases, which had
previously been renewed for a one-year term that ended on December
31, 2021, were further renewed with effect from January 1, 2022 for a
term of one year that will end on December 31, 2022.

Aggregate Value of Transactions between the Members of the

Group and the Tainwala Group

The aggregate consideration payable by the members of the Group
to the Tainwala Group under all transactions described above for the
year ended December 31, 2021 was approximately US$10.87 million.
The annual caps for the maximum aggregate amount of consideration
payable by the members of the Group under transactions with the
Tainwala Group for the year ended December 31, 2021 and the
year ending December 31, 2022 have been set pursuant to the
requirement of the Listing Rules at US$18.50 million and US$24.00
million, respectively.

The aggregate consideration payable by the Tainwala Group to the
Group under all transactions described above for the year ended
December 31, 2021 was approximately US$0.30 million. The annual
caps for the maximum aggregate amount of consideration payable
by the Tainwala Group under transactions with the members of the
Group for the year ended December 31, 2021 and the year ending
December 31, 2022 have been set pursuant to the requirement of the
Listing Rules at US$1.00 million and US$0.85 million, respectively.

The annual caps in respect of transactions between the Group
and the Tainwala Group were determined primarily on the basis
of: (i) estimated purchases of raw materials and finished products
between Samsonite India and the Tainwala Group under the Abhishri
Manufacturing Agreement and the Memoranda of Understanding in
line with Samsonite India’s business plan; (i) negotiated rental and
associated costs payable by Samsonite India under the Tainwala
Leases in line with local market rates; (iiij estimated purchases of
finished products, components and manufacturing services by the
Group from Abhishri under the Abhishri Framework Agreement in line
with the Group’s business plan; and (iv) expected market conditions
and exchange rate fluctuations.
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For the year ended December 31, 2021, because the highest
applicable percentage ratio (other than the profits ratio) under the
Listing Rules was, on an annual basis, less than 1%, the transactions
between the Group and the Tainwala Group constituted continuing
connected transactions that were fully exempt from the shareholders’
approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements pursuant to
Rule 14A.76(1)(b) of the Listing Rules.

For the year ending December 31, 2022, because the highest
applicable percentage ratio (other than the profits ratio) under the
Listing Rules for the transactions between the Group and the Tainwala
Group will, on an annual basis, be more than 1.0% and less than
5.0%, the transactions between the Group and the Tainwala Group
will constitute continuing connected transactions exempt from the
circular and shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.76(2)
of the Listing Rules.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken by
the Company during the year in the ordinary course of business are
set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements. Other
than those transactions disclosed in the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” above, none of these transactions
constitutes a disclosable connected transaction as defined under the
Listing Rules.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors at the date of this Annual
Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float of
more than 25% of the issued share capital required under the Listing
Rules during the year ended December 31, 2021 and up to the Latest
Practicable Date.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements were audited by KPMG
LLP, who shall retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment, and a resolution to this effect will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Timothy Charles Parker
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 16, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B ZHEHRE

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Samsonite
International S.A. and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of December 31, 2021
and 2020, and the related consolidated statements of income (loss),
comprehensive income (loss), changes in equity, and cash flows for the
years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the
Group as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and its consolidated financial
performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAS) and in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group, and have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audits, which include relevant ethical requirements in the
United States of America and the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that were communicated with those
charged with governance and, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Indefinite lived tradenames impairment (note 8(b))

R A i B RUE (FiRE8(b))

The key audit matter
BEETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMESEFPONNEEZER

The Group’s indefinite lived tradename net balance as of
December 31, 2021 was US$1,296.7 million.
BEEER2021F12 A1 BER AT BFm B AR T
£1,296.7EEETT °

During the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2021,
the Group performed analyses, with assistance from
a third-party specialist, to determine the recoverable
value of indefinite lived tradenames. As a result of the
analyses, the Group recorded total net impairment
reversals of US$45.2 million.
BHZE2021F12A31BILFEHEEE  EEEAEE=FER
B17 B) T HEFT D AT - DAKETE AR AT R 4F HA 5 42 6 AT W BB
B RESNER  BEEESSRERDFEL46.28
BT °

The impairment testing of certain material indefinite
lived tradenames is considered to be a key audit matter
due to the complexity of the accounting requirements
and significant judgment required in determining the
assumptions used to estimate the recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount, which is based on the higher
of the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal,
has been derived from discounted forecast cash flow
models, to determine the amount of impairment loss,
if any. These models use several key assumptions,
including forecasted revenue growth rates and the
company specific risk premium component of the
discount rates that involve significant judgment and
could be subject to management bias.

BN ERER - I EEREMFT IR E € BB RPTA R
RIFFEZEHEAAE - Bt - BETERNERATAFHR
ZHORERHBRAR B — AR EFE - ATRE S EER
MRBAReREREFFH (ARAEBESRD A BER
EZRERAMETNRSCERE)  UEEREBES
(E) - 2SR GREUERRRR - SERR KT
RERARMREN A ABRERRERD ERFREXR
Fi - MERE A Re e AR

Our audit procedures in this area included, among
others:

HAEED mRERTEF 81

° evaluating the design of certain internal controls
including those over the forecasted revenue
growth rates and the company specific risk
premium over the Group’s indefinite lived
tradename impairment analyses;

. FHMhEREERAAEHRZRESITBIENE T
MR IE IR R T (B EZ S ETEAK SRR E R
NE A BEREERE)

o evaluating the Group’s ability to accurately
forecast revenues by comparing previous revenue
forecasts with actual results;

J MRLLEGRA W TR R ERAR
b leeatzo): WAl

o evaluating the appropriateness of the Group’s
forecasted revenue growth rates by comparing
them to historical revenue growth rates;

J iR IR WA IS R EALLR - FHEE R ETEAIU
nEREEEAE

o evaluating, with assistance from our own
valuation specialists, the appropriateness of
the Group’s forecasted revenue growth rates
by comparing them against growth rates from
publicly available market data for comparable
entities;

J ERMOEEZERBGET - LRE S TR W
RREEEEERERE A ARTSEEMNERE - A
IR E R ETE RN SIE R EE DS

o evaluating, with assistance from our own
valuation specialists, the appropriateness of
discount rates used in the impairment testing
of certain material indefinite lived tradenames,
which included comparing them against publicly
available market data for comparable entities;
and

. ERMNEEZERB T  sHEEE TEARERA
RESREErRENRTAERNMEEREERREEE

FHEE S EE

B HAheEgEEEE BN RARTISEIEEL
®ni Rk
o performing a sensitivity analysis to assess the

impact of possible changes to the discount rates
selected by management.

J ETBURMEDIT - ARHEATRE IR BB EIRE
BERRENZE o
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Valuation utilized for the Intra-Group IP Realignment (note 19(d))

AREERNARERERNGE (EE19(d)

The key audit matter
BEETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMEESPOAREZEE

During the year ended December 31, 2021, as part of
the Intra-Group IP Realignment, the Group completed an
intercompany transfer of the economic rights of certain
Samsonite Intellectual Property (IP). This transaction
established the following tax effects: (i) a current tax
expense of US$34.5 million, (i) deferred tax benefits
of US$111.7 million and (iii) the derecognition of a
portion of deferred tax benefits totaling US$34.6 million,
resulting in a net tax benefit of US$42.6 million. To
support the accounting for the transaction, the Group
performed, with the assistance of a third-party specialist,
a valuation which resulted in a material value of IP
transferred.

BE2021F12AALEFE - FARERABERSEE
W—&n  EEETKETHAENBERKCEREN
NRIHEE - ZRXHWEATHBZE : ()ENETIER X
B4.5AEETT * (I)ELEHIFERAN.7 B EEITT R (i) 1E
BRI DBELCEHIEE LG B4.6BEET  EATIEBER
FFEA2EEBET c RXFHRINGHERE  EEEES
=FERNWE TET THE  SHAEENABERZN
BEREE-

The valuation of the IP transferred in the current year
is considered to be a key audit matter due to the
complexity of the significant judgment required in
determining the assumptions used to estimate the
valuation of the transaction. The value of the IP was
derived from a discounted forecast cash flow model.
This model uses several key assumptions, including
forecasted revenue growth rates and the company
specific risk premium component of the discount rates
that involve significant judgment and could be subject to
management bias.

BN B T AP ET 32 5 il B # R 3R B P 75 B9 38 K 1 T Y
BEENE - Bt - BN FEREZEABEENEERRER
—HREEE c MBERNBERSNEERARDR
SRAPEL - ZREEAEIRMRERE - SFERIKE
EREUARBREENARABRREELD EFFPRE
AFE - MERER e g AFTRLE

Our audit procedures in this area included, among
others:

BMEE T mHEAZF B

° evaluating the design of certain internal controls
over the Group’s valuation process;

. ML B S E M ERERE T ARZEGIRRE

o evaluating the Group’s ability to accurately
forecast revenues by comparing previous revenue
forecasts with actual results;

. RALBBERRTEARERER @ fHhEREE
TR R B Be
° evaluating the appropriateness of the Group’s

forecasted revenue growth rates by comparing
them to historical revenue growth rates;

J iR IR WA I R E AR - T E S ETEAIU
nEREEEAE

° evaluating, with assistance from our own
valuation specialists, the appropriateness of
the Group’s forecasted revenue growth rates
by comparing them against growth rates from
publicly available market data for comparable
entities;

. EHEMOEEERBH T @ LRE S ETER KR
ERREMEERRE ARMSHEENERE - L
A EREEANGEREEREE

° evaluating, with assistance from our own
valuation specialists, the appropriateness of each
of the discount rates, which included comparing
them against publicly available market data for
comparable entities; and

J EEMNEEERBH T @ THIZREERRES

B Hh B HE EEE BN ARTISEIRELT
B R
° performing a sensitivity analysis to assess the

impact of possible changes to the discount rates
selected by management.

. ETERESTT - U EAI LIRSS EIEE
BERRENZE o
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Revenue recognition (note 3(p))

Wz (ME3(p))

The key audit matter
BHEETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMESEFPONNEEZEE

The Group recognizes revenue at the point in time
at which its performance obligation is satisfied by
transferring control of its goods to the customer.
Indicators that the Group typically considers in
determining transfer of control include legal title,
physical possession and significant risks and rewards of
ownership.

SR E BB P R 2 A e R A B VRS B
RN - EEEBTRREHREENEREFEEEE
EHEE BYVHEEERFAERENERNERREDR o

Since the Group’s sales occur in various countries
throughout the world, there is a risk of inconsistent
application of when the Group has transferred control
based on these indicators.
HRESENHEEBEMERZEARR - HEEEER
ZEEEEHEERTFERA S —BER -

We identified wholesale revenue transactions recorded
at or near year end as a key audit matter.

B AR RS F R A RR O #E B I 50 2 5 bk ol /s R 4
R S

Our audit procedures in this area included, among
others:

BMEET mREREF 81

° evaluating the design of certain internal controls
within the information technology environment
in which billing of the Group’s goods occur,
including change control procedures in place
around systems that bill revenue streams;

. AfAEEENFAERERENESRMNRETNE
FREBEEIRE - BECERERRNRR AT O
B B IR

° evaluating the design of the control over the
Group’s process to determine transfer of control;

. BRI RRGT - A E I E

o evaluating certain contractual arrangements such
as purchase orders, enabling us to understand
key terms and conditions negotiated with
customers, including the provisions for transfer of
control;

. SHEE T A AZEE - MREATE - With THRE H
BEERNE 2R - BEERIEEES
X

o examining a sample of revenue transactions
occurring at or near year end to obtain evidence
of transfer of control; and

. TERIRE I G RSB 6 R A B I E 32 5 DARE A
EhHlEEE &

° testing certain manual journal entries which were
recorded in revenue general ledger accounts.

. AIHARZE W =R FRIAFLR ©
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Disclosures pertaining to the going concern basis of accounting (note 2(f))

BEAREEEEETHRE (KE2(f)

The key audit matter
BEETSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMEESPOAEEZEE

To support the going concern basis in preparing the
consolidated financial statements, management has
prepared a cash flow forecast of the Group covering
the foreseeable future financial obligations including at
least through March 31, 2023 and is of the opinion the
Group will meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due and remain in compliance with certain of
the Group’s financial debt covenants.
REXFERUGEUBHRIGRAFELLELE  BEE
mETESEMNReRERE - MEELEZE2023F3 A
B1HMAI AR KRR BEL - Wk AESE A A AEEAM
BEBIPHETZESRT  MADAEIEEENET
TREBR -

The forecasted revenue growth rate is a key assumption
in the cash flow forecast of the Group.
AW RERXEEEENE RS TRAF R ERR -

Based on the significant judgment required, we identified
the determination of the need to disclose whether there
are uncertainties that may cast doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern basis as a key
audit matter.

HRBEEREASE  RMEREREREEFESE
SENBECERNIFROTEEFERES —HERSE
e

Our audit procedures in this area included, among
others:

BMEET mHERAZF B

° testing the design of certain controls over the
Group'’s cash flow forecast process;

. R B & B IR &% = T8RN A2 & T 12 6 5 it 19 5%
&t s

° analyzing the requirements of the financial
covenants under the Group’s relevant debt
agreements;

J A ESEEBESHRE TN BEREER

° evaluating the Group’s ability to accurately

forecast revenue by comparing previous revenue
forecasts with actual results;

J ABLERTWNSTEARERER  TEESEE
TR 2 BY B
o evaluating the appropriateness of the Group’s

forecasted revenue growth rates by comparing
them to historical revenue growth rates;

. 38 BRI e 1R R AL - ATk & SR B TR
R RESEAE

o performing a sensitivity analysis to assess the
impact of possible changes to the cash flow
forecasts; and

. ETERESTT - U AR LR EFEHR 2R
SERANTE &

o assessing the adequacy and appropriateness of
management’s going concern disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

. FHMhEREEASMBRRTEBRELENRE

BRI REE -
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Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS as issued by
the IASB, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required
to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise significant doubt about the Group'’s ability to continue
as a going concern for one year after the date that the consolidated
financial statements are available to be issued; to disclose, as applicable,
matters related to going concern, and to use the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
consolidated financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and ISAs, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit.

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.
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° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

° Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise significant doubt about the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision, and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit,
significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we
identified during the audit.

Management is responsible for the other information included in the Annual
Report. The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon. Our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements does not cover the other information, and we do not express
any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and consider a materially
inconsistency exists between the other information and the consolidated
financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an
uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are
required to describe it in our report.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’
report is David B. Wilson.

KPMe P

Boston, Massachusetts
March 16, 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (LOSS)

el (FE) &

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A31HLEE

(Expressed in millions of US Dollars, Note

except per share data) (U EBETLS - SREBRI) ik 2021 2020
Net sales HE TR 4 2,020.8 1,636.7
Cost of sales SHERA (919.3) (830.4)
Gross profit EAH 1,101.5 706.3
Distribution expenses bok= b3 (699.6) (744.6)
Marketing expenses EIHR X (82.3) (73.3)
General and administrative expenses —MRRITE A (206.0) (200.0)
Impairment Reversals (Charges) RERE (BH)

(exclusive of amounts included in (TBEFTAHERANEEE)

cost of sales) 5, 7,8, 18(a) 31.6 (916.0)
Restructuring Charges (exclusive of BHER (TEETAHEKR AN ERE)

amounts included in cost of sales) 6 (17.1) (54.5)
Other income E At A 21 4.6 15.9
Operating profit (loss) s T (EE) 132.7 (1,266.2)
Finance income B 20 3.6 3.8
Finance costs H%EA 20 (169.0) (120.0)
Net finance costs MG ERFE 20 (165.4) (116.2)
Loss before income tax KRETS R ES 1B (32.7) (1,382.4)
Income tax benefit S fi e 19(a) 56.2 94.4
Profit (loss) for the year FRm A (FR) 23.5 (1,288.0)
Profit (loss) attributable to equity holders R #ER A A JE1G % ) (E1E) 14.3 (1,277.7)
Profit (loss) attributable to IR ERERR (B18)

non-controlling interests 9.2 (10.8)
Profit (loss) for the year FRiE Al (E18) 23.5 (1,288.0)
Earnings (loss) per share: BRAF (FH8) :

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) BREAREERF (F18)

per share (A EFRZETZ5)

(Expressed in US Dollars per share) 13 0.010 (0.891)
The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial — F&EMiHI TS B HRFRH—2D
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
mermEWE (B5E) &

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A31HLEE

Note
(Expressed in millions of US Dollars) (UEEETL3) BiaE 2021 2020
Profit (loss) for the year FREN (FHR) 23.5 (1,288.0)
Other comprehensive income (I0ss): HZE e (B1R)
Items that will never be reclassified KXAGEFHHEEBRZIER :
to profit or loss: _ )
Re-measurements on defined B EEERMN 2 (BREE)
benefit plans, net of tax 15(c), 19(c) 2.4 (1.9)
2.4 (1.9)
ltems that are or may be reclassified HigexnENsAEB=2EE ¢
subsequently to profit or loss: 5
Changes in fair value of hedges, iz AR EEZH (FREIE)
net of tax » y 14(a), 19(c) 19.9 (81.2)
Settlement of cross currency swap HERX BB (BREE)
agreement, net of tax 19(c), 22(d) 0.9 -
Foreign currency translation gains BEHNERSHNETE 5 Wias (8518)
(losses) for foreign operations 19(c), 20 8.0 (26.7)
28.8 57.9)
Other comprehensive income (loss) Hib 2w (F518) 31.2 (59.8)
Total comprehensive income (loss) FREERE (FB8) 858
for the year 54.7 (1,347.8)
Total comprehensive income (loss) i A ARG EE kS (BE) 8538
attributable to equity holders . 47.9 (1,336.3)
Total comprehensive income (loss) R EREN 2 E R (Fi18) 88
attributable to non-controlling interests 6.8 (11.5)
Total comprehensive income (loss) FRE2EWE (FB18) 858
for the year 54.7 (1,347.8)

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial  BEMTMisEfER 4R & BIAGHRz A — 205 -
statements.

174 Samsonite International S.A. /Annual Report 2021 /



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ma SRR R

Note December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

(Expressed in millions of US Dollars) (XEEZETZ3) Bt 5 2021F12H31H 2020412 A31H
Non-Current Assets FkREBEE
Property, plant and equipment LI E NG 7 155.1 187.8
Lease right-of-use assets HEFERAEEE 18(a) 348.9 399.6
Goodwill mE 8 828.5 849.6
Other intangible assets HihmEAE 8 1,392.3 1,418.3
Deferred tax assets EERIE A 19(d) 124.2 54.5
Other assets and receivables HAth & = K FEWRGRIA 9(a) 65.7 78.1
Total non-current assets B EEERE 2,914.7 2,987.9
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories F& 10 348.4 455.9
Trade and other receivables JE LT AR R % L At 8 M R IE 11 206.2 141.0
Prepaid expenses and other assets BRNERREMEE 9(b) 60.2 82.4
Cash and cash equivalents HekRESEEY 12 1,324.8 1,495.0
Total current assets BB ERRE 1,939.6 2,174.3
Total assets BELSE 4,854.3 5,162.2
Equity and Liabilities EERAE
Equity: s
Share capital A& 24(b) 14.4 14.3
Reserves i 24(b) 675.3 619.8
Total equity attributable to equity holders R%#E+FH A FE(LEZS (A58 689.7 634.1
Non-controlling interests FEPERR R A 24(c) 36.9 34.9
Total equity e 726.6 669.0
Non-Current Liabilities FERBEE
Loans and borrowings BERRER 14(a) 2,682.0 3,110.1
Lease liabilities HEAE 18(b) 302.8 386.2
Employee benefits EEEF| 15 28.1 25.2
Non-controlling interest put options FEF2R AR A ek 0 B A 22(g) 47.2 35.1
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFRIEA & 19(d) 140.4 174.5
Derivative financial instruments PTESMIA 14(a), 22(d) 3.4 24.3
Other liabilities Hihafk 6.1 6.5
Total non-current liabilities JEnE & AL 3,210.0 3,761.9
Current Liabilities REBAE
Loans and borrowings ERREK 14(b) 60.7 47.8
Current portion of long-term loans RAERRERNENERZ S
and borrowings 14(b) 46.6 32.8
Current portion of lease liabilities HEBBMENEAHS 18(b) 131.2 145.3
Employee benefits EEEF 15 92.9 57.4
Trade and other payables P 1 B 5% % L Ath P {51 R IE 16 529.0 412.9
Current tax liabilities ENERTR T & 15 57.3 35.1
Total current liabilities e A RAERE 917.7 731.3
Total liabilities B &R 4,127.7 4,498.2
Total equity and liabilities = kB EEE 4,854.3 5,162.2
Net current assets mENEEFRE 1,021.9 1,443.0
Total assets less current liabilities BEAFERTE AR 3,936.6 4,430.9

The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial  BEMIMI B LR A BT RERA—E89 ©
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

4: /\,%Z.%Eb%:z

n‘/—ﬁ

Number of Share
(Expressed in millions of US Dollars, Note shares capital
except number of shares) (ABEEETZ5  Ri7# 8BRS B 5 BHEE ;&N
Year ended December 31, 2021 HZE2021F12A31HILEE
Balance, January 1, 2021 1K2021F1 A1 BE &R 1,434,880,447 14.3
Profit for the year F g A = =
Other comprehensive income (I0ss): Hiv2mEas (BR) )
Remeasurements on defined benefit plans, BRI EERENE (BRFE)
net of tax . 15(c), 19(c) - -
Changes in fair value of hedges, net of tax w2 DA BEES (BREHE) 14(a), 19(c) - -
Settlement of cross currency swap agreement, HERX BB ®E (REE)
net of tax 19(c), 22(d) = =
Foreign currency translation gains (losses) for BONSERS INEE I 3 U s (B518)
foreign operations 19(c), 20 - -
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZEWEETE = =
Transactions with owners recorded directly HEFAESNEHREE ANRS :
in equity:
Change in fair value of put options included d‘)\f“‘ RnHgEZ AR BEE
in equity #a) 22(g) - -
Share-based compensation expense LAHxTn A5 B B A <2 15 = -
Exercise of share options ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’i% 15(b) 23,278 0.0
Vesting of time-based restricted share awards 57 By Fﬁ?ﬁf@xﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁxf‘“ 15(b) 2,001,338 0.1
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests IJ?%H‘ R R A A% B 13(c) - -
Balance, December 31, 2021 R2021F12 A31 HR 4 1,436,905,063 14.4
Year ended December 31, 2020 HZE2020512A31RILFEE
Balance, January 1, 2020 1K2020F1 A1 BHH % 1,432,569,771 14.3
Loss for the year FAEE ) - -
Other comprehensive income (I0ss): Hib 2 mEas (F518) :
Remeasurements on defined benefit plans, B2 EBEANE (BRF%)
net of tax 15(c), 19(c) - -
Changes in fair value of hedges, net of tax hz N EBEZS (BEIE) 14(a), 19(c) - -
Foreign currency translation losses for BONSERSINEE B 5 B 1R
foreign operations 19(c), 20 - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEEEESE - =
Transactions with owners recorded directly HEARSNEERANRS
in equity:
Change in fair value of put options included FEAEGZRESEZ AAEBE
in equity g 22(g) - -
Share-based compensation expense Mﬂxf SN b 15 - -
Vesting of time-based restricted share awards 57 8 B R 1 609 522 PR 1| A% 1 BE i 15(b) 2,310,676 0.0
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests F’JiH‘“‘“Hﬂ&ﬁn/ﬁﬁﬁﬁ g 13(c) = -
Balance, December 31, 2020 R2020F12 A31 BRI &R 1,434,880,447 14.3
The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial statements. K& B4R & BT 5 TR T A —30 D ©
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Reserves

L]
Retained
earnings/ Total equity
(Accumulated attributable to
Additional Translation Other deficit) equity holders  Non-controlling

paid-in capital reserve reserves REBA REFEA interests Total equity
BIMAARA BRERE Hitf#E (RETE ) FE LR AR FERER R
1,061.1 (77.2) 48.6 (412.7) 634.1 34.9 669.0
- - - 14.3 14.3 9.2 23.5

- - 2.2 - 2.2 0.2 2.4

- - 19.8 - 19.8 0.1 19.9

- - 0.9 - 0.9 - 0.9

- 10.7 - - 10.7 (2.7) 8.0

- 10.7 22.9 14.3 47.9 6.8 54.7
- - - (4.3) (4.3) - (4.3)

- - 11.9 - 11.9 - 11.9

0.1 - - - 0.1 - 0.1

il - (5.2) - - - -
- - - - - (4.8) (4.8)
1,066.3 (66.5) 78.2 (402.7) 689.7 36.9 726.6
1,055.2 (51.6) 80.9 852.2 1,951.0 50.5 2,001.5
- - - (1,277.7) (1,277.7) (10.3) (1,288.0)

= = (1.8) = (1.8) (0.1) (1.9)

- - (81.2) - (81.2) 0.0 (81.2)

- (25.6) - - (25.6) (1.1) (26.7)

- (25.6 (33.0) (1,277.7) (1,336.3) (11.5) (1,347.8)

- - - 12.8 12.8 - 12.8

- - 6.6 - 6.6 - 6.6

5.9 - (5.9 - - - -

- - - - - 4.1) (4.1)
1,061.1 (77.2) 48.6 (412.7) 634.1 34.9 669.0
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

EE%/)ILEZ:—%

n‘/—ﬁ

Year ended December 31,

HZ12A31ALLEE
Note
(Expressed in millions of US Dollars) (U EBZETTZ5]) BiaE 2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities: RETH ASRE :
Profit (loss) for the year FEREA (FE) 235 (1,288.0)
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss) for the year to  {EHBEIABE R (Fi8) BLL
net cash generated from (used in) operating BB (FR) R e Tﬁgﬁ :
activities:
Depreciation wE 7 45.8 66.1
Amortization of intangible assets R AERE 8 32.0 32.6
Amortization of lease right-of-use assets HEFREEESS 18(a) 119.9 156.5
Impairment (Reversals) Charges (inclusive of AE (BE) B (REHERAEE)
amounts in cost of sales) 5,7,8,18(a) (31.6) 920.3
Change in fair value of put options included in ﬂ')\ﬁﬂ‘%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ DhEEZ AR BE
finance costs 8 20, 22(g) 7.8 (16.9)
Non-cash share-based compensation Mﬂxf RIS B 15(a) 11.9 6.6
Interest expense on borrowings and lease liabilities &5 R E & EHOFBF X 14, 20 127.9 129.1
Non-cash charge to derecognize deferred TR ﬁkﬁﬂﬁgm RFEREER
financing costs 14, 20 241 -
Income tax benefit FiEfifs 19(a) (56.2) (94.4)
305.1 88.1)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: REBERBERD :
Trade and other receivables e RS &Eﬁﬂ@& (74.5) 220.1
Inventories F& 81.6 140.8
Other current assets HitmEEE (6.6) 21.7
Trade and other payables e R IR S E A P 9 5008 180.5 (295.1)
Other assets and liabilities HitBERAR 18.1 32.5
Cash generated from operating activities KEFTHRRE 504.2 31.9
Interest paid on borrowings and lease liabilities ERRAEEENENFIE (118.9) (117.9)
Income tax refunded (paid) BRE (BR) FEH 1.8 (28.2)
Net cash generated from (used in) operating activities &&/EEF1E (FTH) REFE 387.1 (114.2)
Cash flows from investing activities: REFHZHERE :
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEYE « BER&E 7 (20.8) (20.6)
Other intangible asset additions HithEHEERE (5.1) (5.5)
Proceeds from the sale of Speck % Speck M FT1E VB 1 35.3 -
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities BB ESFTIRE (FTA) R e R 9.4 (26.1)
Cash flows from financing activities: BMETHZRLRE
Proceeds from (payments on) Amended Term Loan  &EFTAEHERBLBFTE A ()
A Fagility 14(a) (145.0) 800.0
Proceeds from (payments on) 2020 Incremental 20204 BB E B E SR TS 08
Term Loan B Facility (3R 14(a) (595.5) 600.0
Proceeds from (payments on) Amended RIEETERE ERBATE A (130
Revolving Credit Facility 14(a) (145.0) 810.3
Proceeds from 2021 Incremental Term Loan 2021 BB HE ARG A
B Facility 14(a) 495.5 -
Payment and settlement of Term Loan A Facility T REEATHER m&‘l@ 14(a) - (797.0)
Other payments on term loan facilities TE A S R R i A E At 14(a) (10.6) (24.9)
Proceeds from other loans and borrowings ﬁm%ﬁ&f‘%?ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂ 14(a) 14.2 24.6
Principal payments on lease liabilities HEBBNARSAR 18(d) (156.5) (215.7)
Payment of deferred financing costs SARHEE R A AN 14(a) (3.5) (34.8)
Proceeds from the exercise of share options 1T R A 1S 5008 15 0.0 =
Dividend payments to non-controlling interests AR R R (RS 13(c) (4.8) (4.1)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities BBEEMEME (TR BeF8E (551.2) 1,158.4
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 34 X34 SEMEM O ) F5E (154.7) 1,018.1
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of year FORERALEEY 1,495.0 462.6
Effect of exchange rate changes EREHNTE (15.5) 14.3
Cash and cash equivalents, at end of year FRELRBLEED 12 1,324.8 1,495.0
The accompanying notes form part of the consolidated financial  FERKIBi B S IS HE A —

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR ML

(a)

Samsonite International S.A. (the “Company”), together with its
consolidated subsidiaries (the “Group”), is principally engaged in
the design, manufacture, sourcing and distribution of luggage,
business and computer bags, outdoor and casual bags and travel
accessories throughout the world, primarily under the Samsonite®,
Tumi®, American Tourister®, Gregory®, High Sierra®, Kamiliant®,
ebags®, Lipault® and Hartmann® brand names as well as other
owned and licensed brand names. The Group sells its products
through a variety of wholesale distribution channels, through its
company-operated retail stores and through e-commerce. The
Group sells its products in North America, Asia, Europe and Latin
America.

On July 30, 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company sold
Speculative Product Design, LLC (“Speck”), including the Speck
brand, for an aggregate cash consideration of US$35.3 million.
The net proceeds from the sale were used to repay a portion of the
outstanding borrowings under the Company’s Amended Revolving
Credit Facility (as defined in note 14 Loans and Borrowings).

The Company’s ordinary shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The Company was incorporated in Luxembourg on March 8,
2011 as a public limited liability company (a société anonyme),
whose registered office is 13-15 avenue de la Liberté, L-1931
Luxembourg.

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in note
24 Parent Company Financial Information and Particulars of Group
Entities.

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”), which collective term includes all International Accounting
Standards (“IAS”) and related interpretations, as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”).

These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by
the Board of Directors (the “Board”) on March 16, 2022.

(a)

MEBBBRERAR ([RAAAE] - &
REGEMBRARBAIASE])
FTEERHMRBRS  HE KBEX
DIHTFEME BBEELREEE - B
B R AR B PA R B B B ¢ - BE T AR
WmEEEREFTSE®
American Tourister® ~ Gregory® ~ High
Sierra® ~ Kamiliant® - ebags® * Lipault®
K Hartmann® g i LA & H Ath B B R
R mE - AEEEBSBHEDHE
B BETEEREASTHEHEEHR
B o AEERNIEEM - M - BUM K
BT EIMNHE K Em -

Tumi® »

M202147A30H « ARAl—REEM
B2 5] & Speculative Product Design,
LLC ([ Speck]) (B2 1ESpeckfmh®) » #8IR
SRER/IBIBEET - HEFHME
FHIBFREE ANERAR RGBT RR
EERE (TR AWF14ERRER) B
THIEBD RIEBRETK ©

AR ERBRABEEHAERZFBR
2R ([BRAT]) ERET o AAAR
2011F3 A8 HRERBHMA LR —
RARBREFLR - Bt EEMA
7 13-15 avenue de la Liberté, L-1931
Luxembourg °

AEENTEHE R RFITHRMHE24
BRABPHKEMREEBRHFAER -

AREH
RAEMBERERTIRE(BERABREE
A (TIFRS ) A% - 41 B 1 mBR
grtEAEEE ([IASB)) BMAHAE
(EEREFERD ([1AS]) RBEZRE -

WEHFEPMBHRENTEBTE(RAME
PI>MERRERER(EEBAERS
FrERABES LA ([KETR
A1) BB R -

R2022F3 A16H © A MGHRES
ze ([EFg]) RETE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A

(b)

(c)

(d)
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RS R L

Basis of Measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except as noted in the Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies set forth in note 3 below.

Certain amounts presented in this document have been rounded
up or down to the nearest million, unless otherwise indicated. There
may therefore be discrepancies between the actual totals of the
individual amounts in the tables and the totals shown, between the
amounts in the tables and the amounts given in the corresponding
analyses in the text of this document. All percentages and key
figures were calculated using the underlying data in whole United
States Dollars.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The consolidated financial statements are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group
operates (“functional currency”). The functional currencies of the
significant subsidiaries within the Group are the currencies of the
primary economic environment and key business processes of
these subsidiaries and include, but are not limited to, United States
Dollars, Euros, Chinese Renminbi, South Korean Won, Japanese
Yen and Indian Rupee.

Unless otherwise stated, the consolidated financial statements are
presented in United States Dollars (‘USD” or “US Dollar”), which is
the functional and presentation currency of the Company.

Use of Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under
different assumptions and conditions.
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(d)

(e)

Use of Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions
(Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods. No significant
changes occurred during the current reporting period of estimates
reported in prior periods.

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in
the consolidated financial statements is included in the following

notes:

o Note 3(p) — Revenue recognition

° Note 5 — Impairment (reversals) charges

o Note 6 — Restructuring charges

o Note 7 — Property, plant and equipment

o Note 8 — Goodwill and other intangible assets
° Note 10 — Inventories

° Note 15(b) — Share-based payment arrangements
o Note 18 — Leases

o Note 19 — Income taxes

° Note 22(g) — Fair value of financial instruments
o Note 24(c) — Non-controlling interests

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that
may have an effect on the consolidated financial statements
resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year is
included in the following notes:

° Note 5 — Impairment (reversals) charges

° Note 7 — Property, plant and equipment

o Note 8 — Goodwill and other intangible assets

o Note 15(b) — Share-based payment arrangements

o Note 17 — Contingent liabilities

° Note 18 — Leases

o Note 19 — Income taxes

° Note 22 — Financial risk management and financial instruments

Changes in Accounting Policies

The IASB has issued a number of new, revised and amended IFRS.
For the purpose of preparing the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2021, the following revised
standards became effective.

(d)

(e)

RAFIE - EEHRARER ()
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Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

In August 2020, the IASB issued Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2 (“IBOR Reform — Phase 2 Amendments”), which amends
IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, |AS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, \FRS 7, Financial Instruments:
Disclosures, IFRS 4, Insurance Contracts and IFRS 16, Leases.
The IBOR Reform — Phase 2 Amendments address issues that
might affect financial reporting after the reform of an interest rate
benchmark, including its replacement with alternative benchmark
rates. For changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows of a financial asset or financial liability to which the amortized
cost measurement applies as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform, the Group applies the practical expedient to account for
these changes by updating the effective interest rate; such change
in effective interest rate normally has no significant effect on the
carrying amount of the relevant financial asset or financial liability.

The Group amended its financial instruments that had contractual
terms indexed to the London Interbank Offered Rate (‘LIBOR”) for
borrowings under the Amended Revolving Credit Facility that were
denominated in Euros on October 22, 2021 (see note 14 Loans
and Borrowings for further discussion). The application of IBOR
Reform — Phase 2 Amendments did not have a significant impact
on the financial position and performance of the Group for the
EURO denominated borrowings that were transitioned from LIBOR.

Although US Dollar referenced LIBOR was planned to be
discontinued by the end of 2021, the ICE Benchmark Administration
(“IBA”), the FCA-regulated and authorized administrator of LIBOR,
announced that it has started to consult on its intention to cease
the publication of certain US Dollar referenced LIBORs after
June 2023. As of December 31, 2021, it is still unclear when
the announcement that will set a date for the termination of the
publication of US Dollar LIBOR will take place. As of December 31,
2021, the Group has several bank loans referenced to US Dollar
LIBOR (see Note 14 Loans and Borrowings for further discussion)
which will or may be subject to interest rate benchmark reform. The
Group expects no significant gains or losses should the interest rate
benchmark for these loans change resulting from the IBOR Reform
— Phase 2 Amendments.

Impact of COVID-19

During the year ended December 31, 2021 the Group experienced
improved sales trends as the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic
on demand for the Group’s products moderated as a result
of the rollout of vaccines, the continuing recovery in travel and
governments in many countries loosening social-distancing, travel
and other restrictions. The Group’s net sales recovery accelerated
during the second half of 2021. During 2020 and through the
first half of 2021, certain government-mandated restrictions and
lockdowns resulted in temporary closures of certain retail stores
in which the Company’s products were sold, quarantines and
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(f)

Impact of COVID-19 (Continued)

social-distancing required or recommended by governments, and
significant reductions in travel and discretionary spending among
consumers, which led to reduced demand for many of the Group’s
products (collectively, the “COVID-19 Impacts”).

While navigating through the challenges caused by COVID-19,
the health and safety of the Group’s employees and their families,
as well as its customers and business partners, has been and
will continue to be the Group’s top priority. While the extent and
duration of the COVID-19 pandemic remain uncertain, it has had,
and it will likely continue to have, adverse impacts on the Group’s
business, financial condition and results of operations.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Group’s net sales
were significantly impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic, with
full-year 2020 consolidated net sales decreasing by US$2,102.1
million, or 57.8% (-57.5% constant currency), compared to the year
ended December 31, 2019. The Group’s management took steps
beginning in the first quarter of 2020 to enhance the Company’s
liquidity and further improve its resilience in response to the
COVID-19 Impacts. In addition to strengthening the Company’s
liquidity, the Group reduced its operating expenses to mitigate the
impact of lower sales on profit and cash flow as well as to right-size
the business for the future. Management continues to tightly
manage the Group’s operating expenses.

During 2021, the Group’s quarterly net sales performance (when
compared to the corresponding quarter in 2019) experienced
sequential improvement. During the fourth quarter of 2021, the
Group’s net sales decline narrowed to 30.9% (-30.2% constant
currency) when compared to the fourth quarter of 2019. On July
30, 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company sold Speck
for US$35.3 million. When excluding the net sales of Speck for
the fourth quarter of 2019, consolidated net sales decreased by
28.8% (-28.0% constant currency), for the fourth quarter of 2021
compared to the fourth quarter of 2019. This encouraging trend
continued from the third quarter of 2021, when the decline in the
Group’s net sales narrowed to 37.3% (-37.6% constant currency),
when excluding the net sales of Speck for August and September
2019, compared to the third quarter of 2019; from the second
quarter of 2021, when the Group’s net sales decreased by 51.8%
(-52.2% constant currency) compared to the second quarter of
2019; and from the first quarter of 2021, when the Group’s net
sales decreased by 57.4% (-57.3% constant currency) compared
to the first quarter of 2019. The Group’s actions to enhance and
preserve liquidity and reduce expenses are discussed in greater
detail below.

(f)
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Impact of COVID-19 (Continued)

During 2020, in order to strengthen the Company’s financial
flexibility in response to the COVID-19 Impacts, the Company and
certain of its direct and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries entered
into certain amendments to the Group’s credit agreement that
increased the maximum borrowings under the Group’s revolving
credit facility by US$200.0 million to US$850.0 million and provided
for the 2020 Incremental Term Loan B Facility (as defined in note
14 Loans and Borrowings) in the aggregate principal amount of
US$600.0 million. The Group borrowed US$810.3 million (US
Dollar equivalent at the applicable exchange rate on the borrowing
date) under its Amended Revolving Credit Facility (as defined in
note 14 Loans and Borrowings) on March 20, 2020 and US$600.0
million under the 2020 Incremental Term Loan B Facility on May 7,
2020. The amendment to the Group’s credit agreement entered
into on April 29, 2020 suspended the requirement for the Group
to test certain financial covenants under its credit agreement from
the beginning of the second quarter of 2020 through the end of
the second quarter of 2021 and, for each of the three quarters
beginning with the third quarter of 2021 and ending with the first
quarter of 2022, the Company has elected to use Consolidated
Adjusted EBITDA (as defined in note 14 Loans and Borrowings)
from the first two quarters of 2019 and fourth quarter of 2019
(the “Historical EBITDA”) (instead of actual Consolidated Adjusted
EBITDA from the fourth quarter of 2020 and the first two quarters
of 2021) to calculate compliance with the Financial Covenants (as
defined in note 14 Loans and Borrowings). During the Suspension
Period (as defined in note 14 Loans and Borrowings), the Company
was required to comply with a minimum liquidity covenant
of US$500.0 million and the Group was subject to additional
restrictions on its ability to incur indebtedness and make restricted
payments (including payments of distributions or dividends to the
Company’s shareholders) and investments. The minimum liquidity
covenant will remain in effect for so long as the Company uses
the Historical EBITDA to calculate compliance with the Financial
Covenants.

On June 7, 2021, the Company and certain of its direct and indirect
wholly-owned subsidiaries entered into the Fifth Amended Credit
Agreement (as defined in note 14 Loans and Borrowings). Under
the terms of the Fifth Amended Credit Agreement, the Historical
EBITDA for each of the quarters ended December 31, 2020,
March 31, 2021 and June 30, 2021 that is used for the purpose
of calculating the maximum total net leverage ratio and minimum
interest coverage ratio under the Financial Covenants will be
increased by an amount equal to US$65.7 million. This amount was
determined based on the annualized run-rate fixed cost savings
from the Company’s comprehensive cost reduction program
that was implemented during 2020. The Fifth Amended Credit
Agreement further strengthened the Company’s financial flexibility
to navigate its business through the challenges from the COVID-19
pandemic.
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Impact of COVID-19 (Continued)

On June 21, 2021, the Company and certain of its direct and
indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries entered into the Sixth Amended
Credit Agreement (as defined in note 14 Loans and Borrowings).
The Sixth Amended Credit Agreement provides for the 2021
Incremental Term Loan B Facility in the principal amount of
US$495.5 million, which was borrowed by the Group on June
21, 2021 and, together with US$100.0 million of cash on the
statement of financial position, was used to repay the aggregate
US$595.5 million principal amount then outstanding under the
2020 Incremental Term Loan B Facility. The interest rate applicable
to the Group’s borrowings under the 2021 Incremental Term Loan
B Facility is equal to LIBOR plus 3.00% per annum with a LIBOR
floor of 0.75% (or a base rate plus 2.00% per annum). The loans
under the 2021 Incremental Term Loan B Facility were issued with
original issue discount with an issue price of 99.75%. See note 14
Loans and Borrowings for further description of the Group’s credit
agreement.

As of December 31, 2021, the carrying amount of the Group’s
loans and borrowings was US$2,789.4 million, net of US$12.6
million in deferred financing costs. During the year ended December
31, 2021, the Group prepaid US$370.0 million principal amount of
borrowings under the Amended Senior Credit Facilities (as defined
in note 14 Loans and Borrowings), and cash and cash equivalents
held by the Group amounted to US$1,324.8 million as of December
31, 2021. Along with US$176.7 million available to be borrowed on
the Group’s Amended Revolving Credit Facility, the Group had total
liquidity of US$1,501.4 million as of December 31, 2021.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group continued
to realize fixed cost savings from a combination of permanent and
temporary actions completed, primarily during 2020. Permanent
actions consisted primarily of headcount reductions and savings
from closing stores. Temporary actions consisted primarily of
furloughs, temporary headcount reductions, eliminating bonuses,
salary reductions, temporary rent reductions and other expense
reductions, such as travel and entertainment and professional
services. These fixed cost savings have been reflected as
reductions in the Group’s cost of sales, distribution expenses and
general and administrative expenses reported in the consolidated
statements of income (loss).
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Impact of COVID-19 (Continued)

The Credit Agreement (as defined in note 14 Loans and
Borrowings) and the Indenture (as defined in note 14 Loans and
Borrowings) require the Company and its subsidiaries to comply
with certain restrictive covenants, including certain financial
covenants under the Credit Agreement. Under the terms of
the Credit Agreement, the Company’s requirement to test the
maximum total net leverage ratio and minimum interest coverage
ratio under its Financial Covenants was suspended during the
Suspension Period. Following the Suspension Period, the Company
resumed testing compliance with the total net leverage ratio and
interest coverage ratio covenants beginning with the measurement
period ended September 30, 2021. For the measurement periods
ended September 30, 2021 and December 31, 2021, and for the
measurement period ending March 31, 2022, the Company has
elected to use Historical EBITDA (instead of actual Consolidated
Adjusted EBITDA from the fourth quarter of 2020 and the first two
quarters of 2021) to calculate the total net leverage and minimum
interest coverage ratios. The Historical EBITDA for each of the
quarters ended December 31, 2020, March 31, 2021 and June 30,
2021 used to calculate compliance with the Financial Covenants
will be increased by the Add-back Amount (as defined in note 14
Loans and Borrowings).

Under the Financial Covenants, beginning with the test period
ending on March 31, 2022, and for each test period ending
thereafter, the Company’s total net leverage ratio as of the last
day of such test period must not exceed 4.50:1.00. For the test
period ending on June 30, 2022 and for each test period ending
thereafter, the Company’s actual Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA
for each fiscal quarter included in the applicable test period must be
used to determine compliance with the total net leverage ratio and
the interest coverage ratio. Until March 31, 2022, the Company is
required to comply with a minimum liquidity covenant of US$500.0
million. Thereafter, under the Terms of the 2021 Incremental Term
Loan B Facility, the Company is required to comply with a minimum
liquidity covenant of US$100.0 million until repayment in full of
the 2021 Incremental Term Loan B Facility. The Company was in
compliance with the Financial Covenants and the minimum liquidity
covenant as of December 31, 2021 and remains in compliance with
such covenants as of the date hereof.
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Impact of COVID-19 (Continued)

A prolonged downturn in the Company’s business, including a
further extended downturn caused by the impacts of the COVID-19
pandemic, could result in a breach of the total net leverage ratio
and/or minimum interest coverage ratio covenants which, if not
cured or waived, could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial condition and results of operations. The
principal risks associated with the Company’s leverage include the
following:

o the Company’s ability to obtain additional financing in
the future for acquisitions, capital expenditures, general
corporate purposes or other purposes could be limited;

o the Company’s borrowings under the Credit Agreement
accrue interest at variable rates, and increases in certain
benchmark interest rates would increase the Company’s
cost of borrowing (note, however, that the Group maintained
interest rate swaps with respect to approximately 23% of
the principal amount of the borrowings under the Credit
Agreement at December 31, 2021, which reduces a portion
of the Company’s exposure to interest rate increases);

o the Company’s leverage could increase its vulnerability to
declining economic conditions, including the adverse impact
on the Company’s business from COVID-19, particularly if
the decline is further prolonged;

o failure to comply with any of the covenants under the Credit
Agreement or the Indenture could result in an event of
default which, if not cured or waived, could have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition and
results of operations, and may cast doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern;

o financial and restrictive covenants under the Credit
Agreement, and restrictive covenants under the Indenture,
could adversely affect or limit the Company’s ability to,
among other things, implement business plans, react
to changes in economic conditions or return capital to
the Company’s shareholders (whether through cash
distributions, share repurchases, or otherwise); and

o a substantial portion of the Company’s cash and cash
flow from operations must be used to pay principal and
interest on the Senior Credit Facilities and interest on the
Senior Notes until maturity, therefore reducing the cash
flow available to fund the Company’s operations, capital
expenditures and other business opportunities.
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Impact of COVID-19 (Continued)

The Group’s management has prepared and reviewed the Group’s
cash flow projections, including the potential effects of certain
downside scenarios. Based on these projections, the Company
believes the Group will meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due and will comply with the Financial Covenants at least
through March 31, 2023. As such, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis of
accounting.

Whether the Group is able to achieve its plans and measures based
on the cash flow projections described above, which incorporate
assumptions about future events and conditions, is subject to
inherent uncertainties. In particular, whether the Group will be able
to generate adequate operating cash flows may depend upon
factors such as further spread of the COVID-19 virus, continued
restrictions on travel, imposition of quarantines and further
worldwide distribution of COVID-19 vaccines.

Significant Accounting Policies

Unless otherwise noted, the accounting policies set out below have
been applied consistently by the Group to all periods presented,
where material, in these consolidated financial statements.

Principles of Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity.

The financial information of subsidiaries is included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date on which control
commences until the date on which control ceases. All significant
inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statements of financial position within equity, separately from
total equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
in the consolidated statements of income (loss) and consolidated
statements of comprehensive income (loss) as an allocation of the
total profit (loss) for the year and total comprehensive income (loss)
for the year between non-controlling interests and equity holders of
the Company.
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Principles of Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling
and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect
the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognized.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with the
resulting gain or loss being recognized in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is recognized at fair value and this amount is regarded as the new
cost basis on initial recognition of a financial asset or an associate.

A ‘business’ is defined as an integrated set of activities and assets
that is capable of being conducted and managed for the purpose
of providing goods or services to customers, generating investment
income (such as dividends or interest) or generating other income
from ordinary activities. Business combinations are accounted
for using the acquisition method at the acquisition date, which is
the date on which control is obtained by the Group. In assessing
control, the Group takes into consideration substantive potential
voting rights.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as the excess
of the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree, over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured at the
acquisition date. If the net fair value is greater than the consideration
transferred, then this excess is recognized immediately in profit or
loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related
to the settlement of pre-existing relationships, if applicable. Such
amounts generally are recognized in profit or loss.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of
debt or equity securities, that the Group incurs in connection with a
business combination are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at
the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration is classified as
equity, then it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted for
within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration are recognized in profit or loss.
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Principles of Consolidation (Continued)

When share-based payment awards (“replacement awards”)
are required to be exchanged for awards held by the acquiree’s
employees (“acquiree’s awards”) and relate to past services, then
all or a portion of the amount of the acquirer’s replacement awards
is included in measuring consideration transferred in the business
combination. This determination is based on the market-based
value of the replacement awards compared with the market-based
value of the acquiree’s awards and the extent to which the
replacement awards relate to past and/or future service.

Foreign Currency Translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated using foreign exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting
date are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate
at that date. Foreign currency differences arising on re-translation
are recognized in profit or loss, except for differences arising on the
re-translation of qualifying cash flow hedges, which are recognized
in other comprehensive income. The foreign currency gain or loss
on monetary items is the difference between amortized cost in
the functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted
for effective interest and payments during the period, and the
amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange
rate at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at
fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange
rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction.

The assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign subsidiaries are
translated into USD at period end exchange rates. Equity accounts
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into USD at
historical exchange rates. Income and expense accounts are
translated at average monthly exchange rates. All foreign currency
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations are recorded in the foreign currency translation
reserve in the consolidated statements of financial position.
The net exchange gains or losses resulting from translating at
varied exchange rates are presented as a component of other
comprehensive income or loss and accumulated in equity and
attributed to non-controlling interests, as appropriate.
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Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages
in business activities from which it may earn revenues and
incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate
to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. All
operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by
the Group’s management to make decisions about resources to
be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for
which discrete financial information is available.

The Group’s segment reporting is based on geographical areas,
representative of how the Group’s business is managed and
its operating results are evaluated. The Group’s operations are
organized as follows: () “North America”; (i) “Asia”; (iii) “Europe”; (iv)
“Latin America”; and (v) “Corporate”.

Segment results that are reported to management include items
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly
corporate assets, head office expenses, income tax assets and
liabilities, and licensing activities from the license of brand names
owned by the Group.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the
period to acquire property, plant and equipment.

Property, Plant and Equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period
to acquire property, plant and equipment, excluding computer
software costs which are included in intangible assets. Cost
includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the asset. Improvements which extend the life of an asset
are capitalized. Maintenance and repair costs are expensed as
incurred.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major
components).

Gains and losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment, and are recognized in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.
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Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Depreciation and amortization are provided on the straight-line
method over the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term,
if applicable, as follows:

e Buildings
e Machinery, equipment and other
e | easehold improvements

20 to 30 years

3 to 10 years

Lesser of useful life
or the lease term

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed
annually and adjusted if appropriate. Land owned by the Group
with freehold interest is not depreciated.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group is required to assess whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
The Group is required to assess whether, throughout the period
of use, it has both (i) the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the identified asset throughout the
contract period, and (i) the right to direct the use of the identified
asset in order to determine if the asset meets the definition of a
lease in accordance with IFRS 16.

A lease right-of-use asset and a lease liability are recognized at
the lease commencement date. The lease right-of-use asset is
initially measured at cost which comprises the present value of the
corresponding lease liability plus certain direct costs incurred by
the Group and any payments made before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Subsequently, the lease
right-of-use asset is measured at cost less any accumulated
amortization and impairment losses, offset by impairment reversals,
as applicable, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the
lease liability, in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments not yet paid using an incremental borrowing rate.
The incremental borrowing rate represents the cost of obtaining
external financing for a corresponding asset with a financing period
corresponding to the term of the lease denominated in the currency
in which lease payments are settled. The Group has determined
the incremental borrowing rates of each portfolio of leases on
a country-by-country basis. Subsequently, lease liabilities are
measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect the effective
interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments, and re-measuring to reflect any reassessment or
modification or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.
Consequently, the lease liability is measured on an amortized cost
basis and the interest expense is allocated over the lease term.
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(f)

Leases (Continued)

Short-term leases (lease periods that are twelve months or less),
low-value leases (leases that are US$5,000 or less) and the current
and anticipated expenses relating to variable lease payments are
not included in the measurement of lease liabilities. The rental cost
for short-term, low-value and current expense for variable lease
payments continue to be recorded as incurred as rent expense.

For lease right-of-use assets that have been recognized on the
consolidated statement of financial position, an amortization charge
on the lease right-of-use asset is straight-lined over the lease term.
For lease liabilities that have been recognized on the consolidated
statement of financial position, a charge for the interest accretion
on the net present value of the lease liability is recognized and this
amount declines over the individual lease term.

Over the lease term and individually, the total expense is recognized
on a front-loaded basis as the interest charge is higher during the
earlier stages of the lease term and the amortization charge is
recognized on a straight-line basis. These expenses are presented
in separate line items for amortization of the lease right-of-use asset
and interest expense related to the lease liability.

In the consolidated statements of cash flows, the principal
payments on lease liabilities are classified within cash flows from
financing activities, while the interest paid on lease liabilities is
classified within cash flows from operating activities.

Due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, many lessees
have sought rent concessions from lessors. Rent concessions
generally and usually meet the definition of a lease modification
and consequential accounting. The IASB has issued amendments
to IFRS 16 to simplify how lessees account for rent concessions.
The amendment became effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after June 1, 2020 with earlier application
permitted.

The amendments provide an optional practical expedient for
lessees in accounting for eligible rent concessions that are a direct
consequence of COVID-19. Under the practical expedient, lessees
are not required to assess whether eligible rent concessions are
lease maodifications, and instead are permitted to account for them
as if they were not lease modifications.
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Leases (Continued)

Rent concessions are eligible for the practical expedient if they
occur as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and if all
of the following criteria are met:

° the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

. any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before June 30, 2021; and

o there is no substantive change to the other terms and
conditions of the lease.

In March 2021, the IASB extended the COVID-19 related rent
concessions by one year. This change amended IFRS 16 to permit
a lessee to apply the practical expedient regarding COVID-19
related rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before June 30, 2022
(rather than only payments originally due on or before June 30,
2021).

Generally, the lessee will recognize the benefit of the rent
concession, that meet the conditions of the practical expedient,
in profit or loss as if it were a variable lease payment. If a rent
concession does not qualify for the practical expedient or the lessee
chooses not to apply the practical expedient, then the regular
guidance under IFRS 16 will continue to apply. The Group recorded
all such short-term rent concessions, amounting to benefits of
US$21.0 million and US$28.7 million for the years ended December
31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively, as benefits to
variable rent expense, primarily presented in distribution expenses,
in the consolidated statements of income (loss). See note 18(e)
Rent Concessions under IFRS 16 for further discussion.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill that arises upon the acquisition of a business is
recognized as an intangible asset. For measurement of goodwill
at initial recognition, see note 3(b)(iii) Business Combinations.
Subsequent to initial recognition, goodwill is stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash generating unit (‘CGU”), or
groups of CGUs, which are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination and are tested annually for impairment.
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